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Key figures (IFRS® Accounting Standards)’

Munich Re at a glance

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued €m 60,830 57,884 55,385
Claims expenses £€m -43,036 -41,481 -40,393
Administration and acquisition costs €m -8,968 -8,617 -7,807
Total technical result £€m 8,918 7,545 7,070
Operating result €m 7,969 5,702 6,812 3,517 1,986
Taxes on income €m -2,091 -936 -1,324 -552 -269
Net result €m 5,671 4,597 5,309 2,932 1,211
Earnings per share? € 42.78 33.88 38.12 20.93 8.63
Return on equity (RoE)® % 18.2 15.8 20.2 12.6 B3
Return on investment (Rol) % 3.1 2.5 1.3 2.8 3.0
Dividend per share* € 20.00 15.00 11.60 11.00 9.80
Dividend payout* €m 2,616 2,006 1,583 1,541 1,373
Share price at 31 December € 487.10 375.10 304.00 260.50 242.80
Munich Reinsurance Company’s
market capitalisation at 31 December €bn 65.2 51.2 42.6 36.5 34.0
Carrying amount per share € 248.40 220.29 196.83 220.06 213.38
Investments €m 230,716 218,462 207,965 240,300 232,950
Investments for unit-linked life insurance €m 9,186 8,280 7,470 8,582 7,544
Equity €m 32,746 29,772 27,245 30,945 29,994
Insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts
held (net) €m 211,488 203,383 195,454
Balance sheet total £€m 286,515 273,793 269,391 312,405 297,946
Staff at 31 December 43,584 42,812 41,389 39,281 39,642
Reinsurance
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued €m 40,034 37,786 36,489
Investments £€m 101,769 90,387 84,615 99,617 91,248
Insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts
held (net) £€m 74,900 69,575 66,100
Major losses (net) €m -3,885 -3,278 -3,741 -4,304 -4,689
Natural catastrophe losses €m -2,644 -2,335 -2,118 -3,139 -906
Combined ratio property-casualty % 82.4 85.2 83.2 99.6 105.6
Investment result €m 3,173 2,432 1,309 3,422 3,193
Net result £€m 4,880 3,876 4,737 2,328 694
Thereof: Reinsurance - Life and health €m 1,681 1,428 1,314 325 123
Thereof: Reinsurance — Property-casualty €m 3,199 2,448 3,423 2,003 571
Return on equity (RoE)® % 18.5 16.2 22.2 13.4 4.1
ERGO
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued €m 20,796 20,098 18,896
Investments (including Investments for unit-linked life
insurance) €m 138,134 136,355 130,820 149,265 149,245
Insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts
held (net) £€m 136,588 133,808 129,354
Combined ratio property-casualty Germany % 89.2 88.9 90.3 92.4 92.4
Combined ratio International % 91.9 90.1 9515 92.9 92.7
Investment result €m 4,018 2,942 1,674 3,734 4,206
Net result £€m 791 721 572 605 517
Thereof: ERGO Life and Health Germany €m 230 183 307 164 130
Thereof: ERGO Property-casualty Germany £€m 260 252 173 234 157
Thereof: ERGO International €m 301 286 92 207 230
Return on equity (RoE)® % 16.5 14.4 11.6 10.1 8.8

1 You can download this information as an Excel file; please refer to the Financial Supplement at www.munichre.com/results-reports. IFRS 17 for insurance contracts,
and IFRS 9 for financial instruments have applied since the 2023 financial year. For the year 2022, the figures for the insurance business are shown on the basis of
IFRS 17; the figures for financial instruments are predominantly still based on IAS 39. The years 2020 and 2021 have not been adjusted in accordance with IFRS 9 and
IFRS 17. Prior-year comparisons are therefore only possible to a limited extent.

W N

> (7) Alternative performance measures.
4 Subject to approval by the Annual General Meeting.

Earnings per share for 2022 before adjustment of the value due to changes in accounting standards amounted to €24.63.
Information on calculation of the RoE can be found in the > Notes to the consolidated financial statements > Explanatory information > Segment disclosures


http://www.munichre.com/results-reports
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To our shareholders

Dr. Joachim Wenning
Chair of Munich Reinsurance
Company's Board of Management

Dear _rlaretsCofers,

Munich Re continues to thrive. We generated a net result of €5.7bn in 2024,
outperforming four annual targets in a row. Our profit growth has been
substantial and sustained in recent years. In comparison with our peers, our
achievements stand out.

And continually rising net results are not the only sign of our Group’s success.
Our share price likewise mirrors our strength. After topping €400 for the
first time ever in 2023, Munich Re's share price surpassed the €500 mark in
2024. Since the launch of our five-year Ambition 2025 strategy programme
in 2021, our share price had essentially doubled by the end of 2024.

We also continue to be at the forefront of the eight leading (re)insurers in
Europe in terms of total shareholder return. This is where the greatest value
for shareholders is created through rising share prices and dividends. Simply
put, the trust you place in our Group pays off.

Subject to approval by the Annual General Meeting, we will increase the
dividend by €5 to €20 per share. We have also approved a new share buy-
back with a volume of €2bn, a rise of €500m year on year. This boosts our
distributions to shareholders for yet another significant increase.

Munich Re Group Annual Report 2024



To our shareholders

In economic terms, 2024 was another spectacular year for Munich Re,
which enabled us to make further provision once again. In addition to
boosting reserves, we realised tactical investment losses so as to profit
from higher interest rates upon reinvestment - in turn fostering future
profits. Our balance sheet and capital position continue to be exceptionally
strong. This makes Munich Re resilient to crisis.

That is important, as market losses due to natural disasters have been
going up, and only up. 2024 was no exception — on the contrary, this trend
has even accelerated. Natural catastrophes caused US$ 320bn in
worldwide losses last year, of which about US$ 140bn were insured. Only
two years since 1980 were more expensive for our industry. But this claims
development has not caught us off guard. Indeed, overall our risk models
have proved to be very accurate one year after another. And we have in total
managed to earn the requisite rates. As in years past, Munich Re’s major-loss
expenditure in 2024 matched our budgeted amount almost exactly.

When we look at the macroeconomic environment in which we operate, we
are confronted with something no less challenging. Global economic growth
in 2024 was merely moderate. And the outlook for 2025 is not much better.
We predict that the world’s economy will grow moderately — with solid growth
in the United States, but only weak growth in Europe and China’s economy
slowing down further.

And then there are geopolitical uncertainties. Elections are leading to
change in many countries. New motives and ambitions are emerging. New
balances of power are forming. The world order has become more fragile.
When turbulence reigns, strength is key. Now more than ever, Munich Re is
a financial powerhouse. And that makes us resilient to external influences.

In the interest of strategic leadership in a competitive industry, we excel by
anticipating change and ensuring that we are fit for the future. This applies,
for example, to artificial intelligence and other technological advancements.
Munich Re once again made targeted investments in Al applications last year.
Throughout the Munich Re Group, we have identified, launched or already
implemented over 300 Al use cases. In the medium term, deploying
artificial intelligence will help to increase efficiency, enhance our competitive
edge and close gaps created by demographic change.

Our financial stability can largely be traced to the diversification of our
business portfolios. As all our portfolios are now profitable, we are better
positioned than ever to offset fluctuations in (re)insurance profit. And now
for some details on each operating segment.

Munich Re Group Annual Report 2024



To our shareholders

In 2024, ERGO achieved its annual target by generating a net result of
around €790m. ERGO earned much more insurance revenue in international
business year on year, which was primarily attributable to property-casualty
insurance business in Poland and Thailand. Revenue in international health
business likewise rose substantially.

ERGO has successfully acquired companies outside of Germany in recent
years, paving the way for further profitable growth. Since 2024, ERGO has
been the sole owner of the Norwegian health insurer Storebrand
Helseforsikring AS' after acquiring the remaining 50% of the voting shares.
ERGO also concluded in 2024 an acquisition agreement for the Baltic
non-life insurer ADB Gjensidige. And since obtaining control in 2023 of
Nam Seng Insurance, a property-casualty insurer in Thailand, ERGO has
improved its market position there and transformed the entity into one of
the country’s ten largest property insurers.

In the ERGO Life and Health Germany segment, insurance revenue rose
thanks to long-term and short-term health business in particular. Demand
for supplementary insurance continued to rise, with considerable interest
in travel insurance products, too. New business grew with regard to both
cover for life risks and creation of capital-efficient retirement provision.

In the Property-casualty Germany segment, insurance revenue
increased — particularly in fire and property as well as motor insurance.

The reinsurance field of business continues to be very profitable. We
expanded reinsurance business further in 2024, with insurance revenue
rising to just over €40bn and this field's result to about €4.9bn - a billion
euros more year on year.

The performance of the life and health segment in particular remained
excellent. In fact, we surpassed the annual target for this segment after just
the first nine months of 2024 thanks to substantial growth in new business,
among other factors. The 2024 total technical result here ultimately
amounted to €2.1bn, which was €650m more than initially expected. That
set a new record profit level for life reinsurance. The contractual service
margin (CSM)?, which represents the value of anticipated future profits, rose
during 2024 from €12.3bn to €14.5bn.

1 Now: ERGO Forsikring AS.
2 Net of reinsurance.
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To our shareholders

Munich Re also grew profitably once again in its property-casualty
segment - in traditional reinsurance and specialty insurance business alike;
the latter is managed by our Global Specialty Insurance (GSI) division. The
combined ratios for both lines of business proved robust in the face of the
above-mentioned nat cat claims trends. Although the lion's share of claims
here was once again attributable to the peak risk of hurricanes in the USA,
secondary perils such as flooding, severe storms and wildfires also resulted
in high claims burdens. Against a backdrop of rising market losses, such
perils will become increasingly significant going forward.

Buoyed by sustained, very good earnings performance in primary insurance
and reinsurance, we were able to foster the rise in current return on
investment through the early sale at a loss of fixed-interest securities with
low interest rates — the proceeds of which we invested anew at higher
interest rates. We did this to generate higher investment returns in the long
term. Our reinvestment yield was 4.4% in 2024, with the running yield
rising to 3.5%. Overall, the 2024 investment result represented a return of
3.1% — which outperformed our target of more than 2.8%.

Allin all, 2024 was the latest very good year of many for Munich Re. Profits

throughout the Group have risen in significant and sustained ways in recent
years. Reinsurance business truly stands out in this regard. We are fully

on track to meet — and in some cases even surpass — the financial and non-

financial targets of Ambition 2025.

Our profit target for 2025 is €6bn. The outlook remains good for growth
and profits in property-casualty reinsurance. New business in life and health
continues to grow. And ERGO is set to stay the course of stable success.
Although we expect our investments to continue benefiting from respectable
interest rates, confidence must always be tempered with prudence. There is
no guarantee that profits will rise for evermore. The extensive wildfires in
Los Angeles in January 2025 served as an alarm bell that large loss events
can occur at any time. Depending on risk exposure, extreme events can
even impact our financial targets. But these events also reinforce the value
of the products we sell.

2025 will be a pivotal year for Munich Re. We are now in the home stretch of

Ambition 2025. And in December of this year we will unveil our next strategy
programme, which we are working flat out to formulate.

Munich Re Group Annual Report 2024



To our shareholders

Our nearly 44,000 staff members worldwide are fully committed to making
Ambition 2025 a complete success. When it comes to achieving goals,
2025 will be a milestone. We will do our very best to ensure it is a year that
we will all recall fondly.

| wish to thank you, dear shareholders, for the trust you place in our Group.

Yours sincerely,

e

Joachim Wenning
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Combined management report
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Strategy

Munich Re operates an integrated business model that
combines primary insurance and reinsurance. This model
enables us to pool our industry-wide areas of expertise,
share underlying know-how and data, and leverage synergies
through risk diversification.

At the core of our business model, Munich Re is the risk
carrier along the entire insurance value chain. We are happy
to expand our primary insurance activities on the basis of
their stable earnings and have a strategic interest in new
business models. We prefer organic growth, but will
engage in selected M&A activities in line with our strategic
preferences. Our active, integrated capital management
and risk management across the Group helps to create
economic value for our shareholders, while safeguarding the
fulfilment of our obligations towards clients and policyholders
as well as protecting the reputation of Munich Re.

Our strategy follows the three guiding principles of Scale,

Shape, and Succeed, which are key pillars of the Munich Re
Group Ambition 2025.

Scale
Scale represents growth in the Group's core business. The

opportunities for organic growth lie particularly in reinsurance
and, through Global Specialty Insurance (GSI), in specialty

Our pledge to shareholders

primary insurance business. In asset management, we
want to enhance performance and further optimise our
risk-return profile in the current interest rate environment.

Shape

Shape stands for Munich Re’s mission to develop new
business models that are aligned with our core business
throughout the value chain, in turn shaping markets. In this
environment, innovative and digital solutions will give rise
to additional business opportunities.

Succeed

Succeed symbolises the added value that Munich Re
generates for all its stakeholders. For shareholders, this
means the sustained financial success of their investments
in Munich Re. Clients benefit from bespoke products.
And for staff, Succeed implies appealing long-term
employment and good career prospects. A particular
priority concerns women in management: by 2025, 40%
of managers below the Board of Management are to be
women. Last but not least, Succeed allows communities
to benefit from, in particular, the Group's climate targets
in its asset management, (re)insurance business and in its
own business operations.

The success of the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025 is
measured using the following targets:

Improved RoE, 2025 EPS growth?

DPS growth*2

Solvency Il ratio
in optimal range

14-16% > 5%

> 5% 175-220%

Decarbonisation targets for thermal coal, oil and natural gas

1 Average annual growth rate 2023-2025 based on the outlook for 2023.
2 In addition: dividend floor of at least previous year's DPS.

We want to generate an attractive return on equity (RoE)
between 14% and 16%. The higher RoE achieved in the course
of the strategy period through the end of 2025 - compared
to our previous financial targets and in accordance with the
provisions of IFRS 9 and IFRS 17 — will result from increased
profitability, growth, and an improved return on investment.

Continued earnings growth is poised to translate into

higher earnings per share, with a targeted average annual
rise of 5% or more by 2025.
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The implicit dividend commitment of recent decades is
now an explicit target of the Munich Re Group Ambition
2025: in “normal” years, the dividend per share is to rise by
5% or more on average, similarly to the increase in earnings
per share. In years with unusually high claims expenditure,
it is expected that the dividend per share will at least remain
the same.

We consider the optimum range for the solvency ratio to be
175% to 220%.

As an environmentally conscientious business, Munich Re
has set medium- and long-term decarbonisation targets
for its investments, its (re)insurance business and its

own operations. We have outlined our aspirations in our
Munich Re Ambition 2025.
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Munich Re expressed this intention in the expectation that
governments will meet their own pledges to achieve the
goals of the Paris Agreement. With regard to the definition
and scope of net zero, we will consider the latest insights
from regulatory requirements when we define new targets.

Relevant details on our Ambition 2025 and our climate
strategy can be found in the > Combined non-financial
statement > Environmental information > Climate change
> Climate strategy and the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025.

Reinsurance

Munich Re’s strategic aim is to expand our position as
a leading global reinsurer and, through GSI, to further
consolidate our success in specialty primary insurance
business through our special underwriting expertise.

Our reinsurance strategy likewise relies on the three pillars of
Scale, Shape, Succeed — which define measures for achieving
overarching objectives.

In traditional reinsurance, Munich Re is participating in the
marked expansion of significant markets. Growth areas in
our core business include the expansion of the market
position in developed markets in North America, Europe,
Asia and Australia — with a focus on risk expertise and
underwriting quality. Munich Re is also growing in the
emerging markets of Asia, the Middle East and Africa, and
South America — in particular by offering bespoke services
and products for cedants.

With regard to specialty primary insurance business within
reinsurance, Munich Re focuses on North America, the
United Kingdom and Europe, and has set itself the goal of
being one of the world’s leading specialty insurers by 2025.
The bundling of activities in the GSI division aims to bring
about a stringent market and broker strategy, as well as the
consistent management of the following units: American
Modern Insurance Group Inc. (American Modern), the
Hartford Steam Boiler Inspection and Insurance Company
(HSB), Munich Re Specialty — North America (MRS-NA)
and Munich Re Specialty — Global Markets (MRS-GM). In
this regard, Munich Re’s goals are to create synergies in
underwriting, sales and digitalisation, while also addressing
the increased regulatory requirements for primary
insurance business. At the beginning of 2025, the activities
of the GSI division were transferred to a separate segment
within the reinsurance field of business.

Munich Re Group Annual Report 2024

Munich Re’s long-term competitiveness in traditional
reinsurance and speciality primary insurance is particularly
sustained by excellence in operations, the development of
new product solutions, the use of new technologies, and
new strategic initiatives in our business activities.

The focus of our excellence initiatives is on first-class
underwriting and risk management at the highest level,
practised client orientation and outstanding client
management, accurate claims handling, agile and efficient
processes, and the exploitation of synergies within

the Group - both in partnerships in product and market
development, and in the use of service functions.

Both traditional reinsurance and Global Specialty Insurance
are constantly defining new topic areas and solutions to
further develop the business. For example, Munich Re is
driving forward product innovations for cyber, flooding,
parametric covers, credit insurance and financially
motivated reinsurance — for instance, by offering data-
driven solutions and services under third-party brands,
alongside its own reinsurance covers.

Data and Al are playing an increasingly important role in
both specialty primary insurance and traditional reinsurance,
principally in the form of Al-supported decision-making in
reinsurance — especially in underwriting — and in terms of
process automation and efficiency gains. Generative Al in
particular opens up new opportunities to harness the
potential of external data using pre-trained models and
enables the quality of internal data to be improved through
Al-supported data management. In reinsurance, our Al
approach is complemented by our data strategy, which
enables data-driven solutions and services to be provided
in line with the needs of our business units, for example for
use in risk assessment, loss projection and pricing.

Along with investing in innovation and digitalisation
projects, the reinsurance field of business also operates as
a venture capitalist. Beyond the objective of generating
especially profitable returns on investment, the reinsurance
field of business deploys venture capital to ensure the
closest possible proximity to new technologies and emerging
business models.
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E RG O The ever-increasing changes in markets caused by digital
transformation and new patterns of customer behaviour

ERGO's strategic aim is to continue growing profitably demand flexibility in both services and products. In this

through 2025 and, as regards return on equity (RoE), to context, ERGO is focusing consistently on the needs of

become one of the top primary insurers in Europe. To this its customers, who are increasingly using traditional and

end, ERGQ'’s portfolio of strategic measures likewise relies digital channels in parallel when seeking advice and

on the three pillars Scale, Shape, and Succeed, which purchasing insurance products.

define steps for achieving overarching objectives.
The ongoing modernisation of IT infrastructures continues

One of ERGO's aims is to further improve its market to play a key role here. In addition, ERGO is seeking a
position and profitability in Germany, with a focus on leading role in digitalisation by consistently driving forward
further developing its underwriting expertise and resolutely traditional and generative Al, chatbots and virtual assistants,
driving forward end-to-end process excellence, while for example — with an eye to continually enhancing customer
generating strong growth with partners in multi-level sales experience. ERGO aims at further increasing its competitive
(B2B2C) and through purely direct offers, as well as strength by transferring technology-based solutions and
reducing IT, sales and operating costs. In international greater leveraging of cross-border synergies. ERGO will
business, ERGO concentrates on Europe and Asia, where continue to rely on external and internal resources in
high-growth markets such as India, China and Thailand generating innovative business ideas to further expand the
offer particularly promising opportunities. business model along the entire insurance value chain and

unlock growth potential in the digital world.
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Tools of corporate
management and strategic
financial objectives

Munich Re’s management
philosophy - Based on value creation

The aim of Munich Re's management philosophy is to
analyse risks from every conceivable angle and to assess
and diversify them, creating lasting value for shareholders,
clients, and staff in relation to the risks assumed. This is the
aim of our active capital management and the consistent
application of value- and risk-based management systems.

The framework for any business activity is our risk strategy,
from which we derive our limit system and various reporting
thresholds. Our economic capital resources, which we
determine in accordance with the Solvency Il supervisory
regime, are a key element. We monitor a range of important
additional conditions. These include national accounting
regulations, tax aspects, liquidity requirements, supervisory
parameters, and rating agency requirements.

Our value-based management is characterised by the
following aspects:

- Risk capital, i.e. the capital required to cover the risks, is
the foundation of our value- and risk-based management.
The capital requirement corresponds to the solvency
capital requirement under Solvency I, as determined on
the basis of our certified internal risk model. Information
on the internal model is provided in the > Risk report
> Risk governance and risk management system > Risks
depicted in the internal model.

- Consequently, business activities are assessed not only
according to their earnings potential, but also relative to
the extent of the risks assumed. Only the risk-return
relationship reveals how beneficial an activity is from the
point of view of our shareholders.

- With value-based corporate management tools, we
ensure an economic valuation and the comparability of
alternative initiatives.

Contrasting aspects have to be evaluated when selecting
suitable target figures. On the one hand, the often-complex
economic environment should be reflected as realistically
as possible in order to emphasise added value as the
Group’s overriding guiding principle. On the other hand,
targets should be straightforward and understandable for
investors, staff, and the public.
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The Group's corporate management
tools

Our key corporate management tools at Group level are the
IFRS net result and economic earnings. Together with the
other performance indicators, they constitute the most
important financial indicators of relevance for us. Since the
introduction of IFRS 9 and IFRS 17, the Group's accounting
in accordance with the IFRS Accounting Standards has
provided a more accurate reflection of economic earnings,
and therefore, greater transparency for our stakeholders.

The Group'’s corporate

management tools

IFRS net result

Economic earnings
\

Other performance indicators

- Insurance revenue

- Combined ratio

- Total technical result for life and health
reinsurance

- Return on investment (Rol)

IFRS net result

We use the IFRS net result as a standardised, accounting-
based benchmark for the Group and its fields of business.
The standardised approach of the IFRS net result makes
it easier to understand the information in it; as such, it is

a pivotal part of our financial reporting in capital markets.

Economic earnings

The starting point for value-based management is the
economic value added, which we determine based on
economic earnings. These earnings correspond with the
change in eligible own funds under Solvency Il, adjusted for
items that do not represent economic value added — such
as capital measures and changes in regulatory restrictions.

In particular, economic earnings comprise the contribution
to profits from our new business, and changes in the value
of in-force business against the previous year's assessment
on account of technical factors. The development of eligible
own funds is also considered because of the effect of
capital market parameters on the asset and liability sides
of the solvency balance sheet.
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With respect to the management of economic value added,
we use conceptually consistent value-based and risk-capital-
based measurement approaches that are individually
geared to the characteristics of each field of business. Our
approach for property-casualty reinsurance — and for the
new Global Specialty Insurance (GSI) segment that was
created with effect from 1 January 2025 - is based on the
adjusted result, which comprises the anticipated discounted
cash flows of underwriting and an adjustment for major
claims. In life and health reinsurance, we apply value added
by new business and the change in value of in-force
business, which are based on the solvency balance sheet.
As part of our asset-liability management, we consider the
excess return from our investment operations in reinsurance.
The management tool of economic earnings is used directly
for ERGO.

Other performance indicators

Insurance revenue from insurance contracts
issued (insurance revenue)

Insurance revenue is a key indicator for corporate growth,
both at Group level and for the individual fields of business.
However, increases in this performance metric are not

an inherently meaningful target for our Group, as we
must always consider revenue growth as it relates to the
profitability of the business we write.

Combined ratio

The combined ratio is a regularly used metric for property-
casualty business. It is calculated as the percentage ratio of
the insurance service expenses and insurance revenue,
both of which on a net basis, i.e. after reinsurance cessions.
The combined ratio is the sum of the loss ratio and the
expense ratio. A combined ratio of 100% means that
insurance revenue was sufficient to cover claims and costs.!
Given that the combined ratio takes into account the time

1 Details on determining the combined ratio can be found in the > Notes to
the consolidated financial statements > Explanatory information > Segment
disclosures > (7) Alternative performance measures.
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value of money and the uncertainty of future cash flows, it
can also be used to assess economic profitability. It is only of
limited suitability for comparing the financial performance
of competitors owing to differing calculation methods and
portfolio mixes. Generally, we aim to keep the combined
ratio as low as possible by means of good underwriting and
claims management.

Total technical result — Life and health
reinsurance

Owing to the long-term nature of business in life and health
reinsurance, the combined ratio used in property-casualty
insurance is only of limited use in this segment. We
therefore track and post the technical result for life and
health reinsurance. It consistently combines underwriting
business with insurance-related financial instruments.

Return on investment (Rol)

This is a key indicator of investment performance for
Munich Re, on the basis of external reporting. It is derived
from the investment result and the average market value
of our investment portfolio.?

Strategic financial objectives as part
of the Munich Re Group Ambition
2025

Munich Re publishes further performance indicators within
the framework of its multi-year result ambition. Given the
longer time horizon of several years and the correspondingly
greater uncertainties, the result targets published for these
performance indicators take the form of anticipated corridors
or minimum targets only. You can find details of the objectives
for the key indicators given here for the Munich Re Group
Ambition 2025 under > Strategy.®

2 The calculation of the Rol is described under > Business performance
> Investment performance in the table “Investment result”.

3 Information on the non-financial targets of the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025
can also be found in the > Combined management report > Strategy.



Combined management report
Tools of corporate management and strategic financial objectives

Strategic financial objectives as part of the

Munich Re Group Ambition 2025

Return on equity (RoE)
Earnings per share

Dividend per share
|

Solvency ratio under Solvency Il

Return on equity (RoE)

The RoE is an important profitability KPI, which is of
particular relevance in the medium term. It is calculated on
the basis of the IFRS result in relation to the average IFRS
equity at the beginning and end of the year. [FRS equity is
adjusted in particular for changes outside profit or loss, for
example the fair value reserve. Further adjustments are
made to eliminate distortions attributable to intra-Group
transactions.
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The RoE is significantly influenced by the IFRS result. IFRS
equity is affected by profits as well as by capital measures
such as dividend payments and share buy-backs, in
particular. The RoE is disclosed for the Group and for the
reinsurance and ERGO fields of business.

Earnings per share

The earnings per share figure reflects the IFRS net result
for a year in relation to the average number of outstanding
shares at the beginning and end of the year. It is primarily
influenced by the IFRS net result. The number of outstanding
shares can change as a result of share buy-backs or other
capital measures. Further information on the earnings per
share is available in the > Notes to the consolidated
financial statements > Explanatory information > Other
information > (66) Earnings per share.

Dividend per share

The dividend per share reflects the dividends paid for one
year in relation to the number of dividend-bearing shares.
The number of shares can change as a result of share buy-
backs or other capital measures.

Solvency ratio under Solvency |l

The solvency ratio under Solvency Il is the ratio of the
eligible own funds to the solvency capital requirement.
Information on solvency capital requirements and eligible
own funds is available in the > Risk report.
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Macroeconomic and
industry environment

The global economy continued on its moderate growth
trajectory in 2024. While what had previously been very
strong growth in the United States tapered off slightly, the
economy in the eurozone gradually recovered from
stagnation, although Germany’s economy contracted
slightly. The rate of growth in China fell, prompting
extensive fiscal support measures. Although rates of
inflation in the United States and the eurozone alike were
down year on year, price pressures in services remained high.

Capital markets

Major central banks started loosening the monetary policy
reins in 2024 on the back of falling inflation. The European
Central Bank started its cycle of rate cuts in June and had
lowered the rate for its deposit facility from 4% to 3% by the
end of the year. From September, the Federal Reserve in
the United States took several steps to reduce the target
corridor for its key rate from 5.25-5.5% to 4.25-4.5%. Yields
on ten-year government bonds in the US and Germany
moved within a slightly narrower range in 2024 than in
2023 and, over the year as a whole, remained more or less on
par with the previous year on average, despite the key rate
cuts. In the US, mounting inflation expectations associated
with Donald Trump’s election drove bond yields up. At the
end of December, US yields were significantly higher, and
German yields slightly higher, than at the start of the year.

Yields on ten-year government bonds
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Equity markets
31.12.2024 Prev. year
EURO STOXX 50 4,896 4,522
Dow Jones Industrial Average 42,544 37,690

% 31.12.2024 Prev. year
USA 4.6 3.9
Germany 2.4 2.0

Important equity indices rose significantly in 2024, including
the US Dow Jones Industrial Average and the EURO
STOXX 50. Volatility on the international financial markets
was low in the first half of the year. Prices slumped in
August triggered by concerns surrounding the US economy,
but volatility levels soon fell again.
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Exchange rate volatility was not particularly pronounced,
as in the previous year. The US dollar gained ground
against a large number of currencies in the fourth quarter
as investors anticipated higher inflation and a delay in the
cycle of interest rate cuts. At the end of December, the
US dollar and the pound sterling were much higher — and
the Polish zloty somewhat higher — against the euro
compared with the start of the year. Looking at the year
on average, however, the value of the US dollar remained
unchanged against the prior-year period at €0.92. On
average, the value of the pound sterling was somewhat
higher against the euro in 2024; the value of the Polish
zloty was much higher than the annual average in 2023.
The value of the Canadian dollar against the euro was
lower both on average year on year and when comparing
the year's end with the start of the year.

Insurance industry

According to current extrapolations, premium income in
the German insurance sector grew at a much faster rate
in 2024 than in 2023. After several years of declining
premium income, life insurance premiums rose slightly in
2024. Premium growth in private health insurance and, in
particular, in property-casualty insurance was above the
long-term average.

On a global level, a number of major property-casualty
primary insurance markets in industrialised countries
experienced strong growth in 2024 - resulting in a
substantial increase in global premium income, even
when adjusted for high inflation. Overall, the trend toward
higher prices diminished in the renewal rounds for
property-casualty reinsurance contracts. However, this
trend varied significantly among regions and classes of
business — depending on claims experience, loss
expectations and the individual market situation.
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Munich Re Group

Munich Re is one of the world's leading risk carriers and
provides both insurance and reinsurance under one roof.
This enables the Group to cover large stretches of the value
chain in the risk market. Almost all reinsurance units
operate under the uniform brand of Munich Re. ERGO is
active in nearly all lines of life, health and property-casualty
insurance. The majority of Munich Re's investments are
managed by MEAG, which also offers its expertise to
private and institutional investors outside the Group.

For up-to-date information about Munich Re, visit
www.munichre.com.

Group structure

The reinsurance companies of the Group operate globally
and in virtually all classes of business. Munich Re offers a
full range of products, from traditional reinsurance to
innovative solutions for risk assumption. Our companies
conduct their business from their respective headquarters

Overview
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and via a large number of branches, subsidiaries and
affiliated companies. Additionally, the reinsurance group
includes specialty primary insurers, whose business
requires special competence in finding appropriate
solutions.

In ERGO, we combine our primary insurance activities.
Some 65% of ERGO’s insurance revenue derives from
Germany, and 35% from international business — mainly
from central and eastern European countries. ERGO also
operates in Asian markets, particularly in India, China, and
Thailand.

MEAG comprises MEAG MUNICH ERGO Asset-
Management GmbH — which manages securities and
property portfolios and provides investment consultancy
exclusively for Munich Re Group companies — and MEAG
MUNICH ERGO Kapitalanlagegesellschaft mbH, which
manages segregated and retail funds with varying
investment focuses and renders bespoke investment
management services for non-Group institutional investors
outside the USA.

Munich Re Group

Fields of business

Segments Life and health Property-casualty
a‘:rligga; nudngii'i sions | Psia Pacific, —-Glebal Clients and
Middle East, North America
Africa - Europe and Latin
- North America America
- Europe and — Asia Pacific and
Latin America Africa
- Markets - Global Specialty
Insurance
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Property-casualty International
Germany

— ERGO Versiche-
rung Aktien-
gesellschaft,
Disseldorf,

- Life insurance

- Property-casualty
insurance

- Health insurance

offering property-
casualty insu-
rance for retail,
commercial

and industrial
customers
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Locations in which Munich Re conducts (re)insurance business via business units'! (as at 31 December 2024):

Africa Malaysia Europe
South Africa Singapore Austria
South Korea Belgium
Asia Thailand Czech Republic
Bahrain Denmark
Greater China Australia and Estonia
India New Zealand France
Japan Germany
Greece

Ireland Poland Brazil

Italy Spain Colombia
Latvia Sweden Mexico
Lithuania Switzerland Venezuela
Luxembourg United Kingdom

Malta North America
Netherlands Latin America Canada
Norway Argentina USA

1 Including affiliated companies, associates, joint ventures and branches of (re)insurance companies of Munich Re.

Munich Reinsurance Company and ERGO Group AG are
under unified control within the meaning of the German
Stock Corporation Act (AktG). The relevant statutory
regulations, control agreements and Group directives govern
the distribution of responsibilities and competences for key
decisions between Group management and ERGO. Control
and profit-transfer agreements are in place with many
Group companies, especially between ERGO Group AG and
its subsidiaries.

Reinsurance

Our reinsurance group transacts life, health and property-
casualty reinsurance business. Moreover, it includes
primary specialty insurance activities that are handled by
the reinsurance organisation, and business from managing
general agents.

As reinsurers, we write our business in direct collaboration
with primary insurers, via brokers and within the framework
of strategic partnerships. In addition to traditional reinsurance
business, we further operate as a primary insurer,
participating in insurance pools, public-private partnerships
and business in specialist niche segments. We furthermore
offer our clients a wide range of special products as well

as customised insurance solutions and services, which we
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manage from within our reinsurance organisation. Our
clients thus have direct access to the expertise, innovative
strength and capacity of a leading global risk carrier.
Thanks to our capital management know-how, we are in
demand as a partner for products geared to our clients’
balance-sheet, solvency and rating-capital requirements,
as well as their risk models.

Reinsurance - Life and health

We bundle our life and health reinsurance business
worldwide in the life and health reinsurance segment. This
is split into three divisions organised by geographical area,
as well as an additional global division (Markets) that offers
specialised solutions for hedging capital market risks.

This segment focuses on traditional reinsurance solutions
primarily geared to the transfer of insurance risks, mortality
risk accounting for the largest share of this. Moreover, we
are active in the market for living benefits products. These
include insurance products for occupational disability, long-
term care, and critical iliness. We also provide capacity for
longevity risks.

In addition, we support our customers with a wide range
of services along large stretches of the value chain. These
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include the development of new insurance products as well
as digital and automated solutions for risk assessment and
claims handling.

Alongside conventional solutions for the coverage of
insurance risks, we also offer tailor-made structured
strategies to optimise capitalisation, liquidity, or other
key metrics.

Our Markets division pairs our global expertise with a range
of services for capital market risks, which are often a
component of savings, investment and pension products.
We provide our clients with comprehensive advice on
product design while offering hedging for embedded
options and guarantees linked to capital markets. Our own
exposure is transferred back to the capital markets.

In order to ensure proximity to our clients, we are
represented in many markets with local subsidiaries and
branches. We service the extremely important North
American market via our Canadian branch and our
subsidiary in the US. In Europe, we have operations in
Germany, the United Kingdom, Switzerland, Spain, Italy
and Malta. We also operate subsidiaries in Australia, Brazil
and South Africa (the latter’s business was transferred
to a newly founded South African branch of Munich
Reinsurance Company as of 1 January 2025), and have
branches in various Asian and South American markets.

Reinsurance — Property-casualty

The Global Clients and North America division handles our
accounts with major international insurance groups, globally
operating Lloyd's syndicates and Bermuda companies. It
also pools our reinsurance know-how in the North American
market for property-casualty business — in particular that of
our Munich Reinsurance America Inc. subsidiary domiciled
there — and for global large-risk business, which is pooled in
our Facultative & Corporate unit.

Our Europe and Latin America division is responsible for
property-casualty business with our clients from Europe,
Latin America and the Caribbean. Business units — for
example, in London, Madrid, Paris and Milan - afford us
market proximity and regional competence. In the Latin
American markets, our Brazilian subsidiary Munich Re do
Brasil Resseguradora S.A. (which is headquartered in Sao
Paulo) and our representative offices in Bogota and Mexico
City help to ensure client proximity. Our Europe and Latin
America division also includes the credit business — where
Munich Re operates as a reinsurer and primary insurer — and
New Reinsurance Company Ltd., which is domiciled in Zurich.

The Asia Pacific and Africa division conducts property-
casualty reinsurance business with our clients in Africa,
Asia, Australia, New Zealand and the Pacific Islands.
Branches in Mumbai, Beijing, Hong Kong, Seoul, Singapore,
Sydney and Tokyo, along with representative offices in
Bangkok, Taipei and Dubai, allow us to take full advantage of
opportunities in the rapidly growing Asia-Pacific insurance
market. In the African market, we were represented prior to
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2025 by a subsidiary in Johannesburg; effective 1 January
2025, its business was transferred to a newly founded
South African branch of Munich Reinsurance Company.
These units and other representative offices guarantee our
competitiveness in these key markets.

The Global Specialty Insurance (GSI) division comprises
worldwide specialty property-casualty business along with
special-lines business, such as professional liability, marine,
cyber, aviation and space. HSB and American Modern — two
large subsidiaries domiciled in the USA and operating in
the field of specialised insurance activities — are allocated to
this division, as are Munich Re Specialty — North America
(MRS-NA), and Munich Re Specialty — Global Markets
(MRS-GM). The GSI units specialise in products for

which - like in reinsurance — expert risk understanding as
well as insightful claims handling are paramount. American
Modern offers specialty personal lines products in the USA.
MRS-NA offers various specialty commercial insurance
products in the North American market. HSB is a leading
global provider of products that depend on expertise in
engineering, loss control and risk management. MRS-GM,
in turn, through use of the Munich Re Syndicate and other
subsidiaries, is a leading global provider of marine insurance
and insurance solutions for the aviation industry. Effective

1 January 2025, the activities of the GSI division were
transferred to a separate segment within the reinsurance
field of business.

ERGO

Munich Re’s second pillar is primary insurance business.

ERGO Deutschland AG manages German business under
the ERGO Group AG umbrella, with ERGO International AG
responsible for international business. ERGO Technology &
Services Management AG has a transnational mandate as a
global technology and service provider for ERGO as a whole.
It is also responsible for digitalisation activities, Group
marketing, and global sales partnerships within ERGO
Group AG.

ERGO offers products in all the main classes of insurance:
life insurance, health insurance, and in nearly all lines of
property-casualty insurance, as well as travel insurance and
legal protection insurance. With these products —in
combination with the provision of assistance, other services
and individual consultancy — ERGO covers the needs of
retail and corporate clients. ERGO serves some 31 million
mostly retail customers in over 20 countries, with the focus
on Europe and Asia. The latest information on ERGO can be

found at www.ergo.com.

In Germany, the focus is on sustainable and profitable
growth. ERGO Versicherung AG is one of the largest
providers of property-casualty insurance across nearly all
classes of business, offering a wide range of products for
retail, commercial and industrial clients. ERGO Vorsorge
Lebensversicherung AG is ERGO’s life insurer for capital-
market-linked and biometric products. It offers solutions
for all three types of old-age provision, mainly based on


https://www.ergo.com/en
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innovative and flexible unit-linked insurance products. ERGO
Lebensversicherung AG and Victoria Lebensversicherung AG
are concentrating on running off their traditional life
insurance portfolios. DKV Deutsche Krankenversicherung AG
offers a comprehensive portfolio in the healthcare sector:
comprehensive private health insurance, products designed
to supplement statutory health cover, and company

health insurance. ERGO Krankenversicherung AG focuses
on products that supplement statutory health insurance,
especially supplementary dental plans. ERGO Reise-
versicherung AG is one of the leading travel insurers in
Germany and Europe as a whole.

In Germany, ERGO'’s tied agents (agency sales), ERGO Pro
(structured sales force) and the Bancassurance channel are
bundled under one roof in the sales company ERGO
Beratung und Vertrieb AG. The latter is managed by ERGO
Deutschland AG together with direct sales. ERGO
Deutschland AG manages its broker and partner sales in
its Property-casualty, Health Germany and Life Germany
divisions, depending on class of business.

We developed all of our German sales organisations further
in 2024 - in particular with regard to digitalisation and the
ongoing implementation of the “hybrid customer” business
model, which offers customers an essentially identical range
of products via all online and offline channels. ERGO is thus
making integrated use of various channels — such as face-
to-face consultation, internet, online chat, email, telephone
and video consultation — to leverage new potential.

ERGO International AG coordinates and manages ERGQO's
international operations. The focus is on sustainable
profitable and organic growth in European core markets
and on expanding market positions in selected Asian
countries. In the reporting year, this strategy allowed ERGO
International AG to maintain its good positions on the
individual markets. ERGO International AG also signed an
agreement with Gjensidige Forsikring ASA at the end of
July to acquire the latter’s Lithuanian subsidiary ADB
Gjensidige — including the branches in Estonia and Latvia.
ERGO can thus enhance its market position in all three
Baltic states. In April 2024, ERGO International AG
acquired Storebrand ASA’s shares in the Norwegian health
insurance joint venture Storebrand Helseforsikring AS,
making ERGO International AG the company’s sole owner.
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Storebrand Helseforsikring AS was renamed ERGO
Forsikring AS in October.

The Indian joint venture HDFC ERGO General Insurance
Company Ltd. focused on optimising its underwriting and
restructuring its portfolio in 2024. In China, ERGO holds a
65% majority stake in the Chinese life insurance joint
venture ERGO China Life Insurance Co., Ltd. As for the
Chinese property insurance market, ERGO holds an interest
in Taishan Property & Casualty Insurance Co., Ltd. In
Thailand, ERGO concentrated in 2024 once again on the
property insurance market, which is not only the largest in
Southeast Asia but also shows significant growth potential.
In this market, ERGO Insurance Thailand Public Co. Ltd.
achieved good premium growth last year and managed to
improve its market position; it is now one of the country’s
ten largest property insurers.

ERGO Technology & Services Management AG is a
dedicated arm of ERGO Group AG in charge of providing
digital platforms, solutions and services. It has a global
remit and supports ERGO in designing optimum insurance
products and fostering the most effective customer
channels. It consists of ITERGO GmbH in Germany,

ERGO Technology & Services S.A. in Poland, and ERGO
Technology & Services Private Limited in India.

Since early 2024, a newly created Board member division
within ERGO Group AG has been responsible for ERGO's
digital transformation, which includes the coordination of
technologies - such as bots, artificial intelligence, voicebots,
process mining and virtual reality. The new division

also oversees the Embedded Insurance business. Since
the beginning of 2024, ERGO Deutschland AG has

been responsible for controlling the operative business

of the digital insurer nexible Versicherung AG, ERGO
Reiseversicherung AG and the ERGO Mobility Solutions
division, for which ERGO Digital Ventures AG was
previously responsible.

We made changes to the segmentation within the ERGO
field of business at the start of 2025. In future, we will be
reporting largely at the level of ERGO Germany and ERGO
International, and will continue to publish selected metrics
for ERGO Life and Health Germany and ERGO Property-
casualty Germany.
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The names of the individual entities and information on the shares held can be found in the > Notes to the consolidated financial statements > List of shareholdings as at
31 December 2024 pursuant to Section 313(2) of the German Commercial Code (HGB).
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Key figures
2024 Prev. year Change
%
Insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued €m 60,830 57,884 5.1
Combined ratio
Reinsurance - Property-casualty % 82.4 85.2
ERGO Property-casualty Germany % 89.2 88.9
ERGO International % 91.9 90.1
Total technical result €m 8,918 7,545 18.2
Investment result €m 7,191 5,374 33.8
Currency result €m 175 -292 =
Investment result for unit-linked life insurance €m 941 816 15.4
Net financial result €m 1,198 507 136.3
Taxes on income €m -2,091 -936 =283
Net result €m 5,671 4,597 23.4
Investments €bn 230.7 218.5 5.6
Insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held (net) €bn 211.5 203.4 4.0
Contractual service margin (CSM)* €bn 27.6 25.1 9.6
Equity €bn 32.7 29.8 10.0
Return on equity (RoE)?
Group % 18.2 15.8
Reinsurance % 18.5 16.2
ERGO % 16.5 14.4
Earnings per share € 42.78 33.88 26.3
Dividend per share € 20.00 15.00 33.3
Economic earnings €bn €8 5.6 66.4
Solvency Il ratio® % 287 267

1 Including net cost/gain resulting from reinsurance contracts held.

2 Further information about this indicator can be found in the > Combined management report > Strategy and > Tools of corporate management and strategic financial
objectives. Information on calculation of the RoE can be found in the > Notes to the consolidated financial statements > Explanatory information > Segment disclosures

> (7) Alternative performance measures.
3 Does not include transitional measures.

Munich Re generated a net result of €5.7bn in 2024, thus
exceeding our profit guidance from the beginning of the
financial year thanks to sustained good operational
performance in all business segments. Despite an active
hurricane season in the North Atlantic, exceptionally high
natural catastrophe losses in Canada, and wildfires and
severe flooding in various parts of the world, we managed
to achieve an improved total technical result in property-
casualty reinsurance compared with the previous year. The
life and health reinsurance segment and an overall high
investment result also contributed to the higher net result.
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Due to favourable performance in all segments, the Group’s
insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued
(insurance revenue) rose by 5.1% to €60,830m (57,884m).
The reinsurance field of business generated insurance
revenue of €40,034m (37,786m), equating to growth of
5.9%. This development was boosted by organic growth in
both reinsurance segments. Insurance revenue rose by 3.5%
t0 €20,796m (20,098m) in the ERGO field of business.
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Insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued

Reinsurance — Life and health 19%  (19%)
Reinsurance - Property-casualty 46%  (47%)
. ERGO Life and Health Germany 17%  (17%)
ERGO Property-casualty Germany 8% (8%)
ERGO International 10% (10%)

The life and health reinsurance segment contributed
€1,681m (1,428m) to the net result, which was higher year
on year. At €2,104m (1,433m), the total technical result
outperformed the target for the year under review. This
increase was driven by both robust growth in new large-
volume transactions in North America and the very pleasing
rise in the result from insurance-related financial instruments.

The property-casualty reinsurance segment contributed
€3,199m (2,448m) to the net result, with the increase owing
in particular to the substantial rises in both insurance revenue
and the net financial result. The combined ratio was 82.4%
(85.2%) of net insurance revenue. Overall major-loss
expenditure totalled €3,885m (3,278m) and corresponded to
14.3% (12.6%) of net insurance revenue, which was roughly
in line with our major-loss expectation of 14%. Major losses
from natural catastrophes rose to €2,644m (2,335m). The
largest natural catastrophes in the year under review occurred
in the United States. The largest individual losses were
Hurricane Helene (anticipated claims costs of about €0.5bn)
and Hurricane Milton (approximately €0.4bn). Man-made
major losses amounted to €1,241m (943m). This year-on-year
rise in expenditure was in part due to the collapse of the
Francis Scott Key Bridge in Baltimore after a ship hit the
bridge.

With its contribution of €791m (721m) to the net result, the
ERGO field of business surpassed the previous year’s result
and met its target for the financial year of approx. €0.8bn.
The ERGO Life and Health Germany segment’s result
amounted to €230m (183m), attributable to a release of the
contractual service margin in line with expectations, higher
claims in short-term health business, and offsetting, positive
one-off effects. The ERGO Property-casualty Germany
segment’s contribution to the net result increased to
€260m (252m). It was possible to offset higher major-loss
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expenditure thanks to favourable operational development
and a considerably higher net financial result. The ERGO
International segment improved its contribution to the net
result to €301m (286m), underpinned by strong operational
performance — particularly regarding both property-casualty
business in Poland and Greece and health business in
Belgium.

Munich Re's investment result increased substantially to
€7.191m (5,374m) in 2024. Overall, this represents a return
on investment of 3.1% (2.5%) on the average market value
of our portfolio. Our investment result benefited in the
reporting year from higher regular income, which was
particularly attributable to sustained high interest rates and
a consequently stable reinvestment yield; upward trends in
equity markets and the resultant fair-value changes likewise
boosted the investment result. We also achieved increases
in the value of alternative investments, especially private
equity. However, these gains were offset by losses from the
disposal of fixed-interest bonds, which we realised deliberately
in order to benefit from higher reinvestment yields.

The currency result increased to €175m (-292m), mainly on
account of currency gains against the US dollar. The effective
tax rate was 26.9% (16.9%), in line with expectations. In 2023,
the effective tax rate had been much lower on account of
positive one-off effects.

In the 2024 financial year, economic earnings of €9,337m
were mainly attributable to factors from new and in-force
business deriving from underwriting, and to the impact of
capital market parameters on assets and liabilities.
Successful operational value creation in reinsurance and
primary insurance, with major-loss expenditure in line with
expectations, had a positive influence on economic earnings.
Developments in the capital markets also boosted economic
earnings in the financial year, attributable in particular to
the appreciation of important foreign currencies against the
euro as well as trends in the equity markets and gains from
credit risk premiums — all of which offset negative effects
pertaining to fixed-interest investments.

Munich Re issued a subordinated bond with a volume of
€1.5bn in May 2024. This bond will mature on 26 May
2044 and is callable for the first time in 2033. The bond
pays a fixed rate of 4.25% p.a. until 26 May 2034, and a
variable rate thereafter. In addition, the bond meets the
criteria for classification as regulatory Tier 2 capital under
Solvency Il, as well as the current requirements for full
recognition as rating capital.

Information on events after the balance sheet date can be
found in the > Notes to the consolidated financial
statements > Explanatory information > Other disclosures
> (65) Events after the balance sheet date.
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Comparison of prospects for Munich Re in the 2023 annual report with results achieved

Outlook Adjustment Result
2024 2024 2024
Insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued €bn 59 61 60.8
Total technical result - Life and health reinsurance €bn 1.5 2.0 2.1
Combined ratio — Property-casualty reinsurance % 82 83 82.4
Combined ratio — ERGO Property-casualty Germany % 87 89 89.2
Combined ratio = ERGO International % 90 92 91.9

Return on investment more than more than
% 2.8 2.8 3.1

Net result more than
€bn 5.0 5.0 5.7

Economic earnings more than more than
€bn 5.0 5.0 9.3

The economic environment in the reporting year was marked
by sustained volatility in capital markets. Geopolitical
tensions were further exacerbated in 2024 and continued to
pose challenges for the entire insurance industry.

Despite the challenging environment, Munich Re's
performance was very encouraging. After Q3, we were
able to raise the result targets initially announced. In
addition to announcing that we were expecting to outperform
the annual target for our net result, we increased our profit
guidance for the reinsurance field of business and the target
for total technical result in the life and health reinsurance
segment. As a result of high major-loss expenditure in

Q3 2024, we slightly raised our forecast for the combined
ratio with regard to the segments property-casualty
reinsurance, ERGO Property-casualty Germany and ERGO
International.

At the beginning of 2024, we had projected Munich Re
insurance revenue for the financial year as a whole of
around €59bn. Following good business performance, we
increased our target during the year to €61bn. By generating
insurance revenue of €60.8bn, we reached our target.

At the beginning of the year, we had anticipated a net
result of around €5.0bn for the 2024 financial year, which
was raised to more than €5.0bn following Q3 due to
positive business performance in the reinsurance field

of business. We achieved our target by posting a result

of €5.7bn, which was mainly attributable to pleasing
operational performance in reinsurance.

At the beginning of the year, we had forecast a return on
investment of above 2.8%. Due to the rise in interest rates,
regular income from interest-bearing securities increased
more than expected. This effect was compounded by
generally favourable conditions on the stock markets and
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positive currency translation effects. For the Group, this
amounted to a return of 3.1% on the average market value
of our portfolio. Accordingly, we surpassed our target.

For the 2024 financial year, we had expected economic
earnings of over €5.0bn and exceeded this target by a wide
margin with a figure of €9.3bn. Both our fields of business
reported positive value added by new business, with the
reinsurance field of business also reporting distinctly positive
experience adjustments regarding in-force business.
Major-loss expenditure was in line with expectations. The
development of important capital market parameters also
had a positive effect on the result. The appreciation of
important foreign currencies against the euro and gains
from credit risk premiums offset losses from fixed-interest
investments — in turn leading to a better-than-expected
contribution to the result, also in the capital market.

Reinsurance

At the beginning of the financial year, we had aimed for
insurance revenue of around €39bn for the reinsurance
field of business. We raised this forecast to €40bn after Q3.
At €40.0bn, we reached the adjusted target.

The substantial increase in insurance revenue was due to
an expansion of business across almost all lines and
regions. If exchange rates had remained unchanged,
insurance revenue would have risen somewhat more year
on year. The main driver in life and health reinsurance was
large-volume treaties (especially in North America), while
property-casualty reinsurance was chiefly driven by the
expansion of existing and acquisition of new business with
selected clients — particularly in our specialty primary
insurance units in North America. We realised growth in
reinsurance business with natural hazard exposure in Europe,
South America and Asia in particular.
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At the beginning of the year, we had projected a total
technical result of around €1.45bn in life and health
reinsurance. Owing to the gratifying business performance
in Q3 in particular, we significantly raised our expectation
for the full-year total technical result to about €2.0bn.
We surpassed this target by posting €2.1bn, with positive
currency effects also supporting performance.

At the beginning of the financial year, our declared goal
was to achieve a combined ratio of 82% of net insurance
revenue in property-casualty reinsurance. Upon
communicating the Q3 results, we adjusted this target to
around 83% owing to higher expenditure for major losses.
At the end of the reporting year, the ratio — at 82.4% — was
better than the revised target. Amounting to 14.3% of net
insurance revenue, major-loss expenditure was close to our
expectation of 14%.

At €4.9bn, the net result for reinsurance as a whole in 2024

was above the forecast, which we had raised after Q3 from
approximately €4.2bn to more than €4.2bn.
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ERGO

For the ERGO field of business, we had projected insurance
revenue of around €20bn at the beginning of the year.
Following good business performance in the first nine
months of the year, we increased our target for the full year
to €21bn. With €20.8bn, we also achieved this target.

At the beginning of the year, we had forecast a combined
ratio of around 87% in the ERGO Property-casualty Germany
segment — assuming that major losses remained within
normal bounds. Upon communicating the Q3 results, we
adjusted this target to around 89% on account of higher,
inflation-induced motor claims and higher expenditure for
major losses. We reached this target with 89.2%.

In the segment ERGO International, we had aimed for a
combined ratio of around 90% at the beginning of the year,
provided major losses remained within normal bounds.
Upon communicating the Q3 results, we adjusted this
target to 92% owing to high major-loss expenditure from
natural catastrophes, in particular in Poland and Austria.
With a combined ratio of 91.9%, we met this adjusted target.

At the beginning of the year, we had anticipated that the
ERGO field of business would contribute around €0.8bn to
the net result. With its result of €791m, ERGO matched our
expectations.
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Key figures

2024 Prev. year Change
%
Insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued €m 11,767 10,725 9.7

Share of insurance revenue in reinsurance % 29.4 28.4
Total technical result £€m 2,104 1,433 46.8
Net financial result €m 274 424 -35.4
Thereof: Investment result €m 475 608 -21.8
Operating result €m 2,228 1,686 32.1
Net result £€m 1,681 1,428 17.7

Insurance revenue

We write the majority of our business in non-euro
currencies (around 95%). Exchange-rate fluctuations can
therefore have a significant impact on the development of
insurance revenue. In the reporting year, exchange rates
had a negligible impact on revenue development.

After adjustments to reflect exchange rates, our insurance
revenue increased by 9.6% year on year. The increase is
mainly attributable to our business in North America and
the United Kingdom, and was driven by the execution of
large-volume transactions and the ongoing expansion of
our longevity business.

The growth in our financially motivated reinsurance, on the
other hand, is not reflected in the insurance revenue, as the
majority of contracts are presented under insurance-related
financial instruments.

Result

The total technical result improved significantly year on
year, slightly exceeding our guidance for the reporting year,
which we revised upward after Q3.

It comprises the insurance service result and the result
from insurance-related financial instruments.

The insurance service result is substantially driven by
the release of the contractual service margin and the risk
adjustment for non-financial risk.

New business developed very favourably and made

a positive contribution to the result. This included, in
particular, large-volume transactions in North America
concluded before the turn of 2023/2024 and in the first
quarter of this year. Overall, claims development in the
portfolio was better than expected, which also benefited
the result. This included mortality business in the US.
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Improved terms and conditions for a number of existing
contracts also had a positive impact. By contrast, the
annual review of our underwriting assumptions and
subsequent adjustment of our reserves had a modest
negative effect on the insurance service result overall.

Financially motivated reinsurance that does not transfer
significant insurance risk is the main contributor to the
result from insurance-related financial instruments. The
result from this portfolio developed very favourably, with
contracts largely performing as expected. The result
presented here is influenced by changing economic
parameters, in particular exchange rates. These had a positive
effect in the reporting year.

The investment result fell significantly by €133m compared
to the previous year. Sustained high interest rates facilitated
an ongoing profitable reinvestment yield, making it possible
to replace fixed-interest securities that were maturing or
had been disposed of with new investments at higher
interest rates — in turn strengthening regular income for
some time to come. Increases in the value of equities and
derivatives, in particular, also contributed to the generally
positive result. Nevertheless, the overall result declined year
on year due to losses on the disposal of fixed-interest
securities that were realised in order to benefit from higher
reinvestment yields.

Our individual core markets

Based on insurance revenue, around 55% of our
reinsurance business was written in North America, with
the US accounting for approximately 40% and thus ranking
before Canada. Some further 25% of our insurance revenue
stemmed from Europe, with approximately 20% generated
in the United Kingdom and Ireland. Another significant share
of around 15% came from Asia and the MENA (Middle East,
North Africa) region. Australia and New Zealand contributed
around 5% to our insurance revenue. We are also well
positioned in Africa and Latin America, but due to the small
size of the markets their share of our global business is small.
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In the US, insurance revenue increased to about €4.9bn
(4.0bn), with the writing of several large treaties supporting
this significant growth. The insurance service result
showed encouraging development as well, with claims
expenditure in the portfolio proving to be lower than we
expected overall. We also achieved a further increase in
the result from insurance-related financial instruments.

In Canada, our insurance revenue was largely unchanged at
€1.3bn (1.3bn). We remain very satisfied with our portfolio
development and the profitability of the business. The total
technical result was within the expected range.

Insurance revenue was up in Europe, rising to €2.9bn
(2.6bn), with €2.6bn (2.2bn) stemming from the United

Reinsurance — Property-casualty
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Kingdom and Ireland. Our longevity business continued
to expand very pleasingly, boosting insurance revenue.
The total technical result was within the expected range.

In Asia/MENA, our insurance revenue decreased to €1.8bn
(2.0bn). By contrast, the total technical result outstripped
our expectations, boosted in particular by the result from
insurance-related financial instruments.

The insurance revenue generated by our business activities
in Australia and New Zealand fell to €507m (578m), as we
continued to take a very selective approach to writing new
business. The total technical result was positive, reflecting
the benefits of the rehabilitation measures we have taken in
recent years.

Key figures
2024 Prev. year Change
%
Insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued €m 28,267 27,061 4.5
Share of insurance revenue in reinsurance % 70.6 71.6
Loss ratio % 66.5 69.8
Thereof: Major losses Percentage points 14.3 12.6
Expense ratio % 15.9 15.4
Combined ratio % 82.4 85.2
Total technical result €m 4,830 3,968 21.7
Net financial result £€m 739 88 737.2
Thereof: Investment result €m 2,698 1,824 47.9
Operating result £€m 4,727 3,052 54.9
Net result €m 3,199 2,448 30.7

Insurance revenue

Our insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued
(insurance revenue) in property-casualty reinsurance was
up 4.5% on the previous year, although changes in
exchange rates had a negative impact on revenue
development. 15% of the portfolio was written in euros and
85% in foreign currencies, of which about 57 percentage
points was in US dollars and around 8 percentage points
in pounds sterling. If exchange rates had remained
unchanged, insurance revenue would have risen by 4.8%
year on year.

The substantial increase in insurance revenue was due to an
expansion of business across almost all lines and regions. The
main drivers were the expansion of existing and acquisition
of new business with selected clients — particularly in our
specialty primary insurance units in North America. We
realised growth in reinsurance business with natural hazard
exposure in Europe, South America and Asia in particular.
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Prices at the reinsurance contract renewals in 2024
developed positively overall, and for the most part more
than compensated for the significantly higher loss
estimates in some areas — owing especially to inflation
and other loss trends. Risk-adjusted prices rose slightly,
especially in regions affected by natural catastrophes.
Primary insurance prices also climbed in many markets.
Overall, price gains were evident around the world to
varying degrees. For Munich Re, risk-adjusted prices for
the 2024 renewals increased by approximately 0.2%.

Quality continues to play an important role in the selection
of reinsurers. This makes it possible for financially solid
reinsurers to position themselves as reliable long-term
partners. Overall, we are adhering to our clearly profit-
oriented underwriting policy.
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Result’

The net result and the total technical result in property-
casualty reinsurance improved year on year. The better net
result was due in particular to the substantial rises in both
insurance revenue and the net financial result, the latter
being attributable to a higher current return on investment
and a greater currency result. Adjusted for commissions,
Munich Re's customary review of its provisions resulted in
a reduction in the basic claims provisions for prior years of
€1,351m for the full year, which is equivalent to 5.0 percentage
points of the combined ratio. This positive development
extended to almost all lines in our portfolio. The safety
margin in the provisions remained stable year on year.

Major losses — in excess of €30m each - totalled €3,885m
(3,278m) after retrocession and before tax. This amount
includes run-off profits and losses for major claims from
previous years, and is equivalent to 14.3% (12.6%) of net
insurance revenue. Expenditure was slightly higher than in
the previous year and roughly in line with our major-loss
expectation of 14% of net insurance revenue.

Man-made major losses totalling €1,241m (943m) were up
from the previous year, with increased expenditure here

attributable in part to the collapse of the Francis Scott Key
Bridge in Baltimore after a ship hit the bridge. Expenditure
for man-made major losses was equivalent to 4.6% (3.6%)
of net insurance revenue. The number of losses above our
major-loss threshold was comparable to the previous year.

Major losses from natural catastrophes totalled €2,644m
(2,335m), equivalent to 9.8% (9.0%) of net insurance
revenue. The largest natural catastrophe losses of the year
happened in North America — with Hurricane Helene in the
southeastern United States leading to Munich Re’s largest
single claims event in 2024, at a nominal amount of
approximately €0.5bn. In addition, there were numerous
flood, thunderstorm and storm events, particularly in North
America, the Caribbean and Europe.

The combined ratio decreased to 82.4% (85.2%) on account
of higher insurance revenue and in spite of higher major-
loss expenditure. Net insurance service expenses totalled
€22,317m (22,187m) and net insurance revenue amounted
t0 €27,092m (26,036m).

The investment result increased significantly by €874m
compared to the previous year. Sustained high interest
rates facilitated an ongoing profitable reinvestment yield,
as it was possible to replace fixed-interest securities that
were maturing or had been disposed of with new
investments at higher interest rates — in turn strengthening
regular income for some time to come. Equities and
derivatives boosted the investment result in line with the

1 The data above on major losses was calculated to include the effects of
discounting and risk adjustments, unless the explanatory notes indicate that this
is a nominal amount.

Munich Re Group Annual Report 2024

30

market trends. Losses were once again incurred on the
disposal of fixed-interest securities in the reporting year in
order to benefit from higher reinvestment yields.

Our individual core markets and selected
special lines

In terms of insurance revenue, around 45% of our global
property-casualty reinsurance business was written in
North America. We generated about 35% of our revenue in
Europe, of which approximately 15% was in the United
Kingdom. Further substantial contributions were made by
Asia and Australia/New Zealand (about 15%), as well as
Africa and Latin America (approximately 5%).

Prices in the US reinsurance market remained stable, at a
good level. Major losses from natural catastrophes were
within our anticipated range, despite storm events such as
Hurricanes Beryl, Debby, Helene and Milton; experts had
indeed predicted an especially active 2024 hurricane season.

In the year under review, insurance revenue for US
reinsurance business increased thanks to the positive
market environment. In addition, we carried out portfolio
optimisation measures including selective portfolio
restructuring and quota share reductions, particularly

in third-party liability and cyber business.

In Canada, we are represented by the Munich Reinsurance
Company of Canada and Temple Insurance Company.

By virtue of the positive market environment, insurance
revenue rose further to €567m (551m). Lower year on year,
the result was substantially impacted by expenditure for
natural catastrophes — including a hailstorm in Calgary,
Hurricane Debby, and wildfires in the Canadian province
of Alberta.

Insurance revenue in the United Kingdom and in continental
Europe dropped year on year to €9,787m (10,277m) on
account of portfolio optimisations. We managed to generate
growth through the acquisition of profitable new business
and the targeted development of business with existing
clients — particularly in France, Italy and Spain. Thanks to

a favourable environment, it was possible to post high
growth rates — especially through business involving natural
hazards — in nearly all markets.

At our Swiss subsidiary, New Re, property-casualty
reinsurance revenue amounted to €1,319m (1,316 m).

Insurance revenue in Australia and New Zealand was down
slightly to €1,412m (1,431m) due to currency translation
effects. Adjusted for exchange rates, revenue remained
largely unchanged.
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Business in Japan, which is strongly focused on natural
hazard risks, was on a par with the previous year, with
insurance revenue amounting to €516m (519m); when
adjusted for exchange rates, revenue was higher.

As in previous years, insurance revenue in China grew
particularly in core proportional business — amounting
to €712m (676m) overall.

We discontinued business in India’s agricultural sector
that did not meet our profitability requirements. As a result,
insurance revenue declined slightly to €588m (626m).

In the Caribbean, Central America and South America, we
still provide high capacity for the coverage of risks from
natural hazards, in particular windstorms and earthquakes.
The elevated demand due to major losses from natural
catastrophes (hurricanes, floods, earthquakes and wildfires)
in recent years remained at a high level in the year under
review. We took advantage of this situation to further
optimise our portfolio. More specifically, we grew the
already high insurance revenue volume attained in recent
years to €1,268m (1,153m) and achieved a further margin
improvement through targeted rate increases.

The result in agricultural insurance showed encouraging
development; we discontinued some business in South
America, India and other markets by means of more
restrictive underwriting.

Buoyed by a market that remained positive, insurance
revenue in marine reinsurance grew by around 7% to
€575m (539m)'. The fundamentally positive result was
impacted by claims expenditure attributable to the
collapse of the Francis Scott Key Bridge in Baltimore.

At €847m (801m)’, revenue from credit and bond
reinsurance saw significant year-on-year growth. Whilst
traditional credit business generated a slight rise, this
growth was once again largely attributable to profitable
new business in specialty and niche segments.

Insurance revenue in aviation and space reinsurance
showed a slightly positive development at €222m (218m)".
The profitability of the business improved on the previous
year, as indicated by the higher result.

1 Inthe previous year, figures for specialty lines included contributions made by
GSI, which are no longer included in this reporting year. The previous year's
figures have been adjusted accordingly.
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The market environment in direct industrial insurance
continued to be attractive in the year under review.
Renewals in the market were characterised by selective
expansion and targeted reductions alike, resulting in lower
revenue of €1,674m (1,721m). While the result was down on
the previous year, it remained positive.

Our Capital Partners division offers clients a broad range

of structured individual reinsurance and capital market
products, as well as parametric and derivative solutions to
hedge against weather and other risks. These solutions also
cover the agricultural sector. We also use this division's
services for our own purposes in order to buy retrocession
cover on the basis of our defined risk strategy.

Insurance revenue generated by the Global Specialty
Insurance (GSI) division increased to €8,781m (7,961m).

In terms of business development, GSI benefited from

its successful business expansion and higher rates.
Expenditure for major losses adversely impacted the
results — primarily attributable to Hurricanes Helene and
Milton, but also to yet another year of high losses caused
by other storms in the United States. Both aviation and
space as well as marine were impacted by man-made
major losses. New business and higher rates helped to
boost insurance revenue at American Modern to €2,199m
(1,817m). However, the result fell short of expectations on
account of Hurricane Helene and wildfires in New Mexico.
Insurance revenue at Hartford Steam Boiler (HSB) was up
slightly to €1,367m (1,336m), despite somewhat reducing
its exposure to cyber risks. The HSB result waxed once
again, far exceeding expectations. The subsidiaries under
the Munich Re Speciality — North America (MRS-NA)
umbrella grew their insurance revenue to €2,904m
(2,664m) thanks to growth in several products and
generally good market conditions. MRS-NA's result was
negatively affected by high major claims attributable to
the active hurricane season and other storm losses, and
by a prudent reaction to the latest developments in the US
third-party liability market. Munich Re Specialty — Global
Markets (MRS-GM) similarly profited from the ongoing
favourable market situation, increasing its insurance
revenue to €2,310m (2,143m). MRS-GM's result was lower
year on year due to major claims expenditure in aviation
and space, and owing to major claims in marine from the
collapse of the Francis Scott Key Bridge.
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Key figures

2024 Prev. year Change
%
Insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued €m 10,090 9,942 1.5

Share of insurance revenue at ERGO % 48.5 49.5
Total technical result €m 898 1,024 -12.2
Net financial result £€m -83 -167 50.3
Thereof: Investment result €m 3,207 2,323 38.0
Operating result £€m 217 197 10.5
Net result £€m 230 183 25.9

Insurance revenue

The Digital Ventures unit was transferred to the Health
Germany division within the ERGO Life and Health
Germany segment at the beginning of 2024. We will
therefore report from this year only on the Life Germany
and Health Germany divisions within this segment.

With regard to insurance revenue, the Life Germany
division accounted for approximately 28% and the Health
Germany division for about 72%.

This segment’s insurance revenue in the 2024 financial
year rose compared to the previous year due to positive
development in the Health Germany division, primarily
thanks to short-term and long-term health business.
Conversely, insurance revenue in the Life Germany division
was lower - particularly due to a lower release of the
contractual service margin in line with expectations.

Result

The total technical result was down on the previous year
for the ERGO Life and Health Germany segment, primarily
on account of the lower release of the contractual service
margin and the lower result from both short-term health
business and travel insurance. Our total technical result
also includes the result from intra-Group interest-rate
reinsurance, which is offset in the net financial result. This
interest-rate reinsurance negatively impacted the total
technical result year on year.

The net financial result was higher year on year. This was
attributable to, among other factors, the above-mentioned
effect from interest-rate reinsurance and a positive one-off
effect from the initial consolidation of ERGO Forsikring AS
(formerly Storebrand Helseforsikring AS). The investment
result rose substantially, largely on account of the better
result from derivatives and positive effects from changes in
the fair values of private equity investments. Higher regular
interest income likewise boosted the investment result. The
investment result, the investment result for unit-linked life
insurance, and the currency result are for the most part offset
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by net insurance finance income/expenses within the net
financial result.

The higher net result in the ERGO Life and Health
Germany segment was chiefly driven by improvements
in the net financial result and the other operating result.

Development of revenue and results by
division

Life Germany

Insurance revenue in the past financial year was down
slightly, at €2,873m (2,898m) — largely on account of

a lower release of the contractual service margin in line
with expectations.

The total technical result in the past financial year amounted
to €425m (505m), lower than in the previous year. This
year-on-year decrease was mainly driven by lower income
from the release of the contractual service margin and the
negative impact of the above-mentioned interest-rate
reinsurance — although the latter did boost the net financial
result. Overall, the operating result was down.

Health Germany

In the Health Germany division, which includes travel
insurance business, insurance revenue rose substantially
year on year by 18.0% to €7,216m (6,118m), with increases in
both long-term and short-term health business. Moreover,
the transfer of the Digital Ventures unit to the Health
Germany division helped to increase insurance revenue.

The total technical result amounted to €474m (448m), with
the rise resulting from the incorporation of Digital Ventures
in this division. When adjusted for this transfer of unit, the
total technical result was down year on year due primarily
to higher-than-expected claims expenditure in short-term
travel and health business. The rise in the net financial result
was attributable in part to the initial consolidation of ERGO
Forsikring AS. Overall, this division's operating result improved
compared with the previous year.
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ERGO Property-casualty Germany
Key figures
2024 Prev. year Change
%
Insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued €m 4,661 4,539 2.7
Share of insurance revenue at ERGO % 22.4 22.6
Loss ratio % 60.3 59.1
Expense ratio % 29.0 29.9
Combined ratio % 89.2 88.9
Total technical result £€m 491 495 -0.9
Net financial result €m 172 134 28.6
Thereof: Investment result €m 327 209 56.7
Operating result £€m 428 397 7.9
Net result €m 260 252 3.0

Insurance revenue

In terms of insurance revenue, the ERGO Property-casualty
Germany segment’'s main lines of business are fire and
property insurance, accounting for approximately 28%;
motor insurance (around 19%); and third-party liability
insurance (about 19%).

Insurance revenue rose year on year due to growth in fire
and property insurance (17.6%), in motor insurance (10.6%)
and in other classes of business (2.6%). We experienced

a decline in insurance revenue of 2.6% in legal protection
insurance; revenue fell by 6.5% in third-party liability,

by 10.1% in personal accident and by 10.3% in marine.

Result

The total technical result was similar to the previous year's
high level. Good operational performance in the reporting
year nearly offset the increase in expenditure for man-made
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major losses. Although the total technical result in the year
under review was impacted by claims inflation in motor
insurance, the profitability of this line of business did improve
year on year. The combined ratio remained at the previous
year's very good level. Although the loss ratio rose by

1.2 percentage points — due to the above-mentioned higher
expenditure for man-made major losses, among other
factors - the expense ratio fell by 0.9 percentage points.
Insurance service expenses (net) totalled €4,070m (3,976m);
insurance revenue (net) amounted to €4,561m (4,471m).

The net financial result rose considerably year on year on
account of the substantially higher investment result,
mostly owing to higher regular income and positive changes
in the fair values of private equity investments in particular.

Overall, this segment’s net result was slightly higher year
on year, with the improved net financial result being the
most significant factor.
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ERGO International
Key figures
2024 Prev. year Change
%
Insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued €m 6,045 5,618 7.6
Share of insurance revenue at ERGO % 29.1 28.0
Loss ratio % 62.9 59.3
Expense ratio % 29.0 30.8
Combined ratio % 91.9 90.1
Total technical result £€m 596 625 -4.6
Net financial result £€m 96 28 244.4
Thereof: Investment result €m 485 410 18.1
Operating result £€m 369 370 -0.3
Net result €m 301 286 5.4

Insurance revenue

With regard to the segment’s insurance revenue, property-
casualty accounted for approximately 63%, health for about
30% and life for around 7%. The largest markets are Poland
(accounting for approximately 38% of insurance revenue),
Spain (approx. 17%) and Belgium (approx. 17%).

The increase in insurance revenue was primarily attributable
to strong growth in Poland and Thailand, improvements in
health business in Spain and the allocation of Europaeiske
Rejseforsikring A/S to the ERGO International segment.
Adjusted for the addition and disposal of companies outside
Germany and for positive currency translation effects,
insurance revenue in the segment rose by 8.3% compared
with 2023.

In international property-casualty business, insurance
revenue rose by 8.8% to €3,795m (3,487m). We generated
significantly higher revenue in Poland and Thailand in
particular.

Compared with the previous year, insurance revenue in
international health business increased by 8.1% to €1,824m
(1,687m); this was primarily attributable to the growth of our
Spanish health insurer and the allocation of Europaeiske
Rejseforsikring A/S to this segment.

Insurance revenue in international life insurance amounted
to €426m (444m) for a year-on-year decrease of 4.1%.
While revenue was higher in Poland and Austria, it was lower
in Belgium and the Baltic states.

Result

The total technical result was good on the whole, though
slightly down on the previous year. There were positive
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developments in Thailand, Greece and in Belgian health
business - but also lower contributions to the result from,
for example, Spanish health business and property-casualty
business in Austria. The latter was attributable to higher
expenditure for natural catastrophes, which impacted the
insurance service result in both Austrian and Polish
property-casualty business. Income from the release of the
contractual service margin was higher year on year in life
and health business. These positive developments resulted
primarily from health business in Spain and Belgium.

The combined ratio in international property-casualty
business, including short-term health and travel insurance,
rose by 1.7 percentage points compared to the previous
year, with the lower expense ratio partially offsetting the
higher loss ratio. The higher combined ratio was particularly
attributable to the above-mentioned higher losses from
natural catastrophes in Poland and Austria, and to higher
claims expenses in Spanish health business. This
expenditure was partially offset by positive development in
Greece and improved performance in Thailand. Insurance
service expenses (net) totalled €4,250m (3,813m) and
insurance revenue (net) amounted to €4,626m (4,231m).

The net financial result rose impressively, buoyed in
particular by a higher investment result than in

2023 - chiefly attributable to higher regular interest
income year on year and a positive one-off effect from
the initial consolidation of ERGO Forsikring AS (formerly
Storebrand Helseforsikring AS).

Higher claims expenditure for natural catastrophes and
other reasons notwithstanding, the net result for the ERGO
International segment was higher overall on the previous
year — with the higher net financial result playing a pivotal
role.
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Investment performance

Investment mix
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Carrying amounts Unrealised gains/losses* Fair values
€m 31.12.2024 Prev. year 31.12.2024 Prev. year 31.12.2024 Prev. year
Non-financial investments
Investment property 10,189 9,384 8,857 3,379 13,546 12,763
Property, plant and equipment 405 511 143 122 548 633
Intangible assets 74 128 17 0 91 128
Biological assets 1,202 828 0 0 1,203 828
Inventories 12 0 0 0 12 0
Investments in affiliated companies, associates and
joint ventures 5,266 6,895 2,916 2,724 8,141 9,621

17,147 17,747 6,433 6,226 23,541 23,974
Financial investments

Instruments subject to equity risk 9,307 10,820 0 0 9,307 10,820
Instruments subject to interest-rate and credit risk 185,284 174,496 -11,595 -12,313 185,284 174,496
Alternative investments 18,979 15,400 -508 -562 18,979 15,400
213,569 200,715 -12,103 -12,876 213,569 200,715
Total 230,716 218,462 -5,670 -6,650 237,110 224,689

1 Including on- and off-balance-sheet unrealised gains and losses.
Investment portfolio by economic category* . Government bonds! 32%  (33%)
Total: €246bn (234bn) . Pfandbriefs (covered bonds)/Mortgage loans 13%  (15%)
Corporate bonds 16% (14%)
Emerging-market government bonds 5% (5%)
| ABSs/MBSS? 3% (3%)
Fixed-income alternative investments 3% (4%)
Cash 8%  (7%)

The fair value of our investment portfolio increased in the
year under review, largely due to cash inflows and currency
developments. Our investment portfolio continues to be
dominated by fixed-interest securities and is composed as
follows:

Portfolio of interest-bearing securities 81% (80%)
Non-fixed-income alternative investments 13%  (12%)
Equities 4%  (5%)
Business-related participations 2% (3%)

1 Measured at fair value.

Our portfolio of interest-bearing securities breaks down
into the following economic categories:
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1 Includes exclusively government bonds of industrialised countries and
comprises other public-sector issuers and government-guaranteed bank bonds.
2 Asset-backed securities/mortgage-backed securities.

At the reporting date, 32% (33%) of our investment portfolio
was invested in government bonds from developed markets.
Our German and US government bond holdings at fair
value constituted 20% (20%) and 24% (25%), respectively,
of all government bonds from developed markets. Our new
investments in the reporting year were mostly in British
and French government bonds. Conversely, we particularly
reduced our portfolio of securities from US issuers in the
reporting year. The vast majority of our government bonds
continue to come from countries with a high credit rating.
Government bonds from emerging markets constituted 5%
(5%) of the investment portfolio.

At around 49% (48%), our investment in covered bonds and
mortgage loans remained focused on German securities.
Our portfolio also included bonds from France and the
United Kingdom, with 15% (14%) and 7% (7%), respectively.
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Munich Re's investment in corporate bonds at the reporting
date amounted to 16% (14%) of our investment portfolio.
Broken down and expressed as a share of the overall portfolio,
the investments in corporate bonds comprised 5% (5%) in
securities from financial undertakings, 8% (8%) in corporate
bonds from other sectors, and 2% (2%) in high-yield bonds.
The regional weighting of corporate bonds in our portfolio
was 35% (35%) for the US and 47% (47%) for Europe.

Our portfolio of government bonds from developed markets,
covered bonds, corporate bonds, and government bonds
from emerging markets had a good rating structure: as at
31 December 2024, some 79% (80%) of securities were rated
AAA to A.

Our asset-backed securities and mortgage-backed securities
at fair value totalled 3% (3%) of the investment portfolio as at
the reporting date. This asset class is composed of securitised
receivables, e.g. securitisations of real estate finance or
consumer credit. Around 31% (43%) of our structured credit
products had a rating of AAA.

Investment result!
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Our portfolio of fixed-income alternative investments totalled
3% (4%) as at the reporting date. The regional weighting of
the investments was 12% (11%) for the US and 86% (82%)
for Europe.

Non-fixed-income alternative investments accounted for
13% (12%) of our investment portfolio at the reporting date;
of the overall portfolio, 7% (7%) comprised property and 7%
(6%) equity securities.

The fair value of our equity portfolio decreased, particularly
due to the restructuring of portfolios and redeployment of
capital to other asset classes. The equity-backing ratio
dropped to 3.6% (4.6%). Including derivatives, the equity-
backing ratio was 2.9% (3.7%).

To hedge against inflation, we held inflation-linked bonds
totalling €7.1bn (6.1bn) (at fair value). Real and financial
assets such as shares, property, commodities, and
investments in infrastructure, renewable energies and
new technologies also serve to guard against inflation.
Additionally, our investments in real assets have a positive
diversification effect on the overall portfolio.

2024 Return? Prev. year Return

£€m % €m %

Regular income 8,137 B815) 6,950 3.2
Write-ups/write-downs -355 -0.2 -194 -0.1
Change in expected credit losses 45 0.0 -47 0.0
Gains/losses on disposal -986 -0.4 -588 -0.3
Fair-value changes 1,052 0.5 -65 0.0
Other income/expenses -702 -0.3 -682 -0.3
Total 7,191 3.1 5,374 2.5

1 Details of the investment result by type of investment can be found in the > Notes to the consolidated financial statements > Explanatory information > Notes to the

consolidated income statement > (35) Investment result.

2 Return on investment (Rol) in % p.a. on the average fair value of the investment portfolio at the quarterly reporting dates. The investment portfolio used to determine the
return (3.1%) for 2024 is calculated as the mean of the fair values as at 31 December 2023 (€224,689m), 31 March 2024 (€226,219m), 30 June 2024 (€227,797m),

30 September 2024 (€231,885m) and 31 December 2024 (€237,110m).

Regular income increased on the previous year, primarily
due to sustained high interest rates and a correspondingly
stable reinvestment yield. The average reinvestment yield'
in the financial year was 4.4% (4.5%). Prolonged profitable
interest rates in the reporting year resulted in yields on new
investments that continued to be above the average return
on our existing portfolio of fixed-interest investments. The

1 The average reinvestment yield is shown as an annual rate of return. All
reinvestments that are transacted in a financial year and that have remaining
terms to maturity of more than one year are recognised at the rates of return
applicable at the relevant trade dates; for securities with terms to maturity of up
to one year the proportionate term to maturity is taken into account. Investments
are not included if their return cannot be calculated (e.g. equities, debt securities
with variable rates, inflation-linked bonds, derivatives, real estate) or if they do
not have the characteristics of investments (e.g. cash at banks). Hedging costs
for securities in foreign currency are not considered.
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net result from write-ups and write-downs was slightly
lower year on year. Impairment losses on both property
and participations was the primary reason for the negative
result.

The result from the change in expected credit losses
comprises the change in anticipated losses on interest-
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bearing investments as at the reporting date that are not
posted in the category “Fair value changes”.

We posted net losses in the reporting year of €986m on the
disposal of investments not recognised at fair value through
profit or loss. These losses resulted primarily from the
disposal of fixed-interest securities with low interest rates
that were sold and whose proceeds were then invested
anew so as to profit from higher interest rates.

The net result from fair-value changes totalled €1,052m -
with the key positive variable being the result from equities,
which accounted for gains of €950m thanks to surging
equity markets. And investments in alternative assets, such
as private equity, appreciated by €502m. Conversely, real
estate losses totalled €223m, which were measured at fair
value through profit or loss. In a similar vein, fixed-interest
securities depreciated by €116m as a result of subsequent
measurement.
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Result from equities and equity derivatives!

€m 2024 Prev. year
Regular income 328 377
Change in fair value 950 1,067
Result from equities 1,278 1,443
Result from equity derivatives -106 -587
Total 1,173 856

1 Todetermine the total annualised return on our equity portfolio (see text), we
calculate the ratio of the total result shown in the table and the mean value of the
following figures: equity portfolio (carrying amounts) as at 31 December 2023
(€12,036m), 31 March 2024 (€11,204m), 30 June 2024 (€11,086m), 30 September
2024 (€11,392m) and 31 December 2024 (€10,809m).

The return on equity portfolios benefited from strongly
bullish equity markets during the reporting year. By contrast,
there was a lower result from equity derivatives, some of
which we had used to hedge against falling stock prices.
Owing in particular to an improved result from derivatives,
the return on our equity portfolio, including equity
derivatives, rose in the year under review to 10.4% (7.5%).
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Financial position

Analysis of our capital structure

Our primary insurance and reinsurance operations have a
significant influence on the structure of our balance sheet.
In this context, investments serve to cover insurance
liabilities' (81% of the balance sheet total). Equity (11% of
the balance sheet total) and bonds classified as strategic
debt (2% of the balance sheet total) are the most important
sources of funds.

Development of Group equity

31.12.2024 Prev. year Change
€m €m %

Issued capital and
capital reserve 7,422 7,424 0.0
Retained earnings! 19,137 17,906 6.9
Other reserves® 397 -286 -
Net result
attributable to Munich
Reinsurance Company
equity holders 5,685 4,606 23.4
Non-controlling
interests 104 122 -14.4
Total 32,746 29,772 10.0

1 Previous year's figures restated due to an adjustment to the allocation of
insurance contracts measured using the variable fee approach. This resulted
in reclassification from retained earnings to other reserves.

Group equity was higher at the reporting date (€32,746m)
than at the start of the year. The dividend payment, share
buy-backs and decreased valuation reserves were offset by
a significant margin by the very good net result and positive
currency translation effects.

Strategic debt

We define as strategic debt all financial instruments with
the character of outside financing that do not have a direct
link to our operative business. Strategic debt supplements
our financial resources, is essentially designed to optimise
the cost of capital, and ensures that we have sufficient
liquidity at all times. We quantify our debt leverage to make
our capital structure transparent. This is defined as the
ratio — expressed as a percentage — of strategic debt to the
sum of Group equity, strategic debt and the contractual
service margin net of tax. Fulfilment cash flows of insurance
liabilities are not considered, even though they are mostly
available to us on a long-term basis as a source of financing
for investment.

1 Insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held (net).
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Debt leverage

31.12.2024 Prev. year Change
€m €m %

Strategic debt 6,577 4,979 32.1
Equity 32,746 29,772 10.0
Contractual
service margin
(CSM)* net of
tax 21,148 19,170 10.3
Total 60,470 53,921 12.1
Debt leverage % 10.9 9.2

1 Including net cost/gain resulting from reinsurance contracts held.

The components of our strategic debt are subordinated
liabilities, and bonds and notes issued (see the relevant
sections in the Notes to the consolidated financial
statements). Munich Re’s subordinated liabilities amounted
to €6,321m (see > Notes to the consolidated financial
statements > Explanatory information > Notes to the
consolidated balance sheet — Equity and liabilities

> (25) Subordinated liabilities). Of this sum, €6,173m were
recognised at the reporting date as eligible own funds
pursuant to Solvency Il. Under the supervisory regulations
of Solvency Il, subordinated liabilities are recognised as
own funds provided that they are available at all times to
cover losses on a going-concern basis. The contractual
service margin represents the expected profit from insurance
contracts, largely from the long-term life and health
insurance business, that relates to services to be provided in
the future. This unrealised gain is reported as an insurance
liability in the balance sheet; we include the CSM (net of
tax) when calculating our debt leverage.

Insurance liabilities

Reinsurance business accounts for approximately 35% of
insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held
(net); around 65% comes from primary insurance. In
contrast to liabilities under loans and securities issued, we
cannot foresee with certainty how high our liabilities from
underwriting business will be and when they will arise.
This applies especially to reinsurance. Whereas in property
insurance a major portion of the insurance liabilities is
generally settled within two to three years, in life or third-
party liability insurance substantial amounts may still be
due decades after the contracts were concluded. The
currency distribution of our insurance contracts issued
and reinsurance contracts held (net) reflects the global
orientation of our Group. Besides the euro, our main
currencies are the US dollar, pound sterling, the Canadian
dollar and the Australian dollar.
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Restraints on disposal

Since we are an international (re)insurance group, some of
our financial resources are subject to restraints on disposal.
Supervisory authorities in some countries, for example,
require foreign reinsurers to establish premium and reserve
deposits to the benefit of primary insurers, or to set up
trustee accounts or guarantees with certain financial
institutions. At the reporting date, restraints on disposal
applied to investments with a volume of €13bn (13bn). In
addition, there were contingent liabilities. Information on
these can be found in the > Notes to the consolidated
financial statements > Explanatory information > Other
information > (62) Contingent liabilities, other financial
commitments.

Capital position

Optimising our capital structure is one of the main
objectives of our active capital management system, in
which we also strive to ensure that Munich Re’s capital
satisfies all applicable standards. In addition to the capital
requirements determined using our internal risk model,
further requirements specified by regulatory authorities,
rating agencies and our key insurance markets must be
met. The Solvency Il ratio is a fundamental measure of
Munich Re's capital strength. Further information on this
ratio can be found in the > Risk report. We aim to ensure
that our financial strength is such that it enables us to take
advantage of profitable opportunities for growth, is not
significantly affected by normal fluctuations in capital
market conditions, and remains at a reasonable level even
in the wake of major loss events or substantial falls in the
stock markets.

At the same time, we also define an appropriate level of
Group own funds as one which does not lastingly exceed
that which is required. Excess capital is returned to our
shareholders via dividends and share buy-backs. In practice,
capital repatriation comes up against limits because, for
example, the German Commercial Code (HGB) obligates our
parent, Munich Reinsurance Company, to conduct prudent
accounting — with regard to the claims equalisation provision,
for instance. This restricts the revenue reserves and profit
distribution possibilities, but stabilises results in years with
high claims expenditure. Additional information can be
found under > Munich Reinsurance Company (information
reported on the basis of German accountancy rules).

Between 2006 and 2024, we returned a total of €40.2bn to
our shareholders in the form of dividends and share buy-
backs. During the reporting year, we bought back shares
with a total volume of €1,432m, €1,097m of which as part
of the €1.5bn share buy-back programme launched by the
Board of Management in February 2024. This means that
own shares with a maximum volume of €403m are still to
be acquired in the period leading up to the Annual General
Meeting to be held on 30 April 2025.
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Information in accordance with
Sections 315a and 289a of the
German Commercial Code (HGB)
and explanatory report by the Board
of Management

Composition of the subscribed capital

As at 31 December 2024, Munich Reinsurance Company'’s
share capital of €587,725,396.48 was divided into
133,760,287 registered, no-par-value, fully paid shares.
The rights and obligations deriving from these shares
follow from the applicable statutory requirements and
the Company’s Articles of Association. With respect to
the Company, the only parties deemed shareholders in
accordance with Section 67 of the German Stock
Corporation Act (AktG) are those entered as such in the
Company'’s register of shareholders.

Restrictions on voting rights and the transfer
of shares

The listed registered shares are subject to transfer restrictions.
The issuing of restricted transferable registered shares by
Munich Reinsurance Company dates back to the Company’s
foundation in 1880. Restricted transferability means that
these shares may be transferred to another holder only with
the Company’s consent, which, according to Article 3(2) of
Munich Reinsurance Company'’s Articles of Association, is
granted at the Company’s discretion. Since the share-trading
processes have been made very efficient, the consent
requirement does not lead to any delays in entry in the register.
In recent decades, it has been granted without exception.

Each share carries one vote at the Annual General Meeting
and determines the shareholders’ participation in the
Company'’s profit. This excludes own shares held by the
Company, from which it enjoys no rights. In the cases specified
in Section 136 of the Stock Corporation Act, voting rights
from the shares concerned are excluded by law. Insofar as
shareholders are entered under their own name as being the
holders of shares which belong to a third party and exceed
the upper limit of 2% of the share capital as stated in the
Articles of Association, the shares entered shall not carry
any voting rights, pursuant to Article 3(5) of the Articles of
Association.

Shareholdings exceeding 10% of the voting
rights

Munich Reinsurance Company has not been notified of, nor
is it otherwise aware of, any direct or indirect shareholdings
in the Company that exceeded 10% of the voting rights as
at 31 December 2024.

Shares with special control rights

There are no shares with special control rights.
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System of control for employee share
scheme where the control rights are not
exercised directly by the employees

Like other shareholders, employees of Munich Reinsurance
Company exercise their control rights in accordance with
statutory provisions and the Articles of Association.

Statutory regulations and provisions of the
Articles of Association regarding appointment
and dismissal of members of the Board of
Management, and concerning amendments
to the Articles of Association

The legal parameters for the appointment and dismissal of
members of the Board of Management are specified in the
Company’s Co-Determination Agreement, Articles 13(3)
and 16 of the Articles of Association, Sections 84 and 85
of the Stock Corporation Act (AktG), and Sections 24, 47
and 303 of the German Insurance Supervision Act (VAG).
Munich Re’s Co-Determination Agreement and Articles of
Association follow the legal tenets of the German Co-
Determination Act (MitbestG). Pursuant to Article 16 of
the Articles of Association, the Board of Management
must comprise a minimum of two persons; beyond this,
the number of members is determined by the Supervisory
Board. Since 1 January 2023, the Board of Management has
comprised ten members. The Supervisory Board appoints
the members of the Board of Management pursuant to
Section 84 of the Stock Corporation Act and may dismiss
them at any time for good cause. On initial appointment,
members of the Board of Management are usually given
contracts for a term of three years. Extensions of up to five
years are possible. For the appointment or dismissal of
members of the Board of Management, Article 13(3) of the
Articles of Association stipulates a two-thirds majority of
the votes cast on the Supervisory Board. If the requisite
majority is not obtained in the initial resolution, the
appointment or dismissal of the Board of Management
requires a simple majority of the votes cast. The second
resolution is only possible following a suitable period of
reflection and after the issue has been dealt with in the
competent committee, but is thereafter also possible by
written consent in lieu of a meeting. In exceptional cases,
members of the Board of Management may also be
appointed by a court of law, pursuant to Section 85 of the
Stock Corporation Act.

The Stock Corporation Act contains general provisions
governing amendments to the Articles of Association -
Section 124(2) sentence 3, and Sections 179-181 of the Act.
These state that only the Annual General Meeting can make
resolutions on changes to the Articles of Association. In
order to be carried, such a resolution must receive the votes
cast by at least three-quarters of the share capital represented
in the vote. The Articles of Association may stipulate a different
capital majority (higher or lower) or other requirements, but
the Company'’s Articles of Association do not provide for any
such special features.
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The Stock Corporation Act contains special regulations on
amendments to the Articles of Association where increases
and reductions in share capital are concerned (Sections
182-240 of the Act). Under these regulations, resolutions on
capital measures are generally to be made by the Annual
General Meeting. Within a self-determined scope, however,
the Annual General Meeting can authorise the Board of
Management to initiate certain (capital) measures. The
authorisations relating to Munich Reinsurance Company
are listed below. In all such cases, a resolution of the Annual
General Meeting is required that has been adopted by at
least a three-quarter majority of the share capital represented
in the vote. Where these resolutions are concerned, the
Company'’s Articles of Association again do not provide for
other (i.e. higher) majorities or further requirements.
Pursuant to Article 14 of the Articles of Association and
Section 179(1) sentence 2 of the Stock Corporation Act, the
Supervisory Board is empowered to make amendments to
the Articles of Association which affect only the wording.

Powers of the Board of Management, with
particular regard to the option of issuing or
buying back shares

The powers of the members of the Board of Management
are defined in Sections 71 and 76-94 of the Stock
Corporation Act (AktG). The Board of Management has the
following powers to issue and buy back shares:

- The Annual General Meeting of 25 April 2024 authorised
the Board of Management to buy back, with the consent
of the Supervisory Board, shares until 24 April 2027 up to
a total amount of 10% of the share capital at the time of
the resolution, pursuant to Section 71(1) no. 8 of the Stock
Corporation Act. The shares acquired plus other own
shares in the possession of the Company, or attributable
to the Company pursuant to Sections 71d and 71e of the
Stock Corporation Act, may at no time amount to more
than 10% of the share capital. In accordance with the
provisions of the authorisation, the shares may be acquired
in various ways. The Board of Management is authorised
to use shares thus acquired for all legally permissible
purposes, in particular those specified in the authorisation,
whilst excluding subscription rights. Among other things,
the Board of Management is empowered under Section 71(1)
no. 8 of the Stock Corporation Act to retire the shares
without requiring further approval from the Annual General
Meeting.

The Annual General Meeting of 29 April 2020 authorised
the Board of Management to issue, with the consent of
the Supervisory Board, in one or more issues until 28 April
2025, subordinated or non-subordinated convertible
bonds, bonds with warrants, profit participation rights,
profit participation certificates or combinations of such
instruments, with or without a limited term to maturity,
which may grant the holders or creditors conversion
rights, warrants or conversion obligations in respect of
shares of the Company up to a maximum proportional
amount of the share capital of €117m (hereinafter referred
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to as "bonds”), with a total nominal amount of up to €5bn.
Shareholders are generally entitled to a subscription right
in respect of these bonds, but the Board of Management
is authorised, with the consent of the Supervisory Board,
to exclude this subscription right in the cases specified in
the authorisation.

Under Article 4(1) of the Articles of Association, the Board
of Management is authorised, with the consent of the
Supervisory Board, to increase the Company'’s share
capital at any time up to 27 April 2026 by an amount of
up to €117.5m by issuing new registered, no-par-value
shares against cash or non-cash contribution (Authorised
Capital 2021). In accordance with the above-mentioned
provisions of the Articles of Association, it may exclude
subscription rights.

Pursuant to Article 4(2) of the Articles of Association, a
contingent increase in the share capital by up to €117m,
consisting of new registered no-par-value shares
(Contingent Capital 2020), has been authorised. The
purpose of this contingent capital increase is to permit
shares to be granted to the holders of convertible bonds,
bonds with warrants, profit participation rights or profit
participation certificates (or combinations of such
instruments) with conversion rights, warrants or conversion
obligations, which are issued by the Company or a Group
company in accordance with the authorisation granted by
the Annual General Meeting on 29 April 2020 for the
period from 29 April 2020 to the end of the day on

28 April 2025. The increase in the share capital is to be
carried out only to the extent that warrants or conversion
rights under the aforementioned instruments are exercised,
or conversion obligations under these instruments are
fulfilled, and insofar as other means of fulfilment are not
introduced.

The complete text of the aforementioned authorisations
and the declaration by the Board of Management is
provided in the agenda of the respective Annual General
Meeting at www.munichre.com/agm/archive. Munich
Reinsurance Company's Articles of Association are
available at www.munichre.com/articles-of-association.

Significant agreements which take effect,
alter or terminate upon a change of control
following a takeover bid, and resultant
implications

Based on our underwriting guidelines, our reinsurance
agreements generally include a clause that grants one or
both parties to the agreement a right of extraordinary
cancellation in the event that “the other party merges with
another company or its ownership and control undergoes
a material change”. Such or similar clauses are typical of
the industry. They are also common in joint venture or
cooperation agreements between shareholders of a joint
investment company.
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Compensation agreements concluded with
members of the Board of Management or
employees for the event of a takeover bid

There are no compensation agreements with members of
the Board of Management or employees for the event of a
takeover bid.

Analysis of the consolidated cash
flow statement

Our primary insurance and reinsurance operations have a
significant influence on Munich Re’s cash flow. We
generally first collect the premiums for the risks assumed
and do not make payments until later, when claims need to
be settled. Cash flow statements of insurance companies
are therefore of limited relevance. The cash flow statement
is adjusted to eliminate the effects of fluctuations in
exchange rates and changes in the entities consolidated.

Consolidated cash flow statement

2024 Prev. year Change
€m €m %
Cash flows from
operating activities 3,143 2,543 23.6
Cash flows from
investing activities -505 -329 -53.3
Cash flows from
financing activities -2,228 -2,983 25.3
Cash flows for
the financial year 410 =770 -

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash inflows from
operating activities were derived from the net result of
€5,671m using the indirect method. In line with our insurance
business model, these include cash flows from investment
activities.

The net result was also adjusted by cash outflows of
€8,653m arising from the expansion of our portfolio of
financial and non-financial investments, as well as by
€2,732m for non-cash changes in the fair values of assets
and liabilities in particular.

Outflows from investing activities were primarily determined
by those from obtaining control of consolidated subsidiaries
(€340m) and from the acquisition of intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment (€316m).

The cash outflows from financing activities stem mainly from
the dividend payment in 2024 and from share buy-backs. One
cash inflow resulted from the issuing of a subordinated bond.

Overall in the year under review, cash — which encompasses
cash with banks, cheques and cash in hand - rose by €410m
(including currency effects) to €6,128m. There were items
pledged as security and other restrictions on title amounting
to €66m (95m).
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Risk governance and risk
management system

Risk management organisation

Organisational structure

Munich Re set up a governance system that meets
Solvency Il requirements. The main elements of this system
are the risk management, compliance, audit and actuarial
functions. At Group level, risk management is part of the
Integrated Risk Management division (IRM) and reports
to the Group Chief Risk Officer (Group CRO). In addition
to the Group functions, there are risk management units
(“mirror functions”) in the fields of business.

Risk governance

Our risk governance ensures that an appropriate risk and
control culture is in place by clearly assigning roles and
responsibilities for all material risks. The Board of
Management must consult the risk management function
on major decisions to be taken. The appropriateness of our
risk governance is reviewed by the Board of Management
on a regular basis.

Defining the risk strategy

The risk strategy, which is aligned with Munich Re's
business strategy, defines where, how and to what extent
we are prepared to incur risks. The further development of
our risk strategy is embedded in the annual planning cycle,
and hence in our business planning. The risk strategy is
approved by the Board of Management, and discussed with
both the Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board and the
full Supervisory Board as a material element of the own risk
and solvency assessment (ORSA) process.

We determine the risk strategy by defining risk tolerances
and limits for a number of risk criteria that are based on the
capital and liquidity available, and on our business strategy,
and provide a frame of reference for the Group’s operating
divisions.
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Implementation of strategy and the risk
management cycle

The risk appetite defined by the Board of Management is
reflected in our business planning and integrated into the
management of our operations. If capacity shortages or
conflicts with the limit system or regulations arise, defined
escalation and decision-making processes are followed.
These have been designed to ensure that the interests of
the business and risk management considerations are
weighed and reconciled with each other as far as possible.

Our implementation of risk management at the operational
level embraces the identification, analysis and assessment
of all material risks. This provides a basis for risk reporting,
the control of limits and monitoring.

Risk identification is performed by means of appropriate
processes and indicators, which are complemented by
expert opinions. At Munich Re, the early identification of
risks is primarily operationalised using the emerging risk
process. In this process, new or changing risks are
discussed with internal and external experts, especially
regarding their relevance, the probability of their occurrence,
expected loss amount, and potential impact on Munich Re.

As part of the risk analysis, a quantitative and qualitative
assessment of all risks at consolidated Group level is made
in order to take into account possible interactions between
risks across all fields of business.

Internal risk reporting provides the Board of Management
with regular information on the risk situation, as regards the
individual risk categories and the entire Group alike. This
ensures that negative trends are identified in sufficient time
for countermeasures to be taken. The purpose of our
external risk reporting is to provide clients, shareholders
and the supervisory authorities with a clear overview of the
Group's risk situation.

Actual risk limits are derived from the risk strategy: taking
the defined risk appetite as a basis, limits, rules and any risk-
reducing measures required are approved and implemented.
We also have a comprehensive early-warning system that
draws our attention to any potential risks.

The risk management system is regularly audited by Group
Audit.
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Internal control system’

Our internal control system is an integrated, Group-wide
system for managing operational risks. Comprising two key
components — the operational risk control system (ORCS)
and the compliance management system (CMS) - our
internal control system addresses both Group management
requirements and local regulations.

Operational risk control system

The operational risk control system (ORCS) is an essential
part of the internal control system. At Group level, the ORCS
is overseen by the IRM division, which reports to the Group
Chief Risk Officer (Group CRO). As part of the ORCS, risk
and control self-assessments are carried out at least once

a year in all fields of business, and the material operational
risks, including compliance-related risks, are identified and
assessed in the process. Key controls and management
measures to mitigate the material operational risks are
analysed and assessed. In addition, the risk management
function carries out independent analyses and company-
wide cross-comparisons regarding operational risks and
controls (monitoring). Significant control deficiencies are
addressed by means of improvement measures and/or close
monitoring. The main findings derived from the risk and
control self-assessments and from monitoring are reported
to the Board of Management and the Audit Committee of
the Supervisory Board.

The identification, management and control of risks arising
out of the accounting process is indispensable for the
production of reliable annual financial statements at both
consolidated and solo-undertaking level. Risks significant
for financial reporting from a Group perspective are
integrated into the internal control system in accordance
with uniform criteria. The risks are checked annually by the
process owners to ascertain whether they are up to date,
and the controls are amended as necessary.

The standardised methodology has been implemented on
the basis of a Group-wide ORCS policy and guidelines
specific to the fields of business. The decision about whether
to include a Group undertaking in the standardised ORCS
is taken on the basis of the principle of proportionality —
with due consideration being given to the nature, scale and
complexity of the risks inherent in the undertaking'’s
operations, and to compliance with regulatory and legal
requirements. The Group undertakings that have not been
integrated into the ORCS Group standard control their
risks in compliance with the principles of good corporate
governance, Group-wide principles of risk management
and relevant national laws.

No material changes were made to the ORCS in the
reporting period.

1 The section on the internal control system is part of the combined management
report and was not audited.
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Compliance management system

The second key component of the internal control system is
the compliance management system (CMS). At Group level,
the Group Compliance and Legal (GCL) division is responsible
for the CMS, which is managed by the Group Chief
Compliance Officer (Group CCO); a separate Tax CMS,
which the Group Taxation division and the Chief Tax
Compliance Officer are responsible for, is used for tax
compliance. In addition to the Group function, there are
further local compliance functions within the fields of
business, as well as decentralised compliance functions

for selected compliance programmes. The CMS is the
methodical framework for the structured implementation

of early-warning, risk-control, consulting and monitoring
functions for compliance risks.

The CMS is based on an integral compliance culture, an
established compliance organisation with clearly defined
roles and responsibilities, and independent, suitable and
qualified human resources that enable the compliance
function to work effectively and efficiently.

In the scope of the CMS, compliance risks are systematically
identified, analysed and appropriately handled so as to
minimise the risks. Process results are reported to the
Board of Management and the Supervisory Board's Audit
Committee.

No material changes were made to the CMS in the
reporting period.

You will find a detailed description of the main features
of the CMS in the > Combined non-financial statement
> Governance information > Corporate governance and
compliance > Compliance.

Statement on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management system and the
internal control system?

In reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of our risk
management systems and internal control systems, we
take into consideration many pieces of information in order
to, among other things, identify any material internal control
deficiencies. The primary pieces of information are as
follows:

- the auditor’s report on the results of the accounting-
related control system,

- the annual report on the results of the ORCS,

- regular risk reporting, in particular by the Group CRO,

- regular compliance reporting, in particular by the
Group CCO, on topics including key compliance
metrics and the essential contents of the compliance
management system, and

2 The statement on the adequacy and effectiveness is part of the combined
management report and was not audited.
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- regular reporting by Group Audit, especially on insights
gained from audit activities about our risk management
and internal control systems.

In addition, the Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board
regularly requests reports on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the internal control system and on changes to the risk
and control landscape compared with the previous year.
The audit reports from Group Audit confirm the general
effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control
system.

In light of the information and reports above — and
considering the assessments made by experts in the
divisions IRM, GCL and Group Audit — we consider our risk
management systems and internal control systems to be
generally adequate. Based on the fact that no material
violations or systematic deficiencies were identified in the
reporting period, we therefore consider our risk
management and internal control systems to also be
generally effective.

Significant risks

Our general definition of risk is possible future developments
or events that could result in a negative prognosis or a
negative deviation from the Group’s targets. We consider
three criteria when evaluating the materiality of risks. First,
the extent to which a risk could influence stakeholder
assessments of Munich Re. Second, the ways in which a
risk could impact the solvency of Munich Re. And third, the
extent to which a risk could exhaust cumulative limits or
budgets. We have applied this definition consistently to each
business unit and legal entity, taking account of its individual
risk-bearing capacity. The assessment of whether a risk is
significant or not for a business unit or legal entity according
to the above definition is performed in the responsible risk
management functions. We make a basic distinction
between risks included in our internal model and covered
by risk-based capital and other risks not quantified in the
internal model. The risks included in the internal model are

1 Solvency capital requirement excluding the application of transitional measures
for technical provisions.
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divided into the following risk categories: underwriting risk
in property-casualty business, underwriting risk in life and
health business, market risk, credit risk and operational risk.
Sustainability risks can affect all of these risk categories and
are therefore an integral part of the management of these
risks.

Risks depicted in the internal model

Munich Re has a comprehensive internal model that
determines the capital needed to ensure that the Group

is able to meet its commitments even after extreme loss
events. We use the model to calculate the capital required
under Solvency Il (the solvency capital requirement, or SCR).

The SCR is the amount of eligible own funds that Munich Re
needs to have available, with a given risk tolerance, to cover
unexpected losses in the following year. It corresponds to
the value at risk of the economic profit and loss distribution
over a one-year time horizon with a confidence level of
99.5%, and thus equates to the economic loss for Munich Re
that, given unchanged exposures, will be exceeded each
year with a statistical probability of 0.5%. Our internal
model is based on specially modelled distributions for the
risk categories property-casualty, life and health, market,
credit and operational risks. We use primarily historical data
for the calibration of these distributions — complemented in
some areas by expert judgement - in order to take adequate
account of future developments, among other considerations.
Historical data covers a long period to provide a stable and
appropriate estimate of our risk parameters. In addition, we
take account of diversification effects we achieve through
our broad spread across various risk categories and the
combination of primary insurance and reinsurance business.
We also take into account dependencies between the risks,
which can result in higher capital requirements than would
be the case if no dependency were assumed. We then
determine the effect of the loss absorbency of deferred taxes.

The table shows the solvency capital requirement' for
Munich Re and its risk categories as at 31 December 2024.
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Reinsurance ERGO Diversification
31.12.2024 Prev. year 31.12.2024 Prev. year 31.12.2024 Prev. year
€m €m €m €m €m €m
Property-casualty 12,410 12,189 860 769 711 -547
Life and health 7,104 6,815 1,319 999 -612 -367
Market 7,060 6,076 3,870 3,169 -1,463 -966
Credit 2,948 3,256 1,188 1,112 -83 -58
Operational risk 1,082 1,080 791 782 -243 -235
Other! 495 540 404 376
31,099 29,954 8,432 7,206
Diversification effect -11,158 -10,746 -2,144 -1,788
Tax -3,999 -3,705 -804 -922
Total 15,941 15,504 5,484 4,496 -2,511 -2,025
- Group
31.12.2024 Prev. year Change
€m €m €m %
Property-casualty 12,559 12,411 148 1.2
Life and health 7,811 7,447 364 4.9
Market 9,468 8,279 1,189 14.4
Credit 4,052 4,309 -257 -6.0
Operational risk 1,630 1,627 3 0.2
Other! 899 915 -16 -1.7
36,419 34,987 1,432 4.1
Diversification effect -13,174 -12,863 -311 2.4
Tax -4,331 -4,151 -180 4.3
Total 18,915 17,974 941 5.2

1 Capital requirements for other financial sectors, e.g. institutions for occupational retirement provision.

At Group level, the SCR increased by 5.2% to €18.9bn -
compared with €18.0bn as at 31 December of the previous
year. The increase was driven primarily by the appreciation
of the US dollar, meaning that all risks underwritten in

US dollars were converted into a higher euro amount.

The increase in the SCR was accelerated by a moderate
expansion of exposures in the investment portfolio and
positive capital market trends. By contrast, the decline in
natural hazard exposures in the reinsurance business and
a lower credit risk exposure helped to reduce risk. Other
information about the changes in individual risk categories
and details about risk concentrations can be found in the
following sections.

Property-casualty underwriting risk

The property-casualty risk category encompasses the
underwriting risks in the property, motor, third-party liability,
personal accident, marine, aviation and space, and credit
classes of insurance, together with special lines also
allocated to property-casualty. Further risk-relevant
information on property-casualty business can be found
in the > Notes to the consolidated financial statements

> Explanatory information > Disclosures on risks

from financial instruments and insurance contracts

> (53) Disclosures on further risks from insurance
contracts.
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In property-casualty business, underwriting risk is defined as
the risk of insured losses being higher than our expectations.
The premium and reserve risks are significant components
of the underwriting risk. Premium risk is the risk of future
claims payments relating to insured losses that have not
yet occurred possibly being higher than expected. Reserve
risk is the risk of the loss provisions established potentially
being insufficient to cover losses that have already been
incurred. In measuring loss provisions, we follow a cautious
reserving approach and assess uncertainties conservatively.
In every quarter, we also compare notified losses with our
loss expectancy, in order to sustain a high level of reserves.

In the risk model, we differentiate between individual, man-
made large losses involving expenditure that exceeds a certain
large-loss limit; losses affecting more than one risk or more
than one line of business (accumulation losses); and all
other losses (basic losses). For basic losses, we calculate
the risk of subsequent reserving being required for existing
risks within a year (reserve risk) and the risk of under-rating
(premium risk). To achieve this, we use actuarial methods
that are based on standard reserving procedures, but take
into account the one-year time horizon. The calibration for
these methodologies is based on our own historical loss
and run-off data. Appropriate homogeneous segments of
our property-casualty portfolio are used for the calculation
of the reserve and premium risks. To aggregate the risk to
whole-portfolio level, we apply correlations that take account
of our own historical loss experience.
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For the purposes of the accumulation-risk scenarios, our
experts develop scientifically sound models that quantify the
probability of occurrence and the loss potential and also take
climate change risks into account. The models also take risk-
limiting elements into consideration, such as cover limits.

In addition to natural catastrophes, we include other
accumulation risks such as cyber and pandemics, using
special models. Based on these scenarios, the potential effects
on our portfolio are determined using stochastic models.

Our internal model considers the resulting accumulation-
risk scenarios to be independent events. The largest natural
catastrophe exposure for Munich Re is in the “Atlantic
Hurricane” scenario, for which our estimate of annual loss
exposure is €9.2bn (8.5bn) (before tax, retained) for a return
period of 200 years.

As part of our regular validation, we look in particular at the
sensitivity of results produced by the risk model for large
and accumulation losses to changes in the return periods or
loss amounts for events, or a change in insurance revenue.
We also consider the effect of changes of dependency

Solvency capital requirement (SCR) - Property-casualty
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assumptions on the results. We regularly adapt our models
on the basis of the findings from our validation.

Another measure for controlling underwriting risks is the
targeted cession of a portion of our risks to other carriers
via reinsurance or retrocession. Most of our companies
have intra-Group and/or external reinsurance and/or
retrocession cover.

In addition to traditional retrocession, we use alternative
risk transfer for natural catastrophe risks in particular.
Under this process, underwriting risks are transferred to
the capital markets via special purpose vehicles.

Solvency capital requirement - Property-casualty

The solvency capital requirement (SCR) increased by
around 1% at Group level, largely due to the appreciation
of the US dollar. An update to the basic loss model and
selected natural hazard models resulted in increases that
were offset by a decline in natural hazard exposures in the
reinsurance business.

Reinsurance ERGO Diversification
31.12.2024 Prev. year 31.12.2024 Prev. year 31.12.2024 Prev. year
€m €m €m €m €m €m
Basic losses 5,973 5,685 718 657 -511 -476
Large and accumulation losses 11,560 11,420 540 438 -435 -335
17,534 17,105 1,258 1,095
Diversification effect 5,124 -4,916 -399 -327
Total 12,410 12,189 860 769 -711 -547
- Group
31.12.2024 Prev. year Change
€m €m €m %
Basic losses 6,181 5,866 315 5.4
Large and accumulation losses 11,665 11,523 142 1.2
17,846 17,389 457 2.6
Diversification effect -5,288 -4,978 -310 6.2
Total 12,559 12,411 148 1.2

Life and health underwriting risk

In life and health, we define underwriting risk as the risk of
insured benefits payable in life or health insurance business
being higher than expected. Of particular relevance are
biometric risks and policyholder-behaviour risks, such as
lapses and lump-sum options. We differentiate between
risks that have a short-term or long-term effect on our
portfolio. In addition to the simple risk of random fluctuations
resulting in higher claims expenditure in a particular year,
the adverse developments with a short-term impact that we
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model notably include rare — but costly — events such as
pandemics. To this end, we model losses and the sum at
risk — taking into particular consideration excess mortalities
in connection with, for instance, the pandemics of the 20th
and 21st centuries.

Further information on the risks in life and health business
can be found in the > Notes to the consolidated financial
statements > Explanatory information > Disclosures on
risks from financial instruments and insurance contracts

> (53) Disclosures on further risks from insurance contracts.
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Life insurance products in particular, and a large part of our
health primary insurance business, are long-term in nature,
and the results they produce are spread over the entire
duration of the policies. This can mean that negative
developments in risk drivers with long-term effects sustainably
reduce the value of the insurance portfolio (trend risks). The
risk drivers mortality and disability are dominated by the life
and health reinsurance segment, particularly by exposure in
North America and the Asia-Pacific region. We also
underwrite longevity risk in the life and health reinsurance
segment, especially in the United Kingdom. The longevity
risk driver can additionally be found in the products
marketed by ERGO in Germany, together with typical risks
related to policyholder behaviour, such as the lapse risk. To
a lesser extent, we write risks connected with the increase
in treatment costs.

Risk modelling attributes probabilities to potential modified
assumptions. We use primarily historical data extracted from
our underlying portfolios to calibrate these probabilities, and
additionally apply general mortality rates for the population
to model the mortality trend risk. To enable us to define
appropriate parameters for the modelling of the range of
areas in which we operate, portfolios with a homogeneous
risk structure are grouped together and individual
comprehensive profit and loss distributions determined.
We then aggregate these distributions, taking account of
the dependency structure, to obtain an overall distribution.

Our largest short-term accumulation risk in the life and

health risk category is a severe pandemic. We counter this
risk by examining our overall exposure in detail using

Solvency capital requirement (SCR) - Life and health
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scenario analysis, and by deploying appropriate measures
to manage the risks.

In reinsurance, we control the assumption of biometric risks
by means of a risk-commensurate underwriting policy.
Interest-rate and other market risks are frequently ruled out
by depositing the provisions with the cedant, with a
guaranteed rate of interest from the deposit. In individual
cases, these risks are also hedged by means of suitable
capital market instruments. We also limit our exposure to
individuals and groups of persons in life insurance.

For primary insurance, substantial risk minimisation is
achieved through product design. In case of adverse
developments, policyholder participation is of great
significance for risk-balancing. In health primary insurance,
most long-term contracts include the possibility and/or
obligation to adjust premiums. There are, however, limits
to the resilience of policyholders.

Limits are laid down for the pandemic scenarios, which
affect the portfolio in the shorter term, and for the longevity
scenarios and their longer-term effects in conformity with
the risk strategy. We continue to analyse the sensitivity of
the internal model to the input parameters on a regular
basis. This relates to the interest rate, the biometric risk
drivers and customer behaviour.

Solvency capital requirement - Life and health

At Group level, the solvency capital requirement increased by
5%, mainly due to business growth in the business segments.
Capital market effects caused by rising interest rates and
movements in exchange rates virtually offset each other.

Reinsurance ERGO Diversification

31.12.2024 Prev. year 31.12.2024 Prev. year 31.12.2024 Prev. year

€m €m €m €m €m €m

Health 295 242 851 634 -61 -68
Mortality 5,613 5,023 53 221 -8 -35
Disability 3,707 3,786 164 193 -18 -18
Longevity 1,234 1,150 876 518 -24 -25
Other 349 380 0 0 0 0
Diversification -4,093 -3,766 -625 -568 0 0
Total 7,104 6,816 1,319 999 -612 -367
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- Group
31.12.2024 Prev. year Change
€m €m €m %
Health 1,086 808 278 34.4
Mortality 5,658 5,209
Disability 3,853 3,961
Longevity 2,086 1,644 442 26.9
Other 349 380 -31 -8.2
Diversification -5,219 -4,554 -665 14.6
Total 7,811 7,447 364 4.9
Market risk Market risks are modelled by means of Monte Carlo

We define market risk as the risk of economic losses
resulting from price changes in the capital markets. It

simulation of possible future market scenarios. We revalue
our assets and liabilities for each simulated market scenario,
thus showing the probability distribution for changes to basic

includes equity risk, general interest-rate risk, specific
interest-rate risk, property-price risk and currency risk.
The general interest-rate risk relates to changes in the
basic yield curves, whereas the specific interest-rate risk
models changes in credit risk spreads — for example, on
euro government bonds from various issuers, or on
corporate bonds. We also include in market risk the risk
of changes in inflation rates (depicted in the subcategory
“general interest-rate risk”) and implicit volatilities (cost
of options). Fluctuations in market prices affect not only
our investments, but also the underwriting liabilities —
especially in life primary insurance. Due to the long-term
interest-rate guarantees given in some cases and the
variety of options granted to policyholders in traditional
life insurance, the amount of the liabilities can be highly
dependent on conditions in the capital markets.

Solvency capital requirement (SCR) - Market

own funds.

We use appropriate limit and early-warning systems in our
asset-liability management to manage market risks.
Derivatives such as equity futures, options and interest-rate
swaps — which are predominantly used for hedging
purposes — also play a role in our management of the risks.
The impact of derivatives is taken into account in the
calculation of solvency capital requirements.

Further information on derivative financial instruments
can be found in the > Notes to the consolidated financial
statements > Explanatory information > Notes to the
consolidated balance sheet — Assets > (16) Financial
investments and also > (18) Insurance-related financial
instruments, as well as under > Notes to the financial
instruments and fair value disclosures on assets and
liabilities > (47) Hedge accounting.

Reinsurance ERGO Diversification
31.12.2024 Prev. year 31.12.2024 Prev. year 31.12.2024 Prev. year
€m €m €m €m €m €m
Equity risk 3,745 3,399 1,691 1,337 -174 -123
Interest-rate risk 2,779 2,844 2,118 1,763 =737 -923
General interest-rate risk 2,381 2,163 1,464 1,171 =875 -631
Specific interest-rate risk 1,571 1,387 1,600 1,246 -221 -309
Diversification interest-rate risk -1,173 -706 -947 -654 -141 18
Property risk 1,786 1,631 736 630 -110 -67
Currency risk 5,430 4,207 242 239 =113 -83
13,740 12,082 4,787 3,970
Diversification effect -6,680 -6,006 -916 -801
Total 7,060 6,076 3,870 3,169 -1,463 -966
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31.12.2024 Prev. year Change
€m €m €m %
Equity risk 5,262 4,614 648 14.0
Interest-rate risk 4,160 3,685 475 12.9
General interest-rate risk 3,471 2,703 768 28.4
Specific interest-rate risk 2,950 2,324 626 26.9
Diversification interest-rate risk -2,261 -1,342 -919 68.5
Property risk 2,412 2,195 217 9.9
Currency risk 5,560 4,363 1,197 27.4
17,393 14,856 2,537 17.1
Diversification effect -7,925 -6,578 -1,347 20.5
Total 9,468 8,279 1,189 14.4

Solvency capital requirement - Market

The solvency capital requirement (SCR) increased by
around 14% at Group level. Detailed information on the
changes in the individual subcategories is available in
the following sections.

Equity risk

The rise in equity risk was due to positive market value
trends and a moderate increase in exposure in alternative
asset classes.

Interest-rate risk

The general interest-rate risk in the reinsurance field of
business rose moderately. The specific interest-rate risk rose
on account of higher exposure to fixed-interest securities
with credit risk exposure due to portfolio restructuring,
among other things.

The interest-rate risks in the ERGO field of business were
up, mainly owing to portfolio restructuring and more
accurate representation of significant interest-rate volatility
in the risk model.

In the reinsurance field of business, the market value of
interest-sensitive investments as at 31 December 2024 was
€85.5bn (74.0bn). Measured in terms of modified duration,
the interest-rate sensitivity of those investments was 3.5
(4.7), while that of the liabilities was 3.4 (4.5). A decrease in
interest rates of one basis point led to a change in available
own funds amounting to around €10.1m (9.0m).

In the ERGO field of business, the market value of interest-
sensitive investments was €111.1bn (109.3bn). The modified
duration was 7.7 (7.8) for interest-sensitive investments and
7.0 (7.1) for liabilities. A decrease in interest rates of one
basis point led to a change in available own funds amounting
to around €2.0m (2.4m).

Property risk
The property risk rose, chiefly due to acquisitions.
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Currency risk
The currency risk increased due to modified positions in
foreign currencies.

Credit risk

We define credit risk as the financial loss that Munich Re
could incur as a result of a change in the financial situation
of a counterparty. In addition to credit risks arising out of
investments in securities and payment transactions with
clients, we actively assume credit risk through the writing
of credit and financial reinsurance and in corresponding
primary insurance business.

When determining credit risks, Munich Re uses a portfolio
model that is calibrated over a longer period (at least one
full credit cycle); it also takes account of changes in fair
value caused by rating migrations and debtor default. The
credit risk arising out of investments (including government
bonds and credit default swaps, or CDSs), deposits
retained on assumed reinsurance and reserves ceded is
calculated by individual debtor. If the credit risk does not
exclusively depend on the debtor’s creditworthiness, but
also on other factors (such as subordination, guarantees or
collateralisation), these are also taken into account. We use
historical capital market data to determine the associated
migration and default probabilities. Correlation effects
between debtors are derived from the sectors and countries
in which they operate, and sector and country correlations
are based on the interdependencies between the relevant
stock indices.

The calculation of the credit risk in “Other receivables”
is based on internal expert assessments. We also quantify
the credit risk for highly rated government bonds.
Information on ratings can be found in the > Notes to
the consolidated financial statements > Explanatory
information > Disclosures on risks from financial
instruments and insurance contracts > (51) Disclosures
on risks from financial instruments.
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Risk concentrations are mainly in government bonds issued
by countries inside and outside the European Union. In
addition, corporate bonds, pfandbriefs and similar covered
bonds account for a large proportion of the investments.

We use a cross-balance-sheet counterparty limit system
valid throughout the Group to monitor and control our
Group-wide credit risks. The limits for each counterparty
(a group of companies or country) are based on its financial
situation as determined by the results of our fundamental
analyses, ratings and market data, and the risk appetite
defined by the Board of Management. The utilisation of
limits is calculated on the basis of risk-weighted exposures.
There are also volume limits for securities lending and
repurchase transactions. Group-wide rules for collateral
management — for example, for over-the-counter derivatives
and catastrophe bonds issued - reduce the resultant credit
risk.

In monitoring the country risks, we do not simply rely on
the usual ratings, but perform independent analyses of the
political, economic and fiscal situation in the countries
issuing bonds in which Munich Re is most heavily invested.
In this regard, climate-change-related risks are also
considered. On this basis, and taking account of the
investment requirements of the fields of business in the
respective currency areas and countries, limits or specific
measures are approved. These are mandatory throughout the
Group for investments and the insurance of political risks.

The sensitivities in the credit risk model are regularly
checked against the most important input parameters.
This primarily concerns the recovery rates from insolvent
debtors, the probabilities of debtor migration between
rating classes, and the parameters for correlations between
debtors. All validations demonstrated the appropriateness
of the modelling approaches used.

We manage credit default risk in retrocession and external

reinsurance with the assistance of limits determined by the
Retro Security Committee. Information on our default risks
from insurance business and from reinsurance contracts held
that are assets can be found in the > Notes to the consolidated
financial statements > Explanatory information > Disclosures
on risks from financial instruments and insurance contracts
> (53) Disclosures on further risks from insurance contracts.

Solvency capital requirement - Credit

The solvency capital requirement declined by around 6%
at Group level, resulting primarily from a decrease in
investments with credit risk exposure in reinsurance. The
volume of deposits retained and receivables from
reinsurance contracts subject to credit risk also decreased.

Munich Re Group Annual Report 2024

50

Operational risk

We define operational risk as the risk of losses resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, incidents
caused by the actions of personnel or system malfunctions,
or external events. This includes criminal acts committed
by employees or third parties, insider trading, infringements
of antitrust law, business interruptions, inaccurate
processing of transactions, non-compliance with reporting
obligations, and disagreements with business partners.

We use scenario analyses to quantify operational risks. The
results are fed into the modelling of the solvency capital
requirement for operational risks and are validated using
various sources of information, such as the ORCS findings
and both internal and external loss data.

The sensitivity in the internal model is regularly checked
against the most important input parameters. This mainly
relates to the dependence of the result on frequency and
loss amounts and the parameters for the correlations
between scenarios. The analyses showed no anomalies in
the year under review.

Solvency capital requirement - Operational risk
At Group level, the solvency capital requirement for
operational risks remained virtually unchanged.

Security risk

Security risk is an integral component of operational risk.
We define security risks as risks resulting from threats to
the security of our employees, data, information, and
property. We have intensified our monitoring of cyber risks
in recognition of the increasing importance of information
technology for Munich Re’s core processes and the dynamic
environment of cyber crime.

The Group Chief Information Security Officer (CISO), a
function that is assigned to risk management, is responsible
for the central and Group-wide coordination and control of
all activities involving information security risks. Security
risk committees have also been set up in the fields of
business to assess and manage security risks. The
members of the security risk committees are managers
from operational units (e.g. IT Security) and the control
functions (e.g. Risk Management, Information Security,
and Compliance).

To further improve cyber security, we are working on
initiatives both specific to and across the fields of business
to ensure a level of protection in line with our information
security strategy. Further information can be found under
> Combined non-financial statement > Governance
information > Corporate governance and compliance

> Information security and > Data protection.
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Other risk categories

As is typical throughout the industry and in accordance
with regulatory requirements, the risk types specified
below are not explicitly quantified in our internal model.
Qualitative risk management is very important for dealing
with these risks.

Reputational risk

We define reputational risk as the risk of loss that may
result from a deterioration in the Group’s public image
among clients, shareholders or other parties. Our
reputation is affected by our behaviour in a number of
areas, such as client relationships, product quality,
corporate governance, earnings power, our treatment of
employees and corporate responsibility. Reputational risk
is closely intertwined with all other risk categories. The
assessment of individual business transactions in terms
of their reputational risk is performed at field-of-business
level by reputational risk committees. Where a reputational
risk could potentially have an impact across fields of
business, other central divisions may be involved in the
assessment if required.

Strategic risk

We define strategic risk as the risk of making wrong
business decisions, implementing decisions poorly, or
being unable to adapt to changes in the operating
environment. Existing and new potential for success in

the Group and the fields of business in which it operates
creates strategic risks. At Munich Re, strategic risks are
identified, assessed and managed in a recurring process
comprising a strategic dialogue in the Strategy Committee
of the Board of Management (StratC) and annual planning.
Furthermore, the Group-wide annual (financial) planning
process is integrated into the strategic dialogue within the
StratC. This annual planning process includes analysing
financial sensitivities and risks as well as assessing the
capital management and risk strategy. These process steps
are mirrored in the primary insurance and reinsurance
fields of business and in investment management. In this
way, we put our strategy to the test in close dialogue with
the various stakeholders at different levels (Group, primary
insurance and reinsurance, asset management). The above
processes ensure that the Board of Management addresses
the strategic risks in detail and is well placed to monitor
and manage them. The Group CRO is involved in both the
strategic and operational business planning as well as in
significant company sales, mergers and acquisitions.
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Liquidity risk

Our objective in managing liquidity risk is to ensure that we
are in a position to meet our payment obligations at all times.

The liquidity risk is managed within the framework of our
holistic risk strategy, with the Board of Management
defining limits on which minimum liquidity requirements
for our operations are based. Compliance with minimum
requirements is continually monitored and regularly
reported to the Board of Management. Using quantitative
risk criteria, we ensure that Munich Re has sufficient
liquidity available to meet all its payment obligations even
under adverse scenarios, with the liquidity position being
assessed both for extreme insurance scenarios and for
adverse situations in the capital markets.

Further information on liquidity risks in life and health
insurance business and in property-casualty insurance
business can be found in the > Notes to the consolidated
financial statements > Explanatory information > Disclosures
on risks from financial instruments and insurance contracts
> (53) Disclosures on further risks from insurance contracts.

Solvency ratio under Solvency |l

The solvency ratio under Solvency Il is the ratio of the
eligible own funds to the solvency capital requirement.

Solvency Il ratio*

31.12.2024 Prev. year Change
Eligible own funds? €m 54,254 47,979 6,275
Solvency capital
requirement €m 18,915 17,974 941
Solvency ratio under
Solvency Il % 287 267

1 Eligible own funds and solvency capital requirement excluding the application
of transitional measures for technical provisions; including the application of
transitional measures for technical provisions, the own funds amounted to
€54.3bn (52.5bn); solvency capital requirement: €18.9bn (18.0bn); Solvency Il
ratio: 289% (292%).

2 Driven by economic earnings of €9.3bn and the issue of a subordinated bond
with a volume of €1.5bn, the eligible own funds increased as at the reporting
date. The following factors had a reducing effect on eligible own funds: the
dividend of €2.6bn agreed by the Board of Management and proposed to the
Annual General Meeting for the 2024 financial year; the share buy-back
programme with a volume of €1.5bn; the adjustment to the opening balance
amounting to —€0.3bn; and other measures totalling —€0.1bn.

The eligible own funds as at the reporting date take into
account a deduction for the dividend of €2.6bn agreed

by the Board of Management and proposed to the Annual
General Meeting for the 2024 financial year.
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Other risks

Economic and financial-market developments
and regulatory risks

Munich Re is heavily invested in the eurozone, and - in
reinsurance in particular — in the US dollar currency area,

a consequence of our global business activities in these
currency areas. We prioritise maintaining a correspondingly
broad diversification of investments to cover our insurance
liabilities. We take various risk management measures to
counter fluctuations in the capital markets that can lead to
volatilities in the Group’s own funds.

The global economy was characterised by subdued
economic growth overall in 2024. The eurozone recovered
from stagnation and the US benefited from continued
strong economic growth. The German economic slump
continued, driven by dwindling industrial output. In China,
the government’s economic stimulus packages helped to
stabilise the economy, although there were still risks in the
shadow-banking and real-estate sectors. Inflation rates
continued to fall in both the eurozone and the US in 2024;
the average rates for the year were below the prior-year
value in both regions. In the eurozone, the drop in inflation
was due to lower energy prices in some cases, coupled with
a less rapid increase in food prices. Service inflation in the
eurozone remained persistently high. Given the protectionist
policies being pursued by the US government, together
with possible financial sanctions and retaliation by trading
partners, both the risk of recession and the risk of changes
in inflation resulting from tariffs remains high. In this
environment, the general insolvency risk for companies in
sectors affected by tariffs is also elevated.

For Munich Re, above-average inflation rates can have a
particularly adverse effect on its claims reserves. However,
we believe that expected inflation rates are adequately taken
into account by applying the standard actuarial methods,
which address the effects of inflation, and by our conservative
reserving approach. Nevertheless, there is a risk that
inflation exceeds forecasts and remains high for longer
than anticipated, in turn impacting the business operations,
financial position and performance of the Group. Although
Munich Re protects itself against accelerated inflation by
holding inflation-linked bonds and other inflation-sensitive
assets such as property, commodities and infrastructure,
these measures might not be sufficient to fully mitigate the
repercussions of inflation. On the other hand, the fact that
interest rates in the eurozone are much higher than in
recent years is providing significant relief for life insurance
companies with guaranteed minimum interest rates.
Although the number of lapses could increase as soon as
interest rates rise significantly above the guaranteed
interest rate, Munich Re life insurance companies have not
on the whole observed such a trend. Thus far, both the
positive impact on earnings capacity and the solvency ratio of
life insurance companies significantly outweigh the lapse risk.
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We regard geopolitical risks in our planning period as very
relevant. In addition to the war in Ukraine, which continues
to be fought with the same intensity, the tension in the
Middle East and the shifts in the balance of power, with
China as the key player, 2024 was marked by a further
increase in geopolitical uncertainty. This includes the
implications of the presidential election in the US and the
increasing political instability in the EU. Munich Re is
observing the developments closely and is analysing the
risks in regions where it has substantial exposures on an
ongoing basis. We conduct more in-depth analyses based
on specific crisis scenarios if the situation demands so that
we can take risk-mitigating measures as necessary.

Global players such as Munich Re are subject to increased
fiscal pressure nationally and internationally, as well as a
higher audit intensity. Given the current political emphasis
on an appropriate taxation of international companies

and the introduction of a global minimum tax rate, which
has applied in the EU since 1 January 2024, this trend will
continue and intensify.

Climate change

Climate change represents the central sustainability risk in
relation to the environment. The Munich Re Group counters
climate change-related risks by systematically taking them
into account in the (re)insurance business, in investments,
and in its own operations. In light of the risk mitigation
measures we take as part of our risk strategy as well as our
risk modelling and pricing, we do not consider the impacts of
climate change to be a material financial risk for Munich Re.
Further information regarding our views on and measures
to address climate change-related risks is available under

> Combined non-financial statement > Environmental
information > Climate change.

Legal risks

As part of the normal course of business, Munich Re
companies are involved in court, regulatory and arbitration
proceedings in various countries. The outcome of those

or possibly imminent proceedings is neither certain nor
predictable. However, we believe that none of these
proceedings will have a significant negative effect on the
financial position of Munich Re. Such proceedings are
dealt with using combined expertise within the individual
departments and units.

Assessment of the risk situation

In accordance with the prescribed processes, our Board
committees explicitly defined the risk appetite for significant
risk categories in the year under review, and quantified it
with key figures. We determined and documented the risk
appetite across the Group hierarchy and communicated it
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throughout the Group. In 2024 risk exposures were regularly
quantified and compared with the risk appetite. They were
reported on and discussed in the relevant committees.

At 287%,the Solvency Il ratio is at a very comfortable level
above our communicated optimal range of 175-220%
(without application of transitional measures). Munich Re
thus continues to have a very solid capital base. Based on
up-to-date findings and on our internal model, Munich Re's
Solvency Il ratio (without application of transitional
measures) would be at least within or above the optimal
range even in the event of major loss events and negative
capital market effects. We therefore assess Munich Re's
risk situation to be manageable and under control.

Loss ratios and combined ratios by class of business
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Further risk figures'

Premium risks and reserve risk in property-
casualty insurance

The degree of exposure to premium risks differs according
to class of business and also between primary insurance
and reinsurance. On the basis of the loss ratios and
combined ratios shown in the following table, conclusions
can be drawn about the volatilities in the different classes
of business and about possible interdependencies.? The
differences are due to fluctuations in claims expenditure
and fluctuations in the respective market-price level for the
covers granted.

%

2024 Prev. year

Loss ratio

Reinsurance
Liability 102.5 89.8
Accident 92.8 75.9
Motor 74.4 94.2
Marine, aviation, space 69.0 60.5
Fire and other property insurance 51.9 58.4
Engineering 54.4 51.6
Credit and surety 6153 57.9
Other classes of business 64.3 66.1

ERGO Property-casualty Germany 60.3 59.1

ERGO International* 62.9 59.3

Combined ratio

Reinsurance
Liability 116.6 102.7
Accident 112.8 89.6
Motor 88.6 109.4
Marine, aviation, space 85.6 79.3
Fire and other property insurance 68.4 74.0
Engineering 75.2 72.7
Credit and surety 65.8 67.8
Other classes of business 80.7 79.6

ERGO Property-casualty Germany 89.2 88.9

ERGO International? 91.9 90.1

1 Property-casualty business, travel insurance business and short-term health insurance business (excluding health insurance conducted like life insurance).

In the motor, fire and other property insurance, and marine
lines of business — and also in sections of engineering
reinsurance and ERGO - there is a high degree of sensitivity
regarding the underlying assumptions about natural

1 In accordance with German Accounting Standard No. 20 (GAS 20).
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catastrophes. The following table therefore shows the
combined ratios for property-casualty reinsurance,
including and excluding natural catastrophe losses.

2 Further information on the combined ratio can be found under > Tools
of corporate management and strategic financial objectives, and in the
> Notes to the consolidated financial statements > Explanatory information
> Segment disclosures > (7) Alternative performance measures.
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Combined ratio in property-casualty reinsurance for the last ten years’
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% 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Including natural catastrophes 82.4 85.2 83.2 99.6 105.6 100.2 99.4 1141 95.7 89.7
Excluding natural catastrophes 72.6 76.2 74.5 87.6 101.6 90.2 92.6 92.1 90.2 88.8

1 Due to the application of IFRS 4 for financial years preceding 2022, and to the increased limit for major losses from 1 January 2023 (€30m, previously €10m), the values

shown in the table are only comparable to a limited extent.

Major losses, by which we mean individual losses
exceeding €30m, are particularly relevant in property-

Rating of accounts receivable

casualty reinsurance. €m 31.12.2024 Prev. year
AAA 8 0
AA 101 105
A 185 164
Major losses in property-casualty reinsurance (net) BBB and lower 5 6
em 2024 Prev. year No external rating 134 116
Major losses from natural catastrophes 2,644 2,335
Man-made major losses 1,241 943
Total 3,885 3,278 Of all our receivables from insurance contracts issued and

The liability for incurred claims is subject to a reserve risk,
i.e. the risk that actual claims settlement may be less than or
exceed the amount reserved. Information on the development
of claims and claims payments over time can be found

in the > Notes to the consolidated financial statements

> Explanatory information > Notes to the consolidated
balance sheet — Equity and liabilities > (28) Liability for
incurred claims. A particular sensitivity to reserve risks
exists in the case of contracts with long run-off periods.
This characteristic applies especially to third-party liability
insurance, where liabilities may manifest themselves after
a considerable latency period.

Risks from defaults on receivables from
insurance business

As at 31 December 2024, the accounts receivable for
reinsurance contracts held were split between the following
ratings (based on those of Standard & Poor’s):
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held at the reporting date, €622m (644m) were outstanding
for more than 90 days. The average default rate for the last
three years was 1.0% (1.1%).

Further information on underwriting risks (including
biometric risks, lapse risk and interest-rate risk), market
risks, and default risks in life insurance can be found in the
> Notes to the consolidated financial statements > Explanatory
information > Disclosures on risks from financial
instruments and insurance contracts > (53) Disclosures on
further risks from insurance contracts. In addition, this
section includes information on liquidity risk in connection
with maturity date analyses of contractual net cash flows
and amounts payable on demand.



Combined management report
Opportunities report

Opportunities report

Our integrated business model, strong capitalisation and
innovation, good customer focus, and deep knowledge
of the industry put us in a good position to benefit from
continuously evolving markets and changes in client
behaviour, while generating profitable growth by
developing customised solutions for our clients. Unless
stated otherwise, the opportunities for Munich Re outlined
below generally relate equally to all fields of business.

Business environment

We anticipate merely moderate growth in the global economy
in 2025. Although low inflation, strong wage growth and
monetary policy easing will boost private consumption,
uncertainties regarding economic policy and geopolitics will
hinder economic growth. Our high degree of diversification
and our strong capitalisation mitigate the risks we face,
and will open up additional business opportunities for us,
provided the macroeconomic parameters that are especially
relevant to us improve. Stronger economic growth - fuelled
by less confrontational trade policy and geopolitics, for
instance — tends to increase demand for insurance cover
and to result in higher premium volume in most classes of
insurance. In addition, the COVID-19 pandemic led many
reinsurance and primary insurance clients to recognise
their need for increased risk protection. The need for first-
class medical care and cover against unforeseeable risks
was brought home to consumers, which could have a
positive effect on demand for insurance products, particularly
private health insurance.

Economic dynamics, which are expected to be positive in
the long term, and the low degree of insurance penetration
in many developing and emerging markets represent
opportunities for profitable expansion and further
diversification of our business portfolio along the entire
value chain.

Against the backdrop of moderately increasing global
reinsurance capacity in 2024, we expect prices to remain
stable in international property insurance, with numerous
opportunities for profitable growth — especially in our
reinsurance and industrial insurance portfolios.

Digital transformation

Digitalisation is increasingly transforming the markets, and
the continuous changes in customer behaviour are
demanding greater flexibility in terms of providing access,
coverage and solutions, as well as in our underlying internal
structures. Driving digital transformation therefore remains
one of Munich Re's strategic priorities and is part of our
Group Ambition 2025.
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We are continually adjusting our internal structures and
processes to reduce complexity and costs, while at the same
time seizing the opportunities that digital transformation
offers. We are attempting to automate as much as possible,
along the entire value chain and across all units. We want
to deliver what our clients and we ourselves expect in terms
of quality, speed and security, while continuing to increase
efficiency. This applies not just to traditionally client-
focused areas such as sales, contract administration and
claims handling - but also, for example, to the digitalisation
of our asset management. In addition, we are leveraging
opportunities arising from flexible, mobile working models
to retain and attract qualified staff.

We are also taking account of increasing demand for digital
products in our research and development activities. At ERGO,
for example, we are heavily investing in the development of
new technologies, such as traditional and generative Al, the
metaverse, bots and virtual assistants. In doing so, we

intend to make our processes and operations more efficient
and intelligent, thus enhancing customer experience.

The above-mentioned technologies, particularly traditional
and generative Al, play a similarly key role in reinsurance.
The primary focus here is on new opportunities in business
management, such as providing a greater range of information
to underwriters for faster, better decision-making
("augmented underwriting”). We are also leveraging our
many years of experience with traditional and generative Al
to help our clients overcome challenges associated with the
implementation of augmented underwriting, the success of
which can be facilitated by our Al-based solutions.

Moreover, we are leveraging numerous initiatives of
relevance to our lines of business with an eye to fostering
the development of innovative products and services
designed to tap growth opportunities in the digital world.
Given our clients’ hybrid requirements, we are actively
driving the integration of various products and sales
channels, and the expansion of direct sales in all classes
of primary insurance.

Social trends

In life and health insurance, an ageing population coupled
with frequently diminishing state benefits are leading to
increasing demand for private and company insurance
plans, which we are catering to with our broad spectrum

of products in life primary insurance. MEAG is also playing
a key role in this respect with its investment expertise.
Moreover, advances in medicine and the increasing
significance of prevention in primary insurance are
providing us with a host of possibilities for satisfying our
clients’ most diverse needs and binding them to Munich Re,
as well as for expanding our business. In life reinsurance, we
also offer integrated reinsurance and financing solutions.
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Ecologically and socially sustainable action is becoming
more and more important for the insurance industry. Our
many different activities in this context, combined with our
high and reliable ESG standards, help us to address the
expectations of society — while also portraying us as an
attractive partner for investors, clients and staff. Further
information is available in the > Combined non-financial
statement.

Climate change and natural
catastrophes

We expect climate change to lead to an increase in weather-
related natural catastrophes in the long term — despite the
global efforts being made. This growing loss potential will
result in greater demand for primary insurance and
reinsurance products. Our expertise in dealing with natural
hazard risks and advances in our risk management - such
as new, high-resolution risk models — allow us to support
preventative measures, calculate competitive prices for
traditional covers, and develop new solutions for our primary
insurance customers and reinsurance clients.
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On a general note, we see business potential in the
transition to a climate-neutral economy. We anticipate an
increase in worldwide investment in renewable energy in
an effort to meet the net-zero goal by 2050. We possess
leading engineering and risk assessment expertise and
we have innovative risk-transfer concepts ready for this
investment surge.

Expanding the limits of insurability

Together with our clients, we strive to expand the
boundaries of insurability in many ways and provide our
customers with new and enhanced types of cover. In this
context, we are developing a broad spectrum of insurance
covers for types of risk that are rapidly becoming as
important as the traditional ones in a changing world,
including performance guarantees for alternative energies
and propulsion systems, risks from artificial intelligence
and algorithms, parametric risks, flood risks and credit
insurance.
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P ros eCtS management of Munich Re. We do not accept any

p responsibility or liability in the event that they are not
realised in part or in full.

This section contains forward-looking statements that

are based on current assumptions and forecasts of the

Outlook 2025

Outlook for Munich Re

2025

Insurance revenue from insurance contracts issued €bn 64
Total technical result - Life and health reinsurance €bn 1.7
Combined ratio — Property-casualty reinsurance % 79
Combined ratio — Global Specialty Insurance % 90
Combined ratio - ERGO Germany % 89
Combined ratio - ERGO International % 90
Return on investment % over 3.0
Net result €bn 6.0
Economic earnings €bn over 6.0

All forecasts and targets face increased uncertainty owing
to fragile macroeconomic and geopolitical developments
and volatile capital markets. As always, the projections are
subject to major losses remaining within normal bounds,
and to the income statement not being impacted by severe
fluctuations in the currency or capital markets, significant
changes in the tax environment, or other one-off effects.
With effect from 1 January 2025, we created a dedicated
segment for the Global Speciality Insurance (GSI) business
within the reinsurance field of business. In addition, from
2025 onwards, we will be reporting largely at the level of
ERGO Germany and ERGO International, and will only

be publishing selected metrics for ERGO Life and Health
Germany and ERGO Property-casualty Germany.

Munich Re

We estimate that the Group's insurance revenue from
insurance contracts issued (insurance revenue) in 2025
will total around €64bn, up slightly on 2024.

We expect our annual return on investment to remain
stable year on year at over 3.0%.

Our target net result for 2025 is around €6.0bn, higher
than the 2024 net result. The forecasts are subject to major
losses being within normal bounds and liability for incurred
claims remaining unchanged. Furthermore, they are
dependent on our income statement not being impacted by
severe currency or capital market movements, significant
changes in fiscal parameters, or other special factors.

For 2025, we expect our economic earnings to slightly
surpass the IFRS net result of €6.0bn. The compilation of
financial reports in accordance with IFRS 9 and IFRS 17
has increased harmonisation between the IFRS net result
and economic earnings as performance indicators — but
differences remain nevertheless. Of particular note are the
differences pertaining to both the timing of the recognition
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of profit and the impact of capital market effects. The
projection for the economic earnings is based on the
assumption of stable conditions and capital markets,
unchanged modelling parameters, and normal major-loss
incidence. Deviations from these assumptions may have a
different impact on economic earnings than on accounting
based on the IFRS Accounting Standards. Further
information on economic earnings as a management tool
can be found under > Tools of corporate management and
strategic financial objectives.

Subject to approval by the Annual General Meeting, the
dividend will amount to €20.00 per share, equivalent to
a total payout of €2.6bn.

Reinsurance

In the reinsurance field of business, we expect insurance
revenue of around €42bn for 2025, up marginally on
2024's figure. Currency translation effects could potentially
have a considerable impact on this estimate. The net result
for the reinsurance field of business is expected to total
around €5.1bn.

We project a total technical result of around €1.7bn for life
and health reinsurance. The total technical result
comprises the insurance service result and the result from
insurance-related financial instruments.

We anticipate the combined ratio in property-casualty
reinsurance to be about 79%. In the new GSI segment,
we expect to see a combined ratio of 90%. Both ratios
are based on net insurance revenue.

Price development was stable overall, and for the most part
compensated for the higher loss estimates in some areas,
which were caused primarily by inflation or other loss trends.
Primary insurance prices also increased in many markets.
Overall, the high price level of Munich Re's portfolio was
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maintained in the reinsurance renewals as at 1 January
2025 with a slight 0.6% decrease. Economic profitability
was negatively affected due to the lower interest rate level.

As at 1 January 2025, around two-thirds of non-life
reinsurance treaty business was up for renewal, with

a focus on Europe, the US and global business, and
representing a premium volume of €15.9bn. Total premium
volume written decreased slightly by 2.4% to around
€15.6bn. We discontinued business that did not meet our
expectations with regard to prices or terms and conditions.
At the same time, attractive business relationships arose
from the expansion of existing client relationships as well
as new business.
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The renewals as at 1 April 2025 (above all in Japan and
India) and 1 July 2025 (parts of the portfolio in the US,
Australia and Latin America) will involve the renegotiation
of a premium volume of around €6.1bn in reinsurance
treaty business. It is Munich Re's expectation that the
attractive price levels and improved treaty conditions will
be largely upheld in these renewal rounds, too.

ERGO

In the ERGO field of business, we expect to see a slight
increase in insurance revenue to around €22bn for 2025.
The contribution to the net result for 2025, at around €0.9bn,
should be higher than that for 2024.

We are aiming for a combined ratio of 89% for ERGO
Germany. We predict a combined ratio of 90% for ERGO
International.
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Combined non-financial
statement

Group sustainability statement under
ESRS

General information
Basis for preparation

General basis

This report has been prepared on a consolidated basis.
The scope of consolidation is the same as the scope of
consolidation used in consolidated financial reporting in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards. Due to their
inclusion in the consolidated report, certain subsidiaries
are exercising the exemption from the requirement to
supplement their management report by a report in
accordance with Section 289b of the German Commercial
Code or with the applicable national transpositions of
Article 19a(9) or Article 29a(8) of Directive 2022/2464/EU
Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD). These
subsidiaries are indicated in the consolidated financial
statements under > List of shareholdings as at 31 December
2024 pursuant to Section 313(2) of the German Commercial
Code (HGB), by a reference to footnote 12.

The Munich Re Group's upstream and downstream value
chain was included in the preparation of this report. The
reporting thus covers the impacts, risks and opportunities
that are associated with its own operations, including

the connected value chain, and those associated with its
insurance and investment activity.

In the context of our own operations, we include the
companies in the consolidated group with staff who perform
activities that form part of our core business of assuming
(re)insurance risks and managing investments. The
business activities relating to non-financial investments

in the consolidated group are, in accordance with the
management approach at Munich Re, allocated to the
respective disclosures for the investments.

Due to the given confidentiality, we have exercised the
option under ESRS 1 not to disclose confidential
information that requires a particular level of protection,
especially in the area of information security.

Disclosures relating to specific circumstances

Given that the European Corporate Sustainability Reporting
Directive (CSRD) was not transposed into German law in
2024, we have prepared a combined non-financial statement
according to the requirements of German commercial law
pursuant to Sections 289b and 315b of the German
Commercial Code (HGB) in accordance with the European
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Non-Financial Reporting Directive (NFRD, 2013/34/EU),
and concurrently under full application of the first set of the
European Sustainability Reporting Standards (ESRS) as a
reporting framework as per Section 289d HGB. In parallel,
the Group sustainability statement in accordance with
ESRS meets the requirements of the CSRD, including the
involvement of employee representatives.

Accordingly, the reporting includes the disclosures under
Sections 289c and 315¢c HGB and the Group sustainability
statement as per the ESRS. Furthermore, it combines

the consolidated non-financial statement of the Munich Re
Group and the non-financial statement of Munich
Reinsurance Company. All content presented in the report
applies both to the Group and to Munich Reinsurance
Company, unless otherwise noted.

In preparing this report for the first time following the ESRS -
a Commission Delegated Regulation (2023/2772/EU) that
serves to provide a common framework for sustainability
reporting in the EU — the structure and scope of our report
have changed, particularly with regard to the reporting of
metrics.

Beyond the ESRS disclosure requirements, this report
contains supplementary disclosures on scope 3 financed
emissions, deriving from the standards published to date
by the International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB):
IFRS S1 General Requirements for Disclosure of
Sustainability-related Financial Information (IFRS S1)

and IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures (IFRS S2).

The disclosures provided under ESRS in this area are
supplemented by further reporting in accordance with
ESRS 1, Paragraph 114, ESRS 2, Paragraph 15, and the
ESRS-ISSB Standards Interoperability Guidance. Specific
references to these disclosures are made in the topic-
specific sections on financed emissions.

Information and disclosures on the value chain often require
the use of judgement or are subject to estimates. This is
especially the case in connection with disclosures on our
insurance and investment activities. Where relevant, we
disclose the sources for estimates and outcome uncertainty
in the relevant topic-specific sections.

We engaged EY GmbH & Co. KG Wirtschaftspriifungs-
gesellschaft to perform an assurance engagement on our
2024 combined non-financial statement containing the
Group sustainability statement prepared in accordance
with ESRS. All the information in this combined non-
financial statement, which has been prepared under full
application of the ESRS, has been subject to a limited
assurance engagement. Beyond this limited assurance
engagement, no further validation of the measurement of
the metrics was performed by another external body.

Certain ESRS disclosure requirements were incorporated by
reference. A list of information incorporated by reference can
be found under > Tabular presentations > List of disclosure
requirements incorporated by reference. Any references to
information not included in the report constitute additional
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information and are not part of the combined non-
financial statement; they are not covered by the assurance
engagement.

Strategy

Strategy, business model and value chain

As one of the world's leading risk carriers and providers of
primary insurance and reinsurance products, Munich Re
generated insurance revenue of €60,830m in financial year
2024 attributable to the ESRS “Insurance (FIN)” sector.
There are no additional ESRS sectors that are significant
for Munich Re.

Munich Re pursues a Group-wide strategy. In our endeavours
to contribute to a sustainable tomorrow, we regard
economic prosperity, resilience and technological progress
as factors that are intrinsic to the creation of a just and
sustainable society.

Munich Re’s business model is based in particular on
responsible, sustainable and forward-looking conduct over
the long term together with our employees and business
partners. The sustainability-related impacts, risks and
opportunities are monitored on an ongoing basis as part of
our holistic management approach and, where reasonable
and possible, tracked using appropriate strategies and
actions. Any effects these may have on our business model,
for example, are outlined in the following sections. A
description of the Munich Re Group, the overarching
business strategy, the business model, the value chain and
customer groups can be found under > Combined
management report > Strategy and > Munich Re Group;
and the Group's performance by business segment is
presented in the > Combined management report > Business
performance. Information on the number of staff, broken down
by region can be found under > Social information > Human
rights and working conditions > Working conditions

> Overview “Characteristics of our workforce”.

Munich Re’s commitment to acting responsibly continues
to serve as a cornerstone of our value creation activities.
We are striving to reduce GHG emissions from our
insurance business and our investment portfolio to net
zero by 2050. Munich Re expressed this intention in the
expectation that governments will meet their own pledges
to achieve the goals of the Paris Agreement. With regard
to the definition and scope of net zero, we will consider
the latest information from regulatory requirements when
we define new targets.
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We have outlined our aspirations accordingly in our
Munich Re Ambition 2025. We not only contributed our
own expertise and experience, but also worked closely
with our external stakeholders to create holistic added
value and support an effective climate transition. We
focus on the following fields of action:

- Responsible corporate governance: Responsible
corporate governance is only possible if it is rooted in
ethical, legal conduct.

- Environmental protection and climate change
mitigation: We have defined a climate strategy,
including decarbonisation targets, which applies to
our (re)insurance business, our investments and our
own operations. Guidelines set restrictions on the
underwriting of risks and on investments in connection
with fossil fuels.

- Business model: We take into account environmental,
social and governance (ESG) aspects, beyond climate
change, across the value chain in our core business
activities. In particular, we focus on respecting human
rights criteria and corresponding due diligence processes
for the protection of biodiversity. We also support the
international conventions in the controversial weapons
context (including but not limited to the weapon categories
of anti-personnel mines and cluster munition), and address
this in corresponding guidelines for our investments and
for (re)insurance.

- Responsible employer: As an employer, we treat our
staff in a responsible and respectful way as an absolute
priority. We want to create conditions that support
personal and professional development. Our goal is an
environment that promotes diversity, equity and inclusion.

Further details on the targets and actions are provided

in the relevant information in the following topic-specific
sections. Exceptions to guidelines and measures may,

in certain cases, be granted at Board level.

Interests and views of stakeholders

Munich Re values open, continuous dialogue with our
various stakeholders. This form of proactive engagement
enables us to identify those topics that are decisive for our
Group, both now and in the future, from the perspective

of our stakeholders. Stakeholder views and interests were
reflected in the materiality assessment by involving internal
experts who engage in ongoing dialogue with various
stakeholder groups.
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For this purpose, we analyse the results of our dialogue
with external stakeholders and incorporate the insights in
our strategy:

- We engage in dialogue with our clients and regularly
assess their satisfaction with our services through
analyses and surveys tailored to the differing customer or
client structures of the primary insurance and reinsurance
industries, respectively.

- We hold expert discussions with players in the financial
markets, which are characterised by regular dialogue and
the proactive provision of information. We offer detailed
information on the general risks and opportunities of our
business by means of frequent personal meetings with
investors, at roadshows and at regular events for investors
and analysts. We also specifically inform these groups
about our sustainability activities and industry trends.

- We keep in close contact with potentially affected
stakeholders, non-governmental organisations (NGOs),
political institutions, authorities and organisations at both
national and international levels. We are also an active
member of a range of initiatives in the financial industry and
of associations, including the Principles for Sustainable
Insurance (PSI), Principles for Responsible Investments
(PRI) and the Net-Zero Asset Owner Alliance (NZAOA).
Consideration of the interests of potentially affected
stakeholders, including respect for human rights, forms
part of our general approach to managing ESG aspects
(see also > Social information > Human rights and working
conditions > Working conditions).

We maintain a regular dialogue with scientists, associations
and organisations across the globe, and are involved in
several national and international research and development
projects. These include the Global Earthquake Model
(GEM), the German Research Centre for Artificial
Intelligence (DFKI) and the German Data Science Society
(GDS). We also seek out regular dialogue with wider
society, for example through public dialogue forums and
panel discussions.
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Our employees are likewise some of our most important
stakeholders, which is why we maintain continuous
dialogue with our staff worldwide. We promote a culture
of feedback and transparent communication using a broad
range of channels, such as Group-wide surveys, internal
social media/platforms and other dialogue forums. Events
such as town hall meetings, strategy meetings with
members of the Board of Management and management
conferences also promote dialogue across the various
organisational levels.

Impacts, risks and opportunities and their
interaction with strategy and business model

The following sustainability-related impacts, risks and
opportunities may affect our business performance in the
short, medium and long term or are of strategic relevance,
and are therefore linked to our strategy and our business
model.

We have derived the definitions of the impacts, risks and
opportunities from the sector-agnostic ESRS, taking
entity-specific aspects into account. Further entity-specific
disclosures in particular can be found in the sections

on customer satisfaction, information security and data
protection. A detailed description and respective
management approaches are presented in the following
sections.

The assessment of sustainability-related impacts, risks and
opportunities is based on established definitions of time
horizons: short term (up to 2 years), medium term (more than
2-10 years), and long term (more than 10 years). In particular
when it comes to our (re)insurance portfolio, an understanding
of how risks change in the short and medium term is of
importance for our business activity. Any assessment of
how these risks will impact Munich Re’s exposure over
medium- and long-term time horizons is naturally subject
to a high degree of uncertainty.
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Impacts, risks and opportunities that fall under the ESRS disclosure requirements
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Related ESRS
Section of standard/
Impact/risk/ the value entity-specific
opportunity  chain Cluster disclosure Description of impacts, risks, opportunities Time horizon
Impact Own Climate E1l Climate change mitigation in internal operations short term
operations change medium term
long term
Impact Own Climate E1l Use of electricity from renewable resources in internal short term
operations change operations medium term
long term
Impact Own Climate E1l GHG emissions from MR buildings and non-sustainable short term
operations change modes of transportation medium term
long term
Impact Own Climate E1l Consuming non-renewable energy sources in internal short term
operations change operations medium term
long term
Impact Own Human rights  S1 Creating favourable working conditions for employees with medium term
operations & working consideration of human rights (including equal treatment at long term
conditions the workplace)
Impact Own Business G1 Compliant working and business environment short term
operations conduct & medium term
compliance long term
Impact Own Business entity-specific  Data protection breaches short term
operations conduct & disclosure medium term
compliance long term
Impact Underwriting Climate E1l Raising awareness of climate risks short term
change medium term
long term
Impact Underwriting Climate E1l Reducing the risk of harmful effects of climate change on short term
change insureds through (re)insurance solutions medium term
long term
Impact Underwriting Climate E1l GHG emissions that can be associated with our (re)insurance  short term
change products (including covers in the energy sector) medium term
long term
Impact Underwriting Customer entity-specific  Customer satisfaction and internal customer-related short term
satisfaction disclosure processes medium term
long term
Impact Investments  Climate E1l GHG emissions from investees, real estate and infrastructure  short term
change projects medium term
long term
Impact Investments  Biodiversity E4 Investments in industries that potentially contribute to short term
and biodiversity loss and ecosystem change medium term
ecosystems long term
Impact Investments  Human rights  S2, S3 Investments in countries or companies with potential human  short term
& working rights violations medium term
conditions long term
Opportunity Own Human rights  S1 Attracting a diverse workforce and adding value to the medium term
operations & working organisation long term
conditions
Opportunity Own Human rights  S1 Attracting and retaining skilled employees medium term
operations & working long term
conditions
Opportunity Underwriting Climate E1l Increased awareness of climate risks among the short term
change population/companies medium term
long term
Opportunity Underwriting Customer entity-specific ~ Additional business through satisfied customers short term
satisfaction disclosure medium term
long term
Opportunity Investments  Climate E1l Investments in renewable energy short term
change medium term
long term
Risk Own Human rights  S1 Loss of workforce short term
operations & working medium term
conditions long term
Risk Own Business G1 Compliance and regulatory risks short term
operations conduct & medium term
compliance long term
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Related ESRS
Section of standard/
Impact/risk/ the value entity-specific

opportunity  chain Cluster disclosure Description of impacts, risks, opportunities Time horizon

Risk Own Business entity-specific ~ Cyber attacks short term
operations conduct & disclosure medium term

compliance long term

Risk Own Business entity-specific  Violation of data privacy short term
operations conduct & disclosure medium term

compliance long term

Risk Underwriting Climate E1l Impacts on the insurance business short term
change medium term

long term

Risk Underwriting Customer entity-specific  Risks in relation to customer satisfaction short term
satisfaction disclosure medium term

long term

Risk Investments  Climate E1l Impacts on investments short term
change medium term

long term

Materiality pursuant to Section 289¢c HGB

The impacts, risks and opportunities listed in the table
above have been classified as relevant for reporting in
accordance with the ESRS materiality concept. If the
definition of materiality pursuant to Section 289c HBG is
applied, the following topics are not deemed material as
only material impacts have been identified here:

- Climate change (own operations);
- Biodiversity and ecosystems (investments);
- Human rights and working conditions (investments).

The information on these topics provided in the report
constitutes additional information pursuant to

Section 289¢c HGB, and has been included in order to
report in accordance with ESRS. All topics listed in the
table above are also relevant for reporting under the
definition of materiality pursuant to Section 289¢c HGB.

Understanding of climate change risks

Physical risks and transition risks

Climate-related risks arise in the form of physical and
transition risks, with interdependencies between both
risk types. Physical risks arise from the increasing
frequency and severity of extreme weather events
(hurricanes, wildfires, severe convective storms, floods,
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etc.) and chronic changes such as sea level rise. In turn,
those responsible for causing environmental damage

or companies that have contributed to climate change
may be also held accountable for the consequences.
Physical risks are therefore of particular relevance in the
underwriting of weather-related natural hazards and in
liability insurance. Moreover, physical risks may also
impact the value of an investment. Transition risks arise
in particular as a consequence of political or economic
measures taken for the purpose of conversion to a lower-
carbon economy or as a consequence of reactions to
changing living conditions in certain regions. In particular,
transition risks may affect the value of our investments.
Both types of risks involve medium-term and long-

term effects, but can also have disruptive short-term
consequences.

Climate-related scenario analyses

To estimate its resilience to physical and transition risks
in the event of various climate-related scenarios, and to
derive specific actions to be taken, Munich Re conducted
climate-related scenario analyses covering the period

up to 2050 in 2021. In 2023 and 2024, we conducted
further analyses specifically addressing physical risks

in the life and health reinsurance segment. We review
the results of these analyses on a regular basis and our
assessment is that they remain valid.
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The climate scenarios we use are based on the scenarios
presented by the Network for Greening the Financial
System (NGFS). We apply a so-called orderly scenario,
which assumes that climate policies are introduced early
and become gradually more stringent. Physical risks and
transition risks are both relatively minor in this scenario.
We apply a so-called disorderly scenario, in which the
introduction of more stringent climate policies is delayed,
but these must then be implemented with immediate
effect. This scenario features high transition risk. We also
apply “hot house world” scenarios, which assume that
transitional efforts are insufficient or non-existent. Such
scenarios are characterised by high physical risks.

The targets of the Paris Agreement are assumed to be
met in the first two of the scenarios described above.

The climate change scenarios refer to significantly longer
periods than our usual scenarios for potential trend risks.
Reliable quantitative information is difficult to obtain and
depends heavily on the different potential climate change
pathways. Any assessment of how these risks will impact
Munich Re’s exposures over longer time horizons is
subject to a high degree of uncertainty. This is because
the transition path and the way it affects other emerging
risks are uncertain, as are the resulting impacts on
known risk drivers such as premium and reserve risks or
the impact of changes in share prices, interest rates or
exchange rates on investments. Furthermore, future risk
exposures may differ considerably from current exposures.
We use scenario and sensitivity analyses as standard to
consider these uncertainties in our risk strategy.

Risks arising from climate change impact the materiality
of our established risk categories: underwriting risk,
market price risk, credit risk, operational risk, liquidity
risk, strategic risk and reputational risk. For that reason,
management of climate-related risks is an integral
component of our risk strategy. Our risk strategy is
aligned with Munich Re’s business strategy and defines
where, how and to what extent we are prepared to incur
risks. The further development of our risk strategy is
embedded in the annual planning cycle, and hence in our
business planning. The risk strategy is approved by the
Board of Management, and discussed with both the
Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board and the full
Supervisory Board as a material element of the own risk
and solvency assessment (ORSA) process. We determine
the risk strategy by defining risk tolerances and limits for
a number of risk criteria that are based on the capital and
liquidity available, and on our business strategy, and
provide a frame of reference for the Group’s operating
divisions.
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Management of sustainability-related
impacts, risks and opportunities

The materiality assessment determines which
sustainability topics are especially important for
Munich Re and its stakeholders, and therefore should
be focused on in our management and reporting. To
fulfil the regulatory reporting requirements, we
conducted a materiality assessment for the 2024
financial year to identify the material information
relevant for reporting. The assessment was conducted
as per the requirements of the ESRS. The results of the
materiality assessment were analysed both with regard
to the concept of materiality under Section 289c of the
German Commercial Code (HGB) as well as that defined
in the ESRS. The present report covers both the topics
that were deemed material under the HGB as well as
information on the impacts, risks and opportunities that
were considered relevant for reporting under ESRS.
Where content was considered relevant for reporting
only under ESRS, for the purposes of the HGB it
constitutes additional information disclosed voluntarily.

Description of the process for identifying
and assessing material sustainability-
related impacts, risks and opportunities

Assessment of sustainability-related impacts

The material impacts were identified and assessed in a
multi-stage process. The basis for this was the continual
due diligence processes established by Munich Re (see
also > Governance > Statement on due diligence). One
element of these processes is that the Munich Re units
hold regular dialogue with relevant stakeholder groups
(e.g. employees, investors, customers, suppliers). The
material impacts are addressed and monitored continuously
as part of the existing processes. To identify the potential
material impacts for the reporting, in a first step, a list of
topics with potential impacts was prepared, taking
Munich Re’s business model into consideration. The list
was based on the topics already reported in the previous
year in the context of the combined non-financial
statement as well as the topics listed in the sector-
agnostic ESRS. On the basis of the requirements of the
ESRS and taking into account the entire value chain
(internal operations, investment and insurance activities),
the identified impacts were assessed using qualitative
and — where reasonable and possible — quantitative
methods. The qualitative assessment was conducted
largely in the course of workshops with experts from
various units that deal with ESG aspects in their
functions and are in continuous dialogue with external
stakeholders, e.g. ESG experts from Group Investment
Management (GIM) or in Underwriting. The workshop
participants were selected on the basis of their expertise,
their understanding of Munich Re's business model and
their understanding of the expectations of external
stakeholders.
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This was followed by a supplementary assessment
involving additional internal experts, such as the Investor
Relations unit, which reflected the interests and views of
external stakeholders on the basis of the regular dialogue
held with them. By following this process, the interests
and views of internal and external stakeholders were
represented. For that reason, we did not hold an
additional direct consultation with potentially affected
stakeholders or external experts.

The assessment focused on our internal operations,
insurance and investment activities, and thus considered
impacts in which the Munich Re Group is involved
through its internal activities and those resulting from
its business relationships. Associates and joint ventures
were regarded as part of the value chain and taken into
account accordingly in the materiality assessment. The
assessment was performed at consolidated group level,
taking into account all locations in the relevant countries
where Munich Re is represented. Potentially significant
differences between material impacts, risks and
opportunities at Group level and at the subsidiaries of
the Munich Re Group were taken into consideration by
involving experts in Group functions with a holistic view
of the Group. Selected participants from ERGO and
MEAG were also included in the workshops.

The criteria in accordance with the provisions of ESRS 1
were considered in the assessment. Accordingly, a
distinction was made between negative and positive
impacts and between actual and potential impacts. For
actual positive impacts, the scale and scope were
assessed, while in the case of negative impacts, the
irremediability of the impacts was assessed. Likelihood
of occurrence was also assessed.

For each identified impact, the scale, scope and
irremediability were assessed separately using a scale
of 1to 4. Likelihood of occurrence was assessed on a
scale of 5 from 20% to 100%, with actual impacts being
assigned a likelihood of 100%.

Severity was calculated as the arithmetic mean of scale,
scope and irremediability, and weighted with a likelihood
for a final assessment. An impact was classified as
material if its total score was above the defined threshold
of 2.29. This threshold corresponds to a percentage value
of 55% based on the scale of 1to 4 outlined above.
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To identify and assess the impacts of insurance activities,
documents including guidelines and available relevant
publications were used, such as the ESG guidance
issued by the United Nations Environment Programme
Finance Initiative (UNEP FI) for non-life insurance
business. For investments, impacts were identified and
assessed - including potential climate-related impacts -
based on the consideration of applicable investment
guidelines and, in addition, a sector-based analysis. To
do this, Munich Re’s investment portfolio was initially
allocated to certain economic sectors. Following this,
publicly available information on the impacts of economic
sectors on the sustainability matters being analysed was
used in order to identify actual and potential impacts

for Munich Re's investments. The data analysis was
supplemented by expert judgement if no data, or only
insufficient data, was available for certain topics or asset
classes. Particular attention was paid to the special
features of Munich Re's investment structure, such as
investment activity being focused on companies and
government bonds in OECD member states — where the
benchmark for environmental standards is higher than in
non-OECD member states, which is reflected by lower
impacts (according to the Environmental Performance
Index developed by Yale University). The process and the
results were validated by experts from Group Investment
Management and MEAG ESG & Sustainable Finance.

Assessment of sustainability-related risks and
opportunities

The identification, assessment, prioritisation and
monitoring of sustainability-related opportunities

and risks was based on the same assumptions and
requirements regarding the inclusion of the value chain
as in the assessment of impacts, and was carried out
after the impacts had been identified. In this respect, the
risks and opportunities were identified and assessed
taking the impacts into account. Assessment of the
sustainability-related risks in the materiality assessment
was performed by the same persons as in the risk
management process. Where a sustainability-related risk
or opportunity was deemed relevant for reporting under
ESRS, then such information was considered necessary
for an understanding of the development and performance
of the business and the position of the Company, for the
purposes of the materiality assessment under Section
289c HGB. Where, in addition, a material impact under
ESRS was identified for a given topic, then the topic was
deemed material and reportable under Section 289c¢
HGB overall.
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The materiality of the risks and opportunities in the
context of ESRS reporting was assessed qualitatively on
the basis of the likelihood of occurrence and the potential
scale, taking short-, medium- and long-term time
horizons into consideration. Highly likely risks and
opportunities classified as medium to large were deemed
as relevant for sustainability reporting in accordance with
the ESRS. This does not necessarily mean that a material
financial risk remains for the relevant reportable risks.
Sustainability risks, including risks related to climate
change, are contained in the risks that are quantified in
the internal model (see also > Combined management
report > Risk report). As part of the integrated risk
management processes, these risks are regularly assessed
using the following three criteria:

- the extent to which a risk could influence how
Munich Re is regarded by its stakeholders;

- the way in which a risk could impact Munich Re's
solvency;

- the extent to which a risk could lead to the exhaustion
of limits.

This definition is applied consistently to all business
units and legal entities, taking individual risk-bearing
capacity into account.

Reputational risks may also arise, or the risks may have
strategic relevance. Reputational risks in the context of
sustainability-related questions are managed by the
Group sustainability department and the communications
department, and by Reputational Risk Committees in

the divisional units. Responsibility for strategic risks lies
with the respective process owners/divisional units and
ultimately with the Board of Management (Strategy
Committee).

As part of the emerging risk process, relevant new risks
are identified and qualitatively assessed as a first step.
The results are presented in the ORSA report.

Topic-specific requirements for the disclosure of the
materiality assessment (IRO-1)

In the following, we present, independently of the
materiality of the topics, the information required under
disclosure requirement IRO-1 in the topical standards
ESRS E2, E3, E4, E5, G1:

Assets and business activities relating to impacts, risks
and opportunities in connection with water and marine
resources (ESRS E3) and resource use and circular
economy (ESRS E5) were considered using the qualitative
methodologies described above. With regard to the
topical standard ESRS E2, no assessment of our
locations in connection with pollution was carried out
because, due to our business model, no pollution-related
material impacts caused by our locations were identified.
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The impacts on biodiversity and ecosystems (ESRS E4)
at our own locations and in the upstream and downstream
value chain were evaluated as part of the materiality
assessment, based on the criteria outlined above. On

the basis of the analyses performed, no dependencies
on biodiversity and ecosystems and their services were
identified or assessed at our own locations or in the
upstream and downstream value chain. Ecosystem
services were not included in this assessment. Transition
risks, physical risks and systemic risks and opportunities
in connection with biodiversity and ecosystems are
covered by the assessment described above.

In light of our business model and our low environmental
impact, no material negative impacts on biodiversity and
ecosystems for our internal operations were identified.
We therefore did not analyse whether our office buildings
are located in or near biodiversity-sensitive areas. We did
not define any remedial actions for this reason.

The criteria described above (including consideration of
the business model and the value chain) were used to
identify material impacts, risks and opportunities relating
to our business conduct.

The overall results were confirmed at Board of
Management level.

The methodology used for the materiality assessment
has been updated since the last reporting period in order
to fully comply with the ESRS requirements. For this
reason, a new assessment was performed for financial
year 2024 to take the new requirements into account. The
results will be reviewed in an annual validation process.

Governance

The role of the Board of Management and
Supervisory Board

As an Aktiengesellschaft (German stock corporation)
under German law, Munich Reinsurance Company has
a two-tier board structure, consisting of the Board of
Management and the Supervisory Board. The Board of
Management is responsible for managing the Company,
in particular for setting the Company’s objectives and
determining its strategy, including for topics relating to
sustainability. The Supervisory Board advises the Board
of Management and monitors its management of the
Company. The Supervisory Board is also responsible for
appointing the members of the Board of Management
and determining their remuneration. Further information
on the corporate legal structure and the role of the Board
of Management and Supervisory Board can be found in
the Statement on Corporate Governance.
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Board of Management

Composition and diversity

In accordance with the law and the Articles of Association,
the Board of Management of Munich Reinsurance
Company is to be comprised of at least two persons;
otherwise the Supervisory Board determines the number
of members of the Board of Management. When
appointing members of the Board of Management, the
Supervisory Board considers diversity in terms of gender,
professional and educational background,
internationality and age.

The Board of Management of Munich Reinsurance
Company currently comprises ten members, including
two women:

- Dr. Joachim Wenning (Chair)

- Dr. Thomas Blunck (Chair of the Reinsurance
Committee)

- Nicholas Gartside (Chief Investment Officer)

- Stefan Golling

- Dr. Christoph Jurecka (Chief Financial Officer)

- Dr. Achim Kassow (Labour Relations Director)

- Michael Kerner

- Clarisse Kopff

- Mari-Lizette Malherbe

- Dr. Markus RieB (primary insurance/ERGO)

The share of women on the Board of Management is
thus 20%, and that of men 80%.

In its current composition, the Board of Management
shows a diverse range of professional training and
education. It includes graduates of various degree
programmes such as business and economics, (actuarial)
mathematics, physics, and political science. The
individual members of the Board of Management have
had different career focuses — in operative business, in
certain markets, or in specialist areas. The diverse CVs
and personalities within the Board of Management
express the versatility of our business model, and reflect
the complex requirements faced by the Board of
Management.

The global business activities of the Munich Re Group
mean that all members of the Board of Management
have international management experience, and the
majority have also worked abroad. The Board of
Management is also itself international.

In addition, the composition of the Board of Management
is diverse in terms of age: the average age is 53, with

the youngest member being 40 years old and the oldest
member 59 years old.
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Access to expertise and skills

The members of the Board of Management bear
individual responsibility for the divisions they head,

and joint responsibility for overall management of the
business. In addition to the specific knowledge and
experience required for each division, all members of the
Board of Management must have a sufficiently broad
range of knowledge and experience to adequately bear
the Board of Management's overall responsibility.

All members of the Board of Management must meet the
supervisory “fit and proper” standards of Solvency Il. To
implement these requirements, the Board of Management
and Supervisory Board have adopted a “Fit and Proper
Policy”; this policy sets out fitness and propriety
requirements for Board members and certain other
function holders. Accordingly, it must be ensured that
the members of the Board of Management have the
necessary qualifications in their respective individual
areas of responsibility. The policy also requires the
entirety of the members of the Board of Management to
have suitable qualifications, experience and knowledge,
particularly in the following areas:

- Insurance and financial markets: knowledge and
understanding of the wider economic, business and
market environment in which Munich Re operates.

- Business strategy and business model: detailed
understanding of Munich Re's business strategy and
model.

- System of governance: knowledge and understanding
of the risks which Munich Re or a comparable insurance
company is facing, and the capability to manage them.
Furthermore, the ability to assess the effectiveness of
risk management and ensure effective governance and
oversight as well as effective controls in the business;
and to oversee changes in these areas as required.

- Financial analysis and actuarial analysis: ability to
interpret Munich Re's financial and actuarial information,
identify key issues, put in place adequate controls
and take the necessary measures on the basis of this
information.

- Regulatory framework and regulatory requirements:
knowledge and understanding of the regulatory
framework in which Munich Re operates, in terms of
both the regulatory requirements and expectations.
Capability to adapt to changes in the regulatory
framework without delay.

- Internal model (risk model): ability to acquire within
a reasonable period of time a basic knowledge and
understanding of
- the structure of the internal model and the way the

model is adapted to Munich Re’s business and is
integrated in its risk-management system;
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- the scope of applicability and purpose of the internal
model and the risks covered or not covered by the
internal model;

- the general methodology applied in the internal model
calculations;

- the diversification effects taken into account in the
internal model;

- the limits of the internal model.

- Management (leadership experience): ability to exercise
directive and oversight functions, and the competence
to bear personal responsibility for implementing
decisions taken.

Existing specification profiles for the members of the
Board of Management set out the specific qualifications,
experience, and knowledge that are necessary for the
specific positions, in addition to the supervisory
requirements. Depending on the respective divisional
responsibilities, these can include the following specialist
knowledge:

- in-depth knowledge of the topics required by
supervisory regulation (see above);

- all forms of traditional and non-traditional insurance in
the life and/or non-life segments;

- specialty lines (e.g. US specialty primary insurance
lines, capital markets, offshore risks);

- accounting and risk management for major
international corporations;

- asset-liability management;

- capital markets and various asset classes;

- sustainability;

- human resources.

All members of the Board of Management fulfil the fit
and proper requirements and meet the specification
profiles for their specific positions in full. Based on their
suitably diverse qualifications, knowledge and relevant
experience, they bear the responsibilities assigned to
them and ensure that the business is managed and
monitored in a professional manner.

In addition, the members of the Board of Management
receive regular reports from the Group's senior managers
and leading experts, who have deeper, specialist
knowledge of all the topics relevant for the Company.
This particularly includes the material sustainability-
related impacts, risks and opportunities. In addition, the
Board of Management can consult the expertise of the
senior managers and other experts at any time.

Roles and responsibilities

The work of the Board of Management, in particular the
allocation of divisional responsibilities among the
individual members, matters reserved for the full Board
of Management and the majority required to pass
resolutions, is governed by rules of procedure issued by
the Supervisory Board.
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Fundamental strategic decisions relating to sustainability
are made by the ESG Committee — a subcommittee

of the Strategy Committee — and by the full Board of
Management.

At the level of the Board of Management, risks relating to
sustainability are addressed either by the full Board of
Management and/or the Group Committee or the Group
Risk Committee.

Full Board of Management

The full Board of Management decides on all matters
that, either by law, or according to the Articles of
Association or rules of procedure, require a resolution of
the Board of Management. In particular, it is responsible
for matters requiring the approval of the Supervisory
Board, those which constitute management tasks, are of
exceptional importance or which have to be submitted to
the Annual General Meeting, and significant personnel
measures.

Group Committee

The Group Committee is the central management
committee of the Group. It decides in particular on
fundamental issues concerning the strategic and
financial management of the Group for all fields of
business, and on the principles of general business policy
and organisation within the Group. This particularly
includes planning, financial management, risk
management and risk strategy, and human-resource
matters for the uppermost management level at the
Group, unless specific tasks are otherwise assigned to
the Reinsurance Committee or the Strategy Committee.
The committee also makes decisions on all matters of
fundamental importance relating to the divisions headed
by its voting members. In particular, the Group
Committee also addresses sustainability-related risks.

The Group Committee comprises the Chair of the Board
of Management and one other member of the Board of
Management (currently the Chief Financial Officer). The
Chair of the Board of Management chairs the committee.

Group Risk Committee

The Group Risk Committee (GRC) is a subcommittee of
the Group Committee. Irrespective of the management
responsibility of the full Board of Management and

the responsibility of the Group Committee, the GRC

is responsible for establishing and maintaining an
appropriate risk management process, including risks
relating to sustainability in the Group.

In addition to the members of the Group Committee,

the GRC also includes the Group Chief Risk Officer
(Group CRO) as a non-voting member. The Chief Financial
Officer chairs the committee.
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Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee of the Board of Management is
the central management committee for fundamental
strategic matters in the fields of business (reinsurance,
primary insurance). It makes decisions on all strategic
matters of fundamental relevance for the fields of business,
including own investments as well as administered (third-
party) funds, including issues relating to sustainability.

The Strategy Committee comprises the members of
the Group Committee, the Chair of the Reinsurance
Committee, the member of the Board of Management
responsible for primary insurance/ERGO, and the
Chief Investment Officer. The Chair of the Board of
Management chairs the committee.

ESG Committee

The ESG Committee is the central management
committee for fundamental, ESG-related strategic
matters in the Group. It makes decisions on all strategic,
ESG-related matters of fundamental relevance for the
fields of business, including own investments and
administered third-party funds, particularly:

- enhancing Group-wide ESG governance;
- enhancing the Group-wide ESG-related strategies,
including the Group-wide climate strategy.

Where decisions within the sphere of responsibility of
the committee are reserved for the full Board of
Management - either by law, the Articles of Association
or the Board of Management's rules of procedure - the
Committee prepares such decisions. In addition, the
Committee is kept up-to-date by the ESG Management
Team on the implementation of the above strategies, as
well as other important ESG-related matters.

The members of the ESG Committee are the members
of the Strategy Committee and the head of the
Economics, Sustainability & Public Affairs (ESP) central
division as a non-voting member. The Chair of the Board
of Management chairs the Committee.

Reinsurance Committee

The Reinsurance Committee is the central management

committee for the reinsurance field of business. It decides
on all matters of fundamental importance for this field of
business, including those related to sustainability, except
investments.

The voting members of the Reinsurance Committee
consist of all the members of the Board of Management
except the members of the Group Committee (Chair

of the Board of Management, Chief Financial Officer),
the Chief Investment Officer, and the member of the
Board of Management responsible for primary
insurance/ERGO. The Chief Financial Officer of the
reinsurance field of business is also a non-voting
member of the Reinsurance Committee. The Chair of
the committee is appointed by the Supervisory Board.
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Global Underwriting and Risk Committee

The Global Underwriting and Risk Committee (GURC)
is a subcommittee of the Reinsurance Committee and

is responsible for establishing and continuously
implementing an appropriate underwriting and risk
management process in the reinsurance field of business,
to the extent that the full Board of Management,
Strategy Committee, Reinsurance Committee or Group
Risk Committee are not responsible.

The voting members of the GURC are the Chair of the
Reinsurance Committee and two other members
appointed from among the members of the Reinsurance
Committee. The non-voting members of the GURC are
the Head of Investment Strategies (GIM), the Chief
Underwriting Officer for reinsurance, the Group Chief
Risk Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the
reinsurance field of business. The Chair of the Reinsurance
Committee also chairs the GURC.

Supervisory Board

Composition and diversity

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the
Supervisory Board of Munich Reinsurance Company
consists of 20 members, of whom 10 are elected by
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
(shareholder representatives) and 10 are elected by
the employees (employee representatives).

As for its composition, the Supervisory Board follows

a concept of diversity with regard to its members'
professional and educational backgrounds, internationality,
ethnicity, age, and gender. The Supervisory Board has
set itself specific objectives concerning its composition
and has defined requirements regarding the competences
of the Supervisory Board as a whole. Moreover, sets of
criteria have been adopted for employee representatives
and shareholder representatives, respectively. As at

31 December 2024, 9 women and 11 men sat on the
Supervisory Board. Women therefore constitute 45% and
men 55% of the members. In its current composition, the
Supervisory Board shows a diverse range of professional
training and education. 15 members of the Supervisory
Board have international experience. The composition

of the Supervisory Board is also diverse in terms of age:
the average age is 58, with the youngest member being
44 years old and the oldest member 71 years old.

Details of the composition of the Supervisory Board can
be found under > Access to expertise and skills.

Independence

All members of the Supervisory Board (shareholder
and employee representatives) are independent within
the meaning of ESRS. The percentage of independent
members is thus 100%.
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Access to expertise and skills

In accordance with the competence profile for the
Supervisory Board as a whole and both sets of criteria, it
must be ensured that — in terms of the professional and
educational backgrounds of its members — the Supervisory
Board as a whole has adequate knowledge, skills and
experience with regard to the markets, business processes,
competition and the requirements of reinsurance,
primary insurance and investment in order to perform its
duties properly. Appropriate knowledge of the following
fields is also required: risk management, accounting,
auditing, controlling and internal auditing, asset-liability
management, law, regulatory supervision, compliance,
tax, human resources management and sustainability
matters of significance to the business. The competence
profile also includes a good overall understanding of the
business model. The members of the Supervisory Board
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must collectively be familiar with the sector in which the
Company operates.

Any additional requirements for specific duties will be
defined on a case-by-case basis, in particular taking into
account legal requirements and the competence profile.
At least one member of the Audit Committee must have
expertise in the field of accounting and at least one other
member of the Audit Committee must have expertise

in the field of auditing. The expertise in the field of
accounting shall consist of special knowledge and
experience in the application of accounting principles
and internal control and risk management systems, and
the expertise in the field of auditing shall consist of
special knowledge and experience in the auditing of
financial statements. Accounting and auditing also include
sustainability reporting and its audit and assurance.
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Qualification matrix of the members of the Supervisory Board'
von Bomhard Horstmann Beier Booth Busch
Tenure Joined Board in 2019 2014 2024 2016 2024
Personal Regulatory requirement v v v v v
suitability (Fit & Proper)
Independence? v v v v v
No overboarding v v v v v
Diversity Gender Male Female Male Male Male
Year of birth 1956 1970 1980 1954 1964
Nationality German German German British/German German
International experience v - - v v
Educational background Lawyer Lawyer Medical orderly Economist Physicist
Professional Actuarial experience® v - v v -
suitability Investment management* v v - v -
Accounting® v v - -
Auditing v v - - -
Risk management® v v - v v
Internal model” v - - v -
Corporate governance v v - v v
and control®
Human resources v v - v v
Sustainability 4 v - v v
Special Financial expert per v - - - -
expertise® Section 100(5) AktG
Accounting expert v - - - -
Audit expert v - - - -
Digital transformation/ - - - - v
Information technology
Cyber security and - - - - v
information security
Climate change/ v - - v v
Climate risks
Natural sciences - - - - v
Engineering - - - - v

See the end of the table for footnotes.
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Jungo
- Czlowiekowski Grundler Jakel Briingger Kaindl
Tenure Joined Board in 2024 2024 2024 2017 2019
Personal Regulatory requirement v v v v v
suitability (Fit & Proper)
Independence? v v v v v
No overboarding v v v - v
Diversity Gender Male Female Female Female Male
Year of birth 1976 1962 1971 1961 1969
Nationality Polish German German Swiss German
International experience v - v v v
Educational background Economist and Study MPhil in Lawyer Mathematician
Social scientist of Biology International
Relations
Professional Actuarial experience® v v - v v
suitability Investment management* v v - v v
Accounting® v v - v v
Auditing v v v v v
Risk management® v v v v v
Internal model” v - - v v
Corporate governance v 4 4 v v
and control®
Human resources v v v v v
Sustainability v v v v v
Special Financial expert per - - - 4
expertise® Section 100(5) AktG
Accounting expert - - - - v
Audit expert - - - - -
Digital transformation/ v v v v -
Information technology
Cyber security and v - v - -
information security
Climate change/ - - v - -
Climate risks
Natural sciences - v - - -
Engineering - - - - -

See the end of the table for footnotes.
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Knoche-
- Brouillon Miicke Ossadnik Plottke Spohr
Tenure Joined Board in 2021 2019 2024 2014 2020
Personal Regulatory requirement v v v v v
suitability (Fit & Proper)
Independence? v v v v v
No overboarding v v v v v
Diversity Gender Female Female Female Male Male
Year of birth 1965 1953 1968 1962 1966
Nationality French/ German German German German
German
International experience v - v - v
Educational background Pharmacist Legal assistant Physicist Graduate in Engineer
insurance
business
administration
Professional Actuarial experience® - v v v
suitability Investment management* v v - v v
Accounting® v v v v v
Auditing v v v v v
Risk management® v v v v v
Internal model” v - - v -
Corporate governance v v v v v
and control®
Human resources v v v v v
Sustainability v v v - v
Special Financial expert per - - - - -
expertise® Section 100(5) AktG
Accounting expert - - - - -
Audit expert - - - - -
Digital transformation/ v v v - v
Information technology
Cyber security and - - v - v
information security
Climate change/ v v v - v
Climate risks
Natural sciences v - v - -
Engineering - - v - v

See the end of the table for footnotes.
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Stocker-
- Napravnik Terhoeven Vogel Weidmann Zimmerer
Tenure Joined Board in 2024 2024 2024 2024 2017
Personal Regulatory requirement v v v v v
suitability (Fit & Proper)
Independence? v v v v v
No overboarding v v v v v
Diversity Gender Female Female Male Male Male
Year of birth 1975 1966 1969 1968 1958
Nationality German German German German German
International experience v v v v v
Educational background Economist Legal assistant Master’s degree Economist Lawyer
in geography
Professional Actuarial experience® 4 v - - v
suitability Investment management* v - - v v
Accounting® v - - v v
Auditing v - - v v
Risk management® v v v v v
Internal model” - - - - v
Corporate governance v v v v v
and control®
Human resources v v v v v
Sustainability - - v v v
Special Financial expert per - - - - v
expertise® Section 100(5) AktG
Accounting expert - - - - v
Audit expert - - - - v
Digital transformation/ - v v - v
Information technology
Cyber security and - v v - -
information security
Climate change/ - - v v v
Climate risks
Natural sciences - - - - -
Engineering - - - - -

—

On a scale of A to E, this corresponds to an evaluation of at least B.

Investment, asset-liability management.
Accounting, controlling.
Risk management (including internal control processes).

Law, regulatory supervision, compliance, internal audit, tax.

OCONOO U WN

The different personalities within the Supervisory Board
and their individual careers reflect the wide range of
duties of the Supervisory Board and meet the associated
requirements.

The members of the Supervisory Board are responsible
for arranging training and professional development
measures necessary for the performance of their duties.
They are appropriately supported by the Company when
they take office and with regard to training and
professional development measures. As part of a self-
assessment, the Supervisory Board notifies the Federal
Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin) once a year how
relevant areas of competence in the Supervisory Board
are covered. The self-assessment forms the basis for a
development plan prepared each year that defines the
topic areas in which the Supervisory Board wishes to
further develop its knowledge and skills, both for the
individual members and as a whole. More information
on access to expertise can be found under > Information
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Internal model: For calculation of the solvency capital requirement under Solvency Il

As at 31 December 2024; v = Fitness: Evaluating as part of the annual self-assessment of the Supervisory Board to have “good” or “sound knowledge”.

Please see the > Statement on Corporate Governance for details on independence as per the German Corporate Governance Code.
Skills and experience with regard to the markets, business processes, competition and the requirements of reinsurance and primary insurance (life and non-life).

Result of a supplementary query (without a rating scale) as part of the annual self-assessment.

provided to and sustainability aspects addressed by the
Board of Management and the Supervisory Board.

Roles and responsibilities

The Supervisory Board has set out its own rules of
procedure, which specify responsibilities, work processes
and modalities for the adoption of resolutions. The Audit
Committee has its own rules of procedure, which have
been adopted by the full Supervisory Board.

The rules of procedure for the Supervisory Board and
for the Audit Committee are available on the Munich Re
website at www.munichre.com/supervisory-board.

Full Supervisory Board

As a rule, the material impacts and opportunities relating
to sustainability are addressed in the Praesidium and
Sustainability Committee, Personnel Committee,
Remuneration Committee and/or by the full Supervisory
Board.


https://www.munichre.com/en/company/about-munich-re/supervisory-board.html
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Material risks, and risks of strategic relevance, which
relate to sustainability are addressed in the Audit
Committee and/or by the full Supervisory Board.

Praesidium and Sustainability Committee

The Praesidium and Sustainability Committee regularly
deals with sustainability matters (ESG), except in cases
where other committees are responsible. It also prepares
the Report of the Supervisory Board to the Annual
General Meeting, the Declaration of Conformity with the
GCGC pursuant to Section 161 of the Stock Corporation
Act (AktG), and the Statement on Corporate Governance
for the Supervisory Board. In addition, it is responsible
for preparing the annual self-assessment of the
effectiveness of the Supervisory Board as a whole and its
individual committees with regard to the performance of
their duties.

The members of the Praesidium and Sustainability
Committee as at 31 December 2024 were:

- Dr. Nikolaus von Bomhard (Chair)
- Dr. Roland Busch

- Dr. Anne Horstmann*®

- Anita Stocker-Napravnik*

- Dr. Maximilian Zimmerer

*Employee representative

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee prepares Supervisory Board
resolutions on the adoption of the annual financial
statements and approval of the consolidated financial
statements (including preliminary audit) and discusses
interim financial reporting and Solvency Il reporting
with the Board of Management. Additionally, the Audit
Committee monitors sustainability-related reporting
and the associated reporting processes, as well the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
system (including ESG risks), internal control system,
Compliance Management System and handling

of material compliance cases, the actuarial function
system and the internal audit system.

The Audit Committee prepares the procedure for
selecting the external auditor, in particular the
Supervisory Board's proposal to the Annual General
Meeting to elect the auditor. The Audit Committee is
additionally responsible for assessing performance and
monitoring the independence of the external auditor;

it monitors and assesses the quality of the audit and
any additional services provided by the external auditor.
In particular, it engages the external auditor for the
Company and consolidated financial statements as
well as for the external assurance engagement of the
combined non-financial statement, defines areas of
emphasis of the audits and agrees the auditor’s fee.

After in-depth deliberations by the Board of Management,

the Audit Committee — together with the Board of
Management — prepares the annual discussion of the risk
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strategy by the Supervisory Board and discusses any
changes to or deviations from the risk strategy with the
Board of Management during the year.

The members of the Audit Committee as at 31 December
2024 were:

- Dr. Maximilian Zimmerer (Chair)
- Dr. Nikolaus von Bomhard

- Stefan Kaindl*

- Dr. Victoria E. Ossadnik

- Ulrich Plottke*

*Employee representative

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for preparing
the Supervisory Board's resolutions on determining,
regularly reviewing and amending the remuneration
system for the Board of Management; this Committee
also determines and reviews the specific target- and
maximum overall remuneration of the individual
members of the Board of Management. In addition,

the Remuneration Committee prepares the Supervisory
Board’s resolutions regarding determination of the level
of variable remuneration components, determination of
the performance criteria and objectives for variable
remuneration, the assessment of objectives, and the
determination of the variable remuneration to be granted
to the individual Board of Management members. The
Personnel Committee may be involved in this assessment.
Where sustainability (ESG) issues are concerned,

the Praesidium and Sustainability Committee may be
involved in determining and assessing the performance
criteria and objectives for variable remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
preparing the Supervisory Board’s resolutions regarding
remuneration components of the employment contracts
of members of the Board of Management, and for
remuneration reporting with regard to the remuneration
of members of the Board of Management and the
Supervisory Board.

The members of the Remuneration Committee as at
31 December 2024 were:

- Renata Jungo Briingger (Chair)
- Anita Stocker-Napravnik*
- Prof. Dr. Jens Weidmann

*Employee representative

Personnel Committee

The Personnel Committee prepares the appointments
and any revocations of appointments of Board of
Management members. It also prepares the long-term
succession planning together with the Board of
Management, including setting targets for the number of
women on the Board of Management. In addition, the
Personnel Committee is responsible for personnel
matters involving members of the Board of Management,
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unless these are issues that are the responsibility of the
full Supervisory Board or the Remuneration Committee.

The members of the Personnel Committee as at
31 December 2024 were:

- Dr. Nikolaus von Bomhard (Chair)
- Renata Jungo Briingger
- Anita Stocker-Napravnik*

*Employee representative

Information provided to and sustainability
aspects addressed by the Board of
Management and the Supervisory Board

The Board of Management and the Supervisory Board
and/or their responsible committees addressed the
identified sustainability-related impacts, risks and
opportunities in the 2024 reporting period. Details
about these can be found under > General information
> Strategy > Impacts, risks and opportunities and their
interaction with strategy and business model.

Board of Management

The Board of Management determines the strategic
direction for the business, agrees it with the Supervisory
Board and ensures that it is followed. For this purpose,
and equally in the case of decisions on significant
transactions and in the risk management process, the
Board of Management systematically identifies and
assesses the social, environmental and governance-
related risks and opportunities for the Company, as well as
the corresponding impacts on the Company'’s activities.
As well as long-term economic goals, it also appropriately
takes sustainability targets into consideration.

To this end, the Board of Management's committees are
informed regularly or as needed about existing projects,
activities, progress and current developments. The views
and interests of the affected stakeholders in relation to
the sustainability-related impacts are communicated in
this context by the relevant responsible units, the Group
Sustainability department or the ESG Management
Team to the responsible committees of the Board of
Management.

By incorporating sustainability-related factors into the
strategic and operational decision-making processes,
the committees ensure that all relevant aspects are taken
into consideration and any potential compromises are
carefully weighed up.

Internal risk reporting is used to provide the Board of
Management with quarterly updates on the risks in the
individual risk categories and on the risk situation in the
Group as a whole.

At Group level, risk management is handled by Integrated
Risk Management (IRM) and is headed by the Group Chief
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Risk Officer. It comprises the management of sustainability
risks, and in particular climate risks. In addition to the
Group functions, there are risk management units (“mirror
functions”) in the relevant Group companies. An appraisal
by the risk management function is necessary for any key
decisions at the level of the Board of Management.

The Board of Management is responsible for effecting
adequate risk management and risk control. It must
ensure that statutory requirements and in-house rules
are complied with, and works to ensure compliance by
Group companies and their staff members. The Board of
Management has established a Group-wide risk-based
Compliance Management System (CMS). The CMS
constitutes the methodological basis for the structured
implementation of the early-warning, risk-control, advisory
and monitoring functions. The compliance function
oversees the development, implementation, monitoring
and ongoing improvement of the Group-wide CMS.

Compliance with data protection regulations is a
significant element of maintaining Munich Re's
reputation and the basis for the trust of our business
partners. Data protection management systems have
been implemented in the various fields of business
to systematically monitor and control how we handle
personally identifiable information.

Operationally, the ESG Committee is supplemented

by the ESG Management Team. This team is composed
of the heads of ESP and Financial and Regulatory
Reporting (FRR), the head of the Group’s Sustainability
department, the departmental head for ESG-relevant
topics in Group Investment Management (GIM), as well
as the chief underwriting officers from reinsurance and
ERGO. The ESG Management Team is responsible for
implementing and monitoring the Group-wide ESG
strategies. It meets whenever necessary, but at least
four times a year, and addresses the effectiveness of
sustainability-related strategies, actions and targets
with regard to the impacts, risks and opportunities,
among other aspects. Eleven meetings took place in the
2024 financial year. The ESG Committee and the ESG
Management Team are supported by the Group
Sustainability department and the sustainability teams
from the various areas of the business. The Group's
Sustainability department is part of the ESP central
division, which reports directly to the Chair of the Board
of Management. It coordinates sustainability activities
within the Group.

Non-compliance with ESG criteria could result in damage
to Munich Re's reputation. As a result, where societal
and environmental risks are not already subject to
specific operational standards, they are assessed by our
reputational risk management and rejected if necessary.
We identify, analyse, assess and manage reputational
risks with the aid of qualitative methods. Specific
guidelines and process descriptions define how we deal
with reputational and sustainability risks. Various
measures raise our staff's awareness of reputational and
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ESG aspects, which in turn helps to mitigate the risks.
Reputational risk committees (RRCs) in investment,
reinsurance and primary insurance (in the latter case
called the Reputation and Integrity Committee) assess
concrete reputational concerns and any potential
reputational or sustainability risks of individual
transactions. If necessary, there are escalation mechanisms
in place to forward individual transactions to Board

of Management level. The reviewed incidents are
documented. The figures in the table illustrate the
findings and the development of the reputational and
sustainability risks reviewed by the RRCs for the 2024
financial year and the previous year.

Outcome of assessment by RRC of transactions submitted for
review of critical reputational risks

Number 2024 Prev. year Change

%

Rejected due to critical
reputational risk 0 2 -100.0

Accepted, no critical
reputational risk

identified 10 5 100.0
Accepted under
specified terms 4 3 33.3

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board and/or its responsible
committees are informed regularly or ad hoc about
existing projects, activities, progress and current
developments.

In the context of reporting to the Audit Committee, the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems are assessed. Further relevant
information about the risk management governance
system is presented under > Risk report > Risk governance
and risk management system > Risk management
organisation.

The full Supervisory Board also addresses material
sustainability issues at least three times a year. It does so
on the basis of the combined non-financial statement,
upon presentation of the annual personnel report, and
through regular updates on ESG-relevant strategies and
implementation measures. Such updates are based on
the report detailing the work of the Praesidium and
Sustainability Committee, and other information. Further
information can be found under > Corporate governance
> Report of the Supervisory Board.

The members of the Supervisory Board were again
invited to participate in an information event in 2024.
Nearly all members used the opportunity to learn more
about the internal model and about underwriting.
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A special introductory event for the new members of
the Supervisory Board was also offered.

Integration of sustainability-related
performance in incentive schemes

The Supervisory Board decides on the remuneration
system for the Board of Management and reviews it
regularly. The Supervisory Board’'s Remuneration
Committee supports the full Supervisory Board and
prepares resolutions that the Supervisory Board discusses
in detail and adopts. The Board of Management
remuneration system decided upon by the Supervisory
Board is submitted to the Annual General Meeting

for approval. The remuneration system is submitted to
the Annual General Meeting again for approval if any
material change is proposed, and in any event at least
every four years, most recently on 28 April 2021.
Further information on the remuneration system

and the remuneration report can be found online at
www.munichre.com/board-of-management.

The remuneration system stipulates that the remuneration
of the members of the Board of Management comprises
fixed remuneration and variable remuneration, each of
which accounts for approximately 50% of the target
overall remuneration. In the case of members of the
Board of Management who are still eligible to participate
in the employer-financed company pension scheme,
the fixed remuneration accounts for approximately 60%
and the variable remuneration for approximately 40%

of the target overall remuneration. 30% of the variable
remuneration consists of an annual component (annual
bonus) with a financial target and 70% consists of a
multi-year component (multi-year bonus). Since the
financial year 2022, 80% of the multi-year bonus has

a share-based assessment basis (up to 2021: 100%).

In addition, at least one specific ESG target (based on
environmental, social or governance-related aspects)
with an overall weighting of 20% is set. For both the
annual bonus and the multi-year bonus, the Supervisory
Board also has the option of factoring in sustainability
matters, in the context of a discretionary component.

For each upcoming financial year, the Supervisory Board
defines the assessment bases for all components of
variable remuneration, which are aligned with operational,
sustainable and above all strategic objectives. It considers
the strategic objectives in depth every year when
assessing and defining the assessment bases. It also
determines whether the targets apply to the individual
members or the Board of Management as a whole.
Neither the targets nor the benchmarking parameters
may be adjusted retroactively.

The following ESG targets, which apply to all members
of the Board of Management, were agreed for the current
multi-year bonus plans:


https://www.munichre.com/en/company/about-munich-re/board-of-management.html
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ESG targets as a component of the multi-year bonus

Multi-year bonus 2022-2025 - To be paid in 2026 - 20% ESG targets

Environment (weighting 15%) Achieving the climate protection targets defined in the Munich Re Group climate strategy
Reducing the CO: footprint by 2025 in investments
-29% emissions from FY 2019 to FY 2025
Linear scaling 0-200%:
-19% = 0%
-29% = 100%
-39% = 200%

Reducing the CO: footprint by 2025 in insurance
— Thermal coal:
-35% emissions from FY 2019 to FY 2025
Linear scaling 0-200%:
-25% = 0%
-35% = 100%
-45% = 200%
- Oil and gas - Upstream:
-5% emissions from FY 2019 to FY 2025
Linear scaling 0-200%:
0% = 0%
-5% = 100%
-10% = 200%

Reducing the CO: footprint by 2025 in own emissions from operations
-12% CO, emissions per employee of the Munich Re Group from FY 2019 to FY 2025
Linear scaling 0-200%:
0% = 0%
-12% = 100%
-24% = 200%

Social (weighting 2.5%) 40% share of women in management positions at all management levels across the Group by end of FY
2025
Linear scaling 0-200%:
37.5%= 0%
40.0% = 100%
42.5% = 200%

Governance (weighting 2.5%) The average share of audit findings not implemented in a timely manner in relation to the total number
of open audit findings is to be no higher than 5% Group-wide at the end of the quarters in the assessment
period.

Linear scaling 0-200%:
10%= 0%
5% = 100%
0% = 200%

Multi-year bonus 2023-2026 - to be paid in 2027 - 20% ESG targets
Environment (weighting 10%) Define a climate ambition for 2030 in line with the 2050 net-zero target and deliver on climate
commitments
— Deliver on climate ambition 2025 for investments, insurance and own operations
— Develop and communicate a climate ambition for 2030 by end of FY 2025 for
investments, insurance and own operations
— Clear steps towards progress on 2030 targets are visible by end of FY 2026
(e.g. emission reduction, implementation of relevant policies, initiation of
engagement dialogues with clients, etc.)
Linear scaling 0-200%:
— Climate ambition 2025 not achieved, climate ambition 2030 not in place at end of FY 2025, no steps taken
towards achieving climate ambition 2030 at end of FY 2026
=0%
— Climate ambition 2025 achieved, climate ambition 2030 in place at end of FY 2025, clear steps towards
achieving climate ambition 2030 taken by end of FY 2026
=100%
— Climate ambition 2025 exceeded, climate ambition 2030 in place before end of
FY 2025, significant steps towards achieving climate ambition 2030 already implemented by end of FY 2026
=200%

Social (weighting 5%) 40% share of women in management positions at all levels across the Group by end of FY 2026
Linear scaling 0-200%:
37.5% = 0%
40.0% = 100%
42.5% = 200%
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Governance (weighting 5%)
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Conduct (2.5% weighting):
The average share of audit findings not implemented in a timely manner in relation to the total number of
open audit findings is to be no higher than 5% Group-wide at the end of the quarters in the assessment

period.
Linear scaling 0-200%:
10% = 0%

5% = 100%
0% = 200%

Culture (2.5% weighting):

Senior leaders within the Group ensure through regular tone-from-the-top activities within their areas of
accountability that the compliance culture continues to be on a high level.

Linear scaling 0-200%:

— Material compliance breach with substantial financial/reputational impact

=0%

— Compliance practice and culture in good shape
=100%

— Proven industry-leading functional excellence
=200%

Multi-year bonus 2024-2027 - to be paid in 2028 - 20% ESG targets

Environment (weighting 5%)

Define a climate ambition for 2030 in line with the 2050 net-zero target and deliver on climate

commitments

— Deliver on climate ambition 2025 for investments, insurance and emissions from own operations

— Develop and communicate a climate ambition for 2030 for investments, insurance and emissions from
own operations by end of FY 2025

— Progress on achieving climate ambition 2030 is in line with planning by end of FY 2027
(e.g. emission reduction, implementation of relevant policies, initiation of engagement dialogues
with clients, etc.)

Linear scaling 0-200%:

— Climate ambition 2025 not achieved, climate ambition 2030 not in place at end of FY 2025, little or no
progress towards achieving climate ambition 2030 at end of FY 2027
=0%

— Climate ambition 2025 achieved, climate ambition 2030 in place at end of FY 2025, can be verified at end
of FY 2027 that planned achievement of climate ambition 2030 is fully on track
=100%

— Climate ambition 2025 exceeded, climate ambition 2030 in place before end of FY 2025, more than half of
climate ambition 2030 already implemented by end of FY 2027
=200%

Governance (weighting 15%)

Advancing Munich Re’s own cyber security and compliance with relevant regulatory requirements

— Implementation of the Group-wide cyber security strategy

— Defined cyber resilience measures prove to be effective

— Ensuring cyber compliance

Linear scaling 0-200%:

— Cyber security strategy, cyber resilience practice and cyber compliance demonstrate major deficits
=0%

— Cyber security strategy, cyber resilience and cyber compliance meet all material requirements
=100%

— Actual level(s) of cyber security, cyber resilience and cyber compliance significantly exceed internal and
external expectations
=200%

Multi-year bonus 2025-2028 - to be paid in 2029 - 20% ESG targets

Social (weighting 10%)

Fostering employee motivation and retention and an inclusive corporate culture within the Munich Re
Group

Linear scaling 0-200%:

— Employee Engagement Index based on a 4-year average (weighting: 50%)

< 65% = 0%
77% to 81% = 100%
> 89% =200%
- Inclusion Index based on a 4-year average (weighting: 50%)
< 64% = 0%
76% to 80% = 100%
> 88% =200%

Governance (weighting 10%)

Advancing Munich Re’s own cyber security and ensuring the implementation of the relevant regulatory
requirements

Further development of the Group-wide cyber security strategy and implementation of guidelines and
codes of practice based there upon

Defined cyber resilience measures prove to be effective

Ensuring cyber compliance
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Linear scaling 0-200%:
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- Cyber security strategy, cyber resilience practice and cyber compliance demonstrate major deficits

=0%

- Cyber security strategy, cyber resilience and cyber compliance meet all material requirements

=100%

- Actual level(s) of cyber security, cyber resilience and cyber compliance significantly exceed internal and

external expectations
=200%

The progress made in achieving the climate change
mitigation targets in the Munich Re Group's climate
strategy is described in the following sections. Assessment
of achievement of the climate change mitigation targets in
the context of the multi-year bonus plan’s ESG targets will
be conducted for the first time in 2026. No variable

Statement on due diligence

The following overview describes how and where the
application of the most important aspects and steps to
comply with due diligence requirements are considered
in the present report.

remuneration linked to climate-related considerations was
granted in the reporting year.

Statement on due diligence

Core elements of due diligence Section
a) Embedding due diligence in - General information > Management of sustainability-related impacts, risks and opportunities > Description of
governance, strategy and the process for identifying and assessing material sustainability-related impacts, risks and opportunities
business model - General information > Governance > The role of the Board of Management and Supervisory Board
- Social information > Human rights and working conditions > Human rights: Management of impacts > Actions
- Environmental information > Climate change > Insurance activities: Management of climate change-related
impacts, risks and opportunities > Strategy
- Environmental information > Climate change > Investments: Management of climate change-related impacts,
risks and opportunities > Strategy
- General information > Management of sustainability-related impacts, risks and opportunities > Description of
the processes to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities
- General Information > Strategy > Interests and views of stakeholders
- Social information > Human rights and working conditions > Human rights: Management of impacts > Actions

- General information > Management of sustainability-related impacts, risks and opportunities > Description of
the process for identifying and assessing material sustainability-related impacts, risks and opportunities

- General Information > Strategy > Interests and views of stakeholders

- Social information > Human rights and working conditions > Human rights: Management of impacts > Actions

- General information > Management of sustainability-related impacts, risks and opportunities > Description of
the process for identifying and assessing material sustainability-related impacts, risks and opportunities

- Social information > Human rights and working conditions > Human rights: Management of impacts > Strategy

- Social information > Human rights and working conditions > Human rights: Management of impacts > Actions

- Environmental information > Climate change > Insurance activities: Management of climate change-related
impacts, risks and opportunities > Strategy

- Environmental information > Climate change > Investments: Management of climate change-related impacts,
risks and opportunities > Strategy

- General information > Management of sustainability-related impacts, risks and opportunities > Description of
the process for identifying and assessing material sustainability-related impacts, risks and opportunities

- Environmental information > Climate change > Insurance activities: Management of climate change-related
impacts, risks and opportunities > Actions

- Environmental information > Climate change > Investments: Management of climate change-related impacts,
risks and opportunities > Actions

- Social information > Human rights and working conditions > Human rights: Management of impacts > Actions

b) Engaging with affected
stakeholders in all key steps of
the due diligence

c) Identifying and assessing
adverse impacts

d) Taking actions to address
those adverse impacts

- General information > Management of sustainability-related impacts, risks and opportunities > Description of
the process for identifying and assessing material sustainability-related impacts, risks and opportunities

- Environmental information > Climate change > Insurance activities: Management of climate change-related
impacts, risks and opportunities > Metrics and targets

- Environmental information > Climate change > Investments: Management of climate change-related impacts,
risks and opportunities > Metrics and targets

- Social information > Human rights and working conditions > Human rights: Management of impacts > Strategy

- Social information > Human rights and working conditions > Human rights: Management of impacts > Actions

e) Tracking the effectiveness of
these efforts and communicating
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Risk management and internal controls
related to Group sustainability reporting

Our internal control system (ICS) is an integrated, Group-
wide system for managing operational risks. Comprising
two key components — the Operational Risk Control
System (ORCS) and the Compliance Management System
(CMS) - our internal control system addresses both

Group management requirements and local regulations.

It also covers reporting requirements. The identification,
management and control of risks arising out of the
reporting process is indispensable for the production of
reliable reporting. Risks that are material for reporting from
the Group's perspective are integrated into the internal
control system in accordance with uniform criteria. The
risks are checked annually by the process owners to
ascertain whether they are up to date, and the controls are
amended as necessary. Key controls and management
measures to mitigate the material operational risks are
analysed and assessed. The main findings derived from
the risk and control self-assessments and from monitoring
are reported to the Board of Management and the Audit
Committee of the Supervisory Board.

A detailed description of the relevant core elements of our
ICS can be found in the > Risk report > Risk governance and
risk management system > Risk management organisation
> Internal control system and under > Statement on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
system and the internal control system. For details about
how risks are prioritised, see > Material risks.
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Environmental information

Disclosures under Article 8 of Regulation (EU)
2020/852/Taxonomy Regulation

We report on the share of our Taxonomy-eligible and
Taxonomy-aligned economic activities in insurance and
investment, as per EU Regulation 2020/852 (EU Taxonomy
Regulation) in conjunction with the supplemental
Commission Delegated Regulations (EU) (EU Taxonomy
Delegated Regulation) 2021/2139, 2021/2178, 2022/1214,
2023/2486,2023/3851.

Insurance activities

Our Taxonomy-aligned (re)insurance activities disclosed
below make a substantial contribution, as enabling
activities, to climate change adaptation. In accordance
with the classification system set out in the EU Taxonomy
Regulation, we report on the economic activities defined as
environmentally sustainable for (re)insurers.

Activities generally deemed as suitable for making a
substantial contribution to the environmental objective of
climate change adaptation (Taxonomy-eligible) are non-life
insurance and reinsurance underwriting activities that are
attributable to specific lines of business (LoBs) and cover
climate-related perils. If these non-life insurance and
reinsurance underwriting activities satisfy a further set

of defined criteria, they are classified as environmentally
sustainable (Taxonomy-aligned).

Our focus with regard to the EU Taxonomy Regulation is
to calculate the metrics required by regulation. There are
no broader strategic implications at present.

Taxonomy-eligibility

We classify non-life insurance and reinsurance underwriting
activities as Taxonomy-eligible if they fall under one of the
lines of business set out in Commission Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2021/2139 - and if climate-related perils
are covered and priced. We have identified the following
lines of business, in particular, as relevant in this context:
fire and other damage to property insurance, other motor
insurance, and marine, aviation and transport insurance.

Taxonomy-alignment

A non-life insurance or reinsurance activity is classified

as Taxonomy-aligned if, in addition to being classified as
Taxonomy-eligible, it meets the technical screening criteria
for substantially contributing to climate change adaptation
and doing no significant harm (DNSH) under the EU
Taxonomy Delegated Regulation 2021/2139, and complies
with the minimum safeguards of the EU Taxonomy
Regulation.
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The technical screening criteria for determining a substantial
contribution to climate change adaptation are: leadership in
the modelling and pricing of climate risks, product design
or support of the development and provision of appropriate
non-life insurance products, innovative (re)insurance
coverage solutions, data sharing, and a high level of service
in post-disaster situations. Taxonomy-aligned (re)insurance
activities in this regard are based particularly on modelling
techniques and product-design processes that comply with
the requirements of the EU Taxonomy Regulation.

In addition, for Taxonomy-aligned activities, no significant
harm to the environmental objective of climate change
mitigation as defined in the EU Taxonomy Regulation was
identified. The activities do not include either (re)insurance
of the extraction, storage, transport or manufacture of fossil
fuels, or (re)insurance of vehicles, property or other assets
dedicated to such purposes. Taxonomy-aligned (re)insurance
activities do not include the (re)insurance of fossil-fuelled
power plants, among others. The assessment of insurance
revenue according to the “do no significant harm” (DNSH)
principle is based on information made available to us from
our clients. Where the data is not sufficiently granular, we
mainly use sector classifications for approximation.
Activities in primary insurance and in facultative and direct
(re)insurance business that do significant harm to climate
change mitigation are, on this basis, classified as Taxonomy-
non-aligned as a whole, and pro-rata Taxonomy-non-aligned
for the treaty reinsurance business.

In addition, when conducting the Taxonomy-aligned
(re)insurance activities, the minimum safeguards set out in
Article 18 of the EU Taxonomy Regulation are complied
with. This includes compliance with minimum safeguards
relating to human rights, anti-corruption, taxation and
unfair competition (see also > Social information > Human
rights and working conditions > Human rights, and

> Governance information > Corporate governance and
compliance > Compliance).

With regard to human rights, the insurance business is,

in general, included in the due diligence process described
in > Social information > Human rights and working
conditions > Human rights, in order to identify risks of
human rights violations and to counter them with suitable
actions.

In addition to taking into consideration an exclusion list of
companies that have been involved in confirmed and serious
violations of human rights, we updated our underwriting
guidelines for our single-risk business in primary insurance
and facultative reinsurance in the 2023 reporting year to
include an enhanced risk analysis for certain large
commercial business clients. The focus here is on client
groups for which - given their geography and sector of
industry — structural factors contribute to an increased risk
of human rights violations.
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Should in this context significant reputational or human
rights risks be identified in the underwriting process,

the underwriting guidelines stipulate an extended review
process, and risks may need to be presented to the
respective Reputational Risk Committee prior to acceptance.

(Re)insurance KPIs as per Article 8 of the EU Taxonomy
Regulation

The KPlIs as per the regulatory template in the EU Taxonomy
Delegated Regulation 2023/2486 are presented based

on IFRS insurance revenue from non-life insurance and
reinsurance underwriting activities.

Determining Taxonomy-eligibility and Taxonomy-alignment
is based first on the data underlying the pricing, which
forms the basis for deriving the Taxonomy-eligible and
Taxonomy-aligned IFRS insurance revenue.

(Re)insurance KPIs as per Article 8 of the EU Taxonomy Regulation
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In this regard, only the share of insurance revenue that
covers climate-related risks is considered to be Taxonomy-
eligible and Taxonomy-aligned (“climate-related share”).
The calculation is based on (re)insurance underwriting
activities for which specific data on the climate-related
share of insurance revenue is available.

Insurance revenue from our (re)insurance underwriting
activities is as follows in terms of its environmental
sustainability as per the EU Taxonomy Regulation and the
corresponding proportion of total non-life insurance and
reinsurance activities. The disclosure overall, as well as
the extent to which Taxonomy-aligned insurance activities
have either been ceded to a reinsurer or are deemed
reinsurance activities, are consistent with IFRS segment
reporting.

Substantial contribution to
climate change adaptation

DNSH (Do no significant harm)

Pro- Pro-
Absolute portion of portion of Water
insur- insur- insur-  Climate and Bio- Mini-
ance ance ance change marine diversity mum
revenue revenue revenue miti- re-  Circular and eco- safe-
2024 2024 2023 gation sources economy Pollution systems guards
Economic activities €m % % Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N
A.1. Non-life insurance and
reinsurance underwriting Taxonomy-
aligned activities (environmentally
sustainable) 4,060 10.5 7.9 Y Y Y Y Y Y
A.1.1. Of which reinsured 195 0.5 0.4 Y Y Y Y Y Y
A.1.2. Of which stemming from
reinsurance activity 3,761 9.7 7.2 Y Y Y Y Y Y
A.1.2.1. Of which reinsured
(retrocession) 195 0.5 0.4 Y Y Y Y Y Y
A.2. Non-life insurance and
reinsurance underwriting Taxonomy-
eligible but not environmentally
sustainable activities (Taxonomy non-
aligned activities) 590 1.5 1.4 - - - - - -
B. Non-life insurance and reinsurance
underwriting Taxonomy-non-eligible
activities 34,194 88.0 90.7 - - - - - -
Total (A.1 + A.2 + B) 38,845 100.0 100.0 - - - - - -

1

The Taxonomy-aligned insurance revenue from our
(re)insurance underwriting activities amounted to €4,060m
(previous year: €2,931m).

The 38.5% increase in Taxonomy-aligned insurance

revenue compared to the previous year can be explained
by the broader scale of (re)insurance activities that were
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Adjusted from the previous year based on Commission Notice C/2024/6691 published in the Official Journal of the European Union in November 2024.

assessed in detail this financial year, together with a
portfolio shift in favour of Taxonomy-eligible and Taxonomy-
aligned (re)insurance underwriting activities in relation to
Taxonomy-non-eligible (re)insurance underwriting
activities. This was due to changes in rates as well as active
portfolio management.
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The proportion of Taxonomy-aligned (re)insurance
underwriting activities (€4,060m) in relation to Taxonomy-
eligible (re)insurance underwriting activities (€4,650m) was
87.3% (previous year'": 85.3%). Unlike in the previous year
and consistently with how Taxonomy-alignment is assessed,
only the climate-related share of insurance revenue for the
Taxonomy-eligible products was used in the assessment of
Taxonomy-eligibility. Insurance revenue attributable to
(re)insurance activities that were deemed Taxonomy-
eligible but not Taxonomy-aligned, and which thus generally
have the potential to become Taxonomy-aligned, amounted
to €590m (previous year': €504m).

The remaining insurance revenue from non-life business,
amounting to €34,194m (previous year': €33,536m), was
classified as Taxonomy-non-eligible. This revenue is
attributable either to a line of business in non-life primary
insurance and reinsurance underwriting activities that
was not listed, or to the share of a product that does

not specifically cover climate-related risks and is priced
accordingly.

Investments

The EU Taxonomy Regulation sets out a standardised
system for classifying which economic activities can be
qualified as environmentally sustainable, and under which
conditions.

For the year 2024, reporting requirements for all six
environmental objectives apply in accordance with
Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2023/2486.
Disclosures on Taxonomy-eligibility must be made for
the newly applicable, non-climate-related environmental
objectives: sustainable use and protection of water and
marine resources; transition to a circular economy;
pollution prevention and control; and protection and
restoration of biodiversity and ecosystems. The climate-
related environmental objectives of climate change
mitigation (CCM) and climate change adaptation (CCA)
were updated in 2023, with changes to the technical
screening criteria and additional economic activities added.
For any economic activity disclosed for the first time in
2023, a one-year transition period remains, during which
it is only necessary to report on the Taxonomy-eligibility
of that activity.

1 Adjusted from the previous year based on Commission Notice C/2024/6691
published in the Official Journal of the European Union in November 2024.
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In the previous year, we only examined our direct real estate
used by third parties, and other investments in non-financial
assets, to determine their Taxonomy-eligibility and thus
their contribution to the newly applicable environmental
objectives. For this reporting year, information on these
environmental objectives is available to us from our investee
companies for the first time. The greater availability of the
eligibility ratios from our counterparties has led to a slight
rise in Taxonomy-eligibility overall. Our focus with regard to
the Taxonomy remains on calculating the metrics required
by regulation. There are no broader strategic implications at
present.

All assets that are theoretically able to finance economic
activities fall within the scope of the Taxonomy KPIs. This
predominantly includes the balance sheet items “Investments”,
“Investments for unit-linked life insurance” and “Insurance-
related financial instruments” in the consolidated IFRS
balance sheet. It does not include intangible assets, owner-
occupied property or further property, plant and equipment
that are not held for the purpose of financing economic
activities. Insurance and reinsurance contracts that are
classified as assets for accounting purposes, and cash
resources such as cash at banks, cheques and cash in hand
are also excluded. Furthermore, investments in governments,
central banks and supranational issuers fall outside the
scope of the Taxonomy KPIs because the use of proceeds

is unknown. Investments in governments also include
investments in German federal states (Bundeslander),
regions, municipalities, cities and communities. Issuers with
EU state guarantees, however, are subjected to an assessment
to determine their Taxonomy-eligibility and -alignment.

The total investments - the basis for calculating the coverage
ratio — predominantly include the balance sheet items
“Cash and cash equivalents” and “Other assets”, in addition
to the investments in the scope of the Taxonomy KPls.

The following table shows the scope of the Taxonomy KPIs
based on the IFRS carrying amounts, and the coverage
ratio, i.e. the assets covered by the KPIs relative to the total
investments considered. It presents a full breakdown of the
investments that fall within the scope of the Taxonomy
KPIs. In order to fulfil the requirement in Article 6 of the
Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2178, we
also complete and disclose the template set out in Annex X
of that regulation, which can be found under > Tabular
presentations > EU Taxonomy Regulation templates.
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Scope of application of the Taxonomy KPlIs as per Art. 8 of the EU Taxonomy Regulation

31.12.2024 Prev. year
€m % €m %
Total investments 259,685 100.0 246,566 100.0
Thereof assets covered by the KPI, absolute and relative to total investments
(Coverage ratio) 159,933 61.6 156,093 63.3
Thereof other than investments for unit-linked life insurance contracts 151,473 94.7 148,160 94.9
Thereof exposure to other counterparties 44,592 27.9 42,889 27.5
Assets covered by the KPI in scope of the numerator, absolute and relative to
assets covered by the KPI 68,928 43.1 61,400 39.3
Assets funding economic activities from financial undertakings subject to NFRD 15,829 9.9 11,261 7.2
Assets funding economic activities from non-financial undertakings subject to
NFRD 8,620 5.4 7,381 4.7
Exposure to other counterparties in scope of the numerator 44,479 27.8 42,758 27.4
Assets covered by the KPI not in scope of the numerator, absolute and relative
to assets covered by the KPI 91,005 56.9 94,693 60.7
Assets funding economic activities from financial undertakings not subject to
NFRD 55,019 34.4 57,012 36.5
Assets funding economic activities from non-EU financial undertakings not
subject to NFRD 30,759 19.2 28,917 18.5
Assets funding economic activities from EU financial undertakings not
subject to NFRD 24,259 15.2 28,095 18.0
Assets funding economic activities from non-financial undertakings not subject
to NFRD 32,485 20.3 34,374 22.0
Assets funding economic activities from non-EU non-financial undertakings
not subject to NFRD 23,227 14.5 24,415 15.6
Assets funding economic activities from EU non-financial undertakings not
subject to NFRD 9,257 5.8 9,958 6.4
Derivatives 3,388 2.1 3,176 2.0
Exposure to other counterparties not in scope of the numerator 113 0.1 131 0.1

A company'’s economic activities are Taxonomy-eligible if
they are listed in the Commission Delegated Regulation
(EU) 2021/2139, supplementing the EU Taxonomy
Regulation. Taxonomy-eligible activities are activities that
are deemed to be generally suitable for making a positive
contribution to the respective environmental objective.

In accordance with Article 3 of the EU Taxonomy Regulation,
economic activities are Taxonomy-aligned if they actually
contribute substantially to one or more of the environmental
objectives, without causing significant harm to one of the
others. Both are determined by using technical screening
criteria. To qualify as Taxonomy-aligned, the company
carrying out the economic activity must also ensure it does
so in compliance with minimum safeguards.

Our disclosures on Taxonomy-eligibility and -alignment

are phased according to the different regulatory-driven
disclosure timelines of our investees. We consider reporting
from non-financial undertakings which published
information on their Taxonomy-alignment regarding the
climate change mitigation and climate change adaptation
environmental objectives, and on their Taxonomy-eligibility
regarding all six environmental objectives, for the 2023
financial year. For that reason, we disclose Taxonomy-
eligibility with respect to the four non-climate-related
environmental objectives under “Assets funding Taxonomy-
eligible economic activities where alignment has not yet
been assessed”. With respect to our investments in financial
undertakings, data on Taxonomy-alignment regarding the
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CCM and CCA environmental objectives was available to
us for the first time in the current reporting year.

In cases where the Taxonomy-alignment data is inconsistent
or incomplete, we disclose the investments under “Assets
funding Taxonomy-eligible but not Taxonomy-aligned
economic activities”.

For the portion of our portfolio that represents an investment
in the activities of companies that are obliged to publish

a non-financial statement, we disclose the shares of the
Taxonomy-eligible and the Taxonomy-aligned turnover and
of the Taxonomy-eligible and Taxonomy-aligned capital
expenditure, respectively, that we finance through our
investments at the reporting companies. With regard to
investments in other primary insurers and reinsurers, the
share of Taxonomy-eligible and Taxonomy-aligned insurance
activities is considered as a turnover-based share. As
Taxonomy-eligibility based on CapEx has not been reported
in full by other insurers, it is not possible to provide a
complete, consistent assessment and presentation of the
Taxonomy-eligibility or, in turn, -alignment. This being the
case, these investments have been allocated to “Assets
from financial investee undertakings not used to assess
Taxonomy-eligibility”. To collect the data, we use the data
provider ISS STOXX and only use data that has actually
been reported. The denominator accordingly constitutes
the total assets covered by the Taxonomy KPls.
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We have undertaken our own classification to determine
the Taxonomy-eligibility and -alignment of our real estate
used by third parties, mortgage loans and other investments
in non-financial assets. The same applies to our infrastructure
investments held via holdings or special-purpose vehicles
(SPVs) and for which we performed a look-through.

We also looked through our unconsolidated funds to
the constituents, to determine the Taxonomy-eligibility
and -alignment of the former.

With regard to our investments in renewable energy

and forestry, the most relevant economic activities are

4.1. Electricity generation using solar photovoltaic
technology, 4.3. Electricity generation from wind power,
and 1.3. Forest management. For this reporting year, we
were able to report only a small share of our investments in
renewable energy, and none of our investments in forestry,
as Taxonomy-aligned. This is because fulfilment of the
DNSH criteria for the two climate-related environmental
objectives cannot yet be fully documented. We are reliant
on the operating companies to support us with the
remaining documentation requirements. Through continuous
dialogue and further engagement, we are encouraging them
to provide the documentation we are missing.

Due to the fact that economic activities connected with
real estate are generally Taxonomy-eligible and real estate
collateral is available for every mortgage loan, the share of
real estate and mortgage loans that are Taxonomy-eligible
is 100%.

Mortgage loans to private individuals and companies as
well as direct and indirect real estate used by third parties
have made the greatest contribution to our Taxonomy-
alignment. These economic activities primarily fall under
the category 7.7. Acquisition and ownership of buildings
and have been allocated exclusively to the environmental
objective climate change mitigation. We were not able to
report any Taxonomy-alignment for the activities classified
under 7.1. Construction of new buildings or 7.2. Renovation
of existing buildings in the reporting year. This is due to the
fact that adequate evidence that the DNSH criteria have
been met cannot yet be provided in full. In the case of loans,
the buildings that serve as collateral for the mortgage loans
were used as the basis for assessing Taxonomy-eligibility
and -alignment.

As part of this Taxonomy assessment, we checked the
energy status of the buildings. Their energy efficiency was
determined on the basis of energy performance certificates
or energy-efficiency data obtained by external service
providers. Due to a lack of availability of energy performance
certificates for the majority of residential buildings in
Germany serving as collateral for mortgage loans, an
energy-efficiency-class screening was carried out by
Sprengnetter Property Valuation Finance GmbH based on
comparable buildings. For economic activity categorised
under 7.7., a building built before 31 December 2020 can
make a significant contribution to the environmental
objective of climate change mitigation, as an alternative
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to having an energy-efficiency class of at least A, when it is
within the top 15% of the national or regional building stock
in terms of its energy efficiency. Due to a lack of public
data, determination of the top 15% was based on relevant
studies available at the reporting date. For residential
buildings in Germany, a study by the Association of German
Pfandbrief Banks (vdp) and Drees & Sommer was used. For
commercial buildings in Germany and abroad, the basis
was data from the Institut de I'Epargne Immobiliére et
Fonciére (IEIF) in collaboration with software provider
Deepki, supported by the German Sustainable Building
Council (DGNB) and the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS).

In assessing the DNSH criterion for climate change
adaptation, an analysis of current and future, material,
physical climate risks that could affect buildings was
performed, using Munich Re Service GmbH's climate-
risk analysis tool (Location Risk Intelligence).

Derivatives classified as assets for the balance sheet, as well
as investments in companies which are themselves not
obliged to publish a non-financial statement (for example
companies whose registered seat is outside the EU) are

not included in the assessment of Taxonomy-eligibility and
-alignment. We mainly use data from the provider ISS ESG
to identify such companies. In addition, we perform a
consistency check based on relevant data from Bloomberg.

Our investments in asset-backed securities (ABS) are
reported under “Assets not in scope of the numerator”.
Based on the regional distribution of our ABS portfolio as
well as random samples of originators known to us, we
came to the conclusion that the majority consisted of
companies that are not subject to the reporting obligations.
Because insufficient data was available, we were also
unable to look through to the ultimate beneficiaries for a
large portion of our investments in ABS.

Our investments in private equity funds are reported in the
same way as funds not managed by MEAG where it was
not possible to perform a look-through despite sufficient
efforts, i.e. under “Assets funding economic activities that
are Taxonomy-non-eligible”.

In accordance with the provisions of Article 8 of the EU
Taxonomy Regulation, in combination with Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2178, in the following

we report metrics concerning the share of our Taxonomy-
eligible and Taxonomy-aligned assets. The table provides
a full breakdown of the assets included in the assessment
of Taxonomy-eligibility and -alignment. In order to fulfil the
requirement in Article 6 of the Commission Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2021/2178, we also complete and disclose
the template set out in Annex X of that regulation, which can
be found under > Tabular presentations > EU Taxonomy
Regulation templates.

The increase in the proportion of assets funding Taxonomy-
aligned economic activities is mainly attributable to direct
real estate used by third parties, as well as to new business
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and better data availability for mortgage loans. In addition, The reduction in “Assets from financial investee undertakings
alignment ratios for other financial investee undertakings not used to assess Taxonomy-eligibility” is mainly

were available to us for the first time in the financial year. attributable to a change in the method used for recording
For that reason, the additional disclosure for these assets data at credit institutions, which, at the same time, led to

can be omitted from the table below.

higher ratios of Taxonomy-eligible and Taxonomy-non-
eligible assets.

Overview of Taxonomy-eligibility and -alignment of assets (details on the numerator); absolute and relative to total assets covered by the KPIs"?2

31.12.2024
Turnover-based CapEx-based
£€m % €m %
Assets covered by the KPls in scope of the numerator, absolute and relative to
total assets covered by the KPIs 68,928 43.1 68,928 43.1
Assets funding Taxonomy-eligible economic activities 38,209 23:9 38,216 23.9
Assets funding Taxonomy-aligned economic activities 5,403 3.4 5,887 3.7
Assets funding Taxonomy-aligned economic activities from non-financial
undertakings 858 0.5 1,464 0.9
Assets funding Taxonomy-aligned economic activities from financial
undertakings 468 0.3 329 0.2
Assets funding Taxonomy-aligned economic activities from other
counterparties® 4,078 2.5 4,093 2.6
Thereof assets funding Taxonomy-aligned activities other than investments for
unit-linked life insurance contracts 5,220 8.8 5,689 3.6
Assets funding Taxonomy-eligible but not Taxonomy-aligned economic
activities 32,806 20.5 32,329 20.2
Assets funding Taxonomy-eligible economic activities where alignment has
not yet been assessed 0 0.0 0 0.0
Assets funding economic activities that are not Taxonomy-eligible 28,626 17.9 27,786 17.4
Assets from financial investee undertakings not used to assess Taxonomy-
eligibility* 2,093 1.3 2,926 1.8
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Prev. year
Turnover-based CapEx-based
£€m % €m %
Assets covered by the KPIs in scope of the numerator, absolute and relative to
total assets covered by the KPIs 61,400 39.3 61,400 39.3
Assets funding Taxonomy-eligible economic activities 32,197 20.6 31,800 20.4
Assets funding Taxonomy-aligned economic activities 3,488 2.2 3,861 2.5
Assets funding Taxonomy-aligned economic activities from non-financial
undertakings 466 0.3 825 0.5
Assets funding Taxonomy-aligned economic activities from other
counterparties® 3,022 1.9 3,037 1.9
Thereof assets funding Taxonomy-aligned activities other than investments for
unit-linked life insurance contracts 3,468 2.2 3,829 2.5
Assets funding Taxonomy-eligible but not Taxonomy-aligned economic
activities 25,876 16.6 26,491 17.0
Assets funding Taxonomy-eligible economic activities where alignment has
not yet been assessed 2,833 1.8 1,447 0.9
Assets funding economic activities that are not Taxonomy-eligible 24,646 15.8 22,465 14.4
Assets from financial investee undertakings not used to assess Taxonomy-
eligibility* 4,558 2.9 7,136 4.6

1 The table for the 2024 financial year includes a full assessment for the environmental objectives of climate change mitigation and climate change adaptation. For our liquid
investments in financial undertakings and non-financial undertakings, reported data on Taxonomy-eligibility for environmental objectives 3 to 6 was available for the first
time for the 2024 reporting year; data on Taxonomy-alignment was not yet available. With regard to environmental objectives 3 to 6 for the 2023 financial year, eligibility
was assessed only for direct investments in non-financial assets. Moreover, for the 2023 financial year alignment figures are included only from non-financial investee
undertakings, as reported alignment data from financial undertakings is not yet available.

2 With regard to investments in primary insurers and reinsurers, the share of Taxonomy-eligible and Taxonomy-non-eligible insurance activities is considered as a turnover-
based share. As Taxonomy-eligibility based on CapEx has not been reported in full by other insurers, it is not possible to provide a complete, consistent assessment and
presentation of the Taxonomy-eligibility or, in turn, -alignment for the 2024 financial year. This being the case, these investments have been allocated to “Assets from
financial investee undertakings not used to assess Taxonomy-eligibility”.

3 Thereof 0.9 (0.8) percentage points are attributable to mortgage loans for which the Taxonomy-alignment was assessed using an energy-efficiency-class screening on the
basis of comparable objects.

4 Comprised of our financial investee undertakings’ investments in derivatives and in undertakings that are not obliged to publish a non-financial statement. Both are
excluded from the eligibility assessment performed by our investee undertakings. As of the 2024 reporting year, this metric also includes investments by financial
undertakings whose reporting on Taxonomy-eligibility and non-Taxonomy-eligibility is incomplete. These are excluded from our assessment of investments that fund
Taxonomy-eligible activities.

In the following table we additionally disclose the objective relative to total Taxonomy-aligned activities.
Taxonomy-aligned activities for each environmental

Overview of Taxonomy-aligned activities per environmental objective relative to total Taxonomy-aligned activities'

31.12.2024
Turnover-based CapEx-based
Transitional? Enabling Other Total Transitional? Enabling Other Total
% % % % % % % %
Climate change
mitigation 1.4 10.1 86.3 97.8 1.6 185 84.5 99.7
Climate change
adaptation - 1.9 0.3 2.2 - 0.0 0.3 0.3
Total 1.4 12.0 86.7 100.0 1.6 13.6 84.8 100.0

1 Thereis no reported data available for the environmental objectives sustainable use and protection of water and marine resources, transition to a circular economy,
pollution prevention and control, and protection and restoration of biodiversity and ecosystems.
2 Transitional activities only contribute to the climate change mitigation environmental objective.
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Overview of Taxonomy-aligned activities per environmental objective relative to total Taxonomy-aligned activities'

Prev. year

Turnover-based

CapEx-based

Transitional? Enabling Other Total Transitional? Enabling Other Total
% % % % % % % %
Climate change
mitigation 1.1 11.8 87.1 100.0 2.2 15.3 82.6 100.0
Climate change
adaptation - 0.0 0.0 0.0 - 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total 1.1 11.8 87.1 100.0 2.2 15.3 82.6 100.0

1 Only alignment figures from non-financial investee undertakings are included, as reported alignment data from financial undertakings is not yet available. There is
also no reported data available for the environmental objectives sustainable use and protection of water and marine resources, transition to a circular economy, pollution

prevention and control, and protection and restoration of biodiversity and ecosystems.

2 Transitional activities only contribute to the climate change mitigation environmental objective.

Financial undertakings are obliged as a matter of principle to
base their Taxonomy-alignment calculations on adjusted key
performance indicators from the non-financial undertakings
in which they invest. Non-financial undertakings are obliged
to adjust their share of Taxonomy-aligned economic
activities if they have financed Taxonomy-aligned turnover
and/or capital expenditure using proceeds from green
bonds they have issued. Due to incomplete disclosures
from our investee companies, we were not able to make
such an adjustment for the reporting year.

An overview of our investment activities in fossil gas and
nuclear energy generation as well as the share of our assets
that fund the associated Taxonomy-eligible and Taxonomy-
aligned economic activities (4.26-4.31) can be found under
> Tabular presentations > EU Taxonomy Regulation
templates. The standard templates correspond to the
requirements of Annex XlI, as stipulated in Article 8,
paragraph 8 of the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU)
2022/1214. This concerns the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Article 8, paragraphs 6 and 7 regarding
fossil gas and nuclear energy generation activities.

Overall, we expect that availability of data will continue to
increase. In the case of alternative investments, we are
continuing our dialogue with the operators of the assets to
address the criteria in the Taxonomy screening process
that have not been met.

Climate change

Climate strategy and the Munich Re Group
Ambition 2025

As a responsible corporate Group, Munich Re endeavours to
play its part in meeting the targets of the Paris Agreement.

1 Greenhouse gas emissions
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The Group has therefore set itself climate targets for its
investments, its (re)insurance activities and its own operations.

Responsibility for our Group-wide climate strategy,
achievement of the climate-related targets under the
Munich Re Group Ambition 2025 and the associated
measures, lies with the Board of Management or the
corresponding committees with ESG duties. This also
includes strategic decisions in connection with a new
climate strategy and corresponding actions.

Munich Re has already defined the first phase of its expected
contribution to climate change mitigation in the shape of
the core elements of our climate strategy as part of the
Munich Re Group Ambition 2025 and the decarbonisation
targets it stipulates, which were derived bottom-up and
using scientifically based scenarios. The Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change (IPCC)’s Special Report on
Global Warming of 1.5°C and Sixth Assessment Report
were considered as central sources for potential scenarios
and emission-reduction pathways for our climate strategy
and actions with regard to our investments and (re)insurance
business. They are science-based and compatible with the
1.5°C global warming limit. Reference is made to no-
overshoot and temporary-overshoot scenarios with regard
to the 1.5°C target, in line with the pathways set out by the
IPCC. In this regard, we did not break down the quantitative
contribution that specific decarbonisation levers are
expected to make to achieving the targets of the Munich Re
Group Ambition 2025.

Achievement of the GHG' reduction targets by 2025, as
described in the following, is factored into the calculation
of the multi-year bonus for all members of the Board of
Management (see > General information > Governance
> Integration of sustainability-related performance in
incentive schemes > “ESG targets as a component of the
multi-year bonus” table).
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Munich Re Group Ambition 2025 and beyond

2024
Investments - Financed GHG emissions*
No direct investments in listed
companies that generate
>15% revenue from thermal coal?
>10% revenue from oil sands
QOil and gas companies®
- No new direct investments in
exclusively oil and gas companies*

— Commitment to net zero by integrated oil
and gas companies from 2025 required

— No direct illiquid investments in new oil and
gas fields, midstream oil infrastructure or oil-
fired power plants®

(Re)insurance - Insurance-related

GHG emissions’

Thermal coal

No insurance of new coal mines, new power

plants or related infrastructure®

Oil and gas — Exploration and production

- No insurance of new or existing oil sand sites
or related infrastructure®, Arctic exposure or
infrastructure®®

— No insurance of new oil and gas fields,
midstream oil infrastructure or oil-fired power
plants®

Own operations - GHG emissions from
business operations

Reduction in GHG emissions per employee
Scope 1, 2 and 3 (business travel, paper, water
and waste)

All greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions are measured in CO; equivalents (CO-e). Base year for all target and achievement figures is 2019.
Exceptions to the guidelines can only be approved by Board of Management committees.

1 Scope1land?2.

2 Exceptions are possible in individual cases for companies with revenue in thermal coal between 15-30% on the basis of active engagement dialogues.

3 Direct investments in equities or corporate bonds from listed oil and gas companies.

4 Publicly traded companies listed under the Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS) Oil & Gas sub-industries with the exception of Integrated Oil & Gas.

5 Applies to contracts/projects exclusively covering planning, financing, construction or operation, which had not yet been in production (oil and gas fields) or under
construction or operation (infrastructure and facilities) as at 31 December 2022.

6 Applies to listed equities, corporate bonds and, under “Total”, also to directly held real estate.

7 Applies to primary insurance, direct and facultative (re)insurance business.

8 For single-location stand-alone risks.

9  For single-location stand-alone risks; for mixed covers above a certain threshold.

10 For exclusive covers; for mixed covers and the treaty reinsurance business where the exposure is above a defined single-digit percentage threshold.

11 Metric tonnes of thermal coal produced annually by insureds/installed operational capacity (in megawatts) of insured coal-fired power plants of insureds (used as an

equivalent for an approximate development of the GHG emissions of our insureds’ business).

12 Our insureds’ self-calculated scope 1-3 life-cycle emissions related to their oil and gas production that are proportionally associated with our property insurance business
(insurance capacity relative to total insurance ceiling).

13 With regard to the definition and scope of “net zero” in connection with (re)insurance business activities, we will consider the latest information from regulatory
requirements when we define new targets.

14 The targets for 2025 were not defined separately for scopes 1 to 3.

15 Due to regulatory changes since the launch of our Munich Re Group Ambition 2025, the terms “net zero” and “neutrality” will no longer be used in connection with
business operations relating to our Munich Re Group Ambition 2025.

Our Munich Re Group Ambition 2025 was discussed in- ensured that no anomalies — either in the composition of
depth with internal stakeholders from across various Group our portfolio or external factors such as temperature or
units and hierarchies, among other reasons in order to economic impacts — affected the chosen base year of 2019,
evaluate the scientific basis of the corresponding climate which is used to measure progress towards achieving the
targets and the levers for achieving those targets. It was targets. The targets were not externally validated.
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Our aim is to reduce the GHG emissions from our insurance
business and our investment portfolio to net zero by 2050.
Munich Re expressed this intention in the expectation that
governments will meet their own pledges to achieve the
goals of the Paris Agreement. When we launched our
Munich Re Group Ambition 2025 in 2020, we adopted a
climate strategy that set out the initial targets for our
Group to make its own specific contribution to mitigating
climate change. Our current climate ambition covers the
period until the end of 2025, and by the end of 2025 we plan
to develop a strategy outlining our potential contribution

to net zero and climate change mitigation. We will prepare
a transition plan in accordance with the regulatory
requirements in due course.

Insurance activities: Management of
climate change-related impacts, risks and
opportunities

Strategy

The main pillar of our business activity is assuming and
diversifying risk in primary insurance and in reinsurance.
Our objective to create sustainable economic value is
enshrined in the key principles of our Group-wide business
and risk strategy. Our business conduct is driven by
appropriate risk management and a holistic approach to
achieving economic success and added value for the
Group. We do this in our insurance business in particular
by having strong customer focus, by offering responsible
solutions and by integrating ESG aspects into our
insurance and reinsurance products and services.

As a responsible company, Munich Re also endeavours to
play a part in meeting the targets of the Paris Agreement.
Our holistic approach with regard to the climate is based
on the following three core elements:

- decarbonisation targets,

- provision of risk transfer solutions that contribute to
climate change adaptation and to mitigating the impacts
of climate change, and

- Group-wide risk management.

1 With regard to the definition and scope of “net zero” in connection with
(re)insurance business activities, we will consider the latest information from
regulatory requirements when we define new targets.
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As part of our short-term decarbonisation targets under
the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025, we have committed
to reducing the GHG emissions related to our primary
insurance and reinsurance products. Additionally, we are
striving to reduce GHG emissions from our insurance
business to net zero' by 2050.

In our (re)insurance business, we offer insurances that

can be associated with GHG emissions. In the course of
assessing the negative climate impacts of our insurance
business, we identified oil and gas production as well as
specific activities in connection with thermal coal as
material drivers of GHG emissions. We have therefore

been pursuing individual decarbonisation targets for the
year 2025 since 2020, in primary insurance as well as in
facultative and direct (re)insurance business, with regard to
thermal coal production and combustion as well as oil and
gas production; the latter relates to the operational property
insurance business. This also encompasses treaty-like
business in the form of facultative facilities if it includes
the option to decline individual risks. To achieve our
decarbonisation targets, we can either support our insureds
in reducing GHG emissions or we can adapt the composition
of our insurance portfolio over time.

Despite the global efforts to limit climate change, we
assume that, in the long term, there will be an increase in
weather-related natural catastrophes. We expect that the
increasing loss potential driven by climate risks and greater
awareness among the population and businesses will in the
end result in increased demand for primary insurance and
reinsurance products.

Due to our expertise in research into the consequences of
climate change, we have gained far-reaching knowledge of
the impacts of climate change and reflect this in our risk-
based pricing and targeted underwriting requirements in our
(re)insurance solutions, which are normally renewed every
year. ldentified changes in weather hazards or natural
weather variability patterns which result in changes on the
loss distribution side over time are considered in our risk
modelling and risk management as well as in our pricing
processes.
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For us as risk carriers, risk management constitutes a key
element of responsible and sustainable corporate governance.
Identifying, analysing and assessing risks are part of our
Group-wide risk management, which we describe in our

> Risk report.

Our (re)insurance products enable us to help increase the
resilience of our clients to the economic consequences of
natural catastrophes. By applying sensitive pricing and
developing climate-sensitive product features in accordance
with our pricing guidelines, we provide positive incentives
for risk-sensitive behaviour with regard to natural
catastrophes and hence support climate change adaptation.
In particular, we can make an environmentally sustainable
contribution in line with the understanding of the

EU Taxonomy Regulation (see > Disclosures under Article 8
of Regulation (EU) 2020/852/Taxonomy Regulation

> Insurance activities) with (re)insurance activities in the
following three lines of business: other motor insurance;
marine, aviation and transport insurance; fire and other
damage to property insurance. By making risk data
available to public authorities on request, we additionally
help create transparency about current developments.

We pool and expand our internal expertise to ensure the
appropriate management of climate impacts, opportunities
and risks.

Strategic sustainability targets are decided in the
aforementioned ESG Committee of the Board of
Management. The ESG Management Team is responsible
for appropriately monitoring the ESG-related strategies
and its implementation within the Group, and addresses
important questions about ESG issues and initiatives
within the Group (see > General information > Governance).

ESG Governance at Munich Re is rounded off by climate
experts in various central divisional units and departments.
These include the Munich Re Chief Climate Officer, the
Munich Re Chief Climate Scientist and Head of Geo Risks,
leading natural catastrophe experts in Corporate
Underwriting and the Climate Litigation Task Force,

which consists of experts from a variety of underwriting
and claims units in Munich and other Group locations.

Actions
We implement our climate strategy using targeted integrated
actions for which no dedicated budgets were adopted:

- imposing underwriting restrictions for high-emission
activities and exposures;

- providing transparency and dialogue with employees and
reinsurance clients at training courses and other events;

- offering (re)insurance solutions for climate change
adaptation.

Munich Re Group Annual Report 2024

92

Our efforts to steer ESG aspects in our business are also
reflected by our involvement in the PSl initiative on ESG
integration, where we are represented on the board and
report every year on our progress with integrating the
principles. We also work together with partners, institutions
and NGOs. Additionally, we are a signatory to the UN
Global Compact, which further underlines our commitment
to conducting our business responsibly.

To integrate ESG criteria into the insurance business and
reduce GHG emissions associated with our (re)insured
business, we have implemented corresponding policies,
processes and tools whose adequacy we review regularly
and, where appropriate, refine or adapt. They include ESG
criteria applicable across the Group, which we apply
throughout our insurance activities. Specific binding ESG
guidelines in our underwriting guidelines govern the
management of certain business activities (see also our
statement on “Munich Re's approach to fossil fuels in
underwriting and investment”). These include rules on
thermal coal activities in connection with new thermal coal
mines, power plants or infrastructure, as well as oil and gas
activities in connection with new oil and gas fields and/or
new oil infrastructure and oil-fired power plants, oil sands
and Arctic oil and gas activities.

Our underwriting guidelines are regularly reviewed
(normally once a year as well as on an ad hoc basis) and
updated if necessary. All changes must be approved by the
Reinsurance Committee, or by the authorised divisional
unit heads, before they are published internally. Following
publication of the updated underwriting guidelines, our
employees are informed about the new rules.

A review plan is set up each year to assess compliance with
the guidelines. The underwriting reviews are risk-based
and examine in particular compliance with the underwriting
strategy and guidelines, specified standards and quality.
Any review findings are regularly followed up within the year
or the deadline set out in the review process.

In facultative and direct (re)insurance, we already committed
in September 2018 to no longer insure single-location
stand-alone risks in the planning, financing, construction
or operation of new thermal coal mines, coal-fired power
plants and the related infrastructure. This applies to said
risks in cases where construction or preparatory work for
coal production or operation began after 1 September 2018.
Multi-location covers are treated like single-location risks
if the majority of the locations or insured risks qualify as
“new”. In primary insurance we also committed, already in
2018, to no longer insure related stand-alone risks. Since
2021, ERGO has imposed a complete underwriting ban on
corresponding new business in an underwriting guideline.
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In the oil and gas sector, we have put exclusions in place
for the insurance of oil-sand extraction and the related
infrastructure. In primary insurance and facultative and
direct (re)insurance business, it has been prohibited since
2019 to cover new or existing oil-sand sites, as well as new
or existing oil-sand-related infrastructure. The guidelines
referred to above apply to single locations and stand-alone
risks. The exclusion also applies to mixed policies with
exposure above a set threshold of 20% of the sum insured
or revenue.

In December 2021, we reinforced our guidelines on Arctic
oil and gas drilling, including directly related infrastructure,
for all Group entities that underwrite business of this kind.
We no longer accept any corresponding single-risk stand-
alone covers. This also applies to mixed covers and the
treaty reinsurance business, where the exposure is above
a defined single-digit percentage threshold. The new
guidelines apply to renewals of existing reinsurance treaty
business with commencement dates of 2023 or later.

The definition of the Arctic in this regard is based on the
internationally recognised definition by the Arctic
Monitoring and Assessment Programme (AMAP), with a
few exceptions in the Norwegian region below the Arctic
circle, since Arctic conditions do not prevail there.

In addition, our measures are designed to no longer support
contracts and projects on a single-risk, single-location basis
which exclusively insure new oil and gas fields, new oil-fired
power plants or new so-called midstream oil infrastructure,
as well as the associated planning, financing, construction
or operation. This applies to our primary insurance business
and our facultative and direct (re)insurance business,
effective 1 April 2023. Our rules prohibit the above-
mentioned actions and activities, unless the oil and gas fields
were already producing, or construction on or operation of
the corresponding power plants or infrastructure had
already begun, as at 31 December 2022. The same applies
where such risks or projects are contained or bundled in
one cover together with other risks (e.g. existing oil or gas
fields), where the cover is mainly designed to insure one or
more of such new risks.

In the context of the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025, the
activities of our clients can, alongside portfolio management
measures, help reduce GHG emissions associated with our
(re)insurance portfolio. We initiate dialogue with our clients
to provide the best possible support for the necessary
transition.

A special ESG tool and external ESG databases help our
underwriters in the facultative and direct (re)insurance
business to factor ESG criteria into their risk assessment.
This is especially relevant in the industrial sector, which is
subject to particular exposure and duties of care. For these
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ESG risk assessments, we also make use of the expertise
contained in renowned external ESG databases. We
regularly hold information events and training for our
employees and clients on the responsible approach to
handling ESG aspects and continuously refine our
information and training formats. One focus of our Code
of Conduct is also how we fulfill our social and global
responsibility for sustainability and human rights. Our staff
are required to familiarise themselves with the principles
and rules in our Code of Conduct and to regularly complete
training. Alongside other ESG aspects that are relevant for
Munich Re, our Code of Conduct focuses in particular on
climate change mitigation and climate change adaptation.
Dedicated sustainability teams in primary insurance and
reinsurance support the business units by providing
tailored ESG advice. In addition, employees in the
underwriting units act as multipliers who actively transfer
their knowledge of ESG integration across departmental
boundaries for ESG assessments and in discussions with
clients, as appropriate given the risks or current situation.

To make a positive contribution to decarbonisation and
support investment in low-emission technologies, we offer
dedicated green tech solutions. In the context of these
insurance solutions, we assume a share of the technology-
specific risks in order to support the development of
renewables and low-carbon technology. Our focus in that
regard is on photovoltaics, wind power, battery storage
systems and hydrogen technologies.

We are supporting climate change adaptation in society
and the economy by helping our clients to build resilience
to natural catastrophes and extreme weather events and
minimise losses. For example, our offering includes
(re)insurance solutions, parametric covers and insurance
pool solutions to cover the costs of natural catastrophes.
We also offer tools for assessing physical climate risks and
their financial effects.

In this way, we encourage a risk-aware approach by our
clients and hence make a positive contribution to climate
change adaptation. We also work together with industry
associations such as the German Insurance Association
(GDV) and the Geneva Association to develop specific
recommendations for action.

Examples of our (re)insurance products that serve to
increase the resilience of our clients with respect to natural
catastrophe losses are:

- reinsurance capacity for the Caribbean Catastrophe Risk
Insurance Facility (CCRIF). The CCRIF pools hurricane,
earthquake and heavy rainfall risks on behalf of its
member states in the Caribbean and Central America;
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- reinsurance capacity for African Risk Capacity (ARC).
ARC pools drought and cyclone risks for its member
states in Sub-Saharan Africa;

- reinsurance capacity for Pacific Catastrophe Risk
Insurance Company (PCRIC). PCRIC pools earthquake,
cyclone and extreme rainfall risk for its member states
in the South Pacific;

- reinsurance capacity for the Fonds de Solidarité contre
les Evénements Catastrophiques (FSEC), Morocco's
solidarity fund against catastrophic events. FSEC pays
for losses from uninsured, low-income households.
Earthquake risks are covered by a parametric reinsurance
structure supported by Munich Re;

- parametric programme for financing catastrophe risk for
the Disaster Management Authority of the Indian state of
Nagaland - supporting the government initiative to
rehabilitate vulnerable communities and to rebuild public
assets;

- insurance solutions for low-income people in India so
they can use loans from microfinance institutions (MFls) to
recover from the effects of natural catastrophes (flooding,
hurricanes and earthquakes);

- insurance solutions that secure people’s livelihoods. Our
joint venture HDFC ERGO offers a broad spectrum of
microinsurance products for the rural population in India,
including weather-indexed insurance for farmers as well
as health and accident insurance.

Munich Re considers climate risks in its risk modelling and
pricing, based on the most recent climate science. Potential
changes may impact the Group's solvency capital
requirement (SCR).

Projections of changing physical risks in connection with
natural catastrophes are inherently uncertain. As part of
the regular validation process, we examine the sensitivity
of major and accumulation losses to changes in the return
period, the loss amount or a change in the business
volumes written. Additionally, we consider the impact of
changes in the correlation between different regions or
perils on the result of the risk model. The return periods
of Munich Re's most important climate-related perils are
stressed in the internal Munich Re model so as to obtain
an indication of the order of magnitude of the risk. Our
analyses indicated that Munich Re is capable of managing
conceivable higher exposures.

Munich Re Group Annual Report 2024

94

The majority of our (re)insurance portfolio exposed to climate
risks is in property insurance, which is characterised by
short claims settlement periods. Additionally, the annual
renewals process provides the opportunity to respond at
short notice to negative developments and negotiate
premium adjustments and/or new contractual terms such
as limits. Munich Re is thus always in a position to mitigate
the financial risks of climate change.

Based on the scenario analyses, we examined in greater
detail any risks from climate-related litigation (i.e. court
proceedings related to climate change) because these have
potentially longer claims settlement periods.

Litigation related to climate change is on the rise worldwide.
For a number of reasons, the success rate for cases that
come to court is currently very low. Nevertheless, any direct
liability under which a duty to defend or pay damages is
assumed could result in considerable losses. In addition

to the risk of increased frequency of single major losses,
accumulation scenarios are also possible. To counter this
risk, we have issued a range of topic papers and best
practices that provide underwriters for example with
standard clauses and information on developments in case
law. Respective training is also offered. We are monitoring
this risk very closely and currently see no material financial
risk for Munich Re.

Climate change may alter certain insurance markets. The
potential changes include:

- an increase in weather-related natural catastrophes and
higher loss potential, boosting the demand for primary
insurance and reinsurance products;

- higher risk-based prices, reducing demand;

- more complex risk modelling and an increase in earnings
volatility and capital requirements due to the increased
probability of severe loss events occurring. These factors
reduce supply.

Munich Re counters this risk by generally ensuring that its
risk strategy includes a diversified insurance portfolio. Our
expertise in dealing with natural hazard risks and advances
in our risk management — such as new, high-resolution

risk models - allow us to support preventative measures,
calculate competitive prices for traditional covers, and
develop new solutions for our primary insurance customers
and reinsurance clients.



Combined management report
Combined non-financial statement

In the life and health reinsurance segment, we have analysed
the potential effects of climate change on the mortality and
health of insureds in our portfolios. The effects are dependent
on the climate forecast and a population’s demographic
and geographic composition. Older and socio-economically
disadvantaged people are at greatest risk. It is very difficult
to identify deaths in which climate was a contributing
factor. Furthermore, the insured population may be less
severely impacted by the effects of climate change than
the overall population.

Our analyses indicate that the two greatest potential
physical risks for life and health are extreme heat events

in the United States and Asia as well as the unabated
increase in average temperatures, which may ultimately
lead to more frequent epidemics/pandemics. Although
the quantitative information on this risk complex is subject
to considerable uncertainty, we do not currently anticipate
climate change to have any material impacts on our
exposures.

Another measure to mitigate underwriting risks is the
selective cession of a portion of our risks to other risk
carriers through reinsurance or retrocession. In addition to
traditional retrocession, we use alternative risk transfer,
especially for natural catastrophe risks. For this purpose,
we use the capital markets as an additional option for risk
diversification.

Metrics and targets

Assuming risks is an integral component of our business
model. For this reason, we monitor the effectiveness of our
strategies and actions to manage risks as part of our
general strategic target tracking and managing of financial
metrics.

We measure the degree of achievement of the climate
targets defined in our Munich Re Group Ambition 2025, in
primary insurance and in facultative and direct (re)insurance
that does not include the reinsurance treaty business, as
described in the following.

The GHG emissions reduction targets are expressed
only as a percentage of the emissions of a base year.
This is because the progress measurement is based on
Munich Re's internal definitions for approximating GHG
emissions regarding the activities in question, which
definitions do not permit any comparability of absolute
figures with other market players.

1 Scope 3 GHG emissions: other indirect emissions from activities in the value chain.
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With regard to operational property insurance business in
oil and gas production, we are striving to reduce our self-
calculated GHG emissions associated with our business
by 5% by 2025 compared with the base year 2019, as part
of our targets for primary insurance and for the direct and
facultative (re)insurance business.

In (conventional and unconventional) oil and gas production,
the target refers directly to our self-calculated GHG
emissions from our clients’ insured oil and gas production
that are associated with our property insurance business.
We calculate the figure by first determining our clients’
scope 1-3' life-cycle GHG emissions associated with the
produced amounts of oil and gas. For these calculations,
we use the expertise of our subsidiary HSB Solomon
Associates LLC, who themselves use the integrated open-
source tool The Oil Climate Index + Gas. We associate these
emissions with our (re)insurance policies in the amount
that the (re)insurance capacity provided by Munich Re
contributes to the total insurance ceiling (client’s deductible
+ total insurance capacity) known to us. The base year is 2019;
for all active risks as at 31 December 2019.

Development of self-calculated scope 1, 2 and 3 GHG emissions
(COze) associated with our operational property business in primary
insurance and facultative and direct (re)insurance, relative to the
2019 base year (Munich Re Group Ambition 2025)"2

% 31.12.2024 Prev. year
Oil and gas production -96.4 -79.8

1 The figure does not include treaty reinsurance business.
2 The oil and gas production volumes used in the calculation are based on the
latest available data from an external data provider.

The year-on-year reduction is largely due to the
discontinuation of this business segment by the Munich Re
Syndicate in the financial year.

Moreover, we have committed to completely phasing out
the (re)insurance of thermal coal activities altogether in
our primary insurance and (re)insurance business by 2040.
In primary insurance and in facultative and direct
(re)insurance business, we aim to reduce the GHG
emissions from insured activities related to our insureds’
thermal coal production (mines) and coal-fired power
plants by 35% by 2025, relative to the base year of 2019.
This also encompasses treaty-like business in the form
of facultative facilities if it includes the option to decline
individual risks.
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With regard to thermal coal, the targets are derived from
the following key metrics as the basis for evaluating the
development of GHG emissions associated with the
insured business of our clients: annual tonnes of thermal
coal produced from mines, and installed operational
capacity in megawatts of our clients’ thermal coal power
plants. The base year is 2019; for all active risks as at

31 December 2019. Given that the reduction targets are
applicable across all non-life lines of insurance, and that our
goal is to completely discontinue insuring these business
activities by 2040, our clients’ GHG emissions associated
with our insured business are — as described above - fully
taken into account regardless of the specific type and amount
of our (re)insurance participation. As a result, the metrics for
the base year and the reporting year, which are calculated
to measure the reduction as at the given reporting date, are
always based on 100 percent figures at client level across
the relevant insurance lines. The figures therefore refer to
our clients’ production of thermal coal or their power plant
capacity, while avoiding double counting at the client level
across the various relevant lines of insurance.

Development of approximated GHG emissions at client level in
primary insurance and facultative and direct (re)insurance business,
relative to the 2019 base year (Munich Re Group Ambition 2025)'

96

Value at risk

% 31.12.2024 Prev. year
Thermal coal mining? =87 -40.8
Coal-fired power plants® -46.7 -40.6

1 The figures do not include treaty reinsurance business.

2 The development of the metric tonnes of insured thermal coal produced each
year by insureds is used as an equivalent for an approximate development of the
GHG emissions. These are based on the reported actual data of the insured.

3 The development of the installed operational capacity (in megawatts) of the
insured coal-fired power plants of our insureds is used as an equivalent for an
approximate development of GHG emissions. These are based on the latest
available data from an external data provider.

The year-on-year reductions remain largely due to active
portfolio management measures, including discontinuation
of business. The reduction in thermal coal mining was
additionally boosted by a reduction in the quantities produced
by our clients. Transformational effects again had a minor
impact on the overall development of the figures for coal-
fired power plants.

A key figure for assessing risk exposure is the loss to our
insurance portfolio from climate-related natural catastrophes,
which we calculate on the basis of natural catastrophe
modelling in our internal risk model. In the following table,
we illustrate the value at risk of the economic profit and loss
distribution over a one-year time horizon with a confidence
level of 99.5%. The net perspective after external retrocession
is shown for Munich Re's largest climate-related natural
catastrophe exposures:
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2024 Prev. year Change
Natural catastrophes -
scenario (net) £€m £€m %
Atlantic Hurricane
(North America) 9,233 8,513 8.5
Winter Storm (Europe) 6,134 5,827 5.3
Flood (Germany) 3,064 2,980 2.8

Severe Thunderstorm
(USA)
Wildfire (USA)

1,250-2,250
750-1,750

1,250-2,250
750-1,750

In some regions, there is already a high probability of a causal
link between certain changes in the frequency of weather-
related perils and anthropogenic climate change. Examples
of this include a larger proportion of high-intensity tropical
cyclones, more frequent and more intensive heavy
precipitation events and flash flood events, as well as
stronger storm surges due to sea level rise. This trend is
also reflected in the annual natural catastrophes. The year
2024 maintained the trend of high losses in recent years.
Worldwide, the actual overall loss incurred from natural
catastrophes (approximately US$ 320bn) and insured
share (around US$ 140bn) were considerably higher than
the averages for the past five and ten years.

The burden from major natural catastrophes losses is
concentrated largely in Munich Re's property insurance
business and amounted in the financial year to a total of
€2,644m (2,335m) for the reinsurance business after
external retrocession. This corresponds to 9.8% (9.0%) of
the net insurance revenue and takes into account major
losses exceeding €30m. The losses in 2024 were dominated
by a large number of strong hurricanes, severe thunderstorms
and floods, which, according to climate research, are often
increasing in intensity and, in some regions, in frequency as
well.

Developing innovative (re)insurance solutions and services
that respond to the challenges posed by climate change is
part of our core business. We monitor the effectiveness of
our climate strategies and actions as to the opportunities
and impacts in the context of our strategic goals within the
Munich Re Group Ambition 2025.

Investments: Management of climate change-
related impacts, risks and opportunities

Strategy
The materiality assessment reveals the following impacts,
risks and opportunities in our investments:
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Munich Re has material negative impacts on the sustainability
aspect of climate change mitigation, in particular through
GHG emissions from real estate and infrastructure projects
in which it invests directly, as well as through investments
in companies that generate high levels of GHG emissions
in the short, medium and long term. In addition to sector-
based identification and the materiality assessment,
recording the scope 3 GHG emissions in Category 15
“Investments” (financed emissions) confirms the result of our
sector-based analysis with regard to the topic of climate
change mitigation. An overview of the financed emissions
can be found under > Metrics and targets.

Additionally, Munich Re has identified a material opportunity
with regard to the sustainability aspect of energy. In
Munich Re's view, renewable energy (this covers both energy
supply and storage) remains an attractive investment in the
medium and long term. Because the energy transition is,
on the one hand, key to mitigating climate change and is
becoming increasingly important on the public and private
agenda globally, and on the other, Munich Re has expertise
in the fields of technology and risk assessment allowing it
to benefit from these investment opportunities, this potential
opportunity was assessed to be highly likely. A description
of the risks associated with climate change in investments
can be found under > Risks.

Our strategic decisions on sustainability in investments
consider the impacts and opportunities described above
and are taken by the Board of Management's ESG
Committee, supported by the ESG Management Team.

In addition, the ESG Investment Committee specifically
focuses on implementing the ESG strategy with regard to
our investments. The GIM Reputational Risk Committee
supports our efforts to holistically handle sustainability
risks by analysing and assessing reputational risks in our
investment activities. The Chief Investment Officer (CIO)
is the Board of Management member responsible for the
Group’s investment management. GIM, which reports to
the CIQ, is responsible for the sustainability of the Group’s
investment strategy as the asset owner, and has its own
Sustainability in Investments Team for this purpose. ESG
multipliers throughout GIM support this team in establishing
sustainability as an important consideration in our
investment processes. This structure is also reflected at
MEAG, the asset manager responsible for a major part of
our investments. MEAG ensures targeted implementation
of the ESG strategy through its membership on GIM's ESG
Investment Committee, ongoing coordination among the
sustainability teams in the investment area, and the ESG
multipliers in the various portfolio-management teams.
Regular training is offered to increase and improve
awareness of sustainability issues, for example on regulatory
topics or sustainability trends. The MEAG ESG Committee
at Board level and the MEAG ESG Management Team
have key roles in this regard.
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As a global investor, Munich Re is aware of its responsibility
to conduct its activities sustainably, and integrates ESG
criteria into its investment policy. In addition, we have
committed to steering our portfolio towards a net-zero
climate target by 2050. To ensure transparency and
accountability on our journey towards net zero, we use the
NZAOA framework to develop specific emission reduction
targets sequentially and for various asset classes, including
a range of milestones for intermediate targets. These
intermediate targets we have then defined are reviewed
and updated when needed to reflect the latest technologies,
market conditions and decarbonisation pathways that are
relevant for our sector and our business activities.

To ensure a rigorous and science-based approach to
managing unavoidable emissions, we will — following the
gross reduction of such emissions — endeavour to
neutralise any residual emissions from investee companies
using the technologies and methods available at the time.

The targets we have set ourselves are based on scenarios
with a maximum temperature increase of 1.5°C by the end
of the century. Munich Re joined the NZAOA in 2020 and
aligns its targets with the NZAOA Target Setting Protocol.
The activities in line with the Target Setting Protocol
correspond to the core elements of common transition
plans, which include five-year plans, progress reporting and
engagement goals. The following fields of action in relation
to our investment strategy and collaborative engagement as
part of the investor-led Climate Action100+ initiative (CA100+)
with our investee companies are guiding us towards our
targets up to 2050 in addition to continuous learning about
the efficiency and effectiveness of our measures.

To help meet the climate goals of the Paris Agreement, we
have committed to decarbonisation targets in our Munich Re
Group Ambition 2025. We have been pursuing these goals
since 2020 and have adjusted our investments accordingly.
In addition to becoming a member of the NZAOA, Munich Re
was one of the first signatories to the PRI. Based on these
two programmes, we have introduced our Responsible
Investment Guideline (RIG), which covers the PRI and
NZAOA recommendations and the sustainability criteria
that we apply to our investment management; it is our
overarching framework for managing the identified impacts
and opportunities. Our GIM1.1.4 unit (Sustainability in
Investments) is responsible for the process for overseeing
compliance with the RIG requirements. The process
requires affected addressees to adopt the instructions in
the RIG in their decision-making processes. Exclusions of
issuers or governments are communicated to the asset
managers involved and must be implemented. In the case of
indirect investments, compliance with the RIG requirements
cannot be fully ensured. Our goal is to identify such
investment products and apply our sustainability processes
to the extent feasible, e.g. by recommending model clauses
for incorporating human rights and biodiversity criteria. As
part of the Group Finance function, MEAG is responsible
for analysing liquid assets to check compliance with the list
of exclusions and for notifying GIM1.1.4 if exclusions are
violated. The RIG stipulates that written notification must



Combined management report
Combined non-financial statement

be made to GIM1.1.4 without undue delay if there are
doubts about implementation, and in the case of deviations
or violations.

The Head of Department GIM1.1 is responsible at the top
management level for the implementation of the RIG.
Amendments in the annual revision process are submitted
to the ESG Investment Committee (responsible for
implementing the ESG strategy in our investments) and the
ESG Management Team.

When the RIG was defined, the requirements of internal
and external stakeholders were taken into consideration, in
particular the interests of Munich Re regarding compliance
with the climate strategy as well as recommendations
resulting from our PRI and NZAOA membership. The RIG is
updated regularly and an extract is published in the download
centre on the Munich Re website.

The guideline contains measures with which we address
the material impacts and opportunities outlined at the start of
the > Strategy section. These include the topics of climate
change mitigation, climate change adaptation, energy
efficiency and renewable energy deployment. We base this
on systematic integration of ESG criteria in GIM and MEAG's
investment processes, actively fulfilling our stewardship
role as asset owners, defined exclusion criteria, and ESG-
focused investment areas such as renewable energy and
green bonds. In addition, we demand that all of our asset
managers apply sustainability criteria when handling their
portfolios. Our goal is to decarbonise our investment
portfolio, reaching our net-zero target we have set by 2050.
Munich Re entered into this commitment in the expectation
that the governments will meet their own pledges to
ensure that the goals of the Paris Agreement are achieved.
In publishing our Munich Re Group Ambition 2025,

we committed to divesting from thermal coal by 2040.

For the financial services industry, in addition to
decarbonisation targets, the financing of sustainable
business activities plays a particularly important role.

We continue to make a concerted effort to hold a share of
ESG-focused investments in our asset portfolio.

As an insurer, we regard investing as an integral component
of our business model. For the companies of the Munich Re
Group, Group-wide standards are applied to develop the
investment strategy as a matter of principle. This means
that the investment strategy is designed to ensure the
greatest possible security and profitability, based on an
appropriate mix and diversification, as well as available
liquidity at all times. The consideration of supervisory,
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accounting and tax frameworks is reflected in the
diversification of our portfolio across regions, currencies
and ratings, taking into account environmental, social and
governance principles in the various asset classes. By
integrating these principles, negative impacts on the
sustainability aspect of climate change mitigation that are
associated with investments are limited to the greatest
extent possible.

Actions

As a global investor, Munich Re is aware of its responsibility
to conduct its activities sustainably, and we integrate
sustainability criteria into our investment strategy. In its
investment decisions, Munich Re therefore takes ESG risks
into consideration and adopts measures in the form of
sustainability criteria determined by the specific investment
mandate.

We pursue the actions described below to reduce our
negative impacts on the sustainability aspect of climate
change mitigation, and to leverage opportunities with
regard to the sustainability aspect of energy.

We have adopted the following climate change mitigation
and climate change adaptation measures and implement
them continuously:

- The measures introduced to achieve the targets are based
largely on portfolio restructuring as a decarbonisation
lever and therefore do not require any major operating
and/or capital expenditures. We use CO.e budgets for
special portfolios and divestments, as well as investments
in low-carbon assets.

- To supplement this, our COze reduction plan has been
placed with selected external asset managers.

- We finance sustainable economic activities by issuing
green bonds.

- We also exclude any direct investments in listed companies
(equities and corporate bonds) that generate a significant
portion of their revenue from thermal coal (>15%,
conversion into electricity/mining) or from oil sands (>10%).
Companies that generate 15% to 30% of their revenue
from thermal coal are excluded from our investment
universe or, in individual cases, encouraged to reduce
their greenhouse gases in the context of an engagement
dialogue as part of the investor-led CA100+ initiative.

- In addition, we no longer directly invest in equities or
corporate bonds of listed oil and gas companies whose
business model specialises in oil and gas. We define such
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specialised oil and gas companies in this respect as
publicly traded companies according to the Global
Industry Classification Standard (GICS) Oil and Gas
sub-sectors, with the exception of Integrated Qil & Gas
in accordance with the ISS ESG GICS classification.
Corresponding holdings are reduced in line with market
conditions.

- We take further action by using collaborative engagement:
in individual cases, companies are encouraged to reduce
GHG emissions in the context of an engagement dialogue
as part of the investor-led CA100+ initiative, with the
aim of promoting the sustainable transformation of the
economy as an identified decarbonisation lever.

As of 1 January 2025, for new direct investments

Munich Re requires a credible commitment to net-zero
GHG emissions by 2050, including corresponding short-
and mid-term milestones, from listed integrated oil and
gas companies (in accordance with the ISS ESG GICS
classification). This means that we will exclude relevant
companies from the investment universe that do not meet
the criteria described above.

In order to continue making progress towards achieving our
GHG reduction targets in our investments, we rely on the
real economy making progress towards achieving the net-
zero target. At the same time, achieving the target requires
a market situation that allows us to cover the liabilities
arising from the insurance business and, at the same time,
to decarbonise our portfolio. Because our actions consist
largely of portfolio restructuring, there is no material
dependency on the availability and allocation of resources.

Munich Re has developed an investment strategy as part
of the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025 with regard to the
identified material potential opportunity for the sustainability
aspect of energy.

The actions taken in the reporting period include the
continued expansion of investments in infrastructure projects
such as solar power plants and wind farms, innovative
transport solutions, sustainably managed forests and organic
farming. We are also investing in green bonds related to
investments in renewable energy, sustainable waste
management, protection of biodiversity or sustainable

land use.

Metrics and targets

Our goal is to decarbonise our investment portfolio,
reaching our net-zero target by 2050. In that context, we
have committed to divesting from thermal coal by 2040.

As part of our Munich Re Group Ambition 2025, we have
set ourselves the target for our investments of reducing,
as an intermediate step until 2025, our total scope 1 and 2
financed GHG emissions from listed equities, corporate
bonds and direct real estate by 25-29% compared to the
2019 base year. The baseline value of financed GHG
emissions (scope 1 and 2) by listed equities, corporate
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bonds and direct real estate was 5,728,652 t COze in the
2019 base year.

In addition, we have set specific sector targets for listed
equities and corporate bonds: we intend to reduce financed
GHG emissions from investments in thermal coal —in
particular mining and/or power generation — by more

than 35% by 2025, and for investments in oil and gas - in
particular drilling and production, refining and distribution — by
more than 25%, respectively compared to the 2019 base
year. In a further step towards reaching our net-zero target,
in October 2022 we updated our specifications for the oil
and gas sector and added new milestones. The baseline
value of financed GHG emissions (scope 1 and 2) in the
2019 base year was 512,303 t CO-e for thermal coal and
1,032,872 t CO2e for oil and gas.

The asset classes covered by the Munich Re Group
Ambition 2025 targets are currently not reconcilable with
the emissions in the table “Financed emissions according
to Category 15 ‘Investments’ of the GHG Protocol”, as only
liquid investments (listed equities and corporate bonds)
are included in this target. Direct real estate is also covered
by the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025; in accordance
with ESRS E1-6 in conjunction with the requirements of
the GHG Protocol, this is not reported under Category 15
financed emissions.

The GHG emission reduction targets are based on the
guidance in the NZAOA Target Setting Protocol. They are
science-based and compatible with the central sources
that Munich Re considers. In our alignment with the IPCC
pathways in the context of our NZAOA membership, we
also engage with the relevant stakeholders.

To manage the opportunity identified in the materiality
assessment, we set ourselves the target of increasing the
volume of investments in renewable energy by 2025. This
was based on our risk appetite and served to diversify our
alternative investment portfolio. Our target of investing up
to €3bn in renewable energy has been reached. The Board
of Management has so far not adopted a new target.
Nevertheless, this investment segment remains attractive
for new investments. In the financial year, 2,481,180 MWh
of electricity was generated by non-financial investments
in the consolidated group (notably, wind farms and solar
installations).

In the following, we describe significant assumptions
underlying the parameters used to measure our degree of
target achievement, as well as the underlying
methodologies:

The following table illustrates the development of scope 1
and 2 financed GHG emissions from listed equities,
corporate bonds and direct real estate. We use data from
the external data provider ISS ESG to measure the
financed GHG emissions from listed equities and corporate
bonds. To measure GHG emissions for our direct real
estate portfolio, we continue to record energy consumption
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data, which is subsequently converted using emission
factors.

The absolute and relative GHG emission reductions

achieved in the financial year are shown in the following
tables:

Absolute financed GHG emissions (scope 1and 2)'

t COze 31.12.2024 Prev. year
Listed equities, corporate bonds and
direct real estate 2,605,139 3,016,864
Thereof: listed equities and corporate
bonds from companies in the thermal
coal segment - in particular mining
and/or power generation 236,921 234,194
Thereof: listed equities and corporate
bonds from companies in the oil &
gas segment — in particular drilling
and production, refining and
distribution 449,544 463,260

1 For listed equities, corporate bonds based on the available CO.e emissions from
the data provider ISS ESG (usually CO.e emissions from the previous year). For
directly held real estate, CO.e emissions for the 2024 financial year are
approximated due to a lack of available data at the time of publication. They are
based on available CO.e emissions from the previous year and CO.e-emission
reductions as a result of implemented energy-saving measures, provided they
can be verified and measured.

Development of financed GHG emissions (scope 1and 2) compared
to the 2019 base year (Munich Re Group Ambition 2025)’

% 31.12.2024 Prev. year

Listed equities, corporate bonds and

direct real estate -54.5 -47.3

Thereof: listed equities and corporate
bonds from companies in the thermal
coal segment - in particular mining
and/or power generation

-53.8 -54.3

Thereof: listed equities and corporate
bonds from companies in the oil &
gas segment — in particular drilling
and production, refining and

distribution -56.5 -55.1

1 For listed equities, corporate bonds based on the available CO.e emissions from
the data provider ISS ESG (usually CO.e emissions from the previous year). For
directly held real estate, CO.e emissions for the 2024 financial year are
approximated due to a lack of available data at the time of publication. They are
based on available CO.e emissions from the previous year and CO.e-emission
reductions as a result of implemented energy-saving measures, provided they
can be verified and measured.

In a deviation from PCAF methodology, the market value is
used as the basis for debt instruments to remain consistent
with the 2019 base year for the Munich Re Group Ambition
2025. If we were to use the nominal value instead of the
market value for debt instruments, the reduction would have
been 50.9% (instead of 54.5%) relative to the 2019 base year.
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Of the reduction achieved relative to the previous year,
25% is attributable to portfolio changes (new investments
and total sales) and 34% to the decarbonisation of the
real economy. A further 41% is attributable to valuation
changes, changes in data coverage or changes in sub-
portfolios.

To assess the effectiveness of our actions regarding the
identified negative impact on climate change, we regularly
monitor the development of the relative carbon footprint
of the investments that fall under the scope of our climate
ambition. The metric therefore relates to the reduction
targets for financed scope 1 and 2 emissions defined in
the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025. The financed GHG
emissions from this portfolio are shown in relation to the
market value of our investments. The amount was

68 t CO2e/€m invested as at 31 December 2023; as at

31 December 2024, it had changed to 55 t CO.e/€m
invested. The metric’'s denominator takes into account the
market value of all investments that fall under the scope of
the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025. This also includes
the market value of investments for which we have no COze
data. Data availability therefore also influences this metric
in addition to the actual development of the portfolio’s
emissions. In the reporting year, CO.e data was available
to us for 92.4% (previous year: 93.6%) of the investments
in the scope of the denominator.

Other metrics we use to measure the effectiveness of our
actions to address the material effects on the sustainability
aspect of climate change mitigation are the volume of
ESG-focused investments and the volume of green bonds
issued.

With regard to renewables, we achieved our 2025 target

of increasing our renewable energy holdings to €3bn ahead
of time in 2023, and we will continue using the investment
opportunities.

Within our portfolio, we emphasise a balanced, diversified
mix of corporate and government-related issuers. In the
medium term, we are striving to expand the ESG-focused
portfolio.

The volume of ESG-focused investments is a measure of
our contribution to financing the transition to a climate-
neutral economy, and we use it to track the effectiveness of
our strategies and actions relating to our identified impact
on climate change mitigation. The following table provides
an overview of our ESG-focused investments. The
investments are shown in each case with the total of their
market values (including accrued interest in euros in the
case of green bonds) in the relevant asset classes.
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ESG-focused investments

31.12.2024 Prev. year Change
€m %
Green bonds 4,452 3,633 22.5
Renewables 3,319 3,130 6.0
Certified real estate 2,562 2,565 -0.1
Certified forestry
management 2,496 1,928 29.5

The classification of the green bond portfolio is based on the
assessment of the emission documentation by Bloomberg
Green Bond Flag. These green bonds had to comply with
the ICMA standard or comparable standards at the time of
issue and feature a second party opinion. In cases where
we exclude companies from our investment universe based
on our environmental criteria, such as oil and gas companies
or coal companies, we may still selectively invest in green
bonds issued by those companies. The prerequisites for this,
however, are that the companies comply with a recognised
framework (e.g. ICMA standard or the European green bond
standard) and that the issuer has publicly committed to a
net-zero target by 2050 (or another pathway based on the
Paris Agreement) and — in the case of coal companies — a
coal exit strategy by 2040.

The underlying energy source, such as solar, wind,
geothermal energy or hydropower, is relevant for allocation
to the volume of investments in renewables. The
investment volume includes the associated infrastructure
for producing electricity and heat, as well as for storage
and transportation. This metric also enables us to measure
the effectiveness of our strategies and actions relating

to the material energy opportunity we have identified.

Our real estate investments focus on energy efficiency and
certified buildings. We aim to ensure certification of the
real estate under the Building Research Establishment
Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM), Leadership
in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED), the German
Sustainable Building Council (DGNB) or comparable
certifications that contribute to sustainability. Certification
is performed independently using the certification process
of the relevant certification companies.
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Sustainable forestry is the primary objective of all our
forestry investments. We focus on forestry investments
where management of the forest is certified by the Forest
Stewardship Council (FSC), the Programme for the
Endorsement of Forest Certification Schemes (PEFC) or a
similar organisation, or is reliably certified within the first
five years after acquisition. The asset manager applies ESG
criteria to each investment as part of the due diligence process
and subsequently in the course of ongoing management
activities. Certification is process-based and performed
independently by the relevant certification companies.

We issue green bonds as a way to finance the expansion of

our sustainable investments. Issuing green bonds thus also
makes a contribution to reaching our net-zero target by 2050.

Green bonds issued

31.12.2024 Prev. year Change
%
Nominal volumes of
green bonds issued in
€m 2,250 2,250 0.0
Nominal volumes of
green bonds issued in
US$ m 1,250 1,250 0.0

GHG gross emissions in Category 15 “Investments” constitute
a significant scope 3 category for Munich Re. These are
referred to as financed emissions and are shown in the
following table. A total of 7,284,057 t COze of financed
emissions feed into Munich Re’s climate footprint, and are
included under the scope 3 GHG emissions in the line “(15)
Investments”; see > Own operations: Management of
climate change-related impacts > Metrics and targets.
Details are shown in the table “GHG emissions according to
ESRS". Our financed emissions in the 2024 reporting year
do not include any scope 3 emissions from our investee
companies because the data coverage and quality is still
inadequate with regard to transparency and comparability.
As we still cannot rely on robust estimates either, it can be
assumed that the scope 3 information does not meet the
quality requirements, despite reasonable efforts on our part.
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Financed emissions according to Category 15 “Investments” of the GHG Protocol

Data quality Data
Scope 31.12.2024 score coverage

1 (best

quality) to 5

(lowest
t CO2ze quality) %
Equity investments 1-2 3,397,628 2.9 97
Debt investments with known use of proceeds 1-2 103,914 3.0 100
Debt investments with unknown use of proceeds 1-2 3,246,121 1.9 100
Project finance 1-2 536,394 2.8 100

Total financed emissions 7,284,057

In accordance with the principles and provisions of the
Green House Gas Protocol (GHGP) Corporate Value Chain
(Scope 3) Accounting and Reporting Standard (2011), the
financed emissions comprise our equity instruments, debt
instruments in companies with known and unknown use
of proceeds, and project finance. For these asset classes,
the calculation of financed emissions uses the prescribed
methodology of the GHG Accounting and Reporting
Standard for the Financial Industry from the Partnership
for Carbon Accounting Financials (PCAF), specifically part
A “Financed Emissions” (December 2022 version). In the
context of the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025, we used
market values to calculate the attribution factor of debt
instruments. In the above table “Financed emissions
according to Category 15 ‘Investments’ of the GHG Protocol”,
we adapted the methodology and, as recommended by the
PCAF, use nominals for the numerator of the attribution
factor for debt instruments.

The category of equity investments comprises listed equities
and equity funds, real estate equity funds, infrastructure
equity investments, private equity and infrastructure funds,
insurance-related equity instruments, and other participations
without operational control. As a rule, only GHG emissions
from investments where we do not exercise any operational
control fall within Category 15 “Investments”. If we have
operational control of a company or an asset, we report the
GHG emissions under scope 1 and 2 of our climate footprint.

The category of debt instruments consists of publicly
traded corporate debt, infrastructure loans, loans to
unlisted companies, private debt funds, commercial real
estate loans and residential mortgage loans, real estate
debt funds and insurance-related debt instruments.
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The project finance category comprises certain equity and
debt finance arrangements in which repayment of the
capital provided as part of the project is made using cash
flows generated by the project. This type of financing can
occur in connection with infrastructure investments and
real estate finance. Munich Re did not finance any projects
as the initial sponsor or lender in the 2024 financial year.
The financed emissions represent our share of the GHG
emissions of other companies. To attribute our share
(attribution factor) in the case of equity investments in
listed companies, we use the market value, and in the case
of debt investments, we use the notional value in relation
to the value of the company plus cash (enterprise value
including cash, EVIC), if available. If the EVIC is not available,
we calculate the financed emissions using the PCAF
methodologies with sector averages for emission factors.

In the case of equity investments in unlisted companies,
we use the ratio of the market value to total balance sheet
value (equity and debt) as the attribution factor.

We use the scope 1 and 2 emissions of the financed
companies in all sectors if we can obtain corresponding
COze data on the financed companies with reasonable
effort. To do this, we use the most recent data in the best
available data quality. This generally involves CO-e
emissions of the previous year provided by data provider ISS.
We take a hierarchical approach in this regard and first use
CO2e data that is published or provided by the financed
companies. We then close any remaining data gaps by
using sector averages. In addition to gaps in CO2e data,
gaps may also arise in the EVIC and in the assessment of
the data quality in accordance with PCAF requirements.
Investments for which we do not have any information on
the data quality of the associated GHG emissions are rated
with a data quality score of 5.
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Primary data (reported emissions) is given priority over
secondary data (estimates, sector averages) because it
offers a greater degree of accuracy. The criteria that affect
data quality are the verifiability of the data, and the

data’s actuality, regionality and source. Because of data
restrictions, emissions are calculated using both primary
and secondary data. We are striving to increase data quality
gradually in the coming years. CO.e data is available for
some of our investments in retail funds, but no information
about the quality of the data. When we calculate average
data quality, we assign these investments a score of 5, the
lowest possible score.

We report data coverage per asset class in the table
“Financed emissions according to Category 15 ‘Investments’
of the GHG Protocol”, whereby the numerator contains the
market values of all assets for which we have CO-e data.
We then consider this in relation to the total market values
of the asset class concerned. We calculated the data quality
per asset class as the weighted average of the individual
assets in the class, in accordance with the requirements of
the PCAF Financed Emissions Standard. Weighting was
done using the “outstanding amount”. This corresponds to
the market value of equity instruments and the notional
value of debt investments.

Financed emissions, disaggregated by asset class
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Financed emissions can change due to changes in the
value of the financed companies that are used in the
numerator of the attribution factor. To ensure comparability,
we do not use any company values adjusted for market
price changes, in line with the PCAF methodology.

Given that the asset classes referenced in the IFRS
Sustainability Disclosure Standard S2 are not identical to
the ESRS requirements, which in turn are based on the
GHG Protocol, the following table “Financed emissions,
disaggregated by asset class” contains a corresponding
reconciliation for the scope 1 and scope 2 financed
emissions.

All asset classes in the mandatory scope of the GHG
Protocol are included. We voluntarily include financed
emissions from equity and debt funds, from mortgage
loans to private individuals and from debt instruments
with unknown use of proceeds. Investments in unit-linked
life insurance are not included in our financed emissions
because the investment is held for the benefit of
policyholders, who bear the investment risk. In accordance
with the GHG Protocol and the NZAOA Target Setting
Protocol, such investments fall under the voluntary scope
of reporting.

31.12.2024

Drawn

portion of

loan
Gross commit- Data
Scope 1 Scope 2 Total exposure ments coverage
t COze t COze t COze €m €m %
Equity investments 2,923,870 473,778 3,397,647 27,255 = 97
Loans 730,170 137,402 867,572 16,905 = 100
Bonds 2,559,438 402,384 2,961,822 35,703 = 100
Undrawn loan commitments 5,033 3,831 8,864 -28 1,079 88
Total ISSB asset classes 6,218,510 1,017,395 7,235,906 79,834 = -
Private debt funds 36,080 20,935 57,015 1,852 = 95
Real estate debt funds 0 0 0 0 = =
Undrawn loan commitments -5,033 -3,831 -8,864 28 - 88
Total financed emissions and gross exposure 6,249,558 1,034,499 7,284,057 81,715 - -

In the following, we additionally report, for the asset
classes referenced in the IFRS Sustainability Disclosure
Standard S2, the financed scope 1 and scope 2 emissions
on the basis of the six-digit GICS industry level codes
(see the table “Financed emissions, disaggregated by
GICS industries”). We use the scope 1 and 2 emissions
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of the financed companies in all sectors (GICS) as long as
we can obtain corresponding COze data on the financed
companies with reasonable effort. Any investments that
we could not allocate to one of the GICS industries are
combined in the line item “Other”.
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Financed emissions, disaggregated by GICS industries

31.12.2024

Equity investments

Absolute gross

Absolute gross

financed financed

emissions, emissions,
GICS industry scope 1 scope 2 Gross exposure
t COze t COze £€m
Energy Equipment and Services 3 7 1
Oil, Gas and Consumable Fuels 29,872 2,497 119
Chemicals 24,128 12,250 250
Construction Materials 3,772 150 8
Metals and Mining 35,786 9,937 107
Construction and Engineering 3,568 652 73
Industrial Conglomerates 550 486 258
Commercial Services and Supplies 150,650 195 121
Passenger Airlines 3,495 17 4
Ground Transportation 3,104 3,290 15
Transportation Infrastructure 1,421 5,218 726
Capital Markets 9,841 7,198 1,052
Diversified Telecommunication Services 503 2,053 318
Electric Utilities 16,478 55,928 903
Gas Utilities 67,750 1,317 681
Multi Utilities 9,251 7,736 408
Water Utilities 32,339 4,996 214
Independent Power and Renewable Electricity Producers 1,036,498 3,194 1,374
Real Estate Management and Development 683 1,863 389
Other 1,442,998 322,206 8,180
Subtotal 2,872,691 441,192 15,200
Remaining GICS 51,179 32,586 12,054
Total 2,923,870 473,778 27,255
Data coverage in % 97 97 -
31.12.2024
Loans

Absolute gross Absolute gross

financed financed

emissions, emissions,
GICS industry scope 1 scope 2 Gross exposure
t COze t COze €m
Energy Equipment and Services 0 0 0
Oil, Gas and Consumable Fuels 104,352 515, )ilE 305
Chemicals 0 0 0
Construction Materials 0 0 0
Metals and Mining 0 0 0
Construction and Engineering 33,768 1,437 738
Industrial Conglomerates 262 54 101
Commercial Services and Supplies 2,669 2,083 189
Passenger Airlines 0 0 0
Ground Transportation 18,276 1,154 391
Transportation Infrastructure 6,824 6,965 1,563
Capital Markets 411 9,544 211
Diversified Telecommunication Services 2,128 18,251 592
Electric Utilities 32,178 1,205 77
Gas Utilities 0 0 0
Multi Utilities 0 0 0
Water Utilities 24,834 2,043 125
Independent Power and Renewable Electricity Producers 395,592 12,219 1,388
Real Estate Management and Development 87,580 25,339 10,263
Other 0 0 0
Subtotal 708,875 136,208 15,943
Remaining GICS 21,296 1,194 961
Total 730,170 137,402 16,905
Data coverage in % 100 100 -
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31.12.2024
Bonds

Absolute gross Absolute gross

financed financed

emissions, emissions,
GICS industry scope 1 scope 2 Gross exposure
t COze t COze €m
Energy Equipment and Services 83,135 9,683 99
Oil, Gas and Consumable Fuels 258,848 21,490 788
Chemicals 188,368 39,583 367
Construction Materials 118,851 12,120 88
Metals and Mining 98,625 14,621 141
Construction and Engineering 3,974 400 88
Industrial Conglomerates 208,206 33,010 1,986
Commercial Services and Supplies 8,846 1,103 216
Passenger Airlines 125,503 232 145
Ground Transportation 16,892 3,628 258
Transportation Infrastructure 6,236 12,714 307
Capital Markets 358,091 65,157 7,199
Diversified Telecommunication Services 3,451 15,275 1,743
Electric Utilities 511,047 29,843 1,516
Gas Utilities 55,465 4,889 242
Multi Utilities 107,101 15,272 599
Water Utilities 0 0 0
Independent Power and Renewable Electricity Producers 273,659 11,928 756
Real Estate Management and Development 1,805 4,734 322
Other 0 0 0
Subtotal 2,428,104 295,681 16,861
Remaining GICS 131,334 106,703 18,843
Total 2,559,438 402,384 35,703
Data coverage in % 100 100 =
31.12.2024

Undrawn loan commitments

Absolute gross

Absolute gross

financed financed
emissions, emissions,

GICS industry scope 1 scope 2 Gross exposure

t COze t COze €m
Energy Equipment and Services 0 0 0
Oil, Gas and Consumable Fuels 0 0 0
Chemicals 0 0 0
Construction Materials 0 0 0
Metals and Mining 0 0 0
Construction and Engineering 55 47 -15
Industrial Conglomerates 0 0 0
Commercial Services and Supplies 2 1 3
Passenger Airlines 0 0 0
Ground Transportation 1,444 1,432 4
Transportation Infrastructure 173 707 =i
Capital Markets 0 0 0
Diversified Telecommunication Services 2 1 1
Electric Utilities 0 0 0
Gas Utilities 0 0 0
Multi Utilities 0 0 0
Water Utilities 0 0 0
Independent Power and Renewable Electricity Producers 353 406 2
Real Estate Management and Development 2,887 547 -11
Other 0 0 0
Subtotal 5,016 3,142 -31
Remaining GICS 17 690 3
Total 5,033 3,831 -28
Data coverage in % 88 88 -
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31.12.2024

Drawn portion of
loan commitment

GICS industry Gross exposure

€m
Energy Equipment and Services 0
Oil, Gas and Consumable Fuels 0
Chemicals 0
Construction Materials 0
Metals and Mining 0
Construction and Engineering 66
Industrial Conglomerates 0
Commercial Services and Supplies 15
Passenger Airlines 0
Ground Transportation 152
Transportation Infrastructure 365
Capital Markets 0
Diversified Telecommunication Services 75
Electric Utilities 0
Gas Utilities 0
Multi Utilities 0
Water Utilities 0
Independent Power and Renewable Electricity Producers 102
Real Estate Management and Development 299
Other 0
Subtotal 1,072
Remaining GICS 7
Total 1,079

Data coverage in %

Risks

Climate change risks are continuously monitored and
managed as part of our ALM, liquidity and concentration
risks. Due to the strong diversification and high overall
liquidity of our investments, we do not consider the
impacts of climate change scenarios on the valuation of
our investments to be a material financial risk overall.

We see a particular risk in a portion of our assets with long
maturities. In the case of illiquid investments, this risk is
already assessed and managed in the due diligence
process by analysing potential location-specific perils due
to climate change. In the case of long-dated government
bonds, we do not simply rely on the usual ratings, but
perform independent analyses of the political, economic
and fiscal situation in the countries issuing bonds in which
Munich Re is most heavily invested. In this regard, climate-
change-related risks are also considered. On this basis, and
considering the needs of the business segments to invest in
the relevant currency areas and countries, concentration
risks and hence also potential financial risks due to climate
change are deliberately limited.
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Own operations: Management of climate
change-related impacts

Strategy

Reducing GHG emissions is a core element of Munich Re's
climate strategy. This is expressed in the target set out in
the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025 to reduce emissions
from our own operations. Owing to Munich Re’s worldwide
presence through its subsidiaries, we take a global approach
to this target. In the context of our own operations, we include
the companies in the consolidated group with staff who
perform activities that form part of our core business of
assuming (re)insurance risks and managing investments.
For Munich Re's own operations, the following areas of
influence were identified as material in the materiality
assessment: climate change mitigation through internal
operations and use of electricity from renewable resources
in our own operations, GHG emissions from Munich Re-
owned buildings and means of transportation (for business
travel), and energy consumption from non-renewable
sources in internal operations. The resulting GHG emissions
from our internal operations can potentially have a negative
impact on climate change. We can make a potentially
positive contribution to the climate and ecosystems by
reducing emissions and switching to renewable energy. We
can take direct responsibility for our own operations with
regard to reducing GHG emissions, including energy
procurement, which is not the case for insurance business
or for investments. However, compared with our investment
and insurance business, Munich Re's own operations have
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a significantly lower potential influence on mitigating
climate change due to the lower GHG emissions involved.
As Munich Re is a service provider, the consumption of
energy and resources in our own operations arises primarily
within the office premises and during business travel. The
Munich Re Group Ambition 2025 climate strategy takes
these aspects into consideration in its targets. Our goal is
to make a positive contribution towards the requirements
set out in the Paris Agreement.

Implementing the strategy and target-achievement actions
takes place at Group level in the respective divisional units,
and locally. The function of the Group environmental
manager is located in the ESP central unit, which reports
directly to the Chair of the Board of Management. To
ensure clear responsibilities for target achievement,
consistent reporting and an exchange of best practices
within the Group, a hub structure for environmental
management at Group, field of business and local level

has been established for reinsurance, MEAG and ERGO.

In terms of our own operations, the Munich Re Group
Ambition 2025 climate strategy considers the direct
climate impact of our own GHG emissions from our
operational business processes. The material climate-
related impacts in our own operations were identified

and assessed in the materiality assessment (see > General
information > Management of sustainability-related
impacts, risks and opportunities > Description of the
process for identifying and assessing material sustainability-
related impacts, risks and opportunities). Scope 1, 2 and 3
GHG emissions from our own operations were analysed to
identify both current and potential future sources of GHG
emissions. We record self-generated emissions and the
related direct consumption of energy in scope 1. This
includes emissions resulting from the use of gas, emergency
power generators, the consumption of self-generated
renewable energy and the use of company cars. Scope 2
emissions are generated by purchased energy — electricity
as well as district heating and cooling. Under scope 3, we
record emissions for paper and water consumption, waste
generation and business travel (excluding business trips
with company cars). The goal of this assessment is to develop
well-founded measures to reduce emissions and minimise
negative climate effects. We believe that, both currently
and for the future, we have only a limited influence on our
internal operations with moderate environmental impacts.
The reason is that office operations and the associated
consumption of resources are dependent, among other
things, on factors that we cannot influence, such as external
temperatures, which determine our need for heat and
cooling in the offices. When it comes to energy, we achieve
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material positive impacts by switching from conventional
to renewable energy, which we primarily procure from
external providers for our business operations. Switching
to electricity from renewable energy sources or purchasing
renewable energy certificates reduces our net GHG
emissions from power consumption.

Actions

To mitigate climate change, our energy-related climate
protection actions in our own operations focus on the use
of renewable energy. We also strive to reduce our total
consumption of energy and resources, including water and
paper, to reduce waste and to encourage environmentally
responsible forms of business travel.

For all fully consolidated companies with staff and their
locations that are in the scope of our Munich Re Group
Ambition 2025 climate strategy for our own operations,
and included in quantitative reporting, we are successively
switching energy procurement to renewable energy sources.
This shift is a key decarbonisation lever for us. By 2025, we
want to switch to 100% energy from renewable sources for
these companies and their locations by procuring electricity
from renewable energy sources directly from power utilities,
by purchasing corresponding renewable energy certificates
and by generating our own energy. Energy consumption by
companies not involved in the quantitative reporting
process is extrapolated, and the resulting GHG emissions
are included in the total calculation. In addition, Munich Re
voluntarily buys carbon credits in the amount of the
calculated emissions, and cancels them. Further information
and the procedure we follow are detailed under > Metrics
and targets.

As outlined, switching to electricity from renewable sources is
an important field of action with regard to scope 2 emissions.
Furthermore, as part of our actions to cut emissions, our
employees are sensitised to contribute to the reduction of
emissions through their behaviour. We also prefer
environmentally friendly alternatives for business travel and
are increasingly using environmentally friendly rail travel
and electric vehicles. In addition, the careful use of resources
such as water and paper as well as waste reduction is being
implemented at site level, which helps reduce scope 3
emissions, for example by using reusable containers in our
staff catering.

The actions for which we have not adopted any dedicated
budgets accompany our actions to achieve our strategic
objectives, as defined in our Munich Re Group Ambition
2025 climate strategy.
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Many actions are subject to external reviews in the course
of implementing environmental management. In 2024,
47.2% of staff included in the scope of reporting were
involved in a DIN ISO 14001 or Eco Management and Audit
Scheme (EMAS)-certified environmental management
system that systematically monitors and assesses the
implementation of applicable environmental criteria in
operations. Due to a broader scope of reporting as a result
of the ESRS requirements, a year-on-year comparison will
only be possible as of the 2025 reporting year.

Metrics and targets

In its climate strategy, the Munich Re Group set out that
GHG emissions from our own operations would be reduced
by 12% per employee by 2025 in relation to the 2019 base
year (2.5 t COze per employee). The reduction relates to
GHG emissions from our own direct and indirect energy
consumption (scope 1 and 2), as well as selected scope 3
emissions from, for example, our consumption of paper and
water, as well as from waste generation and business travel.
We will also provide financial support for climate change
mitigation actions this year that will lead to the reduction
and storage of GHG emissions in the same quantity as our
emissions from our own operations. The Munich Re Group
Ambition 2025 climate strategy set the target of net zero
for our operations by 2030. According to the plan from the
year 2020, it was envisaged that Munich Re's GHG neutrality
would be gradually replaced by GHG net zero. Because the
regulatory environment is currently changing rapidly with
regard to the definition of the terms “GHG neutrality” and
“GHG net zero”, we decided to stop using these terms in
the context of our Munich Re Group Ambition 2025 climate
strategy in connection with our own operations.

Various IPCC scenarios from 2018 were considered and
discussed in the course of developing the Munich Re Group
Ambition 2025 climate strategy. Ultimately, we defined the
specific emissions reduction target of 12% per employee for
our own operations, based on an estimate of the potential.
The targets for 2025 were not defined separately for
scopes 1to 3. The calculated reduction in GHG emissions
is distributed across scope 1, 2 and 3. Determination of the
target is based on the market-based methodology for scope 2.
The target applies to the emissions of the fully consolidated
companies with staff.

One of the key levers for executing the Munich Re Group
Ambition 2025 climate strategy is the switch to renewable
energy sources. As actions are implemented at the local
level, the switch from conventional energy to energy from
renewable sources has proven itself empirically to be an
effective mechanism for reducing emissions.

In the following section, we disclose the environmental
metrics for our own operations for the reporting year, in
accordance with the scope of ESRS reporting. In the scope
of our quantitative reporting in 2024, we included data on
companies whose staff constitute 83.8% of the overall
number of employees in the scope of ESRS reporting. This
data was then used as a basis to extrapolate the figures to
100% of all staff in the ESRS reporting scope.
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With regard to our own operations, we record our GHG
emissions from direct and indirect energy consumption
(scope 1and 2), as well as significant scope 3 emissions
such as those associated with paper and water consumption,
waste generation and business travel. Other emissions
sources were classified as not significant and are therefore
not reported. We used three criteria to identify the significant
scope 3 categories. The focus in this regard was on the
criterion of size. The criteria “relevance for stakeholders”
and “ability to influence” were also considered.

ESRS reporting on own operations included, for the first
time in 2024, all our majority-interest non-consolidated
entities with staff. Also for the first time, we took emissions
into account from our buildings that are used both for
internal purposes and by third parties (including vacant
buildings).

In addition, in 2024 scopes 1 and 2 for the first time included
building-related emissions that are caused by external users
in properties that are not classified as investments under
IFRS Accounting Standards, but that are owned by
companies that are financially controlled by the Munich Re
Group. We also record under scope 1 and 2 the emissions
from illiquid directly held investments, such as investment
properties and other assets, such as forestry and investments
in renewables, where we exercise financial control and where
no Munich Re staff work.

We record the total amount of our financed emissions for
scope 3 in Category 15 “Investments”. These are indirect
emissions that we allocate to ourselves on the basis of our
investment activities in the amount of our share of equity
or debt and where we do not have operational control. A
breakdown by asset classes in accordance with Category 15
“Investments” of the GHG Protocol can be found in the
table entitled “Financed emissions according to Category 15
‘Investments’ of the GHG Protocol”. Details of the
methodology used to calculate our financed emissions can be
found in > Investments: Management of climate change-
related impacts, risks and opportunities > Metrics and targets.

Due to the change in the scope of reporting in the 2024
reporting year in alignment with ESRS, a year-on-year
comparison will only be possible as of next reporting year.

The resulting GHG emissions are calculated in accordance
with the ESRS calculation bases. For the further calculation
of GHG emissions from our own operations, we use an
internationally recognised data management tool that uses
recognised sources selected in accordance with the GHG
Protocol as the calculation basis for GHG emissions. Primarily
consumption-based data was used for paper and water
consumption and waste. For business travel, the Munich Re
Group records the actual distances travelled and the means
of transport used. In cases where no primary data is available,
we use secondary data sources, such as cost-based
calculations. We use recognised emission factors to convert
the data into GHG emissions. All consumption data at the
local level not available at the time of reporting has been
estimated. The consumption data measured at Group level
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is extrapolated to 100% of the employees who belong to a
company in the consolidated group. All employees with an
existing employment contract at 31 December 2024 were
included.

The total energy and power consumption in the reporting
year, broken down by fossil and renewable energies in
megawatt hours (MWh), is shown in the following table.
“Total fossil energy consumption” also includes fuel
consumed by company cars.

Energy consumption and mix related to own operations
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The share of purchased electricity from renewable sources
compared with the total energy purchased by the fully
consolidated companies with staff in the Munich Re Group
that were included in the quantitative reporting was 87% in
2024 (91%); i.e. we calculate the ratio of purchased
electricity from renewable energy sources to total
purchased energy. The slight reduction compared to 2023
is due to minor changes in the regulatory requirements.
The expected reduction in 2025 is approximately 4,800 t
of GHG emissions.

Share in total

energy

2024 consumption

MWh %

Total fossil energy consumption 267,584 66.4
Total renewable energy consumption 135,640 33.6
Thereof purchased or acquired electricity from renewable sources® 128,737 31.9
Thereof self-generated, fuel-based renewable energy (biomass, biogas) 4,280 1.1
Thereof self-generated, non-fuel-based renewable energy (solar, wind) 2,623 0.7
Total energy consumption 403,224 100.0

1 Electricity actually purchased from renewable sources in MWh: 79,565.

Munich Re's energy generation from renewable sources in
MWh is broken down in the table below. This is electricity
that is generated mostly in our biogas plant or in our
photovoltaic systems. The unused quantity of self-generated
energy is fed into the grid. The amount of self-generated
energy indicated here is based on the staff covered in the
reporting (83.8%). We have not extrapolated the figure

to 100% of all staff within the scope of ESRS reporting,

in order to avoid overvaluing our own renewable energy
generation.

Renewable energy generation

2024
12,279

MWh
Total

The split between renewable and non-renewable sources of
electricity based on the approach for calculating market-
based scope 2 GHG emissions uses a conservative
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approach. Emissions are calculated using the same
hierarchy as the GHG Protocol, and we use the underlying
emission factors for electricity as follows: 1) product- or
supplier-specific contractual emission factors; 2) if these
are not available, we use factors in line with the Residual
Mixes issued by the Association of Issuing Bodies (AlB),
if applicable; 3) if these are also not available, we use
emission factors published by the International Energy
Agency (IEA). Under the market-based approach, CO,
emissions are therefore calculated taking individual energy
procurement decisions into account. In the calculation of
our total GHG emissions, the emissions from the
purchased, non-extrapolated volume of electricity from
renewable sources are included with a supplier-specific
conversion factor.

We also report our total GHG emissions using the location-
based approach. In this case, we use country-specific
emission factors from the IEA to calculate emissions from
electricity; CO2 emissions are calculated using the average
energy mix in a given region or country.
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GHG emissions in accordance with ESRS
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31.12.2024

Scope Source of emission t CO2e
Scope 1 GHG emissions 64,353
Thereof from own operations 40,561

Scope 2 GHG emissions (location-based) 133,821
Thereof from own operations 60,610

GHG emissions (market-based) 112,657

Thereof from own operations 51,111

Scope 3 GHG emissions 7,310,344
(1) Purchased goods and services (paper and water) 1,286

(5) Waste generated in operations 1,801

(6) Business travel (excluding business trips with company cars that are reported within scope 1) 23,200

(15) Investments 7,284,057

Scope 1-3 Total GHG emissions (scope 2 location-based) 7,508,517
Scope 1-3 Total GHG emissions (scope 2 market-based) 7,487,353

An explanation of Category 15 GHG emissions can
be found under > Investments: Management of climate
change-related impacts, risks and opportunities.

GHG intensity in own operations according to ESRS

The information on greenhouse gas intensity in the
following table covers total GHG emissions in our own
operations relative to the insurance revenue recorded
by the fully consolidated companies as at 31 December
2024 (€60,830m).

Scope Source of emission

GHG intensity
per €m
insurance
revenue

2024

t COze/€m

Scope 1-3 Total GHG emissions (scope 2 location-based)

2.10

Scope 1-3 Total GHG emissions (scope 2 market-based)

1.94

Munich Re publishes disclosures on absolute GHG
emissions that fall within the scope of our Munich Re
Group Ambition 2025 climate strategy for own
operations separately in the following table. The climate

GHG emissions in own operations - Munich Re Group Ambition 2025

strategy’s emission reduction target set in 2019 only
covers the staff of the fully consolidated companies.

The material positive impacts of our initiatives are already
evident today in the downward trend in our GHG emissions.

2024 Prev. year Change
Scope Source of emission t CO.e t COze %
Scope 1 GHG emissions from direct energy consumption 38,924 33,093 17.6
Thereof from business trips with company cars 9,594 10,841 -11.5
Scope 2 GHG emissions from indirect energy consumption (location-based) 37,724 38,157 -1.1
GHG emissions from indirect energy consumption (market-based) 18,320 14,249 28.6
Scope 3 GHG emissions from upstream activities 23,111 22,571 2.4
Thereof purchased goods and services (paper and water) 1,105 1,324 -16.5
Thereof waste generated in operations 1,763 1,781 -1.0

Thereof business travel (excluding business trips with company cars that are
reported within scope 1) 20,243 19,466 4.0
Scope 1-3 Total GHG emissions (scope 2 location-based) 99,759 93,821 6.3
Scope 1-3 Total GHG emissions (scope 2 market-based) 80,355 69,913 14.9
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We calculate the GHG footprint per employee from our
business activities by evaluating the annual GHG emissions
resulting from our consumption of energy, business
travel, paper, water and waste. Any consumption data
that was not yet available at the time of reporting has
been estimated. The consumption data measured is
extrapolated to 100% of the employees who had an
employment contract at the reporting date and belong
to a fully consolidated company, and therefore fall within
the scope of the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025
climate strategy for own operations. The resulting GHG
emissions are calculated based on internationally
recognised methods and conversion factors, the same
way as the emissions recorded under ESRS.

We have already surpassed our 12% reduction target
per employee and in 2024 we went on to achieve a 26%
reduction in GHG emissions per employee (approx.
18,000 t COze) compared with 2019. In the 2024 financial
year, GHG emissions from direct energy consumption
rose. This is due to a normalisation of gas consumption
compared to previous years, which more than offset

the reduction from business travel with company cars

GHG intensity in own operations — Munich Re Group Ambition 2025
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achieved by the ongoing shift to electric vehicles. The
increase in GHG emissions from indirect energy
consumption (market-based) is due to the differentiated
application of conversation factors for calculating
emissions from renewable energy sources, based on
ESRS requirements. Nevertheless, the absolute energy
consumption from electricity use by the respective fully
consolidated companies is slightly below that of the
previous year. A robust and consistent method for the
conversion of the intensity target (-12% per employee)
to an absolute emissions target is being analysed.

By increasing the proportion of electric vehicles in our
fleets (scope 1), travelling with carbon-neutral trains
(scope 3), and generally using digital communication
media instead of in-person meetings, we were able to
achieve a definite reduction in GHG emissions from
business travel in 2024 compared with the 2019 base year.

The resulting savings of scope 2 (market-based)
GHG emissions compared with the 2019 base year
were approximately 8,900 t COe in 2024.

Ambition 2025: -12% per

GHG intensity per employee employee
2024 Prev. year Change Base year2019 Change
t COze/ t COze/ t COQG/
Scope Source of emission headcount headcount % headcount %
Scope 1 GHG emissions from direct energy
consumption 0.89 0.77 15.0 1.11 -19.9
Thereof from business trips with company
cars 0.22 0.25 -13.4 0.29 -24.5
Scope 2 GHG emissions (location-based) 0.86 0.89 -3.3 1.16 -25.7
GHG emissions (market-based) 0.42 0.33 25.5 0.69 -39.4
Scope 3 GHG emissions from upstream activities 0.53 0.53 -0.2 0.68 -22.7
Thereof purchased goods and services
(paper and water) 0.03 0.03 -19.4 0.04 -40.5
Thereof waste generated in operations 0.04 0.04 -4.8 0.07 -42.9
Thereof business travel (excluding
business trips with company cars that are
reported within scope 1) 0.46 0.46 1.5 0.57 -18.9
Scope 1-3 Total GHG emissions (scope 2 location-
based) 2.28 2.19 3.9 2.95 -22.8
Scope 1-3 Total GHG emissions (scope 2 market-
based) 1.83 1.63 12.2 2.48 -26.1

The Munich Re Group uses real consumption data to
record the emissions of most of its employees. Even if we
cannot achieve 100% real-time data coverage, we strive to
continuously improve the informational value of our data,
e.g. by increasing its granularity and quality. Accordingly,
we have introduced a comprehensive internal control
system, we train local data collectors and reviewers, and we
maintain an ongoing dialogue with them to improve data
collection at the locations. The roles and responsibilities of
the individuals at site, segment and Group level have been
defined. All data is recorded in a database that supports
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collection of the data and performs largely automated
calculations.

For the emissions accounted for in the Munich Re Group
Ambition 2025 climate strategy, Munich Re acquires carbon
credits in the amount of the disclosed CO, emissions from
our own operations and cancels them. In doing so and thus
providing financial support to certified climate change
mitigation projects, we want to help achieve international
climate targets. This includes credits that have already
been acquired as well as those which have been bindingly
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and irrevocably negotiated and which we will receive by
2025. Credits corresponding to 66,512 t CO2e were cancelled
in financial year 2024 - of which 41,260 t COe in February
2024 that we allocated to 2023; credits equivalent to
27,000 t COze were cancelled later in 2024, which we
allocated to 2024. We have reserved 147,254 t worth of
carbon credits outside our value chain for possible
cancellation by the time of reporting on the year 2025. As
at February 2025, at the time of reporting on the year 2024,
of that figure, credits for 52,710 t CO-e had already been
cancelled, which we allocated to 2024. The quantity of
carbon credits cancelled as at February 2025 therefore
corresponds to the emissions from our own operations in
2024 that are covered by the Munich Re Group Ambition

Carbon credits from climate change mitigation projects
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2025 climate strategy. The purchase of carbon credits for
emissions generated in financial year 2024 is based on
existing contractual arrangements.

Offsets from carbon credits have no influence on the
achievement of our self-imposed emission reduction
targets, as they are not factored or calculated into these
targets, and Munich Re implements emission reduction
actions independently of this. When selecting carbon
credits, we place value on internationally recognised
certification standards such as the Gold Standard. In
addition, cancelled carbon credits are recorded in a
corresponding central register. In this way, we try to
ensure that the credits we purchase are of high quality.

2024

Total amount of carbon credits cancelled outside the value chain tCOze 68,260
Share from removal projects % 10.0
Thereof Gold Standard % 77.1
Thereof other standards % 22.9
Share from reduction projects % 90.0
Thereof Gold Standard % 100.0
Thereof other standards % 0.0
Share from projects within the EU % 0.0
Share from carbon credits that qualify as corresponding adjustments under Article 6 of the Paris Agreement % 0.0

Biodiversity and ecosystems

Investments: Management of impacts on
biodiversity and ecosystems

Strategy

Indications of the loss of biodiversity have heightened
awareness of this topic in the corporate world. According
to the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC),
there is a close correlation between climate change and
biodiversity.

For that reason, the integration of sustainability criteria in
our investment decisions increasingly also considers the
protection of biodiversity and the avoidance or mitigation
of negative impacts on ecosystems, among others through
land use and habitat change, pollution, the use and
exploitation of natural resources, and invasive species.

The materiality assessment considers impacts that are
directly linked to our own operations or value chain. A
material impact from our investments was identified in the
case of investments in sectors that potentially contribute
to the loss of biodiversity and ecosystem changes. This can
relate to land degradation, desertification and soil sealing as

drivers of the changes, and can impact endangered species.
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The time horizon of the impacts differs depending on the
industrial sector in which we invest. Impacts from our
direct alternative investments can occur during the entire
life cycle. This being the case, the focus is on long-term
investments in industries that can directly impact the
condition of ecosystems. Another insight from the assessment
was that we do not currently have sufficient data available
for liquid assets, and therefore this investment universe is
not a focus.

In the context of biodiversity, Munich Re focuses on illiquid
assets due to their long-term investment horizon and
underlying comprehensive due diligence. Our focus is on
direct infrastructure, direct forestry and agriculture
investments, as well as on directly held investment property
(alternative investments) where we hold a majority interest.
These are long-term investments whose impact on the
condition of ecosystems can be subject to targeted analysis
because sufficient data is available.

Our portfolio assessment therefore focuses on the
geographical location of the asset as well as the sectors
being invested in. We have chosen a location-based
approach that specifically targets natural or mixed World
Heritage sites (in accordance with the definition in the
UNESCO World Heritage Convention), Natura 2000 areas
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as well as important biodiversity sites and other protected
areas. Our existing exclusion criteria currently relate

to natural or mixed UNESCO World Heritage sites. The
exclusion means that there are no direct alternative
investments in the critical industries specified under

> Actions, in which we hold a majority interest and which
are — or a material portion thereof is - situated in a natural
or mixed UNESCO World Heritage site. The criteria are set
out in detail in our Responsible Investment Guideline (RIG).

The RIG contains criteria for certified forestry and for
protecting natural or mixed UNESCO World Heritage sites.
Beyond this, we have not adopted any practices or policies
for sustainable land use and agriculture, for sustainable
oceans/seas or to address deforestation, nor have we
incorporated local and indigenous knowledge or nature-
based solutions.

Actions

To reduce negative impacts on biodiversity-sensitive areas,
we have defined the following mitigation measures: we do
not make any direct alternative majority investments in
critical industries if a material portion of the underlying asset
is directly located in a natural or mixed World Heritage site.
Critical industries are defined as the metal industry,
mining/coal mining/oil and gas (especially upstream),
construction materials, agricultural products (meat, poultry
and dairy), engineering and construction services, suppliers
and generators of electricity (utilities — including
hydropower), seaports and services, forestry, chemicals and
biofuels. As a result, we do not make any new investments
that significantly affect natural or mixed UNESCO World
Heritage sites.

Sustainability and biodiversity risks are also assessed in the
due diligence process. Experts from MEAG and Munich Re
address such risks through direct inquiries, on-site visits,
online research and, if available, data from external data
providers. MEAG has developed an ESG evaluation template
to assess the requirements. This template contains a list of
questions that are associated with increased ESG risks and
indicates activities and sectors where we must act particularly
carefully in relation to biodiversity risks.

The questions in the ESG evaluation template focus in
particular on the following:

- Does the investment activity negatively impact
biodiversity?
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- Is the site in or within ten kilometres of a natural or mixed
World Heritage site as defined in the report by the World
Database on Protected Areas?

- Are there species threatened by extinction on the Red List
of the International Union for Conservation of Nature
(IUCN) whose habitats lie within the areas impacted by
the site?

Analyses from the ESG evaluation template and statutory
environmental standards, such as environmental impact
assessments, are used as the basis for investment
decisions so that we can help protect relevant biodiversity
areas. Categorisation using a traffic light system
(green/amber/red) in the ESG evaluation ensures that
the assessment of potential or actual impacts is part of
the MEAG investment process.

In the case of indirect alternative investments (e.g. funds,
private equity) and investments via non-Group asset
managers, Munich Re has limited transparency and ability
to exert influence as regards the restrictions described
above. It is planned to include the restrictions in the fund
documentation (e.g. side letters) as standard; in exceptional
cases, the criteria may be waived. If this is the case,
Munich Re may still choose to invest if the counterparty
provides solid reasons in writing as to why the exclusion
is not possible, its policy on biodiversity, or explanations
on their general approach to biodiversity that meet our
standards.

Beyond the legal requirements, there is generally no
application of compensation measures as part of our
aforementioned assessment processes and actions.

Metrics and targets

We have not set any targets in connection with avoiding
negative impacts on biodiversity and ecosystems. We
currently work with the ESG evaluation template and
exclusions. We are not planning any such targets at

the present time, and cannot comment on when we will
publish any.

The disclosure requirements on impact metrics in
connection with biodiversity and ecosystems change (E4-
5) are only relevant for our own operations. Nevertheless,
we have addressed company-specific metrics due to the
material impact of our investments on the topic of
biodiversity in connection with our investment activity.

To determine entity-specific metrics, existing direct
alternative investments are subjected to a location-based
screening, whereby tools driven by geolocation data are used
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to identify the proximity of the investments to biodiversity-
sensitive areas. In the standard process, the investment
sites are screened for the following classifications:

- Natura 2000 network of protected areas (Europe only)

- Natural or mixed UNESCO World Heritage sites

- Key biodiversity areas

- Other protected areas in accordance with Appendix D =
Common Database on Designated Areas (CDDA)
provided by the European Environment Agency.

Infrastructure investments are analysed by an external
specialist on the basis of available geo-coordinates and
documentation. Their analysis identifies whether the
investment is located in or near one of the biodiversity-
sensitive areas listed above.

Any such infrastructure investments are subjected to a
further assessment, which requires the project planner to
confirm that there are no negative impacts on biodiversity.
This is generally established by performing an environmental
impact assessment. When the results of this assessment
become available, the mitigation measures to be taken are
documented and the project planner must confirm that all
measures have been implemented and are still in place. In
such cases, the asset is not disclosed in the following table.
In the event that mitigation measures cannot be implemented
or no environmental report has been prepared, the investment
is put on a watch list and disclosed in the table along with
the number of hectares occupied by the asset in question.

The following special attributes apply to the metrics
reported for infrastructure projects:

- For negative impacts from the transportation of goods or
persons by water, it is not possible to report figures for
the size (area) of the site. Accordingly, only the number of
sites of such investments are reported in the table, with
no figures for the area in hectares.

- For a majority of the investments, the analysis process
outlined above is carried out by a specialist external
consultant. For investments not assessed in this way,
an analysis is performed internally using the Integrated
Biodiversity Assessment Tool (IBAT) to determine their
proximity to biodiversity-sensitive areas. Currently we do
not have any confirmations of the actual negative impacts
or information about the size (area) of the site for such
investments. Accordingly, the same applies to these
investments that only the number of sites are reported
in the table, with no figures for the area in hectares.
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- In the case of investments for which the coordinates are
not available and could not be obtained from the project
planner, no analysis is performed and thus neither the
number of sites nor hectares are reported.

In the case of direct forestry and agriculture investments,
the analysis is carried out by internal experts using a
geographic information system. Their analysis reveals
whether the sites of agriculture/forestry investments are
located in or near one of the biodiversity-sensitive areas
listed above. No assessment is currently performed as to
whether the investments have a negative impact on the
biodiversity-sensitive areas; appropriate methodology is
still being developed. Moreover, it is currently only possible
to disclose the number of hectares of the overall portfolio,
not of the individual sites. The number of hectares has
therefore not been reported.

As regards real estate, an assessment of the first three

of the biodiversity-sensitive areas referred to above
(Natura 2000 network of protected areas [Europe only],
natural or mixed UNESCO World Heritage sites and key
biodiversity areas) is conducted for the analysis of directly
held investment property. No assessment is currently
performed as to whether the investments have a negative
impact on the biodiversity-sensitive (CDDA) areas;
appropriate methodology is still being developed. For
investments that are located in or near to the three areas
referred to above, but for which no information on the size
(area) of the sites is available in the system, only the
number of sites are reported, with no figures for the area
in hectares.

The following table shows the number of direct alternative
majority investments located in or near such areas,

and the size of these investments in hectares (total area
of relevant assets/sites). The radius used to determine

if investments are located near to these areas varies
depending on the asset class. For direct infrastructure
investments and direct forestry and agriculture
investments, we apply a radius of ten kilometres, and for
directly held investment property, a radius of one kilometre.
The smaller radius is based on the assumption that the
only potential impacts a building in our portfolio has are
on its immediate surroundings, which is why the radius
for this asset class has been reduced. Taking into account
the methods and limitations to calculating the entity-
specific metrics outlined above, the following table contains
disclosures for direct alternative infrastructure, forestry
and agriculture investments and directly held investment
property.

Sites located in or near biodiversity-sensitive areas that are potentially impacted or whose impact has not been assessed

Number of

Hectares sites

31.12.2024  31.12.2024

Total 185 52
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Social information
Human rights and working conditions

Human rights: Management of impacts

Strategy

During the materiality assessment, material impacts were
identified which potentially affect human rights, in
investments as well as our own workforce. With regard to
investment activities, potential negative impacts relating
to human rights in the value chain through business
relationships were identified as material. For example, in
the case of investments in countries or companies, human
rights violations may be identified in connection with the
activities, relating to the local population or employees of
the investee (workers in the value chain). At the same time,
local communities may be affected by human rights
violations relating to the investee's activities. Potentially
impacted stakeholders are actors in the downstream value
chain with which Munich Re is directly or indirectly
connected via investments, e.g. the employees of an investee
or impacted communities, as, for example, in the case of
infrastructure projects.

In connection with human rights in our own workforce,
potentially material negative impacts are to be considered
in the case of any non-compliance with legal and company
requirements. These may occur in the course of Munich Re's
own internal operations, and include potential incidents and
violations in the application of local labour law, or related to
equality and integration in any form.

There is no direct link to our strategy or business model.
Since violations can only occur due to misconduct by
individual employees, and no systematic violations have
been identified, no impact on our business model or strategy
can be derived.

The protection of human rights is a particular obligation, one
that we strive to meet in line with internationally accepted
human rights principles. It is part and parcel of our

approach to corporate governance, our definition of which

includes economic, environmental, and social requirements.

Munich Re’s goal is to identify risks relating to human
rights violations at an early stage and to minimise them as
far as possible within our sphere of influence. Our human
rights strategy therefore comprises a range of preventive
measures with which we endeavour to manage our risks
relating to human rights in advance. We strive to pursue
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a holistic approach and to have an overview of all relevant
human rights topics. Our actions are regularly reviewed,
updated and adopted as part of our ESG governance. The
Board of Management and Supervisory Board are involved
in the general strategy relating to human rights and

are informed where appropriate about our stakeholders’
interests and needs in the area of human rights.

To implement the strategy described above and prevent the
impacts that were identified as material, the Munich Re
Group has adopted a range of guidelines and strategies
relating to respecting human and labour rights. All
applicable guidelines and standards have been published in
the respective Munich Re companies’ online internal media.

The Board of Management has issued a declaration to
respect and protect human rights for the Munich Re Group
that also addresses the stakeholders (potentially) impacted
by our business, such as our own workforce, workers in the
value chain and affected communities, without being
limited to any specific groups. This declaration underscores
Munich Re’'s commitment to human rights, as defined in
the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights,
in the International Bill of Human Rights and in the
Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights of the
International Labour Organization (ILO). The guideline
documents the fundamental requirements for respecting
human rights and describes how human rights risks are
managed in our business activities, with the goal of
creating a common understanding and foundation for
protecting human rights in the Group long term. In this
regard, we strive to continuously improve the guideline
and the related due diligence processes, and to expand

our risk assessment.

We have defined the following human rights as relevant for
our business model. They were derived from (international)
frameworks or statutory requirements, e.g. from the
International Labour Organization, the UN Universal
Declaration of Human Rights, or the German Supply Chain
Due Diligence Act (LkSG):

- The right to healthy, safe and dignified working
conditions; this includes a prohibition of the worst forms
of child and forced labour, modern slavery and human
trafficking, guaranteed freedom of movement of migrant
workers, the right to payment of a living wage, a limit on
working hours, the right to health and safety at work, and
a prohibition from disregarding the freedom of
association.
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- The right to equality and non-discrimination means that
no discrimination on the grounds of disability, age,
gender, ethnic origin, nationality, sexual identity, political
views, race, religion or similar aspects, no sexual or other
personal harassment, and no offensive behaviour will be
tolerated.

- Further, we do not tolerate socially inappropriate
behaviour, intimidation, violence or the threat of violence.

- The right to adequate living conditions protects the
habitats of local communities and/or indigenous peoples
and tries to protect them from environmental hazards
and prevent or reduce the negative health impacts of such
hazards.

We have also published a statement signed by the Board of
Management on the UK Modern Slavery Act every year
since 2017, and since 2021 we have issued a declaration
under the Australian Modern Slavery Act as well. By doing
so, we are pursuing the goal of creating transparency about
our value chain and any human rights violations in it, as
well as about our processes, so that we can monitor them
and mitigate them through suitable measures.

We are also signatories to the UN Global Compact and
have committed ourselves to the following principles:

- Promoting and protecting internationally recognised
human rights within our scope of activity

- Taking precautionary measures designed to prevent
Munich Re from contributing to human rights violations,
for example human trafficking

- Upholding the freedom of association and the effective
recognition of the right to collective bargaining

- Supporting the elimination of any kind of forced or child
labour

- Helping to put an end to discrimination in hiring and
employment.

Our principles can also be found in the Group-wide Code
of Conduct for suppliers, although our materiality
assessment did not identify any material impacts, risks

or opportunities relating to human rights regarding our
suppliers (see > General information > Strategy > Impacts,
risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy
and business model).

Investments

In addition, Munich Re’s GIM unit considers whether there
are potential impacts on human rights, for example with
regard to workers in the value chain or affected communities.
If any impacts are identified, they are classified either as
widespread and systemic or as isolated instances, and thus
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excluded from investment or monitored accordingly,
depending on such classification. The existence of such
impacts is continuously reviewed, for example in the
context of the due diligence process described below,

to counter the risk that our investment business may

be linked to countries or companies that are problematic
from a human rights perspective.

In the investment context, the connections to the potentially
affected stakeholders in the value chain (including affected
communities) are merely indirect. As a result, those
stakeholders are not analysed in any greater detail for
particular characteristics (e.g. specific types of human rights
violations, such as child labour, in geographical areas that
are particularly at risk.) We see our responsibility as lying in
continuous human rights-related screening activities and,
if necessary, in corresponding follow-up actions relating to
our investments.

Human rights criteria are enforced in the investment
strategy for our own investments in the form of our
Responsible Investment Guideline (RIG). The goal of the
RIG is to stipulate responsible standards and ESG
requirements as a framework for investment activities,
including restrictions in connection with human rights
concerns that must be observed in investments and can
relate, for example, to affected communities and workers in
the value chain. It includes a clearly defined due diligence
process for the human rights concerns described above,
which includes a Group-wide risk analysis on the basis of
external data. These requirements and processes prohibit
investments in companies/countries with severe human
rights violations. The RIG applies to all companies in the
Munich Re Group with licences for primary insurance and
reinsurance, and for the internal asset managers (MEAG
AMG, Munich Re Investment Partners). Our exclusions
for direct investments must also be applied by all external
asset managers. In the case of indirect investments,
compliance with this requirement cannot be fully ensured.

Strategic decisions on sustainability with regard to
investments are taken by the Board of Management's ESG
Committee, supported by the ESG Management Team. In
addition, the ESG Investment Committee specifically
focuses on implementing the ESG strategy with regard to
our investments.

Internal operations

Respecting the human rights of our own workforce as well
is an important component of our aforementioned corporate
governance approach. In potential cases of incidents or
violations (see the metrics at the end of this section), we
examine the extent to which widespread or systemic
negative impacts exist for our own workforce or whether
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these are isolated instances. To date, no specific activities
have come to light in which our employees were exposed to
practices giving rise to human rights concerns, such as child
or forced labour. The examination of material impacts did
not identify any persons who have particular characteristics,
work in particular environments or perform particular
activities that could expose them to a greater extent. This
was based on a survey of Munich Re HR experts with
knowledge of groups potentially at particular risk (e.g.
based on the analysis of reported incidents of discrimination).
The identified impacts on our own workforce do not relate to
any particular group or persons (e.g. particular age groups).

In addition to the Board of Management's declaration to
respect and protect human rights referred to above, our
Group-wide Code of Conduct, which is binding for all
employees, embodies our shared understanding of the
value of respecting human rights (see > Working
conditions). This expressly sets out that Munich Re rejects
all forms of slavery, discrimination in recruitment and
employment, child labour, degrading working conditions,
and other violations of human rights. The Code of Conduct
stipulates human rights in accordance with the international
frameworks described above.

Actions

To manage human rights-related impacts, we incorporate
the interests and views of our stakeholders in a variety of
ways. On the one hand, with our Human Rights Officers for
the Munich Re Group and the ERGO Group, we have
created positions that consider the interests of affected
stakeholders. On the other hand, workers in the value chain
or affected communities, for example, can contact us via
the channels described below, among others, with regard
to human rights matters. We also address their interests
and views in the context of the materiality assessment, in
which internal representatives assess actual and potential
material impacts of Munich Re that also include impacts
on these stakeholder groups.

Since there is only an indirect connection to the affected
stakeholders (including affected communities) in the
investment area, there is no direct engagement and no
collaboration with them.

We have taken actions both in our internal operations and
in investments to steer our decision-making with regard to
human rights. This enables us to minimise risks and
negative impacts with respect to human rights violations.

Human rights due diligence

With the aim of preventing or mitigating potentially negative
impacts of our business activities on the protection of
human rights - e.g. for our own workforce, or for workers in
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the value chain or affected communities in terms of our
investments — we have established a due diligence process
in order to identify risks of human rights violations and
counter them with suitable actions. For the Munich Re Group,
the process components listed below are continuously
revised, reviewed and, if necessary, extended.

- Management commitment to comply with human rights;

- Appointment of a Human Rights Officer for the Munich Re
Group and for the ERGO Group;

- Structured identification and assessment of human rights
risks by the Human Rights Officers;

- Implementation of measures and monitoring;

- Annual reporting and communication;

- Support and grievance mechanism.

Whistleblowing channels

Staff and external whistleblowers can use the Munich Re,
ERGO and MEAG whistleblowing portals to report possible
or actual human rights violations. If a human rights violation
by Munich Re, ERGO, MEAG or a third party attributable to
them is reported or we otherwise learn of one, the dedicated
compliance units for Munich Re, ERGO or MEAG will
investigate. Every potential case is investigated in accordance
with a procedure set out in internal guidelines. If we learn
of human rights violations in our business relationships or
value chain, a decision on appropriate and effective remedial
action is taken.

Whistleblowers can access our portal 24/7 worldwide, via
our intranet or the publicly accessible websites. This allows
relevant information to be shared securely, confidentially
and, on request, anonymously. Reports of potential human
rights violations that reach us via other channels (e.g. email)
are handled using the same principles and processes.

In the event of increasing risks or specific indications of
potential human rights violations that are either revealed

by our own monitoring or that we receive through our
whistleblower portal or other channels, we examine the
matter carefully, enter into dialogue with the affected
parties if appropriate, and launch the necessary preventive
or mitigation measures to avoid, terminate or mitigate the
violation in question. In line with our governance processes,
the Reputational Risk Committees (RRC) and the ESG
Management Team are involved in the decision, depending
on the severity of the violation. Our whistleblower system is
reviewed at regular intervals and expanded if necessary
(e.g. in relation to a potential user group). Information on
further actions relating to issues giving rise to human rights
concerns, such as data security and protection of
whistleblowers, can be found under > Governance information
> Corporate governance and compliance > Information
security, as well as under > Compliance and > Data protection.
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Investments

As a preventive measure in the area of investments, we
maintain an exclusion list of companies with which, due to
confirmed substantial human rights violations, we choose
not to do business. For this purpose, the list of companies
which we want to exclude from our investments is
maintained in a multi-stage process based on information
from external data providers. This list is regularly reviewed,
updated and adopted as part of our ESG governance.
Government bonds (including the sub-sovereign level) and
bonds from government-related institutions rated CCC on
the MSCI ESG Rating scale are excluded under the RIG
requirements due to high risks related to socio-economic
or political factors. Exclusions also apply to these asset
classes if, on the basis of a specific country rating for
human rights, their risk exposure is extreme. If their risk
exposure is high, the portfolios of assets in question are
monitored. Application of the exclusion lists for direct
investments is mandatory for our asset managers. In the
case of indirect investments, compliance with this
requirement cannot be fully ensured. We have integrated
human rights into our due diligence process for our direct
alternative investment activities, particularly for the asset
classes of investments in infrastructure, forestry and
agriculture, and directly held real estate.

As a responsible investor, we also support the international
conventions addressing controversial weapons (including
but not limited to the weapon categories of anti-personnel
mines and cluster munition), and exclude any direct
investment in listed equities or bonds from companies who
are verifiably involved in controversial weapons.

In the event of rising risks or concrete evidence of potential
human rights violations that is either identified in the course
of our monitoring or reaches us via our whistleblowing
channels, we carefully review the facts and initiate the
preventive or remedial measures needed in order to avoid,
end or mitigate the violation in question. Our Human Rights
Officers regularly monitor and, if necessary, update our
human rights strategy and risk management process. Their
findings are reported to the Board of Management. As no
actual severe human rights violations have yet been identified,
it has not been necessary to take any mitigation measures
to date. The effectiveness of our actions relating to
investments is reflected in the number of identified cases
of severe human rights violations and incidents in the value
chain shown below.

The material impacts are managed by the appointed
Human Rights Officers; the relevant units such as Group
Investment Management also implement the stipulated
measures.
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Own workforce

As an employer, we undertake to comply with international
human rights standards and to provide adequate working
conditions for our staff. For this reason, we also conducted
a risk analysis and assessment in the 2024 financial year in
order to identify human rights risks within our own
workforce. We assess potential human rights risks and, if
necessary, take action to prevent them. We conduct the risk
analysis once a year or in response to significant changes.

A comprehensive top-down company-specific risk analysis
was performed with regard to our own employees. To do
this, the risk factors from an external data provider were used
for the following human rights risks per country within the
insurance sector: “Freedom rights” (child labour, slavery,
human trafficking and forced labour [Section 2 (2) No. 1-4
of the LkSG] and “Working conditions” (occupational health
and safety, freedom of association, discrimination & living
wages [Section 2 (2) No. 5-8 of the LkSG)]. Following the
top-down analysis, certain countries are given priority
because they constitute a greater human rights risk. Any
business units or legal entities based there are then
subjected to a broader bottom-up analysis, which considers
the relevant human rights and any measures that are
implemented within HR to ensure that human rights are
respected. This approach is set out in work instructions both
in reinsurance and at ERGO. Further details on working
conditions can be found under > Working conditions.

At ERGO, a comprehensive and specific bottom-up risk
analysis for 117 companies in the ERGO Group was initially
performed in 2023, and complemented by a further
analysis of selected companies in 2024. More detailed
information can be found in the separate LkSG reporting
for the ERGO Group.

Our Code of Conduct explicitly states that Munich Re does
not tolerate any discrimination. In Germany, we have set up
an official department for complaints as provided for in
Section 13 of the General Equal Treatment Act (AGG).
Further information on how we respect the human rights of
our employees, e.g. on diversity, equity, inclusion and other
aspects, can be found under > Working conditions.

In the case of our own workforce, we have taken additional
actions in connection with human rights, including enforcing
mandatory training, for example on complying with the
Code of Conduct, in order to prevent any and all forms of
discrimination, workplace harassment or potential human
rights violations. Additional information on how we work with
our staff, especially when it comes to diversity, equity and
inclusion, is presented under > Working conditions > Diversity,
equity and inclusion.
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An escalation process for reporting incidents is clearly
defined, and complaints offices have been established that
deal with cases of discrimination and, if necessary, initiate
countermeasures and provide solutions. Further details
can be found under > Governance information > Corporate
governance and compliance > Compliance.

All actions relating to human rights are understood as
continuous and are therefore subject to our long-term
planning. There are no additional concrete action plans.

Metrics and targets

The channels and actions described above serve to identify
human rights violations. We report on relevant indicators for
human rights aspects in the following.

Indicators in the value chain

The effectiveness of our efforts relating to the material
impacts of our investments on the topic of human rights is
tracked using the metric “Number of identified cases of
severe human rights violations and incidents in the value
chain”. This metric shows the number of human rights
violations that were recorded, validated and classified as
severe in connection with investments in the financial year.
The metric covers government bonds and bonds issued by
government-related institutions in countries, as well as
listed equities and corporate bonds in the direct portfolio
(excluding third-party investments). If we discover, for example
during the regular updating of the exclusion lists, that the
portfolio contains an investment in a company with severe
human rights issues, and no remedial measures such as
divestment are undertaken within six months of the discovery,
then such a case would be reported in the metric. Cases
that became known in the previous financial year but are
still ongoing are shown again in the current financial year.

No cases of severe human rights violations or incidents in

the value chain relating to investments were recorded in
financial year 2024.

Incidents and complaints
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There are no specific, time-related targets for human rights
incidents in the value chain, as our approach is generally

to avoid participating in a business where any allegations
of human rights violations have been made. There are no
plans to change this in subsequent years. We assess the
effectiveness of our strategies and actions relating to the
identified potential impacts through close monitoring of

all channels and the systematic appraisal of indicators of
potential human rights violations.

Indicators in our own workforce

The effectiveness of our efforts relating to material impacts
on the topic of human rights for our own workforce is
tracked using a variety of metrics (see the table “Incidents
and complaints”). On the one hand, we report on reported
cases of discrimination, including harassment. The
confirmed incidents at the Group companies are compiled
quarterly by Munich Re’'s Compliance unit. These cases are
based on reports from the whistleblower channels, where
an incident has been confirmed. The metric shows how
many cases of discrimination and harassment relating to our
own workforce occurred in the financial year. The metric
covers all employees who have employment contracts with
Munich Re Group companies. Cases that became known in
the previous financial year but are still ongoing are shown
again in the current financial year.

Human rights-related complaints by our workforce
constitute the number of complaints that are received via
our whistleblower portal and other channels, such as via
the HR Business Partners or pool email addresses, and
which are not yet included in the metric shown above.

Of this figure, no cases were submitted via the national
contact point for OECD multinational enterprises.

There were no confirmed human rights incidents and the
recorded complaints did not lead to any fines, penalties or
compensation payments.

2024
Total number of incidents of discrimination, including harassment, in the reporting period Number 0
Total number of complaints filed through channels for raising such concerns (not including incidents of discrimination
or harassment) Number 27
Total amount of fines, penalties and compensation for damages as a result of the incidents and complaints disclosed
above € 0

No cases of severe human rights violations relating to
our own workforce were recorded in financial year 2024.
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Severe human rights violations
2024
Severe human rights violations and incidents Number 0
Total amount of fines, penalties and compensation for damages € 0

There are also no specific, time-related targets for our
own workforce, as our approach is to fundamentally avoid
potential human rights violations, i.e. to keep the figure
at zero. There are no plans to change this in subsequent
years. We assess the effectiveness of our strategies and
actions relating to the identified impacts through close
monitoring of all channels and the systematic appraisal
of indicators of potential human rights violations.

Working conditions: Management of impacts,
risks and opportunities

Strategy

As a knowledge-based company, the expertise of our staff
is the basis of Munich Re's success. Offering attractive
working conditions and promoting diversity, equity and
inclusion (DEI) are strategic success factors for Munich Re.

Our staff make a core contribution to the continued success
of the Munich Re Group. Especially in today’s continuously
shifting global environment, we view the expertise of our
staff as a strength that we preserve and further expand
through targeted support for our talent and experts. We strive
to bring together people from all over the world, to foster
their potential and to offer them a platform from which they
can flourish.

In this regard, as a leading (re)insurance group, creating
attractive working conditions for our staff while respecting
human rights (including equality in the workplace) was
deemed as having a material positive impact on the

Munich Re Group workforce. Our workforce means all staff,
including those who are self-employed or made available by
third-party companies.

Munich Re also believes it is important to have a diverse
workforce and to create the corresponding conditions,
so that it remains capable of meeting the challenges of
the future as well. Good working conditions also create
the opportunity for Munich Re to be seen as an attractive
employer for qualified staff, thus reducing the strategic
risk posed by staff turnover.

Good working conditions, for example an appropriate salary
and continuing professional and personal development
opportunities, coupled with the confidence that they will
not be discriminated against on the basis of their personal
characteristics, offer our staff an attractive working
environment. This applies equally to all groups of persons,
regardless of where they are employed in the Group. For
the self-employed and staff made available by a third-party
company for a limited time, this applies to a limited extent.
There are restrictions particularly with regard to remuneration
and training.
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Given Munich Re’s business model, qualified staff are a
key prerequisite to implementing the Company’s strategic
ambitions, which were announced in the Munich Re Group
Ambition 2025. In this context, “staff turnover risk” was
identified and included in reporting due to its strategic
relevance. By creating attractive working conditions,
Munich Re can counteract the risk posed by staff turnover.

By creating good working conditions, Munich Re is able
to retain its staff long term (low staff turnover) and recruit
well-qualified staff with a variety of skills for the future.

Especially with regard to the issue of health and safety,
employees, self-employed persons or persons provided by
third-party companies are not exposed to the same risks

as persons working in a manufacturing enterprise. We
address aspects of employee health and well-being that are
particularly important for us as a financial services provider,
in our strategic Health, Safety and Wellbeing Statement.

All employee groups working at Munich Re are affected
equally by those positive impacts and opportunities that
were identified as material. On the other hand, negative
impacts and risks can of course also arise in any company,
irrespective of its business model. These include in
particular discrimination against individual staff members
or discrimination against groups of staff members on

the basis of specific characteristics. We demand strict
compliance with our Code of Conduct and take
corresponding actions to prevent such discrimination.
For us, vulnerable groups include all under-represented
employee groups. Further information can be found
under > Diversity, equity and inclusion.

There is no risk of child or forced labour in our own
business operations at any of our locations worldwide.

The main risks for Munich Re are increased staff
dissatisfaction and turnover if the working conditions on
offer are not considered to be at least equally attractive to
those offered by other companies.

Risks in the working conditions category exist in the area
of workplace discrimination in particular, even if this were
only to occur in isolated instances. Other risks include an
excessive workload and lack of opportunities for work/life
balance, a lack of protection for the health and well-being
of our staff, inadequate salary, a lack of continuing
professional and personal development opportunities, as
well as a lack of social protection. All of these factors are
considered appropriately in our strategic human resources
decisions.
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We have embedded employee matters in our business
strategy in the context of the Munich Re Group Ambition
2025. Strategic approaches are first developed by specific
HR functions with Group-wide responsibilities, together with
the Group's Strategy department. Key strategic decisions
are submitted to the Board of Management for adoption,
and then incorporated into the HR strategies in reinsurance
and at ERGO and MEAG through policies (e.g. our Code of
Conduct) or joint projects.

The main Group-wide policy for interacting with employees
and governing staff behaviour at Munich Re is our Code

of Conduct. It is aligned with internationally recognised
standards, including the UN Guiding Principles on Business
and Human Rights.

Munich Re takes a clear stand against racism, inequality
and discrimination of any kind. Our Group-wide Code of
Conduct, which is binding for all employees, prohibits any
form of discrimination or misconduct. In particular, it
emphasises the importance of diversity, equity, inclusion,
and the health and safety of our staff.

The Code of Conduct expressly addresses grounds for
discrimination, such as ethnic origin, skin colour, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, disability, age, religion, political
opinion, nationality or socio-economic background, and
other forms of discrimination. We are clearly committed

to a zero-tolerance policy for discrimination, bullying or
harassment.

Other Group-wide policies are our declaration to respect
and protect human rights (for details, see > Human rights)
and the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Statement, which is
our declaration to create good working conditions for our
staff. Our associated actions are described in the following
sections. Preventing workplace accidents plays a
fundamentally important role for us as a company. At the
same time, as an insurer, we have relatively little exposure
to the risk of workplace accidents. For that reason, we do
not have any dedicated management system for preventing
workplace accidents, beyond our Health, Safety and
Wellbeing Statement. Further information is provided
under > Health and safety.
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Our goal is to implement our business strategies in the
Group as far as possible in the respective client, competitive
and workforce environments at ERGO, MEAG and in
reinsurance. Our operational human resources management
is closely linked to the specific requirements of the
respective fields of business and is thus explicitly
decentralised. If necessary, adjustments to central
requirements and individual solutions regarding employee
matters can be made for the fields of business.

We implement varied dialogue formats to ensure regular
dialogue with our staff members. Examples include town
hall meetings by the members of the Board of Management
in the areas for which they are responsible. In Germany, we
are in regular dialogue with the works councils on relevant
issues. Further information on our dialogue formats with
the various stakeholder groups is provided under > General
information > Strategy > Interests and views of stakeholders.

In the reporting year, we conducted a Group-wide survey to
measure sustainable employee engagement, based on nine
core questions. Our Employee Engagement Index covers
more than 39,000 employees in reinsurance and at ERGO
and MEAG. The survey results were further analysed by
gender and age groups. In addition to the nine core
questions to measure sustainable employee engagement,
each business field focused on selected business- and
strategic HR topics within their global employee surveys.

Staff members and external whistleblowers can use the
Munich Re and ERGO compliance whistleblowing portals
in a variety of languages to report potential or actual
violations of our Code of Conduct. This also applies to
human rights violations. Employees are informed of the
available reporting channels through compulsory Code of
Conduct training. The responsible compliance units
investigate any indication of negative impacts on an
employee or a potential human rights violation. The same
applies if we receive information about potential or actual
violations through other channels. Every potential case of
misconduct is investigated and resolved in accordance with
an internal process. If we learn of negative impacts in an
existing contractual relationship, we decide on appropriate
and effective mitigation measures in dialogue with the
responsible parties. Further details on our whistleblower
system can be found under > Human rights: Management
of impacts, risks and opportunities.
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Overview “Characteristics of our workforce”

The following metrics include all companies that were
identified as relevant with regard to the impacts, risks and
opportunities relating to our own workforce discussed in the
report. The assessment is based on all affiliated companies.
Overall, 47,713 employees work for Munich Re’s affiliated
companies, 45,815 of whom work for companies covered
by the present report. Reporting on the relevant companies
covers approximately 96% of the employees from all
affiliated companies. In the context of financial reporting,
only the employee data of fully consolidated companies is
reported. The number of employees at those companies
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Germany) and America. The fewest number of employees
are in the Asia, Pacific and Africa region.

More than half of our employees are women. Fewer than
1% did not provide a gender or selected “third gender”. Due
to the very small number of employees who selected the
“third gender” (fewer than 5 employees), for legal reasons
no figures are provided for certain items.

Headcount by region

amounts to 43,584. The number of employees in this report 2022
under ESRS is therefore 2,231 higher than in the financial - Number
. . Region
reporting. The number of employees at the affiliated but not Americas 7,380
consolidated companies amounts to 4,129. Asia, Pacific, Africa 4681
Germany 19,876
This report also includes Munich Reinsurance Company. Europe (excl. Germany) 13,878
Its registered seat is in Germany and it also operates branch Total employees 45,815
and representative offices with employees particularly
in China, India and Spain. Country-specific information
is provided under the applicable metrics. In addition, Headcount by gender
the focus is on Group-wide steering, and any qualitative
statements apply equally to both Munich Reinsurance 2024
Company and the Group. Number
Gender
We show the total number of persons who were employed, E;rreale 51222
as at the 31 December reporting date of the financial Third gender 72
year, at those Group companies covered under ESRS Not disclosed 13
reporting. Total employees 45,815
The number of employees includes all employees who have
an employment contract with one of the Group companies, Headcount by country
provided that the employment contract was entered into
for a period of at least three months. Apprentices, interns 2024
and working students are not included. Germany, the USA Number
and Poland each account for more than 10% of the total Country
workforce. The majority of employees are based in Germany, Germany Lehere
with more than 43%, followed by the rest of Europe (excl. USA 5471
Poland 4,587
Headcount by employment type and gender
2024
Third Not
Female Male gender disclosed Total
Number Number Number Number Number
Employees with permanent employment contract (as at 31.12.) 23,363 20,846 2 13 44,224
Employees with temporary employment contract (as at 31.12.) 885 706 0 0 1,591
Total employees (as at 31.12.) 24,248 21,552 2 13 45,815
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Headcount by employment type and region
2024
Asia,
Pacific, Europe (excl.
Africa Germany) Germany Americas Total
Number Number Number Number Number
Employees with permanent employment contract (as at 31.12.) 4,538 13,041 19,360 7,285 44,224
Employees with temporary employment contract (as at 31.12.) 143 837 516 95 1,591
Total employees (as at 31.12.) 4,681 13,878 19,876 7.380 45,815
Temporary employment contracts are those entered into Non-employees in own workforce
for a period of at least three months and for a limited term o
only.
Number
Non-employees 16,211

The number shows the number of persons in each case at
the 31 December reporting date of the financial year.

The majority of employees have permanent employment
contracts. At 6.0%, the share of temporary employment
contracts is highest in the region Europe (excl. Germany).
At 3.6%, a slightly greater share of women had temporary
employment contracts compared to men (3.3%).

Employee turnover

2024
Total number of employee departures Number 4,652
Employee turnover rate % 10.1

The total number of departures consists of natural turnover
(retirement/death of the employee) and terminations by
either the employee or employer. It also includes departures
due to the expiry of temporary contracts.

The number shown is calculated as the total number of
persons who left during the course of the financial year.
The turnover rate describes this number in relation to the
average number of employees in the Munich Re Group in
the financial year.

Munich Re continues to record a low employee turnover rate.

Non-employees are persons who do not have an employment
contract with one of the Group companies. These are
persons who do work at Munich Re that would otherwise
be done by a staff member. They can be self-employed
persons or persons employed by a third party. They do not
include consultants who are involved (in an advisory capacity)
in special project functions. The majority of the non-
employees consists of the non-employed sales force at
ERGO, which distributes ERGO products exclusively. The
remaining self-employed staff mostly perform IT functions.
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This shows the number of persons as at the 31 December
reporting date of the financial year who do not have a contract
of employment with one of the Group companies and are
accordingly classified as non-employees in accordance with
the definition above.

No prior-year comparison is possible because this metric
was recorded to this extent for the first time for the 2024
financial year.

Providing good working conditions

Our employees, their well-being and their long-term loyalty
to us as an employer are among our most valuable capital.
In this context, we monitor the potential risk of the loss of
key personnel or critical technical skills, as well as the lack
of skilled personnel. Workforce and succession planning
measures are designed to ensure that functions continue
to be fulfilled and the availability of specialist knowledge
is retained. At the same time, we want to maintain our
employer reputation and position ourselves with strong
employer brands on the labour market.

As described above, Munich Re provides good working
conditions so that there are no negative impacts in our
business context. Munich Re provides good working
conditions by implementing a range of measures for all
staff. These include secure employment, compliance with
legal requirements, the implementation of measures
defined in local collective bargaining and social dialogue,
adequate pay, social protection, training, work/life balance,
health and well-being.

We aim to remain attractive to our employees by offering
secure jobs, competitive remuneration conditions, broad
corporate health-management offerings with a variety

of health benefits, comprehensive employee-assistance
programmes, DEI-related initiatives, as well as flexible
working options.
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As an employer, we take a proactive approach to anticipating
possible negative impacts resulting from violations of
health and safety obligations, offering a comprehensive
range of benefits to promote the flexibility, health and
well-being of our employees. The local companies adopt
additional measures according to their respective needs,
including guidelines, work instructions and training to
avoid any form of discrimination, workplace harassment
or potential human rights violations.

To be able to offer our employees consistently good
working conditions, our actions involve ongoing activities
whose adequacy we regularly review and, where necessary,
refine or adapt accordingly.

A range of “New Work"” concepts, developed and tested in
reinsurance and at ERGO and MEAG, include new workplace
concepts and policies on hybrid working.

These concepts aim to give our staff a high level of
flexibility as regards their work environment.

Munich Re’'s human resources activities are guided by the
goal of being an attractive, fair and responsible employer
and remaining so in the future. Significant elements of this
approach include attracting candidates worldwide who
have extensive expertise and experience, and then
developing and retaining them. We promote a future-
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Corresponding frameworks are in place in all fields of
business which set out rules for the various personnel
topics. In Germany, these are complemented by internal
company agreements.

The Code of Conduct respects all conditions of the
applicable laws and existing collective bargaining
agreements. This includes the maximum working hours
specified for the respective country, breaks, overtime as
well as vacation and sickness regulations of all types.

The applicable local rules governing the health and safety
of staff are applied by the relevant local entities. This
prevents negative impacts and supports positive impacts
on our staff.

In order to measure the effectiveness of our actions on
working conditions, we conduct employee surveys as part
of our Engagement Index.

No explicit Group-wide targets were formulated for the
creation of good working conditions and no timeline was
set for the formulation of such targets.

Employee inclusion/social dialogue

Share of employees covered by collective bargaining agreements

0,
focused and appreciative work culture, in which cooperation % : 2024
. L. Percentage of employees covered by collective
in our global organisation and external knowledge networks bargaining agreements 52.3
leads to the best solutions for our clients. )
Collective bargaining coverage and social dialogue
2024
Collective bargaining Social
coverage dialogue
Employees- Employees- Employees -
EEA Non-EEA EEA
Coverage rate
Americas;
Asia, Pacific,
0-19% Poland Africa
Europe (excl.
20-39% Germany)
40-59%
60-79% Poland
80-100% Germany Germany

At our companies in the European Economic Area (EEA),
with the exception of ERGO we do not have any agreements
with regard to representation by a European works council,
a works council of a European company (Societas
Europaea, SE) or a works council of a European cooperative
(Societas Cooperativa Europaea, SCE). ERGO has a
European works council that is based on an agreement
with the co-determination committees. None of our
companies in the form of an SE has set up its own works
council.
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In the EEA, Germany and Poland meet the criteria for
significant employment (more than 10% of the workforce).
At our companies in Germany, a total of 94.5% of employees
are covered by collective bargaining agreements; at our
companies in Poland, no employees are covered by them.
Collective bargaining agreements are only concluded for
non-managerial employees in Germany; accordingly, 100%
coverage of all employees cannot be achieved. Coverage in
the regions outside the EEA varies widely. Due to the local
conditions, both the American and the Asian countries have
a very low coverage.
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In Germany, dialogue with the co-determination bodies
covers the majority (over 96%) of the workforce. The only
exception is small companies that have not established

a works council. Even though no collective bargaining
terms apply to our companies in Poland, 73% of staff are
nevertheless represented by co-determination bodies.

Training and development

Our learning and development objectives and content are
based on the core skills that are relevant for our employees
across the Group. The curriculum is also regularly updated
to meet current and future demands. The development of
digital skills is significantly changing many aspects of the
way our employees work worldwide. An objective of the
Munich Re Group Ambition 2025 is therefore to build and
enhance the digital expertise of our employees. To this end,
we are continuously expanding our digital training curricula,
so that our staff master the tools and methods required to
drive the digital transformation in our respective fields of
business.

The HR departments of the individual fields of business
are primarily responsible for training measures to improve
social, methodological, management and language skills.
Content for training measures and e-learning formats on
topics such as compliance, data protection and information
security are in the remit of the respective departments.

In all fields of business, talent programmes systematically
support employees in their careers, and prepare them for
future challenges. Moreover, a Group function steers the
strategic management development and succession
planning for the top management level. Continuous talent
development is key in achieving the strategic goals of the
Munich Re Group Ambition 2025.

We develop the professional and personal skills of
particularly talented employees through various business-
field-specific and Group-wide development programmes.
At the Group level, our Group Management Platform is
primarily aimed at networking our management and
providing further training on current leadership topics.
Thereby, we also lay a foundation for succession planning
at this level. In 2024, 123 (100) staff took part in the
programme.
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Training measures
2024
Hours
Average number of training hours per employee
Female 22.1
Male 22.3
Third gender® -
Not disclosed 11.0
Total 22.2

1 No figures provided for legal reasons.

As a matter of principle, we have various centralised and
local training offerings for all employees, with a focus on
promoting digital skills. Analyses of the centrally managed
access to training measures such as “LinkedIn Learning” and
the relevant offerings by the individual Group companies,
which are recorded in a variety of systems, form the basis
for calculating the data shown. Many of the offerings are
self-learning offerings in video and audio formats.

The gender metrics illustrate the average number of
training hours by gender. The total number shows the
average number of training hours for all employees.

No prior-year comparison is possible because this metric is
being recorded for the first time.

Adequate wages

One of Munich Re's fundamental principles is to offer its
employees an attractive, competitive income. In addition
to benchmark data and the economic development of the
company, the progression of the cost of living is one of
the potential factors that determine an appropriate salary-
increase budget.

Company pension schemes are a key voluntary benefit
in many of the Group’s companies. They include various
employer-financed pension commitments and in some
cases deferred compensation.

Adequate wages

% 2024
Percentage of employees who are paid an adequate wage 100.0

Munich Re pays a salary above the minimum wage in all
countries. The values underlying the figures on adequate
wages were calculated centrally. They are based on the
respective national and regional statutory minimum wages
or, where none exist, on other country-specific benchmarks.
The adequate wages per country/region were compared
with the relevant hourly wages of the employees at our
Group companies.
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Remuneration ratio

2024
Number

Ratio of the highest paid individual to the median
annual total compensation for all employees 123.7

The remuneration of the highest paid individual at

Munich Re amounts to approximately 124 times the median
for Munich Re employees. At Munich Re, the highest paid
individual is the CEO. No prior-year comparison is possible.

To determine this figure, the remuneration paid to the CEQO in
the reporting year, plus the company pension contribution,
was used as a basis. The corresponding opposing figure for
the remuneration paid in the financial year to each
employee of Munich Re was then calculated. This included
all employees who received a salary in the financial year.
Inactive employees who are included in the headcount but
do not receive a salary, were not taken into account.

Social protection

Percentage of employees covered by social protection

% 2024
Type of social protection
Sickness 98.8
Unemployment 97.7
Occupational accident and acquired disability 98.8
Parental leave 97.1
Retirement 99.4

In the following countries, we have not achieved coverage of
100% of all staff, either through state or company protection,
for the mitigation of certain social risks: Australia, Bahrain,
Colombia, India, Oman, Singapore, Thailand, the USA and
the United Arab Emirates.

In Australia, there is no company social protection in the
event of unemployment. State social protection for that
situation depends on a number of factors, including personal
financial status. Since data on employees’ personal financial
status is not collected, we have set the figure for social
protection against unemployment in Australia at zero. In
addition, staff with temporary employment contracts in
Australia are not covered by corporate social protection
during parental leave.
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In Bahrain, only staff with permanent employment
contracts have social protection against unemployment.
Only employees with Bahraini citizenship have social
protection during retirement.

In Colombia, social protection against unemployment is
dependent on the respective employee’s salary, i.e. this risk
is no longer covered as of a certain level of remuneration.

In India, with the exception of retirement, there is no social
protection for any of the stated situations for staff at Group
companies that do not provide voluntary social protection
for the respective event.

Social protection against unemployment and during
retirement in Oman is available only to staff with Omani
citizenship.

In Singapore there is mandatory social protection during
retirement for employees with Singapore citizenship and
for permanent residents. Not all Group companies offer
additional corporate social protection during retirement or
in case of unemployment.

Our company in Thailand offers social protection during
parental leave only to female staff.

At one of our companies in the USA, length of service of at
least one year is a prerequisite for social protection during
parental leave.

Social protection during retirement in the United Arab
Emirates is only available to employees with domestic
citizenship.

Coverage of the relevant social risks is measured centrally
for each company in the course of reporting. The results for
the individual companies are then combined for the relevant
countries. The companies that do not provide social
protection for all staff and for all the named risks, were asked
to provide relevant details.

In general, the collected data shows that a very large
proportion of Munich Re employees are covered by
government and/or company insurance for most types
of social risk.

No prior-year comparison is possible because this data was
collected for the first time in this form.
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Health and safety

As a responsible employer, Munich Re wants to create a
healthy and safe working environment. Additionally, we
continuously strive to improve physical and mental health
and to increase our safety standards. With a focus on
occupational health management, a Group-wide Health,
Safety and Wellbeing Statement was developed in 2022.
This statement covers four topic areas: mental health,
physical health, social connectedness and working
environment. Munich Re is committed to the goal of
complying with the legal requirements for health and
safety in the workplace.

In line with their general governance structures, the
corporate entities in the Group coordinate their health, safety
and well-being initiatives. They ensure that the individual
corporate entities can achieve optimum compliance with the
wide variety of local legal requirements that apply to them.

Occupational healthcare management features a variety
of different offerings. These include, in addition to medical
care from the company doctor, the possibility of medical
check-ups and vaccinations.

Absences due to sickness
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Opportunities for flexible working

Munich Re offers all employees a variety of models that
enable the flexible arrangement of working hours and
location. We offer a broad range of flexible working models
which also include regular mobile working. Internal
company agreements for individual locations and fields of
business enable a good work/life balance.

Family-related leave

% 2024
Employees entitled to take family-related leave 97.6
Employees that took family-related leave 6.8
Female 8.0
Male 5.4
Third gender* =
Not disclosed 0.0

2024
Average sick leave days per employee Number 11.8
Sickness rate ) % 4.7

In the context of business activities and the working
environment of Munich Re employees, workplace accidents
that may occur in connection with the employees’ work is
not a material metric that we use to manage our actions
related to health and safety.

Munich Re uses the recording of sickness-related absences
as an indicator of the effectiveness of our actions in the areas
of health, safety and well-being.

To establish the number of sick leave days, the relevant
total time spent absent due to illness (in days) is collected
from all Group companies covered in the reporting and for
which an analysis of sick leave days is possible. Those
figures are then used to calculate the average across all
employees at the companies analysed. The sickness rate is
the ratio of the total number of sick leave days to the total
number of target working days for all Group companies
covered in the reporting and for which an analysis of sick
leave days is possible. The reported figure thus applies to
86.3% of employees covered by this report. No prior-year
comparison is possible because the composition of the
companies on which the report is based has changed
significantly.
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97.6% of Munich Re employees can take time off for
family reasons. This gives the employees the greatest
possible flexibility to master family challenges alongside
their professional activity.

6.8% of eligible employees made use of this option. The
metric reflects eligible employees and shows the proportion
of employees who took time off in the reporting period.

The largest share of time taken off is attributable to
employees who are women. The information on genders
relates in each case to the number of employees in each
category (in other words, 8% of all eligible employees who
are women took time off for family reasons in the reporting
year). No prior-year comparison is possible because this
metric is being recorded for the first time.

Diversity, equity and inclusion

We firmly believe that the diversity of our employees is a
key success factor for Munich Re and have anchored the
development thereof as a strategic focus in the Munich Re
Group Ambition 2025. Today, employees of over 100 different
nationalities work for Munich Re at more than 50 locations
worldwide.

The strategic management of DEI is carried out by a
Group-wide function. The HR departments of the business
fields are responsible for the initiatives and their operational
implementation at the respective locations and in the
respective business entities. Moreover, Munich Re
implemented Group-wide DEI governance in 2023. All
activities across the Group are coordinated by the DEI
Management Team, consisting of the Labour Relations
Directors from reinsurance, ERGO and MEAG. This
Management Team is supported by a DEI task force, which
is actively involved in the development and implementation
of our DEl initiatives at international level.
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Munich Re takes a clear stand against inequality and
discrimination in all forms. Our Group-wide Code of
Conduct, which is binding for all employees, prohibits
any form of discrimination or misconduct. In Germany,
employees receive regular mandatory training on

the German Equal Treatment Act (AGG) to promote
understanding and compliance.

Staff are also required to attend training on the Code of
Conduct each year. Channels have been established for
the reporting of discriminatory behaviour, including an
option to report anonymously and in different languages.

In the framework of our DEI-related activities, annual
Group-wide events with a variety of themes are held on
specific occasions, for example on International Women'’s
Day, during Pride Month, or on the International Day of
Persons with Disabilities.

The actions against unequal treatment and to promote
diversity involve ongoing activities whose adequacy we
regularly review and which we refine or adapt accordingly.

We have embedded employee matters in our business
strategy as part of the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025.
In this context, Munich Re’s target is to reach a 40% share
of women in management positions by the end of 2025.

“Gender” and “generation” dimensions

Employees by age group
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Achievement of the target proportion of women in
management positions is included in the multi-year bonus
for 2022 to 2025 for all members of the Board of
Management (see > General information > Governance

> Basis for preparation > Integration of sustainability-
related performance in incentive schemes > “ESG targets
as a component of the multi-year bonus” table).

The following measures are intended to increase the
proportion of women in management positions: candidate
lists and selection committees must be diverse Group-
wide, senior appointments are closely monitored by the
Board of Management, an even stronger focus on equality in
talent development is aimed for, and our progress in gender
diversity is monitored Group-wide. These key figures are
integrated into the quarterly Group-wide reporting process
for our business figures. As at 31 December 2024, we had
almost reached this goal, as 39.5% of our managers are
women.

Age distribution among staff is a key component of our
strategic projects on long-term workforce planning. The
Group-wide Equal Pay Project combines the dimensions of
gender and remuneration parameters. Based on the results
of these strategics projects, corresponding targets will be
discussed.

The effectiveness of the strategies and actions relating to
DEI are also measured using the Engagement Index.

2024
Number %
Percentage of employees per age group
under 30 years 5,656 12.3
between 30 and 50 years 24,601 53.7
over 50 years 15,558 34.0
Total 45,815 100.0
Senior managers by gender
2024
Senior management (ML1 and ML2) Number %
Gender
Female 759 34.0
Male 1,474 66.0
Third gender 0 0.0
Not disclosed 0 0.0
Total 2,233 100.0

More than 50% of Munich Re employees are between
the ages of 30 and 50, thus representing the largest age
group. The share of employees over the age of 50 is also
very high.
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The basis for calculating this metric is the number of all
employees who were employed at Munich Re as at the

31 December 2024 reporting date. The underlying number
of employees corresponds to the number that is also shown
under > Overview “Characteristics of our workforce”.
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Munich Re defines as senior management all staff who have
a management function at the first or second management
level. No prior-year comparison is possible because the
composition of the companies for this evaluation changed
significantly compared with the previous year, and data for
the previous year is not available for all underlying companies.

Remuneration parameters

Gender pay gap

% 2024

Unadjusted gender pay gap 28.7

Munich Re's unadjusted gender-specific pay gap is 28.7%
for the reporting year. The calculation is based on the
hourly pay of all Munich Re employees. It includes the
remuneration paid out in the reporting year including fixed
and variable remuneration, as well as material benefits. To
make the hourly wages comparable, the individual target
working hours for the reporting year are calculated for each
employee, so that the individual total remuneration paid
out, divided by the total number of target working hours,
produces an hourly pay rate that is comparable regardless
of the employee’s agreed number of working hours.

Other DEI criteria: Persons with disabilities

At the Munich Re Group, we aim to turn our workplace into
a space of equality and inclusion for people of all abilities.
This includes not only raising awareness, but also actively
supporting staff with disabilities and ensuring that the
workspace is free of barriers. Our goal is to remove barriers
- whether they be physical, systemic or societal - and to
create a culture in which everyone feels that they belong.

Percentage of employees with disabilities

% 2024

Percentage of employees with disabilities 4.4

Munich Re had 1,891 employees with disabilities in the
reporting year. Calculation of the metric is based only on
reports by those Group companies that are allowed to
collect data on employees with disabilities. The figure also
includes reports from Group companies which, in accordance
with local law, collect data on staff with disabilities only on
a voluntary basis, without review. The reported figure thus
applies to 94.7% of employees covered by this report.

No comparison with the current figures is possible as the
information was provided on the voluntary basis in the
previous years.
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Customer orientation and satisfaction

Insurance activities: Management of impacts,
risks and opportunities

Strategy

Maintaining a close relationship of trust with our clients is
a key element towards the success of our business. That is
why we want to understand our clients’ needs and develop
the best possible solutions for them, in a joint dialogue. For
the material impacts, risks and opportunities, we apply a
differentiated management approach under our business
model, which applies both to our reinsurance clients and to
our primary insurance customers and reflects their different
demands and needs accordingly.

Responsibilities lie with the respective Board members
and/or executives, as well as within the various local
companies. Just how important our clients are to us is
demonstrated by the fact that they are an integral part of
the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025. At Munich Re, we
manage the dialogue with our clients, and the solutions we
offer them, on the basis of our clients’ needs and growth
ambitions.

At management level, responsibility in primary insurance
for globally monitoring and continuously enhancing
customer satisfaction and the identified impacts, risks and
opportunities it contains lies with the ERGO Deutschland
Marketing, Customer Experience & Investment Products
division within the Customer Insights & Experience unit.
In reinsurance, this responsibility lies within Strategy &
Innovation, and specifically in the Sales Excellence
Development department.

Our activities and business relationships as a (re)insurance
group have a significant influence on client satisfaction. In
particular through our policies, our procedures, client
contact and the selection of our investees, we can influence
whether clients are ultimately satisfied with Munich Re’s
processes.

Following the materiality assessment to determine the
scope of reporting, we therefore identified three important
matters with regard to customer satisfaction. The identified
negative impact is that clients may be dissatisfied in the
short, medium or long term due to internal processes, for
example in claims processing or sales processes. Risks
relating to client satisfaction were also identified and, due to
their strategic relevance, included in the scope of reporting.
Such risks involve potential loss of business, reputational
damage or lower client loyalty. At the same time, we have
identified an offsetting opportunity in the area of client
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satisfaction in the form of potential additional business
through referrals by satisfied, loyal existing clients, and the
potential for selling higher-value products. We can leverage
this opportunity through, among other things, the increased
deployment of digital elements in products and services so
that we can better meet client needs, for example by
improving user interfaces and providing faster feedback. In
addition, cooperation with strategic partners, such as start-
ups, to assess underwriting risks using artificial intelligence
offers another opportunity.

If a client survey were to indicate that they are not satisfied,
we would address this and the resulting knock-on effects
by managing the issue centrally and holding discussions
with the local companies to develop joint solutions and
actions. Corresponding measures are established for the
relevant markets. For primary insurance, we acquire
additional customer feedback in certain markets in order
to obtain a full picture and initiate targeted action.

Actions

Every two years, we undertake a global satisfaction survey
among all of our reinsurance clients. This ensures that the
identified impacts, risks and opportunities are carefully
monitored and systematically tracked so that we can
counter potential negative impacts, proactively mitigate
risks and optimally leverage opportunities. The process
includes an analysis of the market and the most important
players, as well as the implementation of tailored insurance
solutions, products and services for our clients. Client
managers in reinsurance are supported by a central sales
unit that ensures transparency in our Group-wide product
and service palette. This unit is also responsible for two
event formats that take place annually as a platform for in-
depth dialogue with representatives of our key clients: the
“cDays” conference and “Advance”, an exclusive five-week
programme aimed at expanding participants’ expertise and
leadership skills, and at further developing the industry.

In addition, we offer our reinsurance clients an extensive
seminar programme on insurance-related topics, based on
our leading expertise.

In addition to our regular client satisfaction surveys, in
reinsurance we have implemented a number of measures
aimed at consolidating our client relationships. And our
operational units regularly request feedback from their
clients to complement the centrally organised survey. In
order to better respond to our clients’ suggestions for
improvement, we offer a comprehensive training programme
to all staff who have direct contact with clients.
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In primary insurance, ERGO particularly supports its
independent sales partners with various offers, for
example advisory tools and concepts, and professional
development training, to ensure continuous customer
satisfaction through professional service. The local
companies individually tailor these offers to their
respective needs. Our advice to customers by our
independent sales partners in Germany is provided using
a standardised approach (ERGO Kompass) to ensure that
quality is consistently high. ERGO also uses a variety of
tools to obtain direct feedback about new products and
services, but also about overarching strategic issues. The
main focus is its in-house market research panel (ERGO
Kundenwerkstatt) of 7,664 (7,535) customers. In 2024,
ERGO conducted 11 (30) projects and/or surveys among
the panel members. This feedback from our customers
is very important to us. Among other things, we use it in
product development and to improve our services for
them. Besides customer feedback, we also record and
assess customer complaints. This input is used as a basis
for improvements in the various areas.

Customer satisfaction in primary insurance is measured
continuously throughout the year. Since Q4 2023, we have
also been measuring overall customer satisfaction in
addition to the net promoter score (NPS). This satisfaction
is a key performance indicator for ERGO customer
satisfaction and the specific material impacts, risks and
opportunities. It enables more transparent planning of
actions.

Many customer-oriented services and digital processes
have already been established that help customers contact
ERGO and solve specific requests, and more are planned.
ERGO is also constantly working on modernising its
offerings with simple and intuitive products for both its
private and commercial customers. As a result, customer
loyalty and long-term business relations are strengthened
for potential business growth.

Metrics and targets

The overarching goal of our efforts is to maintain and
deepen the satisfaction of our clients. In our Munich Re
Group Ambition 2025, our goal is to be a long-term
partner to our clients.
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For reinsurance, our goal is to develop a stable, positive
NPS and an understanding of our clients’ strategies and
requirements, so that we can develop joint solutions. There
are currently no specific quantitative targets in the area of
client satisfaction for the identified material impacts, risks
and opportunities. There are no plans at present to define
such targets due to the differences between the local
companies. Instead, we take a client-centric approach
tailored to the circumstances on the various markets.
However, the effectiveness of our strategies and actions
relating to the identified opportunity in the area of client
satisfaction is continuously monitored and assessed through

ongoing client surveys and regular discussion of the results.

Client satisfaction, and in particular the NPS metric, are
examined in reinsurance with respect to various aspects of
the business relationship. We publish the NPS and selected
results of the survey on our website. The global satisfaction
survey of reinsurance clients was most recently conducted
in May 2024, and covers clients in North and South
America, Europe, Asia, Africa, Australia and New Zealand.
To determine the NPS, the reinsurance clients indicate on
a scale of 1 (most unlikely) to 10 (very likely) whether they
would recommend Munich Re. The responses are grouped
as follows:

- Scores of 1to 6: Detractors;
- Scores of 7 to 8: Passives;
- Scores of 9 to 10: Promoters.

The percentage share of each group is calculated based on
the total number of responses. To arrive at the definitive
NPS, the percentage of detractors is subtracted from the
percentage of promoters.

The calculation basis for the NPS for reinsurance was
modified in the current reporting period. Changes in earlier
NPS results are because surveys that were not completed
in full were previously included but are now no longer
included. The historical database for the years 2020 and
2022 was corrected accordingly.

Our most recent NPS of 63 for reinsurance in 2024 is very

high — higher again than the 2022 figure of 60. The NPS is
measured on a scale of =100 to 100.
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Over and above the Munich Re Group Ambition 2025,
ERGO's goal is to become the leading digital insurer by
2025 - both in Germany and in its core international
markets. This reflects our customers’ desire to purchase
insurance and receive customer service digitally. ERGO is
driving topics such as robotics, artificial intelligence and
voice technology in Germany and internationally, and is
expanding its digital business models and ecosystems, as
well as its annex business — in turn bringing us closer to
realising our identified opportunity of gaining additional
business.

To measure customer satisfaction in primary insurance,

we use a survey via market research panels in the individual
markets. The objective is to obtain a view of the market from
the customer perspective that is as neutral as possible.
Measurement of customer satisfaction in primary
insurance is validated by the executing service provider.

The result shows the percentage of satisfied primary
insurance customers in key core markets. Currently, the
survey is conducted in Belgium, Germany, Estonia, Greece,
India, Latvia, Lithuania, Austria, Poland and Spain. The
results are derived from the surveys, which gather feedback
from both ERGO customers and competitors. In Germany,
the surveys cover a fixed reference group, with around
4,200 responses being collected each year for ERGO and
12,000 for competitors. In each international market, around
1,600 responses are collected from ERGO customers and
from customers of competitors. Satisfaction is measured
on the basis of a five-point scale and is surveyed every year
on an ongoing basis; the reporting date is 31 December.

Based on our assessment, we can see that customer
satisfaction in primary insurance is also high. Some 94%
(94%) of customers gave ERGO or its local companies in
the core markets a rating of “good” or higher in 2024.
Satisfaction is rated overall on a scale from “poor” to

nou nou

"adequate”, “good”, “very good” or “excellent”.

The results of our monitoring identify any potential for both
improvement and differentiation in the specific lines of
business, platforms, services, products and customer
groups. We then feed these opportunities into our strategy
in the form of initiatives.



Combined management report
Combined non-financial statement

Governance information
Corporate governance and compliance

Information security: Management of risks

Strategy

Processing data and information is a core element of our
business processes. For that reason, secure information
processing and the resilient operation of our IT systems
play a key supporting role in our value chain.

Following the materiality assessment to determine the
scope of reporting, cyber attacks were identified as a risk
and, due to their strategic relevance, have been included in
the scope of reporting. Successful cyber attacks that lead
to the loss of data or failure of IT systems constitute a
financial and a reputational risk. Potential losses from
information security risks arise due to inadequate cyber
security measures; the former include disruption to business
operations, violations of legal requirements, and reputational
damage.

In this context, the Board of Management has adopted
policies and guidelines for information security management
and for business continuity management. These apply to all
operating subsidiaries and branches. They define
requirements for the management of our information
security and for business continuity management, as well as
the associated risks. They also define Group-wide minimum
requirements, targets, responsibilities, processes and
reporting procedures.

Information security fundamentally affects all employees,
both internal and external, who work with Munich Re
Group information. They are required to apply and observe
the requirements governing information security.

The monitoring of information security risks is the
responsibility of the Group Chief Information Security
Officer (Group CISO), who acts on behalf of the Board
of Management. At an operational level, information
security risks are primarily managed by IRM and IT.

In its management of information security, Munich Re
pursues three fundamental protection objectives:
protecting the confidentiality, availability and integrity of the
information being processed. Information security measures
are defined and implemented to achieve these protection
objectives. These are based on sectoral standards,
regulatory requirements and insights from peer group
comparisons.

Actions

These actions help us protect data and information, enable
resilient data processing in our value chain and prevent
potential risks. At the same time, they help us to comply
with statutory and regulatory requirements. Effective
information security risk management enables any residual
risks to be managed.
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Increasing numbers of cyber attacks, new cyber aggressors
and attack scenarios jeopardise our protection objectives.
Growing regulatory requirements relating to security also
present new challenges in the area of information security.
For this reason, we continuously review our information
security measures and processes and adapt them to meet
the constantly changing technical and legal requirements, for
instance from the Digital Operational Resilience Act (DORA).

We also continuously refine the processes and supporting
IT systems for information security to reflect technical
improvements. These include the introduction of platforms
that enable more efficient, flexible, and secure collaboration.

The information security measures comprise preventive
protection measures on the one hand, and measures for
effectively identifying cyber attacks and for ensuring
systematic management in the event of security incidents
on the other.

To verify the measures we have implemented, Munich Re
regularly tests its resilience and responsiveness to external
attacks. The insights we gain from this help increase our
future resilience and responsiveness.

Our employees are trained regularly using e-learning
programs about information security. These are mandatory
for all employees.

There is also a defined reporting process that specifies who
employees can turn to if they notice something suspicious.
Such measures help keep our confidential data appropriately
protected against unauthorised access, malicious use,
manipulation and loss.

Metrics and targets

Our overriding objective is to ensure the security of our
employee and client data in the long term, by effectively
defending against serious attacks and ensuring that the
consequences of successful attacks are kept to a minimum.

For Munich Re, extending our information security
landscape while also meeting regulatory requirements has
top priority. For that reason, the Supervisory Board agreed
on targets for enhancing our own cyber security as well as
complying with and implementing the corresponding
regulatory requirements, within the ESG targets for the
Board of Management members' 2024-2027 and 2025-
2028 multi-year bonuses (see > General information

> Governance > Integration of sustainability-related
performance in incentive schemes > “ESG targets as a
component of the multi-year bonus” table).

Due to the sensitivity of the data and the potential for
undesirable criminal incentives in the area of cyber
security, we do not currently report any metrics or related
quantitative targets externally. We have thus exercised the
option, in accordance with ESRS, not to disclose sensitive
confidential information.
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Compliance: Management of impacts and
risks

Strategy

Munich Re operates in highly regulated industries,
including (re)insurance and the investment business.
Our business is consequently based on compliance with
all applicable statutory, supervisory and other external
requirements, in particular those related to primary
insurance, reinsurance and investment business. Our
compliance function and the Compliance Management
System (CMS) provide guidance and clarity, helping
Munich Re to navigate the complexity of regulatory
requirements and to comply with them in the course of
doing business. In addition, the compliance function
provides advice on the legally compliant realisation of
business opportunities. We strive to improve the positive
perception of Munich Re among our staff, clients and other
stakeholders and to instil confidence through compliant
conduct in the work and business environments, in turn
contributing to a values-based corporate culture.

Each and every staff member is accountable for integrity
and compliance. Compliance is thus a key element of our
business processes, allowing us to fulfil our responsibilities
and to embody integrity.

The ultimate responsibility for implementing the minimum
standards lies with the Board of Management.

Our compliance department manages compliance activities
through Group-wide standards. In addition to the Group
function, there are further local compliance functions
within the fields of business, as well as decentralised
compliance functions for selected compliance programmes.

Compliance and regulatory risks were identified as a result
of the materiality assessment and, due to their strategic
relevance, included in the scope of reporting. We counter
the dynamics of changing and new external regulations

by continuously monitoring and analysing the regulatory
environment and by taking the necessary measures and
adjustments. Non-compliance with external requirements
and regulations can lead to legal consequences and

fines — not to mention damage to Munich Re's reputation.

Existing compliance risks arising from non-compliance
with external and internal requirements are therefore
regularly identified and assessed as well as managed
through programmes and actions. It is a top priority for
Munich Re to indefinitely maintain our stakeholders’ trust
by aligning our conduct with rules and ethical principles.

Munich Re’s Code of Conduct in particular defines key
principles, in turn serving as a binding framework for all
Group activities. The Code of Conduct is the basis of our
compliance culture.
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Our business activities are embedded in a compliance
culture based on our ethical principles. These principles are
particularly reflected in the Munich Re Code of Conduct,
our main standard outlining our expectations of our staff
to act responsibly and to respect the rules and regulations.
In addition to our basic standards for fair and responsible
conduct - covering topics such as handling conflicts of
interest correctly, preventing corruption, ensuring
compliance with antitrust law, observing economic
sanctions, preventing money laundering, and complying
with tax regulations — our Code of Conduct also
emphasises sustainability, human rights, responsible
leadership, fostering a culture of trust and transparency
("speak-up culture”), whistleblower protection and other
topics.

As a global financial institution, we see ourselves operating
in a fundamentally risk-prone environment with regard to
corruption and bribery. For this reason, we consider all our
company functions to be risk-prone accordingly.

Our Code of Conduct also obliges us to uphold international
guidelines and instruments. We joined the UN Global
Compact in 2007. The ten principles of the UN Global
Compact, such as fighting corruption, are core elements of
our ESG-related strategies. Based on our Code of Conduct,
all current and new Munich Re staff undertake to act with
integrity and reliability.

We have set up dedicated compliance programmes as
minimum standards for compliance risks of Group-wide
relevance, for example corruption and bribery, financial
sanctions, money laundering and antitrust law, sales
compliance, and data protection. Monitoring the
implementation of these programmes is the responsibility
of the respective local compliance organisation. Due to its
international business activities, Munich Re is also subject
to foreign corruption-prevention laws such as the

US Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the UK Bribery Act.
Accordingly, we have established Group-wide minimum
standards that govern the correct handling of gifts and
hospitality, donations and sponsorship, as well as on
interacting with public officials. A zero-tolerance policy
for corruption is an integral part of our compliance
programme. Munich Re is also committed to the fight
against money laundering and terrorist financing. The
companies that are subject to the German Money
Laundering Act (GWG) have been set up accordingly;
officers responsible for money laundering issues, and their
deputies, have been appointed where mandated by the
GWG. ERGO and MEAG have, through internal anti-money
laundering policies, set up fundamental standards for their
staff in the relevant companies to prevent money laundering
and terrorist financing. Duly identifying customers, service
providers and suppliers is part of the know-your-customer
principle and the process is integrated into corresponding
due diligence checks.



Combined management report
Combined non-financial statement

Staff can use our norm management system to access
relevant guidelines and minimum requirements. Targeted
training measures help staff to understand and comply
with key requirements in the long term. Material revisions
of and amendments to guidelines are communicated ad
hoc, as necessary.

Actions

Compliance Management System (CMS)

To avoid material compliance risks and to pursue our
strategy consistently in accordance with rules and laws,
Munich Re established a Compliance Management System
(CMS) that defines minimum requirements for the entire
Group. Our CMS helps to foster a culture of adherence to
rules and standards by Munich Re, its management and its
staff — and to monitor compliance with appropriate action.

Our CMS was developed on the basis of external
compliance standards such as ISO 19600 and IDW PS 980
from the German Institute of Certified Accountants

(IDW) — and carefully tailored to meet Munich Re's needs. It
is regularly reviewed and continuously improved. The CMS
provides the methodological framework for the structured
implementation of the early-warning, risk-control, advising
and monitoring functions.

Munich Re’s CMS is geared to the aforementioned goals
and is designed as follows:

i
/ )

-Norms
Advisory

T~
Continuous
improvement
of measures
and controls

Communication
Training

Risk assessment
Monitoring

Investigation Reporting

Compliance organisation
Implementation of 1st- and 2nd-
line compliance responsibilities

The scope and means of implementing compliance
activities with regard to the above-mentioned CMS
elements are guided by the risk profile of the respective
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Group company, though the implementation of minimum
standards that apply throughout the Group is mandatory
for all entities. Material compliance risks are identified and
mitigated using Group-wide methodology. Controls are
monitored and any potential violations that may occur,
despite preventative measures, are investigated without
exception and followed up.

Prevention

We have set ourselves the goal of enabling our staff to
conduct themselves ethically and compliantly through a
defined reference framework, including a Group-wide Code
of Conduct, guidelines and standards. Training, advice for
managers and staff, and proper communication of relevant
content also play important roles in this regard.

Our staff are required to familiarise themselves with the
principles and rules anchored in our Code of Conduct,

as well as to regularly complete training in person or via
e-learning programs. Annual mandatory tests on selected
Code of Conduct topics - such as fighting corruption or
complying with antitrust law - help staff to grasp and
internalise the training content. In this way staff demonstrate
every three years that they understand all aspects of the
Code of Conduct.

The compliance norms specify principles and minimum
requirements for avoiding and managing material compliance
risks within the Munich Re Group.

The internal advisory function responds to compliance-
related questions, provides advice on specific cases, issues
general recommendations, and shows senior management
as well as managers and staff how to assess and avoid
compliance risks, but also how to avoid potential external
and internal breaches and respond accordingly.

Our Group-wide communication and training courses are
aimed at increasing awareness of compliance risks and
dealing with them effectively. Both are tailored to the needs
of the various German and international Group companies
and their respective business models.

For companies within the reinsurance group, ERGO and
MEAG, we also offer risk-based additional training
programmes on the specific compliance risks of corruption
and bribery, antitrust law, data protection, information
security, and insider trading law. Staff must pass mandatory
tests on these various subjects every two to three years.
Line managers and the compliance organisation continually
verify that staff complete all mandatory tests.
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Detection

Assessing compliance risks includes the systematic
identification, analysis and mitigation of such risks. The
process is based on a Group-wide coordinated methodology
to identify, assess and document risks. Munich Re’s material
compliance risks and the corresponding mitigation measures
are analysed and reported to the Board of Management at
least once a year. The main risk areas include data protection,
financial sanctions, antitrust law, use of external staff,
money laundering, sales compliance, corruption and ESG.
The management of changes to the law is part of our risk
assessment, allowing us to evaluate in good time any
possible effects of changes in the legal environment. The
topics of Al and greenwashing were a particular focus in
this regard in 2024. Monitoring consists of evaluating
whether the implemented measures for mitigating material
compliance risks are appropriate and effective. It also
includes reviewing the defined frameworks and evaluating
the design and effectiveness of the controls implemented.
If there are any suspicions or allegations of illegal activity
and/or misconduct within the company, internal
investigations are conducted by the compliance function.
We have set up a comprehensive whistleblower system for
reporting suspicious activity.

Response

Continuous improvement means regularly reviewing our
CMS and compliance measures on the basis of risk
assessments, monitoring and other relevant information
from the various departments (audit reports, legal changes,
organisational changes, etc.), and making adjustments if
necessary. In this regard, the maturity level of the CMS is
determined annually on the basis of quantitative and
qualitative surveys and metrics. This includes monitoring of
the completion rates of mandatory online tests, for example
on anti-corruption, antitrust law, data protection and the
Code of Conduct. The same applies to the number of
whistleblower reports and other allegations received, as
well as to the number, topics and severity of compliance
violations identified.

Compliance reports are submitted every six months to the
Board of Management, annually to the Audit Committee,
and ad hoc when required. Reporting includes, but is not
limited to, information on significant compliance risks

and mitigating action, compliance-related violations and
statements regarding the maturity level of the CMS,

as well as an overview of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the procedures established to comply with external
requirements. Reporting also involves regularly
communicating with supervisory authorities such as BaFin.
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Whistleblowing portal

We maintain Group-wide channels to report and record
violations of the law and other regulations. Staff can report
potential violations to Group Compliance and Legal or their
line manager. In addition, they have the option to contact
an external, independent ombudsman. The compliance
whistleblowing portal is available to all staff and external
parties for reporting violations. This setup allows allegations
to be reported securely, anonymously and confidentially.
Any reports received are forwarded to Group Compliance
and Legal or the relevant local compliance organisation.

It is ensured at all times that the investigating compliance
function remains independent.

The whistleblowing portal can be used to report potential
violations relating to financial crime (corruption, financial
sanctions, fraud), regulatory requirements, money
laundering, tax law, antitrust law, insider trading, sales
compliance, data protection, human rights (and other ESG
matters), gender discrimination, sexual harassment,
diversity and violations of equal-treatment provisions. The
function protecting whistleblower anonymity in Munich Re's
compliance whistleblowing portal has been externally
certified under ISO 27001.

Munich Re’s whistleblowing portal complies with the
legal requirements, as amended, of the EU Whistleblowing
Directive 2019/1937.

All our compliance measures serve to sustainably protect
Munich Re’s reputation and to mitigate the consequences
of any non-compliance with external requirements. We
continuously review the adequacy and effectiveness of our
actions and swiftly make any necessary adjustments.

Metrics and targets

In line with our strategy, we fundamentally do not tolerate
any staff misconduct or any Group non-compliance with
external requirements. We therefore seek to avoid any
severe compliance violations with material financial effects.
The knowledge gained from investigating suspected cases
and violations are used to continuously improve the CMS.
The specific actions that we initiated as a result of
confirmed violations include, in particular, improvements
of processes and guidelines, disciplinary actions such as
verbal warnings, written warnings and termination of
employment, and training measures. Beyond general
target-setting, the multi-year bonus for 2023-2026 is tied
to governance metrics, particularly the compliance culture
at Munich Re; see > General information > Governance

> Integration of sustainability-related performance in
incentive schemes > “ESG targets as a component of the
multi-year bonus” table. Senior managers within the Group
ensure through regular tone-from-the-top activities within
their areas of accountability that the compliance culture
continues to be on a high level and, consequently, in alignment
with the interests of staff.
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Metrics are important instruments for our Compliance
Management System and for honing our measures.
These metrics particularly include the coverage and
participation rates of internal compliance courses, and
data on compliance incidents.

Compliance training

Each and every staff member is accountable for compliance.
We therefore strive to help all staff members and all
managers by raising awareness of relevant compliance
risks and providing appropriate training courses. Board of
Management members at Group companies also complete
training on relevant compliance matters.

Our staff members and managers are required to complete
training courses, tailored to target groups, in person or via
e-learning programs, on the Code of Conduct and selected
compliance topics, such as anti-corruption, ensuring
compliance with antitrust law, or data protection
requirements. Where necessary, training content is tailored
to meet local requirements.

One of our top priorities in compliance training is to raise
awareness among Munich Re staff with respect to anti-
corruption. Anti-corruption training addresses appropriate
conduct, among others regarding gifts and hospitality,
particularly with respect to interactions with public
officials. As a rule, Munich Re staff members complete
training every three years on our Code of Conduct, which
addresses corruption and bribery, among other subjects.
Moreover, staff members in the reinsurance group
complete an anti-corruption refresher course every two
years. To this end, all Munich Re staff members were
required to complete compliance training courses designed
to combat bribery and corruption in the reporting year. The
effectiveness of training activities is measured by continually
monitoring rates of completion of the mandatory tests on
the training content.
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Compliance violations

Munich Re records any violation - be it of purely internal
requirements, of statutory or regulatory rules, of supervisory
requirements, or of other external rules (hereinafter: “external
requirements”) — as a compliance incident. Such incidents
constitute an essential component of our reporting to the
Boards of Management and Supervisory Board Audit
Committees of Munich Re companies.

In the 2024 financial year, 467 (2023: 497) allegations of
potential misconduct were received through the various
reporting channels (see > Whistleblowing portal) at
Munich Re, ERGO and MEAG. All allegations were first
subjected to a plausibility test and then carefully and
impartially investigated where necessary, while protecting
the whistleblower and maintaining their anonymity. It was
ensured at all times that the investigating function remained
independent. No severe violations with a material financial
impact were identified. Details about the allegations and
violations of ex